
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
II. Approval of Agenda

III. Chairman's Remarks
IV. Message from the Executive Director
V. Consideration of the Minutes

VI. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports
VII. Monthly Procurement Report

VIII. Committee Reports
IX. Presentation and Consideration of the Project Reports and Resolutions
X. Other Business

XI. Public Comment
XII. Adjournment

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

February 8, 2018
9:30 a.m.

REGULAR MEETING

Michael A. Bilandic Building
160 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60601

 

Suite S-1000

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 1



Call-In: 888-494-4032 3:00 PM
Passcode: 431 498 6139# 172263

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

A) Justin Joseph Bergbower
Fox (North) & Willow Hill Townships 

(Jasper County)
$86,820                        -                          -   PE/LK

B) Brett D. Jaeger
Pitman Township (Montgomery 

County)
$303,000                        -                          -   PE/LK

$389,820                        -                          -   

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

2
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Better 
Housing Foundation Ernst Portfolio Project)

Chicago (Cook County) $25,000,000                         1  N/A RF/BF

$25,000,000                         1  N/A 

$25,389,820                 1  N/A 

TOTAL EDUCATIONAL, CULTURAL, AND NON-HEALTHCARE 501(c)(3) PROJECTS

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

EDUCATIONAL, CULTURAL AND NON-HEALTHCARE 501(c)(3) PROJECTS

Beginning Farmer Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

1

TOTAL AGRICULTURE PROJECTS

Board Meeting
February 8, 2018
Page 2

PROJECT REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS

AGRICULTURE PROJECTS

GRAND TOTAL

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 2



.

Tab Staff

3 RF/BF

4 RF/BF

5 RF/BF

6 SL

7 PL

8 PL

9 EW/RO

10 CM

11 CM

Resolution Approving the Restructuring of the Illinois Finance Authority MedCap Program to the Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program; Authorizing 
the Executive Director of the Illinois Finance Authority to Take Steps Related to the Implementation of the Program

Board Meeting

Resolution Approving the Development of the Illinois Finance Authority Ownership and Project Finance Program; and Authorizing the Executive Director 
of the Illinois Finance Authority to Take Steps Related to the Implementation of the Program

Resolution Approving Implementation of a New Participation Loan Program for the Illinois Finance Authority, and Delegating Authority to Establish 
Policies and Procedures for Such Program within Parameters

PROJECT REPORTS AND RESOLUTIONS

February 8, 2018
Page 3

RESOLUTIONS

Preliminary Bond Resolution Approving the Issuance of Illinois Finance Authority Taxable Revenue Bonds, in One or More Series, for the Benefit of 
Certain Community Banks and Bank Holding Companies and for the Purposes Set Forth Herein in an Aggregate Principal Amount Now Estimated Not to 
Exceed $250,000,000

Resolutions

Action

Resolution Delegating to the Executive Director of the Illinois Finance Authority the Power to Develop and Administer a Commercial Property Assessed 
Clean Energy Program

Resolution Approving Supplement to Final Bond Resolution Approved by IFA Board of Directors as of December 14, 2017 that will Specifically Authorize 
the Issuance of One or More Series of IFA Taxable Series 2018 Bonds (The University of Chicago)

Resolution Approving and Confirming Various Procurement Matters, Including (I) a Contract with Baker & Hostetlter LLP (Legal Services), (II) a Contract 
with The Crypsis Group (Network Services), (III) a Personal Services Contract with Cathy Lydon (Consulting Services), (IV) a Personal Services Contract 
with Janella Kaczanko (Consulting Services), (V) an Amendment to a Contract with Catalyst Consulting Group, Inc. (Information Technology Consulting 
and Support), and (VI) an Assignment of a Contract (Legal Services) from Polsinelli P.C. to Barnes & Thornburg LLP

Appointment of Secretary and Assistant Secretary of the Illinois Finance Authority and Matters Related Thereto

Appointment of Treasurer of the Illinois Finance Authority

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2018 
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Gila J. Bronner George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
   
 
From:  Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
 
Subject: Message from the Executive Director 
 
 
Dear Member of the Authority: 
 

As the Authority’s last meeting on December 14, 2017 adjourned, the fate of private activity 
bonds (“PABs” or federally tax-exempt conduit bonds) still lay in the hands of the Congressional 
Conference Committee.  In pursuit of the Authority’s state statutory mission, PABs are the primary job 
creation/retention and economic development tool - as well as the Authority’s predominant revenue 
source.   
 

Fortunately, late the next day, on Friday, December 15, 2017, we learned, in the words of The 
Bond Buyer headline, that the “final tax bill gives muni market the gift of continued private activity 
bonds.”  This happy news came too late in the production cycle of the Authority’s Fiscal Year 2017 
Financial Audit, prepared and published on December 21, 2017 by the Office of the Illinois Auditor 
General, to be included in a subsequent event note.   
 

Sadly for American taxpayers, advance refunding, an essential tool to save interest costs, was 
eliminated in the final federal tax legislation.  The elimination of advance refunding is expected by some 
commentators to reduce overall dollar volume in the municipal market by between 15% and 40%.    It 
will also needlessly cost state and local taxpayers, patients, students and utility rate payers (all of whom 
are also federal taxpayers) more in interest costs to finance infrastructure investments of all kinds, e.g. 
hospitals, schools, universities, water and sewer plants, housing projects, as well as roads and bridges.   
 

A note of thanks to the Authority staff team for their extraordinary collective work to document 
and close the private activity bond/conduit transactions approved in November and December 2017.  The 
net result of this compression of activity is very good financial news for the Authority.  As will be 
discussed in greater detail in the financial report, the Authority has made its budget, with a profit (retained 
earnings) as of January 31, 2017 for the entire twelve month reporting period of Fiscal Year 2018.   
 

An organizational near death experience, like the one presented by the federal tax legislation, tends to 
focus the mind.  Accordingly, we have focused intently on diversifying the revenue sources of the 
Authority consistent with our state statutory mission.  Among the items in various stages of development, 
I am proud to highlight: 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 4



 
 

o Taxable community bank financing preliminary resolution, the Authority’s first foray 
into the rapidly developing Impact or Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) 
sector;  

o Reinvention of the Authority’s business loan programs with a priority to stand up a 
veteran-owned business loan program that will meet the capital access needs of today’s 
entrepreneurs who are veterans;  

o Engaging Authority resources to help make the State’s recently enacted property assessed 
clean energy program a success that will deliver energy efficiency improvements to 
commercial properties in an economically effective manner;  

o Using the Authority’s longstanding, but over the past few decades little used, capital asset 
purchase powers to better serve our hospital and healthcare system borrowers;   

o Restructuring the Authority’s MedCap Program as the Medium Term Healthcare Finance 
Program to better serve the needs of our healthcare borrowers; and 

o Development of a New American Infrastructure Model (“NAIM”) that could be a path to 
both the reduction of unfunded public pension liabilities and provide new dollars for 
infrastructure investments. 

 
 These are but six of the approximately dozen serious ideas for new revenues and revenue lines 
that we are under active development and exploration.  Not all of these ideas will be successful, but I am 
confident that under the leadership of this Board, we will succeed in transforming and diversifying the 
Authority’s offerings in order to have greater positive impact to economic development in Illinois and to 
the diversify the revenues and operations of the Authority.    
 

As always, I look forward to continuing to work with you in support of jobs and financing capital 
expansion projects throughout our state. 
 
Respectfully,  
 

 
___________________ 
Christopher B. Meister 
Executive Director   
 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 5



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2018  
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Gila J. Bronner George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
   
 
Subject: Minutes of the November 9, 2017 Regular Meeting 
 
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Sullivan Reporting Co. (the “Minutes”) in 
connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), 
begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, 
Illinois 60601, on the second Thursday of November in the year 2017, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of 
the State of Illinois (the “Act”). 
 
To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, November 9, 2017 
9:30 AM 

 
AGENDA: 

 
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 (page 3, line 1 through page 4, line 24)  
II. Approval of Agenda 
 (page 5, line 1 through page 5, line 18) 
III. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 5, lines 19 through 23; page 33, line 5 through page 37, line 1) 
IV. Message from the Executive Director 
 (page 37, line 2 through page 51, line 11) 
V. Consideration of the Minutes 
 (page 5, line 24 through page 6, line 16) 
VI. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 
 (page 6, line 17 through page 7, line 19) 
VII. Monthly Procurement Report 
 (page 7, line 20 through page 9, line 12) 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 6



 
 
VIII. Committee Reports 
 (page 9, line 13 through page 10, line 2) 
IX. Presentation and Consideration of the Project Reports and Resolutions 
 (page 10, line 3 through page 33, line 4) 
X. Other Business 
 (page 51, line 12 through page 52, line 24) 
XI. Public Comment 
 (page 53, lines 1 through 15) 
XII. Adjournment 
 (page 53, line 16 through page 54, line 7) 
 
The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 
enclosed. 
 
Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Brad R. Fletcher           
Assistant Vice President 
 
 
Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the November 9, 2017 Regular Meeting 
  2. Voting Record of the November 9, 2017 Regular Meeting 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 7



1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
G
U
L
A
R
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
9
,
 
2
0
1
7
 
a
t
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
 

3 4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
O
F
 
P
R
O
C
E
E
D
I
N
G
S
 
h
a
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 

5

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 

6

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
9
,
 
2
0
1
7
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
u
r
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 

7

 
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
,
 
a
t
 
1
6
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
L
a
S
a
l
l
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
S
-
1
0
0
0
,
 

8

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2

 
 
A
P
P
E
A
R
A
N
C
E
S
:
 

1

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
E
R
I
C
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 

2

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
L
E
Y
 
A
.
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
G
E
R
 
E
.
 
P
O
O
L
E
 

3

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
G
E
O
R
G
E
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
Y
L
E
 
M
c
C
O
Y
 

4

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
E
R
R
Y
 
K
N
O
X
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
R
L
E
N
E
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
 

5

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
W
.
 
G
O
E
T
Z
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
B
E
T
H
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
 

6

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
G
I
L
A
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
 
(
V
i
a
 
A
u
d
i
o
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
)
 

7

 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 

8

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
,
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
I
C
H
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

9

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
P
A
M
E
L
A
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
W
E
B
E
R
,
 
I
F
A
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
X
I
M
E
N
A
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
,
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
l
e
r
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
R
I
S
T
O
P
H
E
R
 
B
.
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
E
R
R
Y
 
F
R
A
N
Z
E
N
,
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
P
A
T
R
I
C
K
 
E
V
A
N
S
,
 
A
g
r
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 
B
a
n
k
e
r
 
(
V
i
a
 
A
u
d
i
o
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
)
 

1
3

 
 
G
U
E
S
T
S
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
,
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
o
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 

 
 
 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
C
a
r
e
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
,
 
V
i
c
e
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
B
a
n
k
i
n
g
,
 
J
.
P
.
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
.
 
M
A
R
K
 
D
e
A
N
G
E
L
I
S
,
 
E
S
Q
,
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
,
 
D
e
s
a
k
 

 
 
 
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
C
o
r
p
.
 

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 8



3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
o
r
d
e
r
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

3

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
r
o
l
l
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
f
i
r
s
t
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

2
4

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
a
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

2

 
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
a
n
y
 

4

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
G
i
l
a
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 

7

 
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 

8

 
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
b
y
l
a
w
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
1

 
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
m
a
k
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
,
 

1
5

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
h
a
s
 

2
2

 
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
r
o
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 9



5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 

1

 
 
a
n
y
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 

2

 
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

5

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
G
i
l
a
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 

1
7

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
a
r
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

1
9

 
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 
u
p
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
a
t
 
a
 
h
a
r
d
 
s
t
o
p
 

2
0

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
G
i
l
a
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
d
e
f
e
r
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
 

2
1

 
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
g
o
t
 
a
 

2
2

 
 
l
o
t
 
t
o
 
t
a
l
k
 
a
b
o
u
t
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
:
 
D
o
e
s

2
4

6

 
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 

1

 
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
 
1
2
t
h
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

4

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 
a
 

9

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
m
y
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
,
 
I
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
l
e
r
 

1
9

 
 
G
r
a
n
d
a
 
t
o
 
f
o
c
u
s
 
o
n
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
l
o
a
d
 

2
0

 
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
l
a
s
t
 
T
h
u
r
s
d
a
y
'
s
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 

2
1

 
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
s
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
i
s
 

2
2

 
 
m
o
n
t
h
'
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
d
e
f
e
r
r
e
d
 
u
n
t
i
l
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 10



7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
o
 
r
e
m
i
n
d
 

1

 
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
,
 
w
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
-
t
o
-
d
a
t
e
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
o
f
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
,
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
0
t
h
,
 
a
t
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 

3

 
 
$
5
1
1
,
0
0
0
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
i
n
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
,
 
w
e
 
o
n
l
y
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
a
 

5

 
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
I
o
w
a
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 

6

 
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
'
s
 
N
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
o
r
 
P
r
i
v
a
t
e
 

7

 
 
A
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
B
o
n
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
1
9
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

8

 
 
f
e
e
 
o
f
 
$
1
7
,
5
0
0
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
m
e
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
o
r
s
 
-
-
 
o
u
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
o
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 

1
1

 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
r
e
 
M
a
r
s
h
a
l
'
s
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 

1
2

 
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
e
 
t
r
u
c
k
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
o
r
s
,
 

1
5

 
 
i
t
'
s
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
e
 
w
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 

1
6

 
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
p
u
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
i
n
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
1
7
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
f
 
n
o
t
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
T
e
r
r
y
 
F
r
a
n
z
e
n
 
o
n
 

2
0

 
 
o
u
r
 
t
e
a
m
 
b
r
i
e
f
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
t
h
e
 
M
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

2
1

 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
N
Z
E
N
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
M
r
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

2
3

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.

2
4

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
,
 
y
o
u
 
s
e
e
 

1

 
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
f
i
v
e
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
r
d
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
:
 
o
n
e
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
u
r
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
w
o
 
f
o
r
 
I
T
 

3

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
o
r
d
e
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
e
 
f
o
r
 
p
o
s
t
a
g
e
 
m
e
t
e
r
 

4

 
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
U
P
S
 
s
h
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
o
f
f
 
a
 

5

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
M
a
s
t
e
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
o
f
 

6

 
 
r
e
n
e
w
i
n
g
,
 
I
F
A
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
i
g
g
y
b
a
c
k
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
i
t
 
a
s
 
s
o
o
n
 
a
s
 

7

 
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
A
s
s
e
t
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 

9

 
 
n
o
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
g
e
 
i
s
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
b
y
 
$
1
6
5
,
0
0
0
,
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
i
l
y
 

1
1

 
 
f
o
r
 
s
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
u
p
g
r
a
d
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
s
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
n
e
w
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 

1
3

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
i
m
e
k
e
e
p
i
n
g
 
m
o
d
u
l
e
s
 
t
o
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 

1
4

 
 
i
n
h
o
u
s
e
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
s
t
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
e
x
p
i
r
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
8
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
w
o
 
q
u
i
c
k
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
d
 
w
o
r
k
l
o
a
d
 
o
f
 
l
a
s
t
 
T
h
u
r
s
d
a
y
'
s
 

2
0

 
 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m
e
n
t
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
t
e
a
d
i
l
y
 

2
1

 
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
c
h
a
n
g
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
A
D
P
 
T
o
t
a
l
S
o
u
r
c
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
,
 

2
2

 
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 
o
u
r
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 

2
3

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
D
i
s
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 11



9

 
 
o
f
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
.
 
 
D
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
h
i
f
t
 
i
n
 
f
o
c
u
s
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 

1

 
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
m
e
e
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
e
a
d
l
i
n
e
.
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
a
d
v
i
s
e
d
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 

3

 
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 

4

 
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
p
l
a
n
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
1
s
t
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
T
e
r
r
y
 
n
o
t
e
d
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
m
a
d
e
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
 

6

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 
i
n
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
M
a
s
t
e
r
 
I
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 

7

 
 
B
r
o
k
e
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
s
c
o
p
e
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
I
T
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
t
o
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
y
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
 

9

 
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
n
o
 
n
e
g
a
t
i
v
e
 

1
0

 
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
:
 
T
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 

1
3

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

1
4

 
 
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
5

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
a
s
 
I
t
e
m
 
6
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
T
a
x
-
E
x
e
m
p
t
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
T
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
e
d
 

1
8

 
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
e
a
c
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
s
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
r
e
e
 

2
0

 
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
s
;
 
C
H
F
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
L
L
C
;
 
B
e
t
t
e
r
 

2
1

 
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
/
W
i
n
d
y
 
C
i
t
y
 
P
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
;
 

2
2

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
;
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 

2
3

 
 
B
e
t
h
e
s
d
a
 
H
o
m
e
 
&
 
R
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
.

2
4

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
m
o
v
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 

3

 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 

5

 
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 

6

 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
,
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 

7

 
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
v
o
t
e
 
a
p
p
l
y
 
t
o
 
e
a
c
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
 

8

 
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 

9

 
 
a
n
y
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 

1
2

 
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
4
,
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
,
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
m
y
 
s
o
n
 

1
5

 
 
w
o
r
k
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
n
y
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
8

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
,
 
B
e
t
h
e
s
d
a
 
H
o
m
e
 
&
 
R
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

1
9

 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
,
 

2
0

 
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
m
y
 
h
u
s
b
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

2
2

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
4
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
a
s
 

2
3

 
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
 
v
o
t
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
o
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 12



1
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
n
g
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
6
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
L
e
n
a
n
e
,
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
I
t
e
m
 

2

 
 
N
o
.
 
4
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
t
o
 
e
x
i
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 

3

 
 
a
s
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
,
 
t
h
a
t
 

5

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 
h
i
m
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 

6

 
 
e
x
i
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
t
e
m
 
i
s
 
N
o
.
 
4
 
o
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
N
o
.
 
4
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
o
k
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
C
a
r
e
 
i
s
 

1
0

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
$
8
0
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
b
o
n
d
 
-
-
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
a
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

1
3

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
l
a
s
t
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
 
a
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
i
m
e
 

1
4

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
e
d
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
9
A
 

1
6

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
9
B
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

1
7

 
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
L
e
t
'
s
 
s
e
e
.
 
 
A
 
a
n
d
 
B
.
 

1
8

 
 
A
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
9
 
C
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
D
u
P
a
g
e
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
C
a
r
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
;
 

1
9

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
9
B
 
C
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
D
u
P
a
g
e
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
C
a
r
e
 

2
0

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

2
1

 
 
2
0
0
3
A
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
C
,
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
l
n
o
r
-
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
s
;
 

2
2

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
F
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
2
0
0
2
A
 
t
o
 

2
3

 
 
2
0
0
2
D
,
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
l
n
o
r
-
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
s
.

2
4

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

1

 
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
 
T
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
N
o
t
e
s
,
 

2

 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
A
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
 

3

 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
a
n
 

4

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
4
9
9
,
6
0
5
 
s
q
u
a
r
e
 
f
o
o
t
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
a
t
 

5

 
 
1
1
0
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
W
e
s
t
m
o
r
e
l
a
n
d
 
R
o
a
d
 
i
n
 
L
a
k
e
 
F
o
r
e
s
t
,
 

6

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
L
a
k
e
 
F
o
r
e
s
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
f
o
r
e
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
a
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 

8

 
 
w
e
 
o
n
l
y
 
h
a
d
 
-
-
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
m
e
 
-
-
 
o
n
l
y
 
h
a
d
 
W
e
l
l
s
 
F
a
r
g
o
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
B
a
r
c
l
a
y
s
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
a
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
i
n
c
e
 

1
0

 
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
t
w
o
 
m
i
n
o
r
i
t
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
-
 
-
-
 
c
o
-
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
s
:
 
L
o
o
p
 

1
1

 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
,
 
L
L
C
,
 
a
n
d
 
C
a
b
r
e
r
a
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
h
a
s
 
2
4
,
0
0
0
 

1
3

 
 
j
o
b
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
2
4
0
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
j
o
b
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 
F
o
r
e
s
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
,
 

1
6

 
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
l
i
s
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
s
 
4
 
a
n
d
 
6
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
m
 
n
o
t
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
p
e
a
t
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
m
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
'
s
 

1
9

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
a
r
e
 
A
 
-
-
 
A
a
2
 
b
y
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
A
A
+
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
r
e
a
f
f
i
r
m
e
d
 
i
n
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
w
e
e
k
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
-
-
 
i
f
 
w
e
 
g
o
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
o
n
 

2
3

 
 
p
a
g
e
 
-
-
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
8
,
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
s
e
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
v
e
r
y

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 13



1
3

 
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
9
.
4
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
4
2
0
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 

2

 
 
o
f
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
$
7
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
n
o
w
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
L
e
a
h
 

4

 
 
H
o
b
s
o
n
,
 
w
h
o
'
s
 
t
h
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
o
f
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 

5

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
b
r
i
e
f
l
y
 
w
a
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
d
v
a
n
t
a
g
e
 
o
f
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
m
e
e
t
 
y
o
u
 
a
n
d
 
s
a
y
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 

1
0

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
e
x
c
i
t
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
L
a
k
e
 
F
o
r
e
s
t
;
 
i
t
'
s
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
 

1
2

 
 
o
v
e
r
d
u
e
.
 
 
I
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 
t
o
 
v
i
s
i
t
;
 
i
t
 
l
o
o
k
s
 
g
r
e
a
t
.
 

1
3

 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
n
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
i
n
 
b
e
d
s
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
j
u
s
t
 
d
o
n
e
 

1
4

 
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
,
 
i
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 

1
5

 
 
e
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
r
y
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
l
o
w
 
i
n
 

1
7

 
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
c
a
r
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
b
u
s
y
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
9

 
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
b
u
t
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
g
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
I
'
d
 
b
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 

2
2

 
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
4

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
-
-
 
P
a
m
,
 
w
e
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
-
-
 

6

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
s
e
e
 
i
n
 
a
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 

8

 
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
l
y
?
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
h
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
,
 
o
v
e
r
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
 
w
a
n
t
 
-
-
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
a
t
?
 
 
I
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
l
l
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
-
-
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
 
i
s
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
w
o
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
i
t
'
s
 

1
5

 
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
o
n
l
y
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
o
n
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
B
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
n
e
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
o
u
r
 
-
-
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
 
m
o
r
e
 

1
9

 
 
g
e
a
r
e
d
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 
t
a
x
-
 
-
-
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
p
r
e
a
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 14



1
5

 
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
 
i
s
 
a
n
y
w
h
e
r
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
3
0
 
t
o
 
7
0
 
b
a
s
i
s
 

1

 
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
.
 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
h
a
s
 
a
 

2

 
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
c
o
s
t
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

3

 
 
g
o
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
y
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
h
o
 
a
r
e
 
y
o
u
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
J
a
k
e
 
P
a
n
c
r
a
t
z
 
w
i
t
h
 

7

 
 
J
.
P
.
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
U
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
S
e
n
i
o
r
 
U
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
e
r
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
G
r
e
a
t
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
B
o
o
k
r
u
n
n
e
r
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
,
 
J
a
c
o
b
.
 
 
I
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
'
v
e
 

1
4

 
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
,
 
J
a
c
o
b
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
a
s
 
-
-
 
a
s
 
-
-
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
,
 
P
a
m
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
a
c
o
b
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
w
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
?
 
 
O
r
 

2
0

 
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
f
i
l
l
 
u
s
 
i
n
 
o
r
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
C
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
s
t
a
n
d
 
u
p
,
 
s
p
e
a
k
 
a
 
l
i
t
t
l
e
 

2
3

 
 
l
o
u
d
e
r
.

2
4

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
,
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
d
i
u
m
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
k
e
e
p
s
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
e
r
t
s
 
h
e
r
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
s
p
e
a
k
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
g
h
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
n
g
e
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
-
-
 

8

 
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
,
 
i
f
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
d
o
w
n
 

9

 
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
s
p
e
c
t
r
u
m
,
 
t
h
e
 
w
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
g
a
p
'
s
 
o
u
t
 
i
f
 

1
0

 
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
.
 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
'
s
 

1
1

 
 
i
n
 
a
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
r
a
c
k
e
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 

1
2

 
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
b
o
t
h
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
b
o
t
h
 
e
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
b
u
t
 

1
3

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
d
o
e
s
 
y
i
e
l
d
 
t
h
e
m
 
a
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
i
n
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
L
e
a
h
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
j
u
s
t
 
s
t
a
n
d
 
u
p
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 

1
8

 
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
9

 
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
e
l
p
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 

2
0

 
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
c
a
r
e
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
A
b
s
o
l
u
t
e
l
y
.
 
 
W
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 

2
2

 
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
e
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
t
 

2
3

 
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
w
e
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
k
e
e
p
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 15



1
7

 
 
l
o
w
 
a
s
 
a
l
l
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
a
r
e
 
a
 
c
h
a
l
l
e
n
g
e
:
 
o
u
r
 
s
a
l
a
r
i
e
s
,
 

1

 
 
d
r
u
g
 
c
o
s
t
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
l
w
a
y
s
 
p
r
e
s
s
u
r
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
o
s
e
,
 
s
o
 

2

 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
t
r
y
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
,
 
k
i
n
d
 
o
f
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
c
k
 

3

 
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 
s
i
d
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
o
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
v
e
n
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
 
i
s
 
s
m
a
l
l
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
t
a
l
k
i
n
g
 
$
8
0
0
 

6

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
m
o
n
e
y
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
A
b
o
u
t
 
$
1
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
-
-
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
E
v
e
n
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
s
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
J
a
c
o
b
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
q
u
i
c
k
e
r
 

1
2

 
 
a
t
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
t
h
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
-
-
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
3
0
 
b
a
s
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
 
o
n
 

1
4

 
 
$
8
0
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
t
e
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
i
n
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.
 
 
I
'
m
 

1
6

 
 
c
h
e
a
t
i
n
g
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
l
i
k
e
,
 
t
w
o
 

1
8

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
h
a
l
f
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
A
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
w
o
 
a
n
d
 

2
1

 
 
h
a
l
f
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
A
n
n
u
a
l
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
L
E
A
H
 
H
O
B
S
O
N
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
,
 
I

2
4

1
8

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
,
 
f
o
r
 
F
Y
 
1
7
 
w
a
s
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
$
4
4
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 
a
 

1

 
 
m
e
a
n
i
n
g
f
u
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
o
w
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
J
a
c
o
b
,
 
a
s
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
r
i
s
e
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
I
 

4

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
t
h
i
n
k
s
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
-
-
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
-
-
 
T
h
o
s
e
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
w
i
d
e
r
,
 

7

 
 
w
o
n
'
t
 
t
h
e
y
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
o
u
r
 
b
e
s
t
 
g
u
e
s
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
B
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
-
-
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 

1
1

 
 
m
y
 
b
e
s
t
 
g
u
e
s
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
P
a
r
d
o
n
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
E
x
a
c
t
l
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
s
 
a
t
t
r
a
c
t
i
v
e
 

1
5

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
a
s
 
i
t
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
y
b
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
s
o
 
m
u
c
h
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
C
O
B
 
A
.
 
P
A
N
C
R
A
T
Z
:
 
 
O
f
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

2
1

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
r
e
s
-
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
4
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 16



1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
,
 

3

 
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

5

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?

2
4

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
G
e
t
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
B
r
i
n
g
 
h
i
m
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

7

 
 
e
x
i
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
,
 

9

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 

1
0

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
 
h
a
s
 
e
x
i
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
h
e
r
s
e
l
f
 

1
1

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
I
t
e
m
 

1
2

 
 
N
o
.
 
5
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
i
s
 
N
o
.
 
5
 
o
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
-
-
 
o
u
r
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

1
4

 
 
N
o
r
w
e
g
i
a
n
 
L
u
t
h
e
r
a
n
 
B
e
t
h
e
s
d
a
 
H
o
m
e
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
I
F
A
 

1
5

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
i
t
s
 
2
0
1
5
 
B
o
n
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 

1
6

 
 
$
7
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
o
n
 
a
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 

1
7

 
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 

1
8

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
 
B
o
n
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
T
h
i
s
 
B
o
n
d
 
w
a
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
b
y
 
M
B
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 

2
0

 
 
B
a
n
k
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
N
o
r
w
e
i
g
i
a
n
 
L
u
t
h
e
r
a
n
 

2
2

 
 
B
e
t
h
e
s
d
a
 
H
o
m
e
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
m
e
r
g
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
3

 
 
N
o
r
w
o
o
d
 
L
i
f
e
c
a
r
e
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
s
e
n
i
o
r

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 17



2
1

 
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
 
s
i
d
e
 

1

 
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 
 
I
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
u
m
m
a
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
e
r
g
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
M
B
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
a
n
 
A
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

3

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
i
n
g
 

4

 
 
e
n
t
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
a
k
e
s
 

5

 
 
p
l
a
c
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
c
o
u
n
c
i
l
'
s
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
i
t
s
 

7

 
 
t
a
x
 
d
u
e
 
d
i
l
i
g
e
n
c
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 

8

 
 
b
e
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 
 
N
e
v
e
r
t
h
e
l
e
s
s
,
 
f
o
r
 

9

 
 
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
,
 
w
e
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
o
u
r
 

1
0

 
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
e
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
$
5
0
0
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
1

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
s
i
m
p
l
y
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
s
 
o
u
r
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 

1
2

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
c
o
l
l
a
t
e
r
a
l
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
B
r
a
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

1
8

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 

1
9

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
5
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
?

2
4

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 

3

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 18



2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
,
 
t
h
a
t
 

3

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
E
v
a
n
s
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
V
A
N
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
o
u
'
r
e
 
r
e
a
d
y
 
t
o
 
g
o
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
V
A
N
S
:
 
 
T
o
d
a
y
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 

8

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
 

9

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
m
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
i
s
 
J
a
s
o
n
 
H
a
y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
J
a
s
o
n
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
6
0
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
b
a
r
e
 
f
a
r
m
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
 

1
2

 
 
$
6
4
7
,
2
5
0
 
o
r
 
$
1
0
,
7
8
8
 
p
e
r
 
a
c
r
e
.
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 

1
3

 
 
L
i
t
c
h
f
i
e
l
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
7
7
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
r
 

1
4

 
 
$
5
0
2
,
2
5
0
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
a
n
k
 
w
i
l
l
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
F
S
A
 

1
7

 
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
L
o
a
n
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
F
S
A
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 

1
8

 
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
2
3
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
s
t
a
t
e
d
,
 
I
F
A
 
B
o
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
i
n
 
f
i
r
s
t
 

2
0

 
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
.
 

2
1

 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 

2
2

 
 
L
o
g
a
n
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 

2
3

 
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
w
r
i
t
e
-
u
p
.

2
4

2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
-
-
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 

1

 
 
a
r
e
 
L
e
v
i
 
B
.
,
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
g
a
n
 
A
n
n
 
Y
a
g
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 

2

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
4
0
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
b
a
r
e
 
f
a
r
m
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
 

3

 
 
$
2
0
4
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
$
5
,
1
0
0
 
p
e
r
 
a
c
r
e
.
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 

4

 
 
O
l
n
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
e
 
F
S
A
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
9
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
,
 
o
r
 
$
1
9
3
,
8
0
0
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
i
n
j
e
c
t
 
$
1
0
,
2
0
0
 

7

 
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
 

8

 
 
l
o
a
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
'
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
 

9

 
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
J
a
s
p
e
r
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
o
n
d
 
a
r
e
 

1
0

 
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
w
r
i
t
e
-
u
p
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
i
s
 
E
t
h
a
n
 
H
e
l
l
e
r
.
 

1
2

 
 
E
t
h
a
n
'
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
4
2
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
b
a
r
e
 
f
a
r
m
 
o
f
 
r
e
a
l
 

1
3

 
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
$
2
1
5
,
0
7
7
 
o
r
 
$
5
,
1
2
1
 
p
e
r
 
a
c
r
e
.
 
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
s
 

1
4

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
N
e
w
t
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
5
0
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
p
r
i
c
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
B
o
n
d
.
 

1
6

 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
s
a
l
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
d
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
F
S
A
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
A
s
 
s
t
a
t
e
d
,
 

1
8

 
 
I
F
A
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
'
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
J
a
s
p
e
r
 

2
0

 
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 

2
1

 
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
w
r
i
t
e
-
u
p
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
n
o
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
p
a
s
s
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
f
l
o
o
r
 
b
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 19



2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
2
,
 

3

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
C
H
F
-
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 

4

 
 
L
L
C
,
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
t
 

5

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
i
s
 
1
2
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

6

 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
i
z
e
d
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

7

 
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
o
f
 
T
r
u
s
t
e
e
 
-
-
 

8

 
 
a
n
d
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
o
f
 
T
r
u
s
t
e
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
r
a
t
h
e
r
,
 
h
a
v
e
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

1
0

 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
e
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
a
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
f
o
r
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 

1
2

 
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
C
a
m
p
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
l
y
 
t
r
a
d
e
d
 
R
E
I
T
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
A
u
s
t
i
n
,
 
T
e
x
a
s
,
 
t
o
 
s
e
r
v
e
 

1
4

 
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
r
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
i
n
 
t
u
r
n
,
 
A
C
C
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 

1
5

 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
e
a
m
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
i
a
t
e
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
o
w
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
i
a
t
e
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
a
 

1
8

 
 
5
0
1
(
c
)
(
3
)
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
-
-
 
w
h
o
s
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
i
t
 
i
s
 

1
9

 
 
t
o
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
o
w
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
 

2
0

 
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
a
c
a
d
e
m
i
c
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
b
o
t
h
 

2
1

 
 
o
n
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
u
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
e
s
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
.
 

2
2

 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
f
t
h
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

2
3

 
 
h
a
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
a
 
-
-
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n

2
4

2
6

 
 
C
a
m
p
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
i
a
t
e
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 

1

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
a
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
C
H
F
 
o
r
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
i
a
t
e
 

3

 
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
o
w
n
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
a
v
a
i
l
s
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
.
 
 
S
o
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 

5

 
 
C
H
F
'
s
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
m
e
n
t
,
 
I
F
A
 
c
a
n
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
5
0
1
(
c
)
(
3
)
 

6

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 

7

 
 
a
t
t
r
i
b
u
t
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
a
s
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

8

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
a
r
e
n
t
s
 
p
a
y
i
n
g
 
r
o
o
m
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
b
o
a
r
d
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

1
0

 
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
b
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
C
H
F
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
s
u
b
l
e
a
s
e
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
n
 
3
5
-
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
 
-
-
 
o
n
 
5
1
,
0
0
0
 

1
2

 
 
s
q
u
a
r
e
 
f
e
e
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
1
3
5
,
0
0
0
-
s
q
u
a
r
e
-
f
o
o
t
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
l
a
s
t
 

1
4

 
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
,
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
l
y
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
S
&
P
 

1
5

 
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
t
h
e
y
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
n
e
x
t
 

1
6

 
 
w
e
e
k
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
p
p
l
y
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
.
 

1
7

 
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
,
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
i
s
 
n
o
 

1
8

 
 
l
o
n
g
e
r
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

2
0

 
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
d
 
o
r
 
t
a
r
g
e
t
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
e
a
m
 
i
s
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
w
 

2
2

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
g
r
a
d
e
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
B
B
B
-
 
o
r
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
y
o
u
 
t
u
r
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
8
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
,

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 20



2
7

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 

1

 
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
d
a
p
t
e
d
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 

2

 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
S
&
P
.
 
 
M
o
s
t
 
c
r
i
t
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 

3

 
 
l
i
n
e
,
 
y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
 
s
e
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
r
e
a
k
-
e
v
e
n
 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

4

 
 
u
p
o
n
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
i
n
 

5

 
 
f
u
l
l
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
2
1
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
r
e
a
k
-
e
v
e
n
 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 
o
n
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
6
7
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
.
 
 
I
n
 

7

 
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
,
 
U
I
C
 
h
a
s
 
p
o
s
t
e
d
 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 

8

 
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
o
f
 
9
7
.
3
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
9
8
.
3
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
-
-
 
a
t
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
t
w
o
 
-
-
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
t
w
o
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 

1
0

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
g
r
a
d
u
a
t
e
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
a
s
t
 
s
i
d
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
s
t
 
c
r
i
t
i
c
a
l
l
y
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
t
u
r
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
g
e
 

1
2

 
 
1
0
,
 
U
I
C
 
h
a
s
 
p
o
s
t
e
d
 
s
t
e
a
d
y
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
T
h
o
s
e
 
e
n
r
o
l
l
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
r
y
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
t
r
e
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
f
f
e
c
t
i
n
g
 
b
o
t
h
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
u
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
-
-
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
m
o
s
t
 
d
e
f
i
n
i
t
e
l
y
 
a
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
t
o
r
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
m
y
 

1
8

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 

1
9

 
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
e
n
 
t
o
 
T
a
b
 
3
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
u
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 

2
3

 
 
i
s
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d

2
4

2
8

 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
i
s
 
$
6
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
W
i
n
d
y
 
C
i
t
y
 

2

 
 
P
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
c
o
m
p
r
i
s
e
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
u
r
 

3

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
:
 
 
2
0
1
7
 
I
A
V
F
 
W
i
n
d
y
 
C
i
t
y
 
F
o
x
 
R
u
n
 
L
L
C
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

4

 
 
i
s
 
a
 
2
2
0
-
u
n
i
t
 
a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
S
t
.
 
C
h
a
r
l
e
s
;
 
2
0
1
7
 

5

 
 
I
A
V
F
 
W
i
n
d
y
 
C
i
t
y
 
P
a
r
k
s
i
d
e
 
L
L
C
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
-
-
 

6

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
1
1
8
-
u
n
i
t
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
G
l
e
n
 
E
l
l
y
n
;
 
I
A
V
F
 

7

 
 
W
i
n
d
y
 
C
i
t
y
 
S
h
a
d
d
l
e
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
9
8
-
u
n
i
t
,
 
I
 

8

 
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
,
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
-
-
 
o
r
 
7
0
-
u
n
i
t
 

9

 
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
M
u
n
d
e
l
e
i
n
;
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 

1
0

 
 
V
i
l
l
a
b
r
o
o
k
 
A
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
1
1
8
-
u
n
i
t
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 

1
1

 
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
A
d
d
i
s
o
n
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
o
l
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
u
r
 
L
L
C
s
,
 

1
3

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
B
e
t
t
e
r
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
i
r
d
 

1
5

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 

1
6

 
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
 
a
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
B
e
t
t
e
r
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
 
I
F
A
 
b
o
n
d
 

1
9

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
 
i
s
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
o
p
 
o
f
 
p
a
g
e
 
8
.
 
 
W
e
 

2
0

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
i
n
 
J
u
l
y
 
o
f
 
'
1
6
 
a
n
d
 
M
a
y
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
7
.
 

2
1

 
 
B
o
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
-
g
r
a
d
e
 
r
a
t
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 

2
2

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
b
e
e
n
 
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
.
 
 
W
e
 

2
3

 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
s
e
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
B
o
a
r
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 21



2
9

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 

1

 
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
a
n
 
A
-
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 

2

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
a
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
B
B
B
-
 
b
y
 
S
&
P
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 

4

 
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
S
&
P
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
t
e
d
 
o
n
 

5

 
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
6
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
s
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
a
t
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
b
t
 

7

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
s
 
o
n
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
i
n
 

8

 
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
b
y
 
a
 
s
u
b
s
t
a
n
t
i
a
l
 
m
a
r
g
i
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 
i
s
 
9
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
s
 
a
s
s
u
m
p
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
7
.
 

1
1

 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
a
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
 

1
2

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
c
o
p
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
S
&
P
 
i
f
 
a
n
y
 
o
f
 

1
3

 
 
y
o
u
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
 
i
t
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
m
y
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
u
r
n
 
i
t
 
b
a
c
k
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 

1
6

 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 
I
 

1
9

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
M
a
r
k
 
D
e
A
n
g
e
l
i
s
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 

2
0

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
r
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
B
e
t
t
e
r
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 

2
1

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 

2
3

 
 
a
s
 
s
a
y
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
t
'
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
'
r
e

2
4

3
0

 
 
d
o
i
n
g
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
r
e
h
a
b
b
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
,
 

1

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
o
l
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
h
a
b
b
e
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
 

2

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
b
l
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
t
r
y
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
h
e
r
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
.
 
M
A
R
K
 
D
e
A
N
G
E
L
I
S
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
S
o
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 

4

 
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
w
o
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
l
e
s
s
 

6

 
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
s
i
d
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
d
e
a
l
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

7

 
 
L
y
n
d
 
G
r
o
u
p
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
S
a
n
 
A
n
t
o
n
i
o
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
y
o
u
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
a
l
l
 

8

 
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
i
s
 
3
0
,
0
0
0
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 

9

 
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
u
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
n
v
e
s
t
e
d
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
V
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 
h
a
s
 

1
0

 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
s
e
v
e
n
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
,
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
y
 

1
1

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
a
s
 
m
u
c
h
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
 

1
2

 
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
'
t
 
d
i
s
c
r
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
 

1
4

 
 
a
g
a
i
n
s
t
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
f
o
l
k
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
d
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
V
S
O
,
 
a
 

1
5

 
 
V
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
w
h
o
 
t
h
e
y
'
v
e
 
p
u
t
 
i
n
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
t
r
y
 
t
o
 
h
e
l
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
V
A
S
H
 
v
o
u
c
h
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
i
n
g
 
a
s
 
m
a
n
y
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

1
8

 
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 
-
-
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
e
x
c
i
t
e
d
,
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
.
 

2
0

 
 
Y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
I
'
m
 
-
-
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
l
y
,
 
I
'
m
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

2
1

 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
e
t
t
e
r
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
u
t
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
,
 
I
'
m
 

2
2

 
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
c
l
o
s
e
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
m
.
 
 
S
o
 
-
-
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
B
e
t
t
e
r
 

2
3

 
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
e
x
c
i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
s
t
a
r
t
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
s
o
m
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 22



3
1

 
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
r
e
m
e
m
b
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

2

 
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
l
k
s
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

3

 
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 

4

 
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
r
y
 
t
o
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
v
e
t
e
r
a
n
s
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 

5

 
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
 
h
e
r
e
 
i
n
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 

6

 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
,
 
I
 
h
o
p
e
,
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
y
n
e
r
g
i
s
t
i
c
 
t
h
i
n
g
,
 
s
o
 

7

 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
e
x
c
i
t
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
N
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
s
e
e
 
y
o
u
 
a
l
l
 
a
g
a
i
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
M
a
y
b
e
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 

1
0

 
 
g
e
t
 
G
i
l
a
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
.
 
 
S
o
.
.
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
.
 
M
A
R
K
 
D
e
A
N
G
E
L
I
S
:
 
 
Y
e
p
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 

1
3

 
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 

1
4

 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
(
a
)
,
 
1
(
b
)
,
 
1
(
c
)
,
 
2
 

1
5

 
 
a
n
d
 
3
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 

2
0

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

2
2

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

2
4

3
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 

2
3

 
 
G
i
l
a
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 23



3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
P
l
e
a
s
e
 
n
o
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
,
 

2

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
e
x
i
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 

3

 
 
h
e
r
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
'
s
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
a
s
t
 
T
h
u
r
s
d
a
y
,
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

6

 
 
o
r
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
g
o
t
 
a
 
p
u
n
c
h
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
g
u
t
 
b
y
 

7

 
 
H
.
R
.
 
1
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
.
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
-
-
 

8

 
 
C
h
r
i
s
,
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
n
e
 
-
-
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
p
u
t
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
a
 

9

 
 
m
e
m
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
a
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

1
0

 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
P
D
F
 
c
o
p
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
t
a
l
k
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
-
-
 
w
h
e
n
 
I
 
b
e
c
a
m
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
i
t
 

1
3

 
 
w
a
s
 
m
y
 
c
o
n
c
e
r
n
 
o
r
 
d
e
s
i
r
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
F
u
n
d
e
r
b
u
r
g
'
s
 

1
4

 
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
,
 
w
a
s
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
 
o
n
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
y
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
o
f
f
e
r
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
o
n
g
o
i
n
g
.
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
 

1
6

 
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
K
n
o
x
 
o
n
 
a
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 

1
7

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
e
i
t
h
e
r
 
w
a
y
,
 
w
h
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
i
l
l
 

1
8

 
 
p
a
s
s
e
s
 
a
s
 
i
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 

1
9

 
 
o
u
t
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
o
u
t
,
 
e
i
t
h
e
r
 
w
a
y
 
w
e
 

2
0

 
 
a
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
y
 
t
h
e
 
o
f
f
e
r
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
a
n
d
 

2
1

 
 
i
t
s
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
n
'
t
 
a
s
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
e
d
 

2
2

 
 
a
s
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
u
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
i
t
t
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
s
i
t
s
 
o
n

2
4

3
4

 
 
a
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
b
l
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
,
 
s
o
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
t
r
u
a
n
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 

1

 
 
t
o
 
w
e
a
t
h
e
r
 
a
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
o
f
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
o
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
i
s
 

2

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
g
o
i
n
g
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
i
t
s
e
l
f
,
 
I
 
g
u
e
s
s
 

4

 
 
I
'
m
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
f
r
o
m
 
m
y
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
b
a
c
k
g
r
o
u
n
d
 

5

 
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 
v
e
r
y
 
d
i
s
a
p
p
o
i
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
a
x
 
b
i
l
l
 
a
n
d
 

6

 
 
p
l
a
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

7

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
o
u
c
h
 
o
n
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
 
i
f
 
-
-
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
i
t
 
s
e
e
m
s
 
t
o
 
m
e
,
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
-
-
 

1
0

 
 
a
 
l
a
c
k
 
o
f
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
W
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
a
n
s
 

1
1

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
r
u
l
y
 
i
s
.
 
 
I
'
v
e
 

1
2

 
 
r
e
a
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
d
i
a
,
 
f
o
r
 
o
n
e
,
 
t
h
e
y
'
v
e
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
3

 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
s
 
f
u
n
-
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
e
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
p
o
r
t
s
 
s
t
a
d
i
u
m
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
d
o
 
t
h
a
t
,
 

1
5

 
 
n
o
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
s
t
 
t
r
o
u
b
l
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
m
e
 

1
7

 
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
W
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
a
n
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
p
u
t
 
a
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 

1
8

 
 
o
u
t
,
 
8
0
-
s
o
m
e
-
p
a
g
e
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
p
a
g
e
 
4
7
,
 
4
8
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
e
s
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
y
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
t
w
o
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
y
 
g
i
v
e
 
t
w
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
w
h
y
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 

2
1

 
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
r
i
d
 
o
f
 
i
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 

2
2

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
t
w
o
 
b
u
l
l
e
t
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
l
l
 
r
e
a
d
 
t
h
i
s
 

2
3

 
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
:

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 24



3
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
"
T
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 

1

 
 
s
u
b
s
i
d
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
i
n
g
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
e
s
,
 

2

 
 
a
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
w
h
i
l
e
 

3

 
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
o
r
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
w
o
r
t
h
i
n
e
s
s
 

4

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
v
a
i
l
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
 
o
f
 
P
A
B
s
 
m
u
s
t
 
p
a
y
 

5

 
 
a
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
.
"
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
f
a
l
s
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
.
 

7

 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
l
y
 
-
-
 
s
h
o
w
s
 
a
 
l
a
c
k
 
o
f
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 

8

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
l
a
c
k
 
o
f
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
a
b
o
u
t
 

9

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
s
 
f
o
r
 

1
0

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
-
-
 
w
e
l
l
,
 
a
n
y
 
o
f
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
i
t
o
r
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
-
-
 

1
2

 
 
i
n
 
m
y
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
o
f
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 
D
.
C
.
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
a
d
v
o
c
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 

1
4

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
s
,
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
,
 
I
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
c
l
o
s
e
 

1
5

 
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
a
n
,
 
D
o
n
 
M
a
n
z
u
l
l
o
,
 
t
o
l
d
 
m
e
 
o
n
e
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
h
e
 
s
a
y
s
,
 

1
6

 
 
Y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
E
r
i
c
,
 
h
e
 
s
a
y
s
 
i
t
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
m
e
 

1
7

 
 
o
u
t
 
a
n
d
 
y
o
u
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
e
 
u
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
-
-
 
h
e
 
s
a
y
s
,
 
I
f
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 

1
8

 
 
n
o
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
b
l
e
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
n
u
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 

1
9

 
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
s
e
 
h
e
r
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
n
o
w
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
a
l
k
 
h
e
r
e
 

2
1

 
 
i
n
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
i
e
s
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 

2
2

 
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
W
a
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
a
n
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 

2
3

 
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l

2
4

3
6

 
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
l
l
 
t
y
p
e
s
 
o
f
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 

1

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
r
a
d
e
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
l
a
b
o
r
e
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

2

 
 
a
r
e
 
t
r
y
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
a
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 

3

 
 
o
f
 
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
m
e
a
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
f
r
o
m
 

4

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
m
e
a
n
 
i
n
 
c
o
s
t
 

5

 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
i
s
 
i
n
 
g
o
o
d
 

7

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
s
 
u
s
u
a
l
.
 

8

 
 
I
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
t
 
n
e
x
t
 
-
-
 
n
e
x
t
 
f
e
w
 
q
u
a
r
t
e
r
s
,
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 

9

 
 
y
e
a
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
g
o
e
s
 
a
s
 
i
t
 
i
s
,
 
w
e
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
b
e
 
a
 
l
i
t
t
l
e
 
b
i
t
 

1
0

 
 
s
l
o
w
,
 
n
o
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
u
c
h
 
t
o
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
n
 
a
t
 
f
i
r
s
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
 

1
1

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
y
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
d
o
e
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
-
-
 

1
2

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
a
l
l
o
w
s
 
u
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
e
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
m
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
h
a
s
 

1
4

 
 
p
u
t
 
o
u
t
,
 
i
f
 
a
n
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
e
n
 
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
s
e
n
a
t
o
r
-
 
-
-
 
a
n
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
w
o
 
s
e
n
a
t
o
r
s
,
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 

1
7

 
 
c
a
n
 
t
a
l
k
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
m
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
t
e
r
r
i
f
i
c
.
 

1
8

 
 
O
r
 
t
a
l
k
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
k
n
o
w
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
m
o
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
p
l
a
i
n
 
i
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
m
.
 
 
S
o
.
.
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
f
e
w
 

2
1

 
 
d
a
y
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
e
d
u
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 

2
2

 
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
w
e
 
g
o
t
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
s
u
r
e
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
b
l
e
 
a
n
d
 

2
3

 
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
n
u
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 25



3
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
g
i
v
e
 
i
t
 
t
o
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
E
r
i
c
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
w
e
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
l
a
s
t
 
w
e
e
k
,
 
I
 
l
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

4

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
k
n
o
w
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
h
a
l
l
e
n
g
e
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 

5

 
 
i
s
 
a
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
I
 
d
i
d
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
p
u
l
l
 
i
t
 

6

 
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
 
b
r
i
e
f
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
y
,
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
E
r
i
c
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
e
r
e
 
o
u
t
 
i
n
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 
D
.
C
.
,
 

9

 
 
o
n
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
1
0
t
h
,
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
 
w
h
o
 
s
p
o
k
e
 
t
o
 
u
s
 

1
0

 
 
t
o
l
d
 
u
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m
e
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
 

1
1

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
n
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
4

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
w
a
s
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
d
 
t
o
 

1
5

 
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
p
r
i
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
m
o
r
e
 

1
6

 
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
-
-
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

1
7

 
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
-
s
e
c
t
o
r
-
d
r
i
v
e
n
 

1
8

 
 
t
o
o
l
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 

1
9

 
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
,
 
m
a
n
y
 
o
f
 
w
h
o
m
 
h
a
v
e
 

2
0

 
 
m
u
c
h
 
m
o
r
e
 
s
k
i
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
g
a
m
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
w
e
 
d
o
,
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 

2
1

 
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
l
y
 
s
u
r
p
r
i
s
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
f
r
a
n
k
l
y
,
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 

2
2

 
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
a
d
v
o
c
a
t
e
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
s
u
r
p
r
i
s
e
d
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 
b
i
l
l
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
u
n
v
e
i
l
e
d

2
4

3
8

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
n
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
i
t
 
m
a
y
 

1

 
 
w
e
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
b
e
e
n
 
u
n
v
e
i
l
e
d
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 

2

 
 
s
i
g
n
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
o
r
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 

3

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
w
a
s
,
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
y
,
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 

4

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
e
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 

5

 
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
n
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
-
-
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 

7

 
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
j
o
b
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
a
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
s
t
e
w
a
r
d
s
 
o
f
 
a
 

9

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
u
t
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
o
n
 
a
 
m
a
r
g
i
n
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 

1
0

 
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
a
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
v
e
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 

1
1

 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
m
a
r
g
i
n
 
o
f
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
s
 

1
3

 
 
i
t
s
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
l
e
n
d
e
r
s
 
i
n
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
i
n
g
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
s
a
d
l
y
,
 
d
e
s
p
i
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 

1
5

 
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
o
o
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
f
r
a
n
k
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
,
 

1
6

 
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
n
d
e
r
 
s
i
d
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
,
 

1
7

 
 
i
t
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
o
n
 
a
n
y
b
o
d
y
'
s
 
d
o
 
o
r
 
d
i
e
 

1
8

 
 
l
i
s
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
,
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
a
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
'
m
 
v
e
r
y
 

2
0

 
 
g
r
a
t
e
f
u
l
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
1
3
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
;
 
y
o
u
 
g
i
v
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
 

2
1

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
m
 
g
r
a
t
e
f
u
l
 
f
o
r
 
m
y
 
c
o
l
l
e
a
g
u
e
s
 
o
n
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
d
a
y
,
 
a
s
 
E
r
i
c
 
s
a
i
d
,
 
t
h
i
s
 

2
3

 
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
o
u
r
 
j
o
b
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 26



3
9

 
 
p
l
a
n
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
l
t
e
r
n
a
t
i
v
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
h
a
t
'
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
u
r
t
 
a
r
e
 

2

 
 
o
u
r
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
i
n
 
-
-
 

3

 
 
f
o
r
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

4

 
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
l
l
e
g
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 

5

 
 
s
t
u
d
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
n
 
c
u
l
t
u
r
a
l
 

6

 
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
u
s
e
u
m
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

7

 
 
b
e
 
p
a
y
 
f
o
r
 
i
t
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
o
n
e
 
t
h
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 

9

 
 
k
e
e
p
 
i
n
 
m
i
n
d
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
m
a
k
e
 

1
0

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
o
 
l
i
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
l
p
 

1
1

 
 
s
t
r
i
v
e
 
f
o
r
 
o
u
r
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
g
u
a
r
a
n
t
e
e
 
y
o
u
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
f
 

1
2

 
 
i
t
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
m
o
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
o
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
 
m
o
n
e
y
,
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
l
i
k
e
l
y
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
k
n
o
c
k
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
d
o
o
r
s
 
o
f
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
,
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
a
s
k
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
t
a
x
p
a
y
e
r
 

1
6

 
 
s
u
b
s
i
d
i
e
s
.
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
a
n
 
i
n
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
7

 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
a
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
a
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 

1
9

 
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
N
A
E
F
F
A
 
i
n
 
'
1
3
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
p
u
t
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
a
 

2
0

 
 
s
t
u
d
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
y
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
c
o
s
t
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
 

2
1

 
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
$
1
6
6
.
3
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 

2
2

 
 
i
n
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
c
o
s
t
s
.
 
 
I
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
s
.

2
4

4
0

 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
e
v
e
n
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
l
i
k
e
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
P
o
i
n
t
;
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
l
i
k
e
 
C
a
m
c
r
a
f
t
 

2

 
 
a
n
d
 
F
r
e
e
d
m
a
n
 
S
e
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
B
i
s
o
n
 
G
e
a
r
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

3

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
i
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
g
r
o
s
s
 
d
o
m
e
s
t
i
c
 

5

 
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
 
b
y
 
$
2
3
.
6
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
o
v
e
r
 

6

 
 
2
9
9
,
0
0
0
 
j
o
b
s
,
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
5
.
6
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 

7

 
 
i
n
 
l
a
b
o
r
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
.
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
-
-
 
f
i
f
t
h
 

8

 
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
,
 
s
o
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
n
o
t
 
d
o
n
e
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
m
a
t
h
,
 
b
u
t
 
b
y
 
o
r
d
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
m
a
g
n
i
t
u
d
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
b
i
g
 
h
i
t
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
h
i
g
h
-
c
o
s
t
,
 
h
i
g
h
-
d
a
m
a
g
e
,
 
l
o
w
-
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 

1
2

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
S
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
3
6
0
1
 
i
n
 
S
u
b
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
G
 
o
f
 

1
3

 
 
H
.
R
.
 
1
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
c
o
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
$
2
4
 

1
4

 
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
$
2
5
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 

1
6

 
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
o
f
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
s
t
,
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 

1
8

 
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
n
e
w
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
r
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
f
u
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
9

 
 
I
E
P
A
,
 
t
h
e
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
A
A
A
 
r
a
t
e
d
.
 

2
0

 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
o
v
e
r
 
a
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
d
o
l
l
a
r
s
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 

2
1

 
 
o
f
 
I
E
P
A
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
e
d
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
 

2
3

 
 
i
s
,
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
b
e
 
a
 
r
u
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
?
 
 
W
e
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 27



4
1

 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
s
e
e
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
p
r
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
r
y
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 

1

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
o
u
r
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 

2

 
 
M
a
n
y
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
t
o
 
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
v
e
r
y
 

3

 
 
g
e
n
e
r
o
u
s
 
o
r
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
o
u
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
r
 
t
i
m
e
 

4

 
 
s
t
a
r
t
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
l
a
t
e
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
t
i
m
e
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
a
i
n
t
s
 

7

 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
1
4
-
d
a
y
 
T
E
F
R
A
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
a
y
 
p
r
e
v
e
n
t
 

8

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
d
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
a
s
 
q
u
i
c
k
l
y
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
y
 

9

 
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
i
f
,
 
i
n
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
s
 
l
a
w
 
o
n
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 

1
0

 
 
1
s
t
,
 
2
0
1
8
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
$
2
4
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
r
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
s
 

1
1

 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
9
6
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
o
r
t
f
o
l
i
o
.
 

1
2

 
 
S
o
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 

1
3

 
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
I
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 
-
-
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
y
 
-
-
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
,
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
,
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 

1
6

 
 
a
r
e
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
b
u
t
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
8

 
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
l
a
w
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 

2
0

 
 
t
w
o
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
P
A
B
,
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
f
o
r
 
t
w
o
-
t
h
i
r
d
s
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
s
 
E
r
i
c
 

2
2

 
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
g
o
t
 
g
o
o
d
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
m
 
a
l
s
o
 

2
3

 
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
 
a
n
d

2
4

4
2

 
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
t
e
a
m
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
u
t
 
a
n
y
 

1

 
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
l
e
g
a
c
y
 
e
x
p
o
s
u
r
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
a
r
v
i
e
w
 
m
i
r
r
o
r
 

2

 
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
f
o
c
u
s
 
o
n
 
o
u
r
 
c
o
r
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
W
a
t
e
r
 

4

 
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
e
m
p
h
a
s
i
z
e
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 

5

 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
t
o
o
l
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
d
r
i
v
e
n
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
d
o
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
h
i
g
h
l
i
g
h
t
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
 

8

 
 
o
f
 
M
I
T
 
E
c
o
n
o
m
i
s
t
 
D
r
.
 
J
a
m
e
s
 
P
o
t
e
r
b
a
 
a
n
d
 
h
i
s
 
c
o
l
l
e
a
g
u
e
 

9

 
 
A
r
t
u
r
o
 
V
e
r
d
u
g
o
.
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
p
o
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
2
0
0
8
 
s
t
u
d
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
d
i
d
 
o
n
 
o
u
r
 
w
e
b
s
i
t
e
.
 
 
O
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
,
 

1
1

 
 
K
B
R
A
,
 
h
a
s
 
q
u
o
t
e
d
 
h
i
s
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
y
 
n
o
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
J
o
i
n
t
 
C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
T
a
x
a
t
i
o
n
'
S
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
e
d
 
c
o
s
t
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
,
 
3
8
.
9
 

1
4

 
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
v
e
r
 
1
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
o
r
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
3
.
8
 
b
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
,
 

1
5

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
n
o
t
 
j
u
s
t
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 

1
6

 
 
f
i
g
u
r
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
o
v
e
r
s
t
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
s
 
m
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
4
0
 
o
r
 
5
0
 

1
7

 
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
i
n
k
i
n
g
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
n
o
t
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
o
r
s
 
i
n
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
d
e
b
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
u
t
o
m
a
t
i
c
a
l
l
y
 

1
9

 
 
s
w
i
t
c
h
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
I
 

2
1

 
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
h
a
s
 

2
2

 
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
b
e
e
n
 
g
r
e
a
t
,
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
a
s
t
 

2
3

 
 
f
e
w
 
d
a
y
s
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 28



4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
f
a
r
 
a
s
 
n
e
w
 
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
o
u
r
 

1

 
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
e
,
 
n
e
w
 
-
-
 
n
e
w
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
s
 
f
o
r
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
n
e
w
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
l
i
n
e
s
,
 
w
e
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
t
 

3

 
 
a
n
d
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
r
e
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 

5

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
d
r
a
f
t
e
d
 
s
o
 

6

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
w
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

7

 
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
c
o
m
p
e
t
e
n
c
y
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
c
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
-
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
s
,
 
f
o
r
 

9

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
f
u
l
 
I
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
O
n
t
a
r
i
o
 
m
o
d
e
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

1
1

 
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
u
t
o
n
o
m
o
u
s
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
 
t
i
e
d
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
a
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 

1
2

 
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
,
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
b
o
a
r
d
,
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 
i
n
 
o
b
j
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 

1
4

 
 
o
b
j
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
n
e
s
t
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 

1
5

 
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
o
n
c
e
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
t
w
o
 
p
i
l
l
a
r
s
,
 

1
6

 
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
i
s
 
w
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
l
y
 

1
8

 
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
E
q
u
i
t
y
 
S
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
-
-
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 

1
9

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
i
n
g
,
 
e
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
,
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
,
 
s
o
c
i
a
l
;
 
t
h
i
s
 

2
0

 
 
i
s
 
w
i
d
e
l
y
 
u
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
E
u
r
o
p
e
.
 
 
O
r
 
E
S
G
,
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
s
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
u
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
q
u
i
t
y
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
.
 
 
I
n
 
t
h
e
 

2
2

 
 
d
e
b
t
 
S
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
o
r
 
g
r
e
e
n
 

2
3

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
e

2
4

4
4

 
 
o
u
r
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
t
e
a
m
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
 
i
t
 

1

 
 
t
o
 
b
e
s
t
o
w
 
s
o
m
e
 
s
o
r
t
 
o
f
 
E
S
G
 
d
e
s
i
g
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
d
e
b
t
 

2

 
 
i
n
s
t
r
u
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
n
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
e
x
c
i
t
i
n
g
 

3

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
o
n
 
a
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
f
 
i
t
 

4

 
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
,
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 

5

 
 
e
c
o
n
o
m
i
c
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
t
o
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
i
s
 
a
 
b
i
l
l
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 

7

 
 
s
i
g
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
 
R
a
u
n
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
s
u
m
m
e
r
 
a
f
t
e
r
 

8

 
 
m
a
r
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
l
y
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
a
b
o
u
t
 

9

 
 
2
0
0
9
:
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 
C
l
e
a
n
 
E
n
e
r
g
y
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
O
f
 

1
0

 
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
,
 
h
e
r
e
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
h
e
 
n
a
m
e
 
s
o
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
g
e
t
 
m
i
x
e
d
 
u
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
r
e
g
i
o
n
a
l
 
b
u
s
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
,
 
P
A
C
E
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
v
o
l
u
n
t
a
r
y
 
s
u
r
c
h
a
r
g
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
b
i
l
l
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
,
 

1
4

 
 
r
e
t
a
i
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
m
u
l
t
i
-
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
a
n
 

1
5

 
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
a
 
-
-
 
t
o
 
s
t
r
e
n
g
t
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
f
o
r
 

1
6

 
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
 
e
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
c
y
 
-
-
 
e
n
e
r
g
y
 

1
7

 
 
e
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
c
y
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
n
 
o
l
d
e
r
 
r
e
t
a
i
l
,
 
c
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
,
 

1
8

 
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
u
s
i
n
g
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
h
r
e
e
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

2
0

 
 
o
p
e
n
 
t
o
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
i
d
e
a
s
.
 
 
O
v
e
r
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
2
0
0
4
,
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
l
o
n
g
e
r
 
t
e
n
u
r
e
d
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
k
n
o
w
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
k
n
o
w
s
,
 

2
2

 
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
e
x
p
l
o
r
e
d
 
a
n
y
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
a
l
t
e
r
n
a
t
i
v
e
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 

2
3

 
 
l
i
n
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
o
l
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
l
w
a
y
s
 
c
o
m
e
 
b
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 29



4
5

 
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
T
a
x
 
C
o
d
e
,
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
o
n
 

1

 
 
a
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
e
r
i
e
n
c
e
 
s
i
n
c
e
 

2

 
 
2
0
0
4
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
m
a
y
 
f
o
r
c
e
 
u
s
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
t
a
l
k
i
n
g
 
a
b
o
u
t
.
 
 
A
n
y
w
a
y
s
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
p
u
t
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
o
n
 
a
n
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
a
s
i
s
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
l
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
o
u
t
c
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
H
.
R
.
 
1
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 

7

 
 
d
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
i
t
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
'
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
-
-
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
A
r
l
e
n
e
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
S
h
e
 
h
a
d
 
h
e
r
 
h
a
n
d
 
-
-
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
O
h
,
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
-
-
 
u
p
 
f
i
r
s
t
,
 
l
i
k
e
 
-
-
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
-
-
 
I
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
m
e
a
n
 
-
-
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
h
e
'
s
 
b
l
o
c
k
i
n
g
 
m
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
n
e
x
t
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
,
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
j
o
t
t
e
d
 
d
o
w
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
n
o
t
e
s
,
 

1
9

 
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
y
o
r
 
o
f
 
a
 

2
0

 
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
m
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
i
t
y
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
p
a
s
t
 
T
u
e
s
d
a
y
,
 
w
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
o
u
r
 

2
2

 
 
p
a
r
a
m
e
t
e
r
s
,
 
o
r
d
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
$
9
.
9
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

2
3

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
t
h
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t

2
4

4
6

 
 
w
e
 
g
e
t
 
i
n
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
.
 

1

 
 
O
u
r
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
t
h
,
 
b
u
t
 
a
l
l
 
k
i
n
d
s
 
o
f
 

2

 
 
t
i
m
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
a
 
m
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
i
t
y
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 

4

 
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
e
 
l
i
s
t
 
o
f
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
.
 
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 
t
a
x
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
o
n
l
y
 

5

 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
1
4
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
s
t
r
e
a
m
;
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
g
o
t
 
a
 

6

 
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
o
n
e
s
.
 
 
D
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
y
b
o
d
y
 
h
e
r
e
 
i
n
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
k
n
o
w
s
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
w
a
y
 
t
o
 
g
o
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
a
s
 
a
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
a
v
o
i
d
 

9

 
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
l
i
k
e
 
a
 
s
e
l
f
-
s
e
r
v
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 

1
0

 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
'
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 

1
1

 
 
s
u
c
c
i
n
c
t
,
 
o
n
e
-
p
a
g
e
 
c
a
s
e
 
f
o
r
 
w
h
y
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
i
s
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 

1
2

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 
b
u
t
 

1
3

 
 
p
r
o
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
b
r
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
e
n
 
y
o
u
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
o
 

1
6

 
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
s
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
o
 
l
i
v
e
 
a
n
d
 

1
7

 
 
d
o
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
a
w
a
y
,
 
I
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
A
m
a
z
o
n
.
 
 
I
 

1
8

 
 
r
e
a
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
a
z
o
n
 
R
F
Q
.
 
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 

1
9

 
 
f
o
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
l
i
k
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
l
i
k
e
 

2
0

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
k
i
n
d
 
o
f
 
q
u
a
l
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
l
i
f
e
 
t
h
a
t
 

2
1

 
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
c
u
s
t
o
m
e
r
s
,
 
o
u
r
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
 
i
n
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

2
2

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
s
 
a
r
e
.
 
 
W
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
o
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
n
'
t
 
g
o
t
 
a
n
 
i
c
e
 
c
u
b
e
'
s
 
c
h
a
n
c
e
 
i
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 30



4
7

 
 
h
e
l
l
 
o
f
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
A
m
a
z
o
n
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
h
o
w
 
d
o
 
w
e
 
s
a
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
 
a
 
m
o
r
e
 

2

 
 
g
e
n
t
i
l
e
 
w
a
y
?
 
 
H
o
w
 
d
o
 
w
e
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
h
a
m
m
e
r
 
i
t
 
h
o
m
e
?
 

3

 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
p
a
g
e
 
c
a
s
e
 
f
o
r
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
d
o
 

4

 
 
s
e
t
s
 
u
s
 
a
p
a
r
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
 
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
 
t
h
a
t
 

5

 
 
l
o
o
k
s
 
f
o
r
 
d
i
v
e
r
s
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
n
o
t
 
w
h
y
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

6

 
 
h
e
r
e
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
s
c
o
p
e
,
 
c
r
e
e
p
,
 
o
r
 

8

 
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
c
c
u
s
e
d
 
o
f
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
n
e
e
d
 

9

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
r
o
l
e
 
h
e
r
e
?
 
 
A
n
d
 
i
t
 

1
0

 
 
c
a
n
'
t
 
b
e
 
a
 
p
u
f
f
 
p
i
e
c
e
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
g
o
t
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
o
l
i
d
 

1
1

 
 
p
i
e
c
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
A
m
a
z
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
d
o
n
e
 
u
s
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
b
i
g
 

1
2

 
 
f
a
v
o
r
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
h
o
r
t
 
R
F
Q
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
l
o
o
k
 
a
t
 
i
t
 

1
3

 
 
a
n
d
 
s
a
y
,
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
 
f
i
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
l
e
s
s
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
t
h
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
w
a
t
c
h
f
u
l
 
f
o
r
,
 

1
6

 
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
s
e
e
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
o
n
 
a
 
m
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
s
i
d
e
,
 
i
s
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

1
7

 
 
t
a
l
k
i
n
g
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
y
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
.
 
 
G
u
e
s
s
 
w
h
a
t
?
 

1
8

 
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
 
t
h
i
n
k
s
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
w
e
l
l
-
s
t
a
t
e
d
 
c
a
s
e
 
f
o
r
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
s
o
u
n
d
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
p
o
l
i
c
y
,
 

2
1

 
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
l
o
o
k
 
a
t
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

2
2

 
 
g
o
,
 
o
h
,
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
o
 
f
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
g
a
p
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
r
e
 

2
3

 
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
t
w
o
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
t
a
i
l
 
s
a
l
e
s
 
t
a
x

2
4

4
8

 
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
 
a
s
 
a
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
h
a
r
g
e
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
s
a
l
e
s
 
t
a
x
e
s
 
f
l
o
w
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
v
e
 
c
u
t
 
o
u
r
 

2

 
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
L
o
c
a
l
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
b
u
t
i
v
e
 
F
u
n
d
,
 

3

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
t
a
x
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
g
r
a
b
b
i
n
g
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
w
h
e
r
e
v
e
r
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
i
t
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
s
,
 
n
o
t
 
a
s
 
f
r
e
e
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
f
o
r
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
,
 

7

 
 
b
u
t
 
a
s
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
o
u
r
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
h
e
r
e
'
s
 

8

 
 
w
h
y
 
o
u
r
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 

9

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
A
r
l
e
n
e
.
 
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
h
a
v
e
 

1
1

 
 
s
a
i
d
 
i
t
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
i
n
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
y
o
u
'
v
e
 
s
a
i
d
 
s
o
m
e
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
f
r
a
n
k
l
y
,
 
I
 
c
a
n
'
t
 
s
a
y
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
g
o
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
,
 
i
s
 
t
h
i
s
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

1
5

 
 
s
e
n
t
,
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
4
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
d
e
s
i
r
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
I
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

2
0

 
 
d
a
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
m
 
p
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
 

2
1

 
 
C
o
u
n
c
i
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
d
o
n
e
 
t
h
i
s
.
 
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
v
e
 

2
2

 
 
s
e
n
t
 
i
t
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 

2
3

 
 
D
e
l
e
g
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
a
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
q
u
a
s
i
-
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 31



4
9

 
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
s
o
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
d
o
 
w
h
a
t
e
v
e
r
 
w
e
 
w
a
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
a
n
y
,
 
y
o
u
 

1

 
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
p
u
s
h
b
a
c
k
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
l
l
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
p
r
e
f
e
r
 

3

 
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
b
u
t
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
h
a
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
o
n
e
-
p
a
g
e
 
m
e
m
o
,
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
-
-
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
3
 
o
r
 
-
-
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
-
-
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
4
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
o
.
 
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
i
s
 

7

 
 
i
t
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
n
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
W
e
l
l
,
 
i
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
 
b
e
 
m
y
 
s
e
n
s
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
d
 
y
o
u
 
r
e
a
d
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
w
e
 
s
e
n
t
 
o
u
t
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
I
 
d
i
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
E
r
i
c
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
d
o
 
y
o
u
 
t
h
i
n
k
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
N
o
,
 
I
'
m
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 
p
e
r
f
e
c
t
l
y
 

1
4

 
 
f
i
n
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
i
t
.
 
 
A
b
s
o
l
u
t
e
l
y
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
o
 
A
r
l
e
n
e
'
s
 
-
-
 
C
h
r
i
s
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
a
t
.
 
 
W
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 
u
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 

1
8

 
 
o
n
e
-
p
a
g
e
 
s
u
m
m
a
r
y
 
-
-
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
,
 

2
1

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
v
e
r
y
t
h
i
n
g
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
 
s
e
e
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
'
v
e

2
4

5
0

 
 
h
a
d
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
S
e
n
a
t
o
r
 
D
u
c
k
w
o
r
t
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

2

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
a
m
e
n
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
.
 
 
S
h
e
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
a
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 

3

 
 
m
a
y
o
r
s
 
l
a
s
t
 
S
u
n
d
a
y
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
,
 
g
e
a
r
e
d
 

4

 
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
n
g
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
t
a
x
 
d
e
d
u
c
t
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
.
 

5

 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
-
-
 
s
h
e
 
w
a
s
 
m
y
 

6

 
 
c
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
w
o
m
a
n
 
f
o
r
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
P
r
o
s
p
e
c
t
,
 
s
o
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 

7

 
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
a
l
 
f
a
m
i
l
i
a
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
r
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 

8

 
 
d
e
f
i
n
i
t
e
l
y
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
l
y
 
o
n
 

9

 
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
t
o
 
-
-
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
s
h
e
'
s
 
a
 
s
e
n
a
t
o
r
 
n
o
w
 
a
n
d
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

1
3

 
 
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
D
u
r
b
i
n
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
I
t
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
h
e
r
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
a
c
h
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
p
e
r
s
o
n
 
a
n
d
 

1
6

 
 
t
a
l
k
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
o
 
i
f
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
,
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 

1
8

 
 
s
u
c
c
i
n
c
t
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
-
-
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
-
-
 
u
s
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
t
a
l
k
i
n
g
 

2
1

 
 
p
o
i
n
t
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
W
e
 
c
a
n
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
s
t
a
r
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
E
x
a
c
t
l
y
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 32



5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
d
o
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
a
n
y
 
k
i
n
d
 
o
f
 
o
f
f
i
c
i
a
l
 
v
o
t
e
 

1

 
 
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
r
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
?
 
 
O
r
.
.
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
,
 
n
o
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
N
o
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
N
o
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
u
t
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
a
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
 
f
o
r
 
u
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
d
i
s
t
r
i
b
u
t
e
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
s
e
n
s
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
a
 

9

 
 
s
e
n
s
e
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
-
-
 
h
o
w
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
l
i
k
e
 
u
s
 

1
0

 
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

1
2

 
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

1
6

 
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
L
y
l
e
 
-
-
 

2
1

 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

2
4

5
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
h
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
w
e
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
v
o
t
e
,
 
I
 

2

 
 
d
o
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
p
o
i
n
t
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
r
e
 

3

 
 
i
s
 
n
o
 
m
i
s
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
m
e
n
t
,
 
H
.
R
.
 
1
 
i
s
 
l
i
m
i
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 

6

 
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
s
 
i
s
s
u
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
a
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
.
 

7

 
 
I
t
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
e
n
t
a
i
l
 
l
o
-
 
-
-
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
o
r
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
 

8

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
B
u
t
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
 
l
e
a
r
n
e
d
 
i
n
 

9

 
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
i
n
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
f
o
r
 

1
0

 
 
a
n
y
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
n
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
O
h
,
 
y
e
a
h
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
A
r
l
e
n
e
 
m
a
d
e
 
i
s
 

1
3

 
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
i
l
l
 
a
s
 
i
t
 
s
t
a
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 

1
4

 
 
P
r
o
s
p
e
c
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
e
d
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
l
a
w
 

1
5

 
 
o
n
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
s
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
h
a
n
g
i
n
g
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
r
r
y
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 33



5
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 

4

 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
 
t
r
e
m
e
n
d
o
u
s
 

5

 
 
t
r
i
p
 
e
v
e
r
y
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
i
t
 
h
e
r
e
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 

6

 
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
P
l
a
n
e
s
,
 
t
r
a
i
n
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
a
u
t
o
m
o
b
i
l
e
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
L
a
u
g
h
t
e
r
.
)
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
E
A
K
E
R
:
 
 
B
u
t
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
m
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
i
g
h
t
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
P
l
a
n
e
s
,
 
t
r
a
i
n
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
a
u
t
o
m
o
b
i
l
e
s
,
 
y
e
s
.
 
 
A
l
l
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
 
g
u
y
s
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
A
b
s
o
l
u
t
e
l
y
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y
 

1
6

 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
t
h
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

1
7

 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.

2
4

5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
1
0
:
2
9
 
a
.
m
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
W
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
h
a
d
.
)
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 34



5
5

 
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
 
 
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 
S
S
:
 

 
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
O
F
 
C
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
 
B
e
n
j
a
m
i
n
,
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
d
u
l
y
 
s
w
o
r
n
 
o
n
 
o
a
t
h
,
 

3

 
 
s
a
y
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
,
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
g
o
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
 

6

 
 
t
r
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
p
t
 
o
f
 
h
i
s
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
e
s
 
s
o
 

7

 
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
s
 
a
f
o
r
e
s
a
i
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
s
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 

8

 
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
s
a
i
d
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
4
8
0
5
 

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

5
6

 
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
 
 
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 
S
S
:
 

 
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
O
F
 
C
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
 
B
e
n
j
a
m
i
n
,
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
d
u
l
y
 
s
w
o
r
n
 
o
n
 
o
a
t
h
,
 

3

 
 
s
a
y
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
,
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
g
o
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
 

6

 
 
t
r
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
p
t
 
o
f
 
h
i
s
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
e
s
 
s
o
 

7

 
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
s
 
a
f
o
r
e
s
a
i
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
s
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 

8

 
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
s
a
i
d
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
.
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
4
8
0
5
 

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 35



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE 
ADOPTED 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
NV Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 36



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

NOVEMBER 9, 2017 AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS, AS 
AMENDED 
ADOPTED 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 37



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

OCTOBER 12, 2017 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 38



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
SUBJECT-MATTER ONLY 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 39



NO. 1A 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-AG1A 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – JASON HAYES 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 40



NO. 1B 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-AG1B 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – LEVI B. AND MEGAN N. YAGER 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 41



NO. 1C 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-AG1C 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – ETHAN C. KELLER 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 42



NO. 02 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-NP02 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – CHF-CHICAGO, L.L.C. (UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS AT 

CHICAGO PROJECT) 
FINAL 

PASSED* 
 

 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 43



NO. 03 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-NP03 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – 2017 IAVF WINDY CITY FOX RUN LLC; 2017 IAVF 

WINDY CITY PARKSIDE LLC; 2017 IAVF WINDY CITY SHADDLE LLC; AND 2017 
IAVF WINDY CITY VILLABROOK LLC (WINDY CITY PORTFOLIO PROJECT - BETTER 

HOUSING FOUNDATION) 
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 
November 9, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 44



NO. 04 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-HC04 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – NORTHWESTERN MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE 

FINAL 
PASSED 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
NV Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 45



NO. 05 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-AD05 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY SENIOR LIVING FACILITY REVENUE BOND (BETHESDA 
HOME AND RETIREMENT CENTER PROJECT), SERIES 2015, THE PROCEEDS OF 

WHICH WERE LOANED TO NORWEGIAN LUTHERAN BETHESDA HOME 
ASSOCIATION, D/B/A BETHESDA HOME AND RETIREMENT CENTER, AND RELATED 

ENTITIES 
ADOPTED 

 
 
November 9, 2017 
 
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox NV Smoots 

E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 46



NO. 06 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1109-AD06 
RESOLUTION REGARDING FEDERAL TAX REFORM LEGISLATION 

SUBJECT-MATTER ONLY 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 47



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2018  
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Gila J. Bronner George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
   
 
Subject: Minutes of the November 30, 2017 Special Meeting 
 
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Sullivan Reporting Co. (the “Minutes”) in 
connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), 
begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, 
Illinois 60601, on the fifth Thursday of November in the year 2017, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of the State 
of Illinois (the “Act”). 
 
To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Thursday, November 30, 2017 
9:30 AM 

 
AGENDA: 

 
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 (page 2, line1 through page 3, line 20)  
II. Approval of Agenda 
 (page 3, line 21 through page 4, line 10) 
III. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 4, line 4 through page 5, line 13) 
IV. Message from the Executive Director 
 (page 5, line 14 through page 7, line 8) 
V. Presentation and Consideration of the Project Reports and Resolutions 
 (page 7, line 9 through page 26, line 11) 
VI. Other Business 
 (page 26, line 12 through page 27, line 3) 
VII. Public Comment 
 (page 27, lines 4 through 6) 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 48



 
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 (page 27, lines 7 through 22) 
 
The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 
enclosed. 
 
Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Brad R. Fletcher           
Assistant Vice President 
 
 
Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the November 30, 2017 Special Meeting 
  2. Voting Record of the November 30, 2017 Special Meeting 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 49



1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
P
E
C
I
A
L
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
0
,
 
2
0
1
7
 
a
t
 
9
:
3
1
 
a
.
m
.
 

3 4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
O
F
 
P
R
O
C
E
E
D
I
N
G
S
 
h
a
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
S
p
e
c
i
a
l
 

5

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 

6

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
0
,
 
2
0
1
7
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
u
r
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 

7

 
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
,
 
a
t
 
1
6
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
L
a
S
a
l
l
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
S
-
1
0
0
0
,
 

8

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

9

 
 
A
P
P
E
A
R
A
N
C
E
S
:
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
E
R
I
C
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
L
E
Y
 
A
.
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
G
E
R
 
E
.
 
P
O
O
L
E
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
Y
L
E
 
M
c
C
O
Y
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
E
R
R
Y
 
K
N
O
X
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
R
L
E
N
E
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
W
.
 
G
O
E
T
Z
 
(
V
i
a
 
A
u
d
i
o
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
B
E
T
H
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
G
I
L
A
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
 

1
5

 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
,
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
P
A
M
E
L
A
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
W
E
B
E
R
,
 
I
F
A
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
R
I
S
T
O
P
H
E
R
 
B
.
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
E
R
R
Y
 
F
R
A
N
Z
E
N
,
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

1
9

 
 
G
U
E
S
T
S
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
M
E
G
H
A
N
 
O
'
K
E
E
F
E
,
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
.
 
F
E
H
N
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
(
I
D
O
T
)
 

2
2

2
3

2
4

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
o
r
d
e
r
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

3

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
9
:
3
1
.
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
 

6

 
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
f
i
r
s
t
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
a
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 50



3

 
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
d
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
a
n
y
 

2

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
M
i
k
e
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 

5

 
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
;
 
i
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

6

 
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
I
 
a
m
.
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

9

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
b
y
l
a
w
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
p
o
l
i
c
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
G
i
l
a
 

1
4

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
L
e
r
r
y
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 

2
1

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
-
-
 
I
 
g
u
e
s
s
 
I

2
4

4

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

4

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
o
f
f
,
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 

1
1

 
 
f
o
r
 
s
h
o
w
i
n
g
 
u
p
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
o
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
.
 
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
w
e
 

1
2

 
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
w
e
e
-
 
-
-
 
o
r
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
a
b
o
u
t
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
-
-
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
p
l
a
n
 
a
n
d
 

1
4

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
m
e
a
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 

1
5

 
 
o
p
e
n
i
n
g
 
y
o
u
r
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
-
-
 
I
 
h
a
d
 
a
 

1
7

 
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 
a
t
 
m
y
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
a
n
 
R
a
n
d
y
 

1
8

 
 
H
u
l
t
g
r
e
n
.
 
 
H
e
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
o
n
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
b
e
s
i
d
e
s
 

1
9

 
 
I
F
A
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
h
a
t
 
h
e
 
s
h
a
r
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
m
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
l
l
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
0

 
 
y
o
u
,
 
i
s
 
w
e
 
t
a
l
k
e
d
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
P
A
B
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 

2
1

 
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 
p
l
a
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 

2
2

 
 
h
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
s
s
u
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
B
r
a
d
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
 
 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
r
e
 

2
3

 
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 51



5

 
 
H
e
 
w
a
s
n
'
t
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
a
f
e
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
o
l
d
 
a
 
l
o
t
 

2

 
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
 
f
r
o
m
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
s
o
 
w
e
'
l
l
 

3

 
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
w
a
t
c
h
 
i
t
,
 
b
u
t
 
h
e
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
 
d
i
d
 
m
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
e
f
e
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
,
 

5

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
d
o
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 

6

 
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
g
o
o
d
 
n
e
w
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 

8

 
 
W
e
'
l
l
 
s
e
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
y
 
g
o
 

9

 
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
w
h
o
 
w
a
s
 

1
0

 
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
a
g
a
i
n
s
t
 
i
t
,
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 
f
o
r
 
i
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
I
'
l
l
 
h
a
n
d
 
i
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
C
h
r
i
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
,
 
E
r
i
c
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
e
c
h
o
 
E
r
i
c
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
t
h
a
n
k
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
o
p
e
n
i
n
g
 

1
6

 
 
y
o
u
r
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
s
.
 
 
O
u
r
 
n
e
x
t
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

1
7

 
 
b
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
1
4
t
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
s
 
I
'
v
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
e
d
 

1
8

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
y
o
u
 
t
o
,
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 

1
9

 
 
t
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
l
y
,
 
k
e
e
p
 
o
p
e
n
 
o
r
 
t
r
y
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 
o
p
e
n
 
T
h
u
r
s
d
a
y
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
2
1
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
T
h
u
r
s
d
a
y
 
t
h
e
 
2
8
t
h
.
 
 
A
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
,
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
1
4
t
h
 
i
s
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
i
n
g
 
a
t
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
i
t
 
l
o
o
k
s
 
l
i
k
e
 
i
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
h
e
a
v
i
e
r
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
a
n
 
u
s
u
a
l
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
o
f

2
4

6

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
.
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
-
-
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

1

 
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
i
v
e
 
o
f
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
 
t
o
 
k
e
e
p
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
s
 
o
p
e
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
2
1
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
2
8
t
h
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
 

3

 
 
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
o
n
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
1
4
t
h
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
a
l
s
o
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
a
 

6

 
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
g
u
e
s
t
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
M
e
g
h
a
n
 
O
'
K
e
e
f
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
-
-
 

7

 
 
r
a
i
s
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
h
a
n
d
,
 
M
e
g
h
a
n
 
-
-
 
w
i
t
h
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
e
 
i
s
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
n
k
e
r
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
d
e
a
l
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
 

9

 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
M
e
g
h
a
n
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 

1
1

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
s
o
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
r
e
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
h
e
r
 
f
r
o
m
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
l
a
w
y
e
r
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 

1
5

 
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
J
o
a
n
n
e
 
F
e
h
n
,
 
w
h
o
'
s
 
j
o
i
n
e
d
 
u
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
A
n
d
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
7

 
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
c
a
m
e
 
i
n
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 

1
9

 
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
B
l
a
n
k
e
n
h
o
r
n
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
J
o
a
n
n
e
 

2
0

 
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
S
a
m
 
B
e
y
d
o
u
n
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
I
D
O
T
 
(
P
3
)
 

2
1

 
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
-
P
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
P
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
I
'
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
b
r
i
n
g
 
y
o
u
r
 

2
3

 
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 52



7

 
 
E
r
i
c
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
a
n
 
H
u
l
t
g
r
e
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
h
i
s
 

1

 
 
t
i
r
e
l
e
s
s
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
 
a
t
 
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
e
e
k
.
 

2

 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
t
t
a
c
h
e
d
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
a
n
 

3

 
 
H
u
l
t
g
r
e
n
 
l
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
d
r
a
f
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
g
n
a
t
u
r
e
s
 
o
f
,
 
I
 

4

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
'
s
 
2
1
 
R
e
p
u
b
l
i
c
a
n
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
e
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 
t
h
e
n
 

5

 
 
p
a
s
s
e
d
 
o
n
t
o
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 
l
e
a
d
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
U
.
S
.
 

6

 
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

9

 
 
a
s
k
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
c
o
u
n
t
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 

1
1

 
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
v
o
t
e
 

1
2

 
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
t
o
 
e
a
c
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 

1
4

 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
9

 
 
a
s
k
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
t
o
 
n
o
w
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

2
2

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 

2
3

 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
f
e
r
 
t
o
 
a
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l

2
4

8

 
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
,
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 

1

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
$
3
0
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

2

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
l
o
a
n
e
d
 
t
o
 

4

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 

5

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
A
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 

6

 
 
$
1
2
0
,
4
1
5
,
0
0
0
;
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
G
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
3
1
,
6
0
0
-
 
-
-
 
$
3
1
,
6
4
5
,
0
0
0
;
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 

8

 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
H
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 

9

 
 
$
6
5
,
8
8
5
,
0
0
0
;
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
I
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
8
9
,
4
6
0
,
0
0
0
;
 
a
l
s
o
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

1
1

 
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
6
 
i
n
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
7
5
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

1
4

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
7
B
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 

1
5

 
 
$
6
4
,
8
7
0
,
0
0
0
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
t
o
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
b
y
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
i
n
 

2
0

 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
m
o
d
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 

2
3

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
s
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
8
,
 
H
S
S
I
 
i
s

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 53



9

 
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
n
o
w
 
t
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 

2

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
-
-
 
m
a
y
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 

3

 
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 
t
a
x
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
t
h
e
m
 
n
e
x
t
 
y
e
a
r
,
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
w
h
y
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 

6

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
r
 
a
m
e
n
d
i
n
g
,
 
o
n
e
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
o
t
h
e
r
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 

1
1

 
 
a
c
q
u
i
r
i
n
g
,
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
n
g
,
 
r
e
n
o
v
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
r
e
m
o
d
e
l
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
:
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
.
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
'
s
 
-
-
 
o
h
,
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
a
p
 
i
f
 

1
4

 
 
y
o
u
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 
m
a
p
 
a
t
t
a
c
h
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
a
s
 
E
x
h
i
b
i
t
 
A
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
-
-
 

1
6

 
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
a
r
e
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
S
t
.
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
w
h
e
r
e
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
s
p
e
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
n
e
w
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
-
-
 
S
t
.
 

1
9

 
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
O
'
F
a
l
l
o
n
;
 
S
t
.
 
J
o
s
e
p
h
'
s
 

2
0

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
B
r
e
e
s
e
;
 
S
t
.
 
M
a
r
y
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
D
e
c
a
t
u
r
;
 

2
1

 
 
S
t
.
 
A
n
t
h
o
n
y
'
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
E
f
f
i
n
g
h
a
m
;
 
S
t
.
 

2
2

 
 
J
o
s
e
p
h
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
H
i
g
h
l
a
n
d
;
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 

2
3

 
 
i
n
 
L
i
t
c
h
f
i
e
l
d
;
 
S
t
.
 
J
o
h
n
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
;

2
4

1
0

 
 
S
t
.
 
M
a
r
y
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
S
t
r
e
a
t
o
r
;
 
H
S
H
S
 
G
o
o
d
 
S
h
e
p
h
e
r
d
 

1

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
S
h
e
l
b
y
v
i
l
l
e
;
 
a
n
d
 
H
S
H
S
 
H
o
l
y
 
F
a
m
i
l
y
 

2

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
G
r
e
e
n
f
i
e
l
d
 
-
-
 
G
r
e
e
n
v
i
l
l
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
m
u
l
t
i
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
,
 
s
o
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
e
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
o
r
 

5

 
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
W
i
s
c
o
n
s
i
n
 

6

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
a
c
q
u
i
r
i
n
g
,
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
n
g
,
 

7

 
 
r
e
n
o
v
a
t
i
n
g
 
o
r
 
r
e
m
o
d
e
l
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 

8

 
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
:
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
.
 
J
o
s
e
p
h
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
C
h
i
p
p
e
w
a
 

1
0

 
 
F
a
l
l
s
;
 
S
a
c
r
e
d
 
H
e
a
r
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
E
a
u
 
C
l
a
i
r
e
;
 
S
t
.
 

1
1

 
 
M
a
r
y
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
B
a
y
;
 
S
t
.
 

1
2

 
 
V
i
n
c
e
n
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
G
r
e
e
n
 
B
a
y
;
 
S
t
.
 
N
i
c
h
o
l
a
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 

1
3

 
 
i
n
 
S
h
e
b
o
y
g
a
n
;
 
S
t
.
 
C
l
a
r
e
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
O
c
o
n
t
o
 

1
4

 
 
F
a
l
l
s
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 
n
o
t
 
h
o
w
 
t
h
e
y
 
s
a
y
 
i
t
,
 
b
u
t
 

1
5

 
 
O
c
o
n
t
o
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 

1
7

 
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
a
c
c
r
u
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 

1
8

 
 
a
n
d
 
f
u
n
d
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
i
f
 
d
e
e
m
e
d
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 

1
9

 
 
p
a
y
 
a
 
-
-
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
i
n
c
u
r
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
2
0
 
-
-
 
3
5
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
j
o
b
s
 

2
2

 
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
I
 

2
3

 
 
m
a
d
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
a
m
e
 
o
u
t
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 54



1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
s
o
l
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 

1

 
 
t
h
i
r
t
e
e
n
 
n
o
t
-
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
 
i
n
c
o
r
-
 
-
-
 
n
o
t
-
f
o
r
-
p
r
o
f
i
t
 

2

 
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
w
n
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 

3

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
,
 
e
i
g
h
t
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
v
e
 
i
n
 
W
i
s
c
o
n
s
i
n
.
 

4

 
 
E
a
c
h
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
s
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
 
i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
s
 

5

 
 
s
e
v
e
n
 
t
o
 
n
i
n
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
-
-
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
o
f
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
s
 

6

 
 
c
o
m
p
o
s
e
d
 
o
f
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
-
-
 

7

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
T
h
i
r
d
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
,
 

8

 
 
a
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
o
m
a
n
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
C
h
u
r
c
h
;
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 

9

 
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
;
 
a
n
d
 
l
o
c
a
l
 
c
i
t
i
z
e
n
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 

1
1

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
a
r
e
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
 
2
,
3
7
2
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 

1
2

 
 
b
e
d
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
i
n
 
W
i
s
c
o
n
s
i
n
 
a
r
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 

1
3

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
1
,
4
5
1
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 
b
e
d
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
a
 
l
i
t
t
l
e
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
w
a
s
 

1
5

 
 
f
o
u
n
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
G
e
r
m
a
n
y
 
i
n
 
1
8
4
4
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
c
k
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
n
e
e
d
.
 
 
I
n
 
1
8
7
5
,
 

1
7

 
 
2
0
 
s
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
T
h
i
r
d
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
 
a
r
r
i
v
e
d
 
i
n
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 
S
t
a
t
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
l
a
t
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
i
r
 

1
9

 
 
M
o
t
h
e
r
h
o
u
s
e
 
-
-
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
M
o
t
h
e
r
h
o
u
s
e
 
i
n
 

2
0

 
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
W
i
s
c
o
n
s
i
n
 

2
1

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
m
o
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
s
e
r
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
O
r
d
e
r
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
f
o
r
 

2
3

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
A
A
-
/
A
A
-
 
b
y
 
F
i
t
c
h
 
a
n
d
 
S
&
P
.

2
4

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
2
0
1
7
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
a
s
 
f
i
x
e
d
 

1

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
p
l
a
c
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
e
 
o
f
 

2

 
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
D
N
T
 
A
s
s
e
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
.
 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 

3

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
n
 
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
t
o
 
a
 
-
-
 
w
h
a
t
'
s
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
a
 
T
o
t
a
l
 

4

 
 
R
e
t
u
r
n
 
S
w
a
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
D
N
T
 
A
s
s
e
t
 
T
r
u
s
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
w
i
l
l
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
n
 
b
e
 
s
w
a
p
p
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
m
o
d
e
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 

6

 
 
f
l
o
a
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
S
I
F
M
A
 
p
l
u
s
 
a
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 
I
 
s
e
n
t
 
o
u
t
,
 
I
 

8

 
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
t
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
L
I
B
O
R
.
 
 
S
o
 
i
t
 
s
a
y
s
 
L
I
B
O
R
,
 
b
u
t
 

9

 
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
a
s
 
w
e
 
a
l
l
 
k
n
o
w
,
 

1
0

 
 
L
I
B
O
R
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
a
w
a
y
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
t
u
r
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
i
r
 

1
2

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
a
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
4
.
9
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 

1
4

 
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
3
0
1
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 
 
I
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
m
a
n
y
 
t
i
m
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
M
o
t
h
e
r
h
o
u
s
e
 
i
s
 
q
u
i
t
e
 

1
7

 
 
e
x
q
u
i
s
i
t
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
r
e
m
o
d
e
l
e
d
 
i
t
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
a
g
o
.
 
 
O
f
 

1
8

 
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
,
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 

1
9

 
 
a
 
w
h
i
l
e
,
 
s
o
 
n
o
w
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
b
a
c
k
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
s
e
e
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
m
 
b
a
c
k
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 55



1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
P
a
m
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
-
-
 
I
'
l
l
 
t
u
r
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 

4

 
 
t
o
 
T
a
b
 
2
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
N
e
g
o
t
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
I
n
t
e
r
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 

6

 
 
A
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 

7

 
 
T
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
(
o
r
 
I
D
O
T
)
 
R
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
I
n
t
e
r
c
i
t
y
 
R
a
i
l
 

8

 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
H
i
g
h
-
S
p
e
e
d
 
R
a
i
l
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
J
o
a
n
n
e
,
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
u
l
d
 

1
0

 
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
d
i
u
m
.
 
 
A
s
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 

1
1

 
 
h
a
d
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
t
o
p
i
c
 
o
f
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
-
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 

1
2

 
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
t
e
r
n
a
t
i
v
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
D
O
T
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
d
o
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
s
t
a
t
u
t
o
r
y
 

1
5

 
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
o
p
i
c
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 

1
6

 
 
B
l
a
n
k
e
n
h
o
r
n
 
r
e
c
r
u
i
t
e
d
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
V
i
r
g
i
n
i
a
 

1
7

 
 
S
a
m
 
B
e
y
d
o
u
n
,
 
w
h
o
 
w
a
s
 
i
n
v
o
l
v
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
t
a
t
e
'
s
 

1
8

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
-
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
s
 
e
f
f
o
r
t
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 

1
9

 
 
a
n
d
 
l
u
r
e
d
 
h
i
m
 
t
o
 
S
p
r
i
n
g
f
i
e
l
d
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
a
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
r
a
i
s
e
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
s
o
m
e
 

2
2

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
o
m
e
 

2
3

 
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
s
t
i
m
u
l
u
s
 
d
o
l
l
a
r
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
i
t
 
w
a
s

2
4

1
4

 
 
u
n
f
o
r
e
s
e
e
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
i
t
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
n
'
t
 
a
 
n
e
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
,
 

2

 
 
y
e
t
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
n
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
s
o
m
e
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 

3

 
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
u
s
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
g
o
a
l
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 

5

 
 
f
o
r
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
 
r
e
h
a
b
i
l
i
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
u
p
d
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 

6

 
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
s
 
m
e
 
t
o
 

8

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
I
D
O
T
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
n
 

9

 
 
c
o
m
e
 
b
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 

1
0

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
r
r
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
,
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
n
 
s
t
a
f
f
-
l
e
v
e
l
 

1
2

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
,
 
w
e
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

1
3

 
 
s
o
m
e
w
h
a
t
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
a
r
r
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
t
r
o
 
E
a
s
t
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 
S
a
f
e
t
y
 
C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
 

1
5

 
 
s
t
e
w
a
r
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
m
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 

1
6

 
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
e
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
o
s
e
 

1
7

 
 
f
u
n
d
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
t
u
r
n
 
i
t
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
J
o
a
n
n
e
 

1
9

 
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
I
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
i
s
s
e
d
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 

2
1

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
s
o
 
m
u
c
h
 

2
2

 
 
f
o
r
 
a
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
m
e
 
t
o
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
 
f
o
r
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
h
e
r
e
 
o
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
,

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 56



1
5

 
 
I
'
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
e
 
d
r
i
l
l
,
 
s
o
 
I
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
t
h
i
s
 

1

 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
.
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
o
n
e
 
-
-
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 

2

 
 
B
l
a
k
e
n
h
o
r
n
 
s
e
n
d
s
 
h
i
s
 
r
e
g
r
e
t
s
.
 
 
H
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
n
'
t
 
b
e
 
h
e
r
e
 

3

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
,
 
s
o
 
h
e
 
s
e
n
t
 
m
e
 
i
n
s
i
d
e
.
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 

4

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
d
o
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
j
o
b
 
a
s
 
h
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
.
 
 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 

5

 
 
I
'
m
 
v
e
r
y
 
h
o
n
o
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
h
e
r
e
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
y
o
u
 

6

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
w
o
n
d
e
r
f
u
l
 

8

 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
o
u
r
 
t
w
o
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
l
l
a
b
o
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
t
o
 
t
r
y
 
t
o
 
m
o
v
e
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 

1
0

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
y
p
e
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
h
o
p
e
f
u
l
l
y
,
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 

1
1

 
 
b
u
i
l
d
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
s
 
a
n
d
 
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
t
o
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 

1
2

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
g
o
v
e
r
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
y
o
u
r
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
s
a
i
d
,
 
w
e
 

1
4

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
I
D
O
T
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
a
d
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
i
n
g
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
f
o
r
 
3
3
 

1
5

 
 
h
i
g
h
-
s
p
e
e
d
 
r
a
i
l
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
.
 
 
I
t
 
i
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 

1
6

 
 
h
i
g
h
-
s
p
e
e
d
 
r
a
i
l
 
i
n
t
e
r
-
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r
 
r
a
i
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 

1
7

 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
s
,
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
 
o
f
 

1
8

 
 
W
i
s
c
o
n
s
i
n
,
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
M
i
s
s
o
u
r
i
 
a
l
o
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
9

 
 
o
u
r
s
e
l
v
e
s
 
t
o
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 

2
0

 
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
'
s
 
h
i
s
t
o
r
y
,
 
t
o
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
b
u
y
 

2
1

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 
l
e
a
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
 

2
2

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
i
n
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
s
o
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
a
s

2
4

1
6

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
s
a
i
d
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
f
i
v
e
 

1

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
n
'
t
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
m
 
s
u
r
p
l
u
s
,
 
b
u
t
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 

3

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
o
n
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
 
i
n
 

4

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
g
o
e
s
 
t
o
 
M
i
l
w
a
u
k
e
e
.
 
 
I
t
 
d
o
e
s
n
'
t
 

5

 
 
q
u
i
t
e
 
g
o
 
1
1
0
 
m
i
l
e
s
 
a
n
 
h
o
u
r
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 

6

 
 
i
n
f
r
a
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
h
a
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
g
o
a
l
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
m
p
t
 
t
o
 
l
e
a
s
e
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
g
o
a
l
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
r
a
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
o
s
e
 

1
0

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
s
i
t
 
i
d
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
t
h
b
a
l
l
e
d
.
 
 
R
a
t
h
e
r
,
 
p
u
t
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
m
 
i
n
t
o
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
a
n
 
u
s
e
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
i
n
 
d
o
i
n
g
 

1
3

 
 
s
o
,
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
 
w
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
,
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
 
u
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
m
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 

1
7

 
 
o
r
.
.
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
I
D
O
T
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
 
a
n
y
 
t
r
a
i
n
 

1
9

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
?
 
 
I
'
m
 
c
o
n
f
u
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
w
h
y
 
I
D
O
T
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 

2
0

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
w
h
e
n
 
i
t
s
 
u
s
u
a
l
l
y
 
B
N
S
F
 
o
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
 
o
r
 

2
1

 
 
s
o
m
e
b
o
d
y
 
e
l
s
e
 
w
h
o
'
s
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
r
u
n
n
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
i
n
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
o
c
c
u
r
r
e
d
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 

2
3

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
-
-
 
a
s
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
s
a
i
d
,
 
t
h
e
r
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 57



1
7

 
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
u
r
p
l
u
s
e
s
 
a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
R
e
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
A
c
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
s
t
i
m
u
l
u
s
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 

2

 
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
u
n
e
s
 
o
f
 
h
u
n
d
r
e
d
s
 
o
f
 

3

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
d
o
l
l
a
r
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
i
n
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 

5

 
 
R
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
 
A
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
F
R
A
,
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 

6

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
i
n
c
l
i
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
o
s
e
 

7

 
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
s
u
b
s
i
d
i
z
e
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
.
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
y
 

8

 
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
p
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
o
b
t
a
i
n
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
S
o
 
b
y
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
g
r
a
n
t
s
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
b
u
y
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
B
N
S
F
,
 
w
e
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
r
u
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.
 
 
S
o
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
M
i
l
w
a
u
k
e
e
 
l
i
n
e
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
b
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
o
u
r
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
S
o
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
I
D
O
T
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 

1
8

 
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
l
e
g
a
l
l
y
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
n
o
t
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
 
a
 
r
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
 

1
9

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
w
a
n
t
 
-
-
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
n
e
y
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

2
3

 
 
s
h
a
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
c
k
 
e
n
d
?

2
4

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
W
h
e
n
 
y
o
u
 
s
a
y
 
-
-
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
I
f
 
i
t
'
s
 
y
o
u
r
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
W
e
l
l
,
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

3

 
 
s
h
a
r
i
n
g
,
 
f
o
r
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
s
 

4

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
 
a
r
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
-
-
 
a
r
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
u
c
c
i
n
c
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 

5

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
n
'
t
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
a
t
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
i
l
y
 
a
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
-
s
h
a
r
i
n
g
 

6

 
 
s
c
e
n
a
r
i
o
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
f
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

7

 
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
h
a
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
t
h
,
 
f
o
r
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
,
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
s
s
e
e
,
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
i
n
g
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

1
0

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 

1
1

 
 
g
r
a
n
t
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
p
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 

1
5

 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
a
y
,
 

1
6

 
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
m
a
n
y
 
p
e
r
m
u
t
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
w
o
r
k
 
t
o
 
a
 
t
r
a
-
 
-
-
 
a
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 

1
7

 
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
f
u
n
d
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 
w
h
y
 
-
-
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
I
 
w
a
s
 
s
o
 
i
n
t
r
i
g
u
e
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Q
u
i
c
k
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
:
 
 
S
o
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
,
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
 
o
r
 
B
N
S
F
 
t
h
e
n
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 

2
2

 
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
b
a
c
k
 
t
o
 
I
D
O
T
 
t
o
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
I
D
O
T
'
s
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
?
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
-
-

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 58



1
9

 
 
I
 
m
i
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
a
r
t
,
 
o
r
 
I
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
S
u
r
p
l
u
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
W
e
l
l
,
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
 

3

 
 
s
c
e
n
a
r
i
o
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
 

4

 
 
e
n
g
a
g
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
-
-
 
l
e
g
a
l
l
y
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
n
'
t
 
b
e
 

5

 
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
f
o
r
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 

9

 
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 
o
r
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
A
m
t
r
a
k
.
 
 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 

1
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
z
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
-
-
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 

1
1

 
 
b
e
 
d
e
e
m
e
d
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
s
u
r
-
 
-
-
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
v
e
 

1
4

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
c
a
l
l
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
,
 

1
6

 
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
f
i
v
e
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
s
 
l
e
a
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
o
 

1
7

 
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
o
r
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
r
e
i
n
 

1
8

 
 
t
r
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
a
l
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
p
r
o
b
a
b
l
y
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
i
n
g
 
a
b
o
u
t
,
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
c
a
n
 
w
e
 

2
0

 
 
u
s
e
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
t
h
e
n
 
t
o
 
i
n
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
y
 
p
u
t
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
p
u
t
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e

2
4

2
0

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
f
o
r
 
o
v
e
r
h
a
u
l
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 

2

 
 
b
e
a
u
t
i
f
u
l
 
s
t
a
t
e
-
o
f
-
t
h
e
-
a
r
t
.
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
s
 
a
 

3

 
 
l
i
t
t
l
e
 
b
i
t
 
l
a
t
e
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
o
v
e
r
h
a
u
l
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
m
e
 
i
n
,
 
l
i
k
e
,
 
y
e
a
r
s
 

5

 
 
s
e
v
e
n
,
 
e
i
g
h
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
n
i
n
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 

8

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
i
n
c
e
p
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
w
e
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
a
n
y
 

9

 
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
m
a
i
n
t
a
i
n
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 

1
0

 
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
s
e
l
f
-
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 
e
x
c
e
p
t
 
f
o
r
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

1
1

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
y
p
i
c
a
l
 
s
t
r
i
k
e
s
,
 
b
i
r
d
 
s
t
r
i
k
e
s
,
 
t
r
e
e
 
s
t
r
i
k
e
s
,
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
a
t
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
,
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
i
n
t
o
 

1
3

 
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
p
a
i
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
r
 
i
n
s
u
r
a
n
c
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
p
a
i
r
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
i
f
 
w
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
n
 
w
e
 
w
o
r
k
 

1
6

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
o
r
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 

1
7

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
c
a
l
l
 
m
o
r
e
 
-
-
 
m
o
r
e
 
r
o
b
u
s
t
 
l
e
a
s
e
 
m
o
n
i
e
s
 

1
8

 
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Q
u
i
c
k
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
:
 
D
i
d
 
y
o
u
 
s
a
y
 
y
o
u
 

2
1

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
3
3
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
h
a
v
e
 
y
o
u
 
-
-
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
 
i
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 59



2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
m
i
d
w
e
s
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
d
o
n
e
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 

2

 
 
C
a
l
t
r
a
n
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
i
l
 
c
a
r
s
.
 
 
S
o
 

3

 
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
o
 
l
e
a
d
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
,
 
C
a
l
t
r
a
n
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
a
d
 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
p
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
i
l
 
c
a
r
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
m
a
k
e
 
u
p
 
w
h
a
t
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
i
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
u
l
t
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 

7

 
 
b
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
 
r
a
i
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
i
n
t
o
 
-
-
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 

8

 
 
c
e
n
t
u
r
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
-
-
 
m
a
y
b
e
 
-
-
 
m
a
y
b
e
 
n
o
t
 
q
u
i
t
e
 
l
i
k
e
 

9

 
 
E
u
r
o
p
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
h
o
p
e
f
u
l
l
y
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
C
a
l
i
f
o
r
n
i
a
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 

1
2

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
,
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
o
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
,
 
w
e
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
 
C
o
a
l
i
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
m
i
d
w
e
s
t
 
s
t
a
t
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
o
n
e
s
 
I
 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
e
d
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
h
a
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
 
L
i
n
e
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
,
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
y
 

1
8

 
 
t
w
o
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
W
i
s
c
o
n
s
i
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
M
i
s
s
o
u
r
i
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
e
y
'
l
l
 
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
y
'
l
l
 
a
l
l
 
b
e
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
o
n
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
b
o
u
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
n
o
t
 
l
i
k
e
 

2
2

 
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
 
w
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
a
n
d
 
b
o
u
g
h
t
 
s
o
m
e
 
e
n
g
i
n
e
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
N
o
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
h
a
r
i
n
g

2
4

2
2

 
 
a
n
d
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
c
o
-
o
w
n
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
-
-
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 

3

 
 
f
o
r
 
m
a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
-
-
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
i
s
e
s
,
 

4

 
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 

8

 
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
l
y
,
 
b
u
t
 
i
t
 
s
o
u
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
m
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
D
O
T
 
i
s
 
a
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 

9

 
 
f
o
r
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
m
o
n
e
y
,
 
b
u
t
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
f
i
v
e
 
s
u
r
p
l
u
s
 

1
0

 
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
h
o
p
e
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
s
o
m
e
 
s
o
r
t
 
o
f
 
l
e
a
s
e
 

1
1

 
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
n
,
 
i
t
 
l
o
o
k
s
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 

1
2

 
 
f
r
e
e
 
l
o
c
o
m
o
t
i
v
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
f
r
e
e
 
r
a
i
l
 
c
a
r
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
m
 
c
u
r
i
o
u
s
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
w
h
y
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
d
o
i
n
g
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
e
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
f
o
r
 
s
o
m
e
b
o
d
y
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
C
a
n
a
d
i
a
n
 

1
5

 
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
.
 
 
A
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
C
a
n
a
d
i
a
n
 

1
6

 
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
N
o
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
G
o
o
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
C
N
 
h
a
s
 

2
0

 
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
i
n
t
r
i
c
a
t
e
 
n
e
t
w
o
r
k
,
 
e
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 

2
1

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
C
N
.
 
 
I
 

2
2

 
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
y
a
r
d
s
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 

2
3

 
 
C
P
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
C
N
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
U
P
.
 
 
S
o
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
B
N
S
F
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 60



2
3

 
 
a
r
e
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
i
n
t
r
i
c
a
c
i
e
s
.
 
 
Y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 

1

 
 
i
s
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
r
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
s
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
o
w
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
i
l
 

2

 
 
t
r
a
c
k
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
r
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

5

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
-
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
v
e
r
y
 

6

 
 
c
o
n
v
o
l
u
t
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
n
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
r
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
m
a
y
 

7

 
 
o
w
n
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
l
y
i
n
g
 
l
a
n
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
m
a
y
 
o
w
-
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
m
a
y
 
o
w
e
 

8

 
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
r
u
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
n
e
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
a
i
l
 

9

 
 
t
r
a
c
k
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
m
 
h
a
p
p
y
 

1
1

 
 
t
o
 
s
p
e
a
k
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
I
'
m
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
s
t
a
y
 

1
2

 
 
f
u
r
t
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
s
p
e
a
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
e
a
c
h
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
3

 
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
n
u
a
n
c
e
s
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
,
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
,
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
y
o
u
 

1
4

 
 
c
a
m
e
 
i
n
,
 
b
u
t
 
f
o
r
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
 
w
e
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
C
N
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
o
u
r
 

1
6

 
 
e
q
u
i
p
m
e
n
t
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
d
e
l
a
y
 
a
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
n
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
l
o
n
g
,
 
c
o
n
v
o
l
u
t
e
d
 
e
x
p
l
a
n
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
B
u
t
 
I
 
f
i
n
d
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
u
l
a
r
l
y
 

2
1

 
 
i
n
t
r
i
g
u
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
O
'
H
a
r
e
 
N
o
i
s
e
 
C
a
p
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 

2
2

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
s
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
u
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
T
o
l
l
w
a
y
 
-
-
 
n
o
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
T
o
l
l
w
a
y
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e

2
4

2
4

 
 
C
a
n
a
d
i
a
n
 
N
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
o
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
 
o
u
t
 
a
t
 
O
'
H
a
r
e
.
 
 
I
'
d
 

1

 
 
b
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
o
m
e
 
b
a
c
k
u
p
 
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
I
f
 
y
o
u
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
i
t
 
t
o
 
C
h
r
i
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
n
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
c
a
n
 
g
e
t
 
i
t
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
-
-
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
f
t
e
r
w
a
r
d
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
I
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
i
n
g
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
I
t
 
s
o
u
n
d
s
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
g
o
o
d
 
c
o
n
d
u
i
t
 

9

 
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
i
l
r
o
a
d
 
s
e
c
t
o
r
 

1
0

 
 
h
e
r
e
,
 
e
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
l
y
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
s
 
h
i
g
h
-
s
p
e
e
d
 
r
a
i
l
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
-
-
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
U
h
-
h
u
h
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
-
-
 
I
'
m
 
c
o
n
f
u
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
w
h
o
l
e
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
h
e
r
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
I
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
J
O
A
N
N
E
 
F
E
H
N
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 

2
0

 
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
1
 
a
n
d
 
2
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 61



2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

2

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
I
f
 
I
 
m
a
y
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
-
-
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
'
l
l
 
d
o
 
a
 
r
o
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
w
a
s
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
,
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
o
n
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

1
4

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
n
e
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?

2
4

2
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 

1
2

 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
H
e
a
r
i
n
g
 
n
o
n
e
,
 
I
'
d
 

1
5

 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f
 

1
6

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
u
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 62



2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
l
y
 

7

 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
t
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

8

 
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
d
j
o
u
r
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
G
i
l
a
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
L
E
T
C
H
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
1
0
:
0
0
 
a
.
m
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
W
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
h
a
d
.
)

2
4

2
8

 
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
 
 
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 
S
S
:
 

 
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
O
F
 
C
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
 
B
e
n
j
a
m
i
n
,
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
d
u
l
y
 
s
w
o
r
n
 
o
n
 
o
a
t
h
,
 

3

 
 
s
a
y
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
,
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
g
o
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
 

6

 
 
t
r
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
p
t
 
o
f
 
h
i
s
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
e
s
 
s
o
 

7

 
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
s
 
a
f
o
r
e
s
a
i
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
s
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 

8

 
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
s
a
i
d
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
4
8
0
5
 

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 63



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE 
ADOPTED 

 
 
November 30, 2017 
 
8 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
NV Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
E Horne E Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 64



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

NOVEMBER 30, 2017 AGENDA OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 
 
November 30, 2017 
 
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 

E Horne E Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 65



NO. 01 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1130-HC01 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – HOSPITAL SISTERS SERVICES, INC. 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
November 30, 2017 
 
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 

E Horne E Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 66



NO. 02 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1130-AD02 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING IFA TO NEGOTIATE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION (IDOT) 

RELATING TO INTERCITY RAIL SERVICE AND HIGH SPEED RAIL  
ADOPTED* 

 
 
November 30, 2017 
 
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
 
Y Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
E Fuentes Y McCoy Y Zeller 
Y Goetz  

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 

E Horne E Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 67



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  February 8, 2018  
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Gila J. Bronner George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
   
 
Subject: Minutes of the December 14, 2017 Regular Meeting 
 
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Sullivan Reporting Co. (the “Minutes”) in 
connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), 
begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, 
Illinois 60601, on the second Thursday of December in the year 2017, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of 
the State of Illinois (the “Act”). 
 
To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, December 14, 2017 
9:30 AM 

 
AGENDA: 

 
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 (page 4, line 3 through page 6, line 4; page 14, lines 3 through 23)  
II. Approval of Agenda 
 (page 6, line 5 through page 6, line 21) 
III. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 6, line 22 through page 7, line 12) 
IV. Message from the Executive Director 
 (page 7, line 13 through page 8, line 11) 
V. Consideration of the Minutes 
 (page 8, line 12 through page 8, line 14) 
VI. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 
 (page 8, line 15 through page 13, line 3) 
VII. Monthly Procurement Report 
 (page 14, line 24 through page 16, line 9) 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 68



 
 
VIII. Committee Reports 
 (page 13, line 4 through page 14, line 2) 
IX. Presentation and Consideration of the Project Reports and Resolutions 
 (page 16, line 10 through page 79, line 1) 
X. Other Business 
 (page 79, line 2 through page 80, line 9) 
XI. Public Comment 
 (page 80, line 10 through page 81, line 6) 
XII. Adjournment 
 (page 81, lines 7 through 23) 
 
The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 
enclosed. 
 
Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Ryan Oechsler           
Associate General Counsel 
 
 
Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the December 14, 2017 Regular Meeting 
  2. Voting Record of the December 14, 2017 Regular Meeting 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 69



1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
G
U
L
A
R
 
M
E
E
T
I
N
G
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
1
7
 
a
t
 
9
:
3
1
 
a
.
m
.
 

3 4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
O
F
 
P
R
O
C
E
E
D
I
N
G
S
 
h
a
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 

5

 
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
o
n
 

6

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
4
,
 
2
0
1
7
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
h
o
u
r
 
o
f
 
9
:
3
0
 
a
.
m
.
,
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 

7

 
 
t
o
 
n
o
t
i
c
e
,
 
a
t
 
1
6
0
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
L
a
S
a
l
l
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
S
-
1
0
0
0
,
 

8

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2

 
 
A
P
P
E
A
R
A
N
C
E
S
:
 

1
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
E
R
I
C
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 

2
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
B
R
A
D
L
E
Y
 
A
.
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
G
E
R
 
E
.
 
P
O
O
L
E
 

3
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
G
E
O
R
G
E
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
Y
L
E
 
M
c
C
O
Y
 
(
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
)
 

4
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
L
E
R
R
Y
 
K
N
O
X
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
R
L
E
N
E
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
 

5
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
W
.
 
G
O
E
T
Z
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
B
E
T
H
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
 

6
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
G
I
L
A
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
 
(
v
i
a
 
A
u
d
i
o
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
)
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
J
A
M
E
S
 
J
.
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
 

7
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
O
B
E
R
T
 
H
O
R
N
E
 

8
 
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
E
 
A
U
T
H
O
R
I
T
Y
 
S
T
A
F
F
 
M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 

9
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
I
C
H
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
P
A
M
E
L
A
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
,
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
E
L
I
Z
A
B
E
T
H
 
W
E
B
E
R
,
 
I
F
A
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
X
I
M
E
N
A
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
,
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
l
e
r
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
R
I
S
T
O
P
H
E
R
 
B
.
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
E
R
R
Y
 
F
R
A
N
Z
E
N
,
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
R
Y
A
N
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
,
 
I
F
A
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
 

1
3

 
 
G
U
E
S
T
S
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
F
.
 
C
L
A
R
K
 
I
I
I
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
,
 

 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
N
D
R
E
A
 
O
.
 
H
A
S
T
E
N
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
,
 
T
h
e
 
O
l
d
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
s
 
H
o
m
e
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
N
A
D
I
A
 
G
E
I
G
L
E
R
,
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
D
A
N
 
C
H
U
R
C
H
I
L
L
,
 
C
H
I
E
F
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
O
F
F
I
C
E
R
,
 

 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
D
A
V
I
D
 
L
E
W
I
S
,
 
A
S
S
I
S
T
A
N
T
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
E
R
,
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
A
n
n
 
&
 
R
o
b
e
r
t
 
H
.
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
o
f
 

 
 
 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
,
 
V
I
C
E
 
P
R
E
S
I
D
E
N
T
 
O
F
 
T
R
E
A
S
U
R
Y
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
,
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
N
N
E
 
D
O
N
A
H
O
E
,
 
F
I
N
A
N
C
I
A
L
 
A
D
V
I
S
O
R
 
t
o
 

 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 70



3

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
,
 
B
O
N
D
 
C
O
U
N
S
E
L
 

1

 
 
 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 

 
 
G
U
E
S
T
S
 
C
O
N
T
I
N
U
E
D
:
 

2

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
S
T
E
V
E
 
Y
E
N
C
H
E
K
,
 
C
E
O
,
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
f
 

3

 
 
 
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
 

4

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
F
L
Y
N
N
,
 
C
F
O
,
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
f
 

 
 
 
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
 

5

 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
D
O
N
A
L
D
 
F
.
 
H
E
M
M
E
S
C
H
,
 
J
R
.
,
 
S
m
i
t
h
 
H
e
m
m
e
s
c
h
 
B
u
r
k
e
 

6

 
 
 
 
K
a
c
z
y
n
s
k
i
 

7 8 9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
.
 

1

 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
b
i
g
 
a
u
d
i
e
n
c
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
o
r
d
e
r
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
9
:
3
2
 
a
.
m
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 

7

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
f
i
r
s
t
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 71



5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
H
e
r
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
a
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
o
f
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

5

 
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
e
d
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
i
f
 
a
n
y
 

7

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
h
i
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
G
i
l
a
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
.
 
 
I
'
m
 

9

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
m
e
n
t
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
s
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
t
h
e
r
e
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
b
y
l
a
w
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
p
o
l
i
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?

2
4

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
h
a
s
 

3

 
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
q
u
o
r
u
m
 
r
o
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
w
i
s
h
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
n
y
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
e
d
i
t
s
,
 
o
r
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 

6

 
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

9

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
k
e
e
p
 
m
y
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
 
b
r
i
e
f
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 

2
2

 
 
s
e
e
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
b
i
g
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
2
1
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 

2
3

 
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
'
s

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 72



7

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
i
n
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 
D
C
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
n
o
w
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
'
l
l
 
j
u
s
t
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
q
u
i
c
k
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
 
t
h
a
t
 

2

 
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
c
t
i
v
e
 
i
n
 
t
a
l
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
s
o
m
e
 
c
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
m
e
n
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
c
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
t
a
f
f
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
w
e
'
r
e
 

4

 
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
c
l
e
a
r
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 
o
f
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
t
'
s
 

5

 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
P
A
B
s
.
 
 
W
e
'
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
i
n
,
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
o
u
t
,
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m
o
d
i
f
i
e
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 

7

 
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
m
a
y
b
e
 
b
y
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
o
r
 
t
o
m
o
r
r
o
w
,
 
o
u
r
 

8

 
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
c
t
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
l
y
,
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
h
a
s
 
s
o
m
e
 
m
o
r
e
 

1
1

 
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
s
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
A
n
d
e
r
b
e
r
g
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

1
4

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
o
u
r
 
t
h
i
r
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
a
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
l
e
n
g
t
h
y
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
r
e
v
i
e
w
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
 

1
7

 
 
a
f
t
e
r
n
o
o
n
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
x
 

1
8

 
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
w
i
s
h
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
m
o
r
e
 
c
l
a
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

2
0

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
t
e
a
m
s
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
r
o
o
m
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
'
v
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 

2
2

 
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
u
n
c
l
e
a
r
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
r
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
E
r
i
c
 
a
n
d
 
I

2
4

8

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
b
a
c
k
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
g
u
l
a
r
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
n
,
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
3
0
t
h
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
i
t
s
 

3

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
,
 
i
t
s
 
b
o
a
r
d
,
 
i
t
s
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
t
o
 
m
e
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
t
e
a
m
s
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 

5

 
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
n
t
s
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
 
w
o
r
k
 
e
x
t
r
a
o
r
d
i
n
a
r
i
l
y
 
h
a
r
d
,
 

6

 
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
a
n
d
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 

7

 
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
t
o
 
t
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
g
e
t
 
a
s
 
m
u
c
h
 

8

 
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
c
c
o
m
p
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
a
s
 
i
s
 

9

 
 
h
u
m
a
n
l
y
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
2

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
?
 
 
O
r
.
.
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
,
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
d
e
f
e
r
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
M
i
n
u
t
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
A
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
o
n
e
.
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

1
7

 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
o
f
 

1
8

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
0
t
h
,
 
2
0
1
7
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
l
o
n
g
 

1
9

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
T
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
A
n
a
l
y
s
i
s
 
M
e
m
o
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
b
o
a
r
d
 

2
0

 
 
b
o
o
k
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
S
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
a
b
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
 

2
2

 
 
i
s
 
a
s
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
s
:
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
e
q
u
a
l
s
 
$
1
.
9
 

2
3

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
r
 
$
2
0
5
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
1
2
.
3
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 73



9

 
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
e
e
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 

3

 
 
$
3
7
6
,
0
0
0
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
$
1
4
,
0
0
0
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 

4

 
 
t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
e
d
 
o
f
 
$
2
4
0
,
0
0
0
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
e
q
u
a
l
s
 

6

 
 
$
1
.
2
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
r
e
 
$
3
9
0
,
0
0
0
 
o
r
 
2
4
.
2
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
l
o
w
e
r
 

7

 
 
t
h
a
n
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
a
s
 
m
o
s
t
l
y
 
d
r
i
v
e
n
 
b
y
 
a
 
r
e
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 

8

 
 
o
n
 
s
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 

1
1

 
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
o
f
 
$
2
2
5
,
0
0
0
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
b
y
 

1
2

 
 
$
6
7
,
0
0
0
 
f
r
o
m
 
o
u
r
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
2
9
2
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
v
a
r
i
a
n
c
e
 
i
s
 
d
u
e
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
o
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
-
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

1
4

 
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
o
f
e
s
s
i
o
n
a
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
m
o
n
t
h
l
y
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
f
o
r
 

1
6

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
i
s
 
$
2
3
6
,
0
0
0
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

1
7

 
 
s
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

1
8

 
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
e
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
i
s
 
a
t
 

2
0

 
 
6
3
0
-
 
-
-
 
$
6
5
8
,
0
0
0
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
j
o
r
 
d
r
i
v
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 

2
1

 
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
-
-
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 
l
i
n
e
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
o
f
 
o
v
e
r
a
l
l
 
s
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
2
4
.
2
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 

2
3

 
 
l
o
w
e
r
-
t
h
a
n
-
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g

2
4

1
0

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
e
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
u
r
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
f
u
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
s
 
t
o
 

2

 
 
m
a
i
n
t
a
i
n
 
a
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
 
s
h
e
e
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
n
e
t
 

3

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
$
5
7
.
3
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
r
e
s
t
r
i
c
t
e
d
 
c
a
s
h
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
f
 
$
4
2
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
r
e
 
T
r
u
c
k
 
a
n
d
 

6

 
 
A
m
b
u
l
a
n
c
e
 
L
o
a
n
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 

7

 
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
a
n
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
r
e
 
d
u
e
 
o
n
 

8

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
s
t
.
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
l
o
a
n
 
r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 
b
o
t
h
 

9

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
$
2
.
2
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
A
u
d
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
Y
e
a
r
 

1
1

 
 
2
0
1
7
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
i
s
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
.
 
 
A
 
d
r
a
f
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
w
a
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
m
a
n
i
l
a
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
r
e
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
w
e
e
k
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
A
n
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
-
-
 
a
n
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
l
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

1
5

 
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
w
e
e
k
s
 
t
o
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
w
o
-
y
e
a
r
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
8

 
 
f
o
r
 
f
i
s
c
a
l
 
y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
6
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
1
7
 
i
s
 
o
n
g
o
i
n
g
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
e
l
d
 

1
9

 
 
w
o
r
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
e
x
a
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
t
e
n
t
a
t
i
v
e
 
t
o
 

2
0

 
 
b
e
 
f
i
n
i
s
h
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
o
m
o
r
r
o
w
,
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
5
t
h
.
 
 
C
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
,
 

2
1

 
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
1
1
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
;
 
w
e
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
b
e
 
1
4
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
 
a
u
d
i
t
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
s
 
a
r
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 74



1
1

 
 
f
i
n
a
l
,
 
a
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
p
l
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
l
u
s
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
P
l
u
s
 

2

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
o
u
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 

4

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
e
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 
w
a
s
 
h
e
l
d
 
o
n
 

5

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
8
t
h
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
D
e
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
C
e
n
t
r
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
d
i
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
k
e
e
p
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
e
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 

9

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
m
o
v
e
-
 
-
-
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
a
h
e
a
d
,
 
i
n
 

1
1

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
s
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
1
4
 

1
2

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
4
 
h
o
s
t
 
T
E
F
R
A
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
o
f
 
$
1
.
7
 

1
3

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
m
i
n
i
s
t
r
a
t
i
v
e
 
f
e
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 

1
4

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
h
i
g
h
e
s
t
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
f
o
r
 
f
e
e
s
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 

1
5

 
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
i
t
s
 
i
n
c
e
p
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
 
a
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
,
 

1
8

 
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
v
o
l
u
m
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
e
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
d
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
f
e
e
s
,
 
i
n
 
o
u
r
 
v
i
e
w
,
 
i
s
 
d
u
e
 

2
0

 
 
a
l
m
o
s
t
 
s
o
l
e
l
y
 
t
o
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
r
e
s
s
i
o
n
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
u
n
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
t
y
 
i
n
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
 

2
2

 
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
,
 
I
 
d
o
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
 
t
h
e

2
4

1
2

 
 
A
u
d
i
t
o
r
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
w
o
r
k
e
d
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
a
 
d
r
a
f
t
 

1

 
 
c
o
p
y
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
A
u
d
i
t
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
h
a
s
 
o
n
e
 
f
i
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
n
 

2

 
 
i
t
,
 
r
e
l
e
a
s
e
d
 
t
o
 
u
s
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
s
h
a
r
e
 
i
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
r
e
l
e
a
s
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
o
o
d
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
g
e
t
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
h
a
n
d
 
o
f
 

5

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 
 
S
o
.
.
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
-
-
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
L
y
l
e
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
j
o
i
n
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
c
a
l
l
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
L
y
l
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 
r
e
c
o
g
n
i
z
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
L
y
l
e
'
s
 
-
-
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
9
:
4
1
 
a
.
m
.
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
s
h
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
h
a
s
 
j
o
i
n
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 

1
3

 
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
e
p
t
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
e
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 75



1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
 

4

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
o
i
n
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
 
a
s
 
I
t
e
m
 

6

 
 
N
o
.
 
2
1
 
o
f
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
 
T
a
x
-
E
x
e
m
p
t
 
C
o
n
d
u
i
t
 
T
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 

9

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 
v
o
t
e
d
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
e
a
c
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
s
 

1
1

 
 
o
n
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
 
Z
o
o
;
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
;
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
;
 

1
3

 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
;
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
;
 
T
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
;
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 

1
5

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
i
e
s
 
K
P
,
 
L
.
L
.
C
.
;
 
B
r
a
d
l
e
y
 

1
6

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
;
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
e
;
 
E
l
i
m
 
C
h
r
i
s
t
i
a
n
 

1
7

 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
;
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
;
 
a
n
d
 
I
E
F
A
 

1
8

 
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
;
 
t
h
e
 
L
o
y
o
l
a
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 

1
9

 
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
;
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
;
 

2
0

 
 
L
i
t
t
l
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
;
 
R
u
s
h
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 

2
1

 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
a
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
f
o
r
 
C
a
l
e
n
d
a
r
 
Y
e
a
r
 
2
0
1
8
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
,
 

2
2

 
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
;
 
a
n
d
 
O
m
n
i
b
u
s
 
R
e
s
-
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 

2
3

 
 
O
m
n
i
b
u
s
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
a
 
m
o
u
t
h
f
u
l
.

2
4

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
d
 
a
 
b
u
s
y
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
L
y
l
e
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
C
o
u
l
d
 
I
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
y
o
u
r
 

7

 
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 
f
o
r
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
t
o
d
a
y
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
d
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 

9

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
r
a
v
e
l
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
L
y
l
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
 
h
i
m
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
C
a
n
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
-
-
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 

2
2

 
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
o
f
 
o
r
d
e
r
.
 
 
I

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 76



1
5

 
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
w
e
 
s
k
i
p
p
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
D
i
d
 
w
e
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
n
o
 
v
o
t
e
 

4

 
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
,
 
b
u
t
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
a
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 
 
I
 
a
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
u
l
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
?
 
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
 

7

 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
o
u
'
r
e
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
o
u
 
a
r
e
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
N
Z
E
N
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

1
1

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
,
 
y
o
u
 
s
e
e
 

1
3

 
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
s
m
a
l
l
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
o
r
d
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
C
D
W
-
G
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 

1
5

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
e
n
c
y
'
s
 
d
e
s
k
t
o
p
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
a
r
e
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
A
g
e
n
d
a
 

1
7

 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
2
0
,
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
2
0
1
7
-
2
0
1
4
 
[
s
i
c
]
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
s
c
e
n
t
 

1
8

 
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
w
a
s
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
b
y
 
$
1
4
3
,
4
1
6
,
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
1
6
5
,
0
0
0
 

2
0

 
 
a
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
,
 
f
o
r
 
s
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 

2
1

 
 
u
p
g
r
a
d
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
i
n
g
 
s
o
f
t
w
a
r
e
 

2
2

 
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
i
m
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
n
e
w
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 
a
n
d
 
t
i
m
e
k
e
e
p
i
n
g
 

2
3

 
 
m
o
d
u
l
e
s
 
t
o
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
i
n
h
o
u
s
e
.

2
4

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
D
P
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
S
o
u
r
c
e
 
A
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 

1

 
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
i
n
 
p
r
o
g
r
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
i
s
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
s
o
o
n
 

2

 
 
f
o
r
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

3

 
 
M
a
y
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
8
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
C
a
t
a
l
y
s
t
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
w
a
s
 

5

 
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
d
d
 
$
1
8
0
,
0
0
0
 
i
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 

6

 
 
v
o
i
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
d
a
t
a
 
n
e
t
w
o
r
k
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
o
w
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
e
d
 
v
o
t
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
t
o
 
e
a
c
h
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
,
 
i
n
d
i
v
i
d
u
a
l
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
u
n
l
e
s
s
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 

1
6

 
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
l
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
9

 
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
 
m
y
s
e
l
f
 
f
r
o
m
 
a
n
y
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
0

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
N
o
.
 
3
,
 
5
,
 
a
n
d
 
2
2
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 

2
1

 
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
m
y
 
s
o
n
 
w
o
r
k
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

2
2

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 77



1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
,
 
t
o
o
,
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
s
k
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 

1

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
i
n
g
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
3
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
n
n
 
&
 
R
o
b
e
r
t
 
H
.
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
.
 
 
I
'
m
 
a
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 

3

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
o
r
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
R
e
a
l
 
E
s
t
a
t
e
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
n
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
I
t
e
m
 

7

 
 
N
o
.
 
6
,
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
,
 
f
i
r
s
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 

8

 
 
a
 
r
o
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 
v
o
t
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
n
e
x
t
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
3
,
 

1
0

 
 
5
,
 
a
n
d
 
2
2
 
a
s
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
 
v
o
t
e
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
n
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
2
1
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
A
p
p
o
i
n
t
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
a
s
 
a
 
s
e
p
a
r
a
t
e
 

1
3

 
 
v
o
t
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
i
t
e
m
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
a
 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
v
o
t
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
,
 
P
a
m
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
L
a
k
e
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 

2
0

 
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 

2
1

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
7
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
'
s
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 

2
3

 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
2
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n

2
4

1
8

 
 
i
n
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
D
e
b
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 

1

 
 
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
y
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 

3

 
 
w
a
i
v
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
o
l
i
c
y
 
f
o
r
 
n
o
n
-
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
i
n
 

4

 
 
$
5
,
0
0
0
 
d
e
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 

5

 
 
f
e
a
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
s
t
u
d
y
 
d
a
t
e
d
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
1
,
 
2
0
1
7
,
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
b
y
 

6

 
 
D
i
x
o
n
 
H
u
g
h
e
s
 
G
o
o
d
m
a
n
,
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
-
-
 

7

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
v
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
2
.
1
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
i
n
 

9

 
 
E
d
g
e
w
a
t
e
r
/
U
p
t
o
w
n
 
n
e
i
g
h
b
o
r
h
o
o
d
s
,
 
a
t
 
F
o
s
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
M
a
r
i
n
e
 

1
0

 
 
D
r
i
v
e
,
 
a
d
j
a
c
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
L
a
k
e
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 
w
a
s
 
f
o
u
n
d
e
d
 
i
n
 

1
2

 
 
1
8
5
8
 
a
s
 
T
h
e
 
H
o
m
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
A
g
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
I
n
d
i
g
e
n
t
 
F
e
m
a
l
e
s
 
t
o
 

1
3

 
 
c
a
r
e
 
f
o
r
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
'
s
 
h
o
m
e
l
e
s
s
,
 
e
l
d
e
r
l
y
 
w
o
m
e
n
.
 
 
W
h
e
n
 
i
t
 

1
4

 
 
f
o
u
n
d
e
d
,
 
i
t
 
w
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
l
y
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

1
5

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
d
e
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
e
l
d
e
r
l
y
.
 
 
I
n
 

1
6

 
 
1
8
8
7
,
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
d
 
i
t
s
 
c
h
a
r
t
e
r
,
 
c
h
a
n
g
i
n
g
 
i
t
s
 

1
7

 
 
n
a
m
e
 
t
o
 
T
h
e
 
O
l
d
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
'
s
 
H
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 

1
8

 
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
c
a
m
e
 
a
 
n
o
n
-
s
e
c
t
a
r
i
a
n
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
b
o
t
h
 
w
o
m
a
n
 

1
9

 
 
a
n
d
 
m
e
n
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
 
f
a
i
t
h
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
i
t
i
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
2
0
0
4
,
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

2
1

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
a
 
R
e
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
P
l
a
n
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
o
u
t
l
i
n
e
d
 

2
2

 
 
s
t
r
a
t
e
g
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
i
n
t
o
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
l
y
 

2
3

 
 
v
i
a
b
l
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
5
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 78



1
9

 
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
e
d
 
G
r
e
y
s
t
o
n
e
 
-
-
 
G
r
e
y
s
t
o
n
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
o
n
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
A
d
m
-
 
-
-
 
o
n
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
s
i
t
e
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
m
o
l
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
o
l
d
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
b
e
g
a
n
 

4

 
 
i
n
 
A
u
g
u
s
t
 
o
f
 
2
0
0
7
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
a
s
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 

5

 
 
2
0
0
7
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
w
a
s
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
l
y
 

7

 
 
r
e
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
e
d
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
0
 
w
i
t
h
 

8

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 

1
0

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
1
9
8
 
o
n
e
-
,
 
t
w
o
-
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
r
e
e
-
b
e
d
r
o
o
m
 

1
1

 
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
1
2
 
g
a
r
d
e
n
 

1
2

 
 
t
o
w
n
h
o
m
e
 
a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
3
9
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
1
7
 

1
3

 
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
3
6
 
n
u
r
s
i
n
g
 

1
4

 
 
b
e
d
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
g
o
v
e
r
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
7
-
m
e
m
b
e
r
 

1
6

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
s
h
o
w
n
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
4
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
h
e
r
e
 

1
7

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
o
f
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
r
l
e
y
 

1
8

 
 
C
l
a
r
k
;
 
a
l
s
o
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
O
l
d
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
s
 

1
9

 
 
H
o
m
e
,
 
M
s
.
 
A
n
d
r
e
a
 
H
a
s
t
e
n
;
 
a
l
s
o
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 

2
0

 
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
,
 
N
a
d
i
a
 
-
-
 
N
a
d
i
a
 

2
1

 
 
G
e
i
g
l
e
r
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
r
a
i
s
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
h
a
n
d
;
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
d
o
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
D
a
n
 
C
h
u
r
c
h
i
l
l
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
N
D
R
E
A
 
H
A
S
T
E
N
:
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
 
h
e
r
e
.

2
4

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
h
,
 
o
k
a
y
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
C
o
o
l
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
 
D
a
n
 
C
h
u
r
c
h
i
l
l
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
e
f
 

2

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
k
e
;
 
a
n
d
 
A
m
y
 

3

 
 
H
a
r
r
i
s
o
n
,
 
w
h
o
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
,
 

4

 
 
r
e
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
2
0
0
9
,
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
e
n
t
e
r
e
d
 

6

 
 
i
n
t
o
 
a
 
D
e
f
i
n
i
t
i
v
e
 
A
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
,
 

7

 
 
b
y
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 
a
g
r
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
m
u
t
u
a
l
l
y
 

8

 
 
p
u
r
s
u
e
 
a
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d
 
d
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 

9

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
o
n
g
o
i
n
g
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 

1
1

 
 
w
a
s
 
m
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
i
z
e
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
s
u
b
s
t
a
n
t
i
a
l
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
2
 
i
n
 
a
n
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
w
h
e
r
e
b
y
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
b
e
c
a
m
e
 
a
n
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 

1
4

 
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
i
n
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

1
5

 
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
e
d
 
s
y
s
t
e
m
 
f
e
e
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 
i
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
a
 

1
7

 
 
n
o
n
-
r
a
t
e
d
 
e
n
t
i
t
y
 
b
y
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
o
f
f
e
r
e
d
 
a
s
 

1
8

 
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
b
y
 
Z
i
e
g
l
e
r
s
 
-
-
 
b
y
 
Z
i
e
g
l
e
r
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
i
e
s
 

1
9

 
 
a
t
 
a
n
 
a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 
a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
-
-
 

2
0

 
 
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
S
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
U
s
e
s
 
s
h
o
w
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

2
3

 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
1
4
7
,
6
1
2
,
0
0
0
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
$
6
1
2
,
1
1
0
 
-
-
 
a
 
D
e
b
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 79



2
1

 
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
F
u
n
d
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
9
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 

1

 
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
2
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 

2

 
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
a
t
 
$
2
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
f
o
r
 
9
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
 

4

 
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
7
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w
n
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
6
 
s
h
o
w
 
w
e
a
k
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 

5

 
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
.
8
4
 
t
i
m
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
e
r
y
 
l
o
w
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
 

6

 
 
o
f
 
2
0
 
d
a
y
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
6
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

7

 
 
t
e
m
p
o
r
a
r
y
 
d
e
b
t
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
2
0
1
7
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 
w
h
e
n
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
,
 

9

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
6
.
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
d
e
b
t
 

1
0

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
d
u
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
8
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
 
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 

1
2

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
D
i
x
o
n
 
H
u
g
h
e
s
'
 
F
e
a
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
S
t
u
d
y
 
s
h
o
w
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
3

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 

1
4

 
 
1
.
6
5
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
8
 
a
n
d
 
1
5
7
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 

1
5

 
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
9
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
7
,
 
T
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
h
a
s
 
a
c
h
i
e
v
e
d
 
s
t
a
b
l
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
p
e
r
f
o
r
m
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 

1
8

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d
 
-
-
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
p
o
s
t
e
d
 
9
6
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 
a
c
r
o
s
s
 
a
l
l
 
l
e
v
e
l
s
 

2
0

 
 
o
f
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
m
b
i
n
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
l
e
v
e
l
s
 
o
f
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 

2
1

 
 
t
u
r
n
o
v
e
r
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
h
i
g
h
e
r
 
n
e
t
 
i
n
c
o
m
e
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 

2
2

 
 
f
o
r
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
u
s
,
 
a
n
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s

2
4

2
2

 
 
t
i
m
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
t
o
 
s
i
g
n
i
f
i
c
a
n
t
l
y
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
 

1

 
 
i
t
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
c
o
m
b
i
n
i
n
g
 
s
t
a
b
l
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 

2

 
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
l
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
 

3

 
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
d
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
o
r
 
e
x
a
m
p
l
e
,
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
 

5

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
Z
i
e
g
l
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
p
l
a
n
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
w
i
l
l
 

6

 
 
p
r
o
d
u
c
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
i
n
 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
$
1
.
5
 

7

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
p
e
r
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
e
q
u
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
o
v
e
r
 
$
2
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
n
 
a
 

8

 
 
n
e
t
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
b
a
s
i
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
s
t
r
e
n
g
t
h
e
n
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
'
s
 

1
0

 
 
l
i
q
u
i
d
i
t
y
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
g
r
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
l
i
q
u
i
d
i
t
y
 

1
2

 
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
o
f
 
$
3
.
7
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
7
0
-
 
-
-
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
'
s
 

1
3

 
 
$
7
5
0
,
0
0
0
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
7
0
0
-
 
-
-
 
I
 
-
-
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
t
y
p
o
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
 
$
7
5
0
,
0
0
0
,
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
,
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
t
o
t
a
l
 

1
5

 
 
o
f
 
$
4
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
h
e
l
d
 
i
n
 
a
 
L
i
q
u
i
d
i
t
y
 

1
6

 
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
F
u
n
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
M
a
s
t
e
r
 
T
r
u
s
t
e
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
7

 
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
d
r
a
w
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
f
u
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
-
-
 
p
a
y
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 

1
8

 
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
i
t
.
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 

2
0

 
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
L
e
t
'
s
 
s
e
e
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
P
e
r
 
p
a
g
e
 
9
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
a
n
s

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 80



2
3

 
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
a
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
h
a
l
f
 
i
n
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
-
-
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
e
v
e
r
y
 

3

 
 
y
e
a
r
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
l
a
r
k
 
o
r
 

5

 
 
M
s
.
 
H
a
s
t
e
n
,
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
C
L
A
R
K
:
 
 
P
l
e
a
s
e
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
i
t
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

8

 
 
s
a
y
 
j
u
s
t
 
a
 
c
o
u
p
l
e
 
o
f
 
w
o
r
d
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
h
.
 
 
C
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
m
e
 
u
p
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
C
L
A
R
K
:
 
 
G
r
e
a
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
P
a
m
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
C
L
A
R
K
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

1
4

 
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
L
a
k
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
s
e
r
v
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
'
s
 
e
l
d
e
r
l
y
 
f
o
r
 
1
6
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
 

1
6

 
 
o
p
p
o
r
t
u
n
i
t
y
 
h
e
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 

1
7

 
 
o
u
r
 
a
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
8
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 

1
8

 
 
d
o
w
n
 
t
o
 
5
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
s
o
,
 
e
n
s
u
r
i
n
g
 
o
u
r
 

1
9

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
1
6
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
 
e
x
c
e
l
l
e
n
t
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
w
i
t
h
 

2
1

 
 
K
e
n
d
a
l
,
 
w
h
o
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
,
 
w
h
o
 
b
r
i
n
g
 
u
s
 
a
 

2
2

 
 
s
t
r
e
n
g
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
q
u
a
l
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
c
a
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
p
l
a
n
,
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 

2
3

 
 
o
n
 
s
e
r
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
l
i
v
e
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
o
u
r
 
w
a
l
l
s
,
 
b
u
t

2
4

2
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
o
b
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 

1

 
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
l
l
o
w
s
 
u
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
h
o
w
 
w
e
 

2

 
 
m
a
y
 
e
x
p
a
n
d
 
o
u
r
 
m
o
d
e
l
s
 
o
f
 
c
a
r
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
r
v
e
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
u
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
l
o
o
k
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 

5

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
W
e
 
l
o
o
k
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
r
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
v
e
 
v
o
t
e
 

6

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 

7

 
 
h
a
p
p
y
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
t
h
e
m
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
C
L
A
R
K
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
v
e
r
y
 
m
u
c
h
;
 

1
0

 
 
w
e
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
n
o
t
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
T
h
e
 
t
o
o
l
 
t
h
a
t
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
i
s
 
u
s
i
n
g
,
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
,
 
h
a
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
b
o
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
U
S
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 

1
4

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
U
S
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
T
a
x
 
L
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
5

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
,
 
i
s
 
l
i
k
e
l
y
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
c
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 

1
7

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
u
t
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
'
s
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
9

 
 
d
e
m
o
n
s
t
r
a
t
e
s
 
v
e
r
y
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
 
t
h
e
 
u
t
i
l
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
n
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
o
o
l
 
o
f
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
s
a
v
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
,
 
r
a
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 

2
2

 
 
d
e
v
o
t
i
n
g
 
s
c
a
r
c
e
 
r
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
,
 
t
h
e
y
 

2
3

 
 
c
a
n
 
p
u
t
 
i
t
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 81



2
5

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
C
H
A
R
L
E
S
 
C
L
A
R
K
:
 
 
E
x
a
c
t
l
y
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
s
t
a
r
t
e
d
,
 
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 

3

 
 
f
o
r
 
o
u
r
 
8
-
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
a
s
 
w
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
 
s
t
a
r
t
u
p
 

4

 
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
d
 
n
o
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
r
a
c
k
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
.
 
 
W
e
 

5

 
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
h
a
d
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
p
l
e
t
e
l
y
 
f
i
l
l
 
o
u
r
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
.
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 

6

 
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
t
h
a
t
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
n
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 

8

 
 
s
t
e
p
 
o
f
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
u
r
 
m
a
r
g
i
n
s
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
i
m
e
.
 
 
E
v
e
n
 
o
u
r
 

9

 
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
 
p
u
s
h
e
d
 
u
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m
o
r
e
 
e
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
h
o
w
 
w
e
 

1
0

 
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
d
.
 
 
W
e
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
c
h
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
w
 
a
b
l
e
 

1
1

 
 
t
o
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
.
 
 
W
e
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
2

 
 
s
e
l
l
 
v
e
r
y
 
w
e
l
l
;
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
u
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 

1
3

 
 
s
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 
u
s
 
o
n
 
i
n
d
e
f
i
n
i
t
e
l
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
M
s
.
 
-
-
 
M
s
.
 
H
a
s
t
e
n
s
 
[
s
i
c
]
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

1
5

 
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
N
D
R
E
A
 
H
A
S
T
E
N
:
 
 
H
a
s
t
e
n
 
-
-
 
i
t
'
s
 
A
n
d
r
e
a
 

1
7

 
 
H
a
s
t
e
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
a
m
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
a
i
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
O
l
d
 
P
e
o
p
l
e
s
 
H
o
m
e
 
o
f
 

1
8

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
'
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
i
t
e
r
a
t
e
 
w
h
a
t
 

1
9

 
 
C
h
a
r
l
e
y
 
h
a
d
 
s
a
i
d
,
 
b
u
t
 
a
l
s
o
 
t
o
 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
v
e
r
y
 

2
0

 
 
c
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
o
u
r
 
f
i
d
u
c
i
a
r
y
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
a
s
 
a
 
b
o
a
r
d
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
i
s
 
a
 
l
i
f
e
 
c
a
r
e
,
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
w
e
 
m
e
n
t
i
o
n
e
d
,
 

2
2

 
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 
a
r
e
 
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
l
e
v
e
l
s
 
o
f
 

2
3

 
 
c
a
r
e
,
 
f
r
o
m
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
,

2
4

2
6

 
 
s
k
i
l
l
e
d
 
n
u
r
s
i
n
g
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 

2

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
i
s
 

3

 
 
a
 
p
a
s
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
s
 
-
-
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
s
e
e
n
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
 

4

 
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
m
o
v
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
o
f
 
c
a
r
e
.
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
 

5

 
 
5
0
1
(
c
)
(
3
)
,
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 

6

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
p
e
o
p
l
e
s
'
 
c
a
r
e
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
y
'
v
e
 
g
o
n
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 
l
e
v
e
l
s
 
a
n
d
 
-
-
 
f
r
o
m
 
e
n
j
o
y
i
n
g
 
l
i
f
e
 
t
o
 

8

 
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
t
o
 
l
i
v
e
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
a
t
i
s
f
y
i
n
g
 
l
i
f
e
.
 

9

 
 
A
n
d
 
w
e
 
w
e
l
c
o
m
e
 
a
n
y
o
n
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
 
a
t
 

1
0

 
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
e
 
u
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
y
o
u
r
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
I
f
 
I
 
m
a
y
,
 
I
'
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 

1
5

 
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
d
o
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
y
o
u
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
'
s
 
o
u
r
 
h
o
n
o
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
 
h
e
l
p
 

1
7

 
 
y
o
u
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
e
n
c
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
N
D
R
E
A
 
H
A
S
T
E
N
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
r
e
i
t
e
r
a
t
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 

2
2

 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
T
a
x
 
L
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
 

2
3

 
 
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
n
o
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
t
h
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 82



2
7

 
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
,
 
b
u
t
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
 
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 

1

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
f
o
r
 
n
o
n
p
r
o
f
i
t
s
,
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
n
i
o
r
 

2

 
 
c
a
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
T
h
e
 
A
d
m
i
r
a
l
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
h
i
l
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 

3

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
n
a
t
e
 
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
a
s
 

4

 
 
I
 
s
a
i
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
E
r
i
c
 

5

 
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
f
r
o
m
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
,
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
,
 

7

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
o
p
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
r
e
a
d
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
m
 
i
s
 
u
n
c
l
e
a
r
 
a
s
 
w
e
 

8

 
 
s
i
t
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
s
o
 
m
u
c
h
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
4

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
6
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 

1
9

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 

2
1

 
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

2
4

2
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 83



2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 

4

 
 
w
e
 
d
o
 
N
o
.
 
3
,
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
a
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

5

 
 
e
x
i
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

7

 
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
a
n
d
 
H
o
r
n
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
r
e
c
u
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
m
s
e
l
v
e
s
 
f
r
o
m
 

8

 
 
d
e
l
i
b
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
y
 
e
x
i
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
3
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
3
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
A
n
n
 
&
 
R
o
b
e
r
t
 
H
.
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
o
r
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

1
5

 
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
2
4
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 

1
7

 
 
2
0
0
8
A
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
,
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 

1
8

 
 
o
f
,
 
o
r
 
n
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
8
B
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 

1
9

 
 
c
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
o
t
h
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
s
 

2
1

 
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
h
e
r
e
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
t
y
 
o
f
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
r
e
g
a
r
d
i
n
g
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 

2
3

 
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
s
.

2
4

3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
s
o
l
d
 
i
n
 
a
 

1

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
o
f
f
e
r
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
G
o
l
d
m
a
n
 

2

 
 
S
a
c
h
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
r
r
y
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
.
 
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
c
u
r
n
-
 
-
-
 

3

 
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
h
a
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
l
y
i
n
g
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 

4

 
 
A
A
+
 
a
n
d
 
A
A
-
 
(
s
t
a
b
l
e
)
 
f
r
o
m
 
S
&
P
 
a
n
d
 
F
i
t
c
h
 

5

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
 
-
-
 
j
u
s
t
 
a
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
 
-
-
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
-
-
 

6

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
f
f
i
r
m
e
d
 
a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 

7

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 

9

 
 
a
n
d
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
l
y
 
o
w
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
o
n
l
y
 

1
0

 
 
f
u
l
l
-
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
,
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
,
 
f
r
e
e
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
p
e
d
i
a
t
r
i
c
 

1
1

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
2
8
8
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d
 
b
e
d
s
.
 
 
L
u
r
i
e
 

1
2

 
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
5
0
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
t
y
 
a
n
d
 

1
3

 
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
 
o
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
c
l
i
n
i
c
s
 
a
t
 
i
t
s
 
m
a
i
n
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
 
i
n
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
e
r
v
i
l
l
e
 
n
e
i
g
h
b
o
r
h
o
o
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
r
e
a
,
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
 
a
s
 
2
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
t
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 

1
6

 
 
a
n
d
 
1
3
 
o
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
i
t
y
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
s
u
r
r
o
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
m
e
t
r
o
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
r
e
a
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 

1
9

 
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 
b
y
 
i
t
s
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 

2
0

 
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
F
e
i
n
b
e
r
g
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
o
f
 

2
1

 
 
M
e
d
i
c
i
n
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
s
t
r
e
n
g
t
h
e
n
 
L
u
r
i
e
 

2
2

 
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
 
r
e
c
r
u
i
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
i
g
n
m
e
n
t
 

2
3

 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
t
i
v
e
s
.
 
 
A
s
 
F
e
i
n
b
e
r
g
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
 
o
f
 
M
e
d
i
c
i
n
e
'
s

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 84



3
1

 
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
t
e
a
c
h
i
n
g
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
v
i
r
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
L
u
r
i
e
'
s
 

1

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
-
b
a
s
e
d
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
s
 
h
o
l
d
 
f
a
c
u
l
t
y
 
a
p
p
o
i
n
t
m
e
n
t
s
 

2

 
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
s
c
h
o
o
l
.
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
-
 
-
-
 
I
 
f
o
u
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 

3

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
i
n
g
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
i
t
s
 
a
f
f
i
l
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 

5

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
h
a
s
 

6

 
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
i
t
s
 
g
e
o
g
r
a
p
h
i
c
 
r
e
a
c
h
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
s
t
r
a
t
e
g
i
-
 
-
-
 

7

 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
s
t
r
a
t
e
g
i
c
 
p
a
r
t
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
1
4
 

8

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
a
n
d
 
L
u
r
i
e
 
C
h
i
l
d
r
e
n
'
s
 
1
1
 
o
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
s
 

9

 
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
r
e
a
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
f
 
w
e
 
l
o
o
k
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
,
 
L
u
r
i
e
'
s
 

1
1

 
 
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
f
o
r
 
2
0
1
7
 
s
h
o
w
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
d
e
b
t
 

1
2

 
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
8
.
3
 
t
i
m
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
4
7
4
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 

1
3

 
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
$
3
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
t
o
 
g
o
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
c
a
r
e
,
 
p
e
d
i
a
t
r
i
c
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
c
a
r
e
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
R
i
g
h
t
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
-
-
 
o
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
 

1
9

 
 
D
a
v
i
d
 
L
e
w
i
s
,
 
w
h
o
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
r
e
a
s
u
r
e
r
.
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 

2
0

 
 
h
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
w
a
n
t
s
 
a
 
s
h
o
u
t
-
o
u
t
-
t
o
,
 
n
o
t
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
t
o
 

2
1

 
 
s
p
e
a
k
 
-
-
 
o
r
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
D
A
V
I
D
 
L
E
W
I
S
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
o
k
a
y
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
-
-
 
h
e
 
m
a
y
 
s
p
e
a
k
.

2
4

3
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
D
A
V
I
D
 
L
E
W
I
S
:
 
 
N
o
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
A
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
,
 
D
a
v
i
d
,
 
t
h
e
 
$
3
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

2

 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
i
s
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
D
A
V
I
D
 
L
E
W
I
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
S
o
 
n
o
t
e
d
 
i
n
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
P
a
m
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 

8

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
N
o
.
 
3
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
,
 

1
3

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 

1
5

 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
R
O
N
N
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 85



3
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
L
e
t
'
s
 
g
e
t
 

1
7

 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 

2
0

 
 
H
o
r
n
e
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
N
o
s
.
 
5
 
a
n
d
 
2
2
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s

2
4

3
4

 
 
n
o
w
 
1
0
:
0
3
 
a
.
m
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
o
.
 
F
i
-
 
-
-
 
T
a
b
 
5
 
i
s
 
O
S
F
 

2

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 

4

 
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
2
3
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 

7

 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
C
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
U
r
b
a
n
a
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 
S
a
m
a
r
i
t
a
n
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 

9

 
 
D
a
n
v
i
l
l
e
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
d
e
b
t
e
d
n
e
s
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
0

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
M
e
n
d
o
t
a
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
s
 
O
S
F
 

1
2

 
 
S
a
i
n
t
 
P
a
u
l
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
a
n
d
 
3
,
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
9
G
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
t
w
o
 
-
-
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
d
o
n
e
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
 

1
6

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
a
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
a
s
 
o
u
r
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
n
o
t
e
d
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
w
a
s
 
i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
1
8
8
0
 
a
s
 
T
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
T
h
i
r
d
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
o
f
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
.
 
 
O
S
F
'
s
 

2
0

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
n
a
m
e
 
w
a
s
 
a
d
o
p
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
a
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 

2
1

 
 
r
e
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
i
n
g
 
i
n
 
1
9
8
9
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
o
l
e
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 

2
2

 
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
S
i
s
t
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
T
h
i
r
d
 
O
r
d
e
r
 
o
f
 

2
3

 
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
,
 
a
 
r
e
l
i
g
i
o
u
s
 
c
o
n
g
r
e
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
u
n
d
e
d
 
i
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 86



3
5

 
 
1
8
7
7
,
 
i
n
 
P
e
o
r
i
a
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 
 
O
S
F
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 

1

 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
a
s
 
a
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
e
a
c
h
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 

2

 
 
c
a
r
e
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
f
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
i
n
g
 
a
s
 
a
n
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
d
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 

3

 
 
t
h
e
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
i
s
 
h
e
a
d
q
u
a
r
t
e
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
P
e
o
r
i
a
.
 
 
T
e
n
 

5

 
 
o
f
 
O
S
F
'
s
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
a
r
e
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
n
e
 

6

 
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
'
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
.
 
 
O
S
F
 
h
a
s
 

7

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
1
,
5
0
0
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 
b
e
d
s
.
 
 
O
S
F
'
s
 

8

 
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 

9

 
 
P
e
o
r
i
a
,
 
i
s
 
a
 
6
0
9
-
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d
-
b
e
d
,
 
t
e
r
t
i
a
r
y
-
c
a
r
e
 
t
e
a
c
h
i
n
g
 

1
0

 
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
n
u
m
e
r
o
u
s
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
t
y
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 

1
1

 
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
v
e
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
c
y
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
 
f
o
r
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
r
r
a
y
 
o
f
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
b
y
 
O
S
F
 
a
l
s
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
s
 
4
4
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
-
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 

1
4

 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
2
4
8
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 

1
5

 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
d
 
p
h
y
s
i
c
i
a
n
s
,
 
6
 
h
o
m
e
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
 

1
6

 
 
a
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
5
 
h
o
s
p
i
c
e
s
.
 
 
M
u
l
t
i
-
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
a
l
 

1
7

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
r
e
d
 
o
n
 
O
S
F
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
n
 

1
9

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
S
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
h
i
p
 
s
t
a
t
u
s
 

2
0

 
 
e
x
i
s
t
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 
S
t
a
t
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 

2
2

 
 
A
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
c
q
u
i
r
i
n
g
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e

2
4

3
6

 
 
C
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
U
r
b
a
n
a
 
a
n
d
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 

1

 
 
S
a
m
a
r
i
t
a
n
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
D
a
n
v
i
l
l
e
.
 
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 

2

 
 
C
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
n
a
m
e
d
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
 

3

 
 
H
e
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
M
a
r
y
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
.
 
 
I
t
 
h
a
s
 
2
0
6
 
b
e
d
s
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
7
0
0
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
.
 
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 
S
a
m
a
r
i
t
a
n
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 

5

 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
O
S
F
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
C
a
r
e
 
S
a
c
r
e
d
 
H
e
a
r
t
 

6

 
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
s
 
1
7
4
 
b
e
d
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
r
e
 
t
h
a
n
 
5
5
0
 

7

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
.
 
 
B
o
t
h
 
o
f
f
e
r
 
a
 
r
a
n
g
e
 
-
-
 
a
 
f
u
l
l
 
r
a
n
g
e
 
o
f
 

8

 
 
i
n
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
o
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
m
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
s
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
b
a
n
k
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
b
y
 
P
N
C
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
n
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
i
l
l
 

1
1

 
 
b
e
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
C
l
o
s
i
n
g
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 

1
2

 
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
U
s
e
s
 
s
h
o
w
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 

1
4

 
 
$
4
9
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
a
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
s
t
,
 
o
r
 
n
e
w
 
m
o
n
e
y
,
 

1
5

 
 
o
f
 
$
1
8
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
h
a
s
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
:
 
 
I
n
 
P
e
o
r
i
a
,
 

1
8

 
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
i
n
 
R
o
c
k
f
o
r
d
,
 
S
t
.
 
A
n
t
h
o
n
y
 

1
9

 
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
i
n
 
A
l
t
o
n
,
 
S
a
i
n
t
 

2
0

 
 
A
n
t
h
o
n
y
'
s
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
i
n
 
B
l
o
o
m
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 
S
t
.
 
J
o
s
e
p
h
'
s
 

2
1

 
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
i
n
 
O
t
t
a
w
a
,
 
S
a
i
n
t
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
'
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 

2
2

 
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
i
n
 
G
a
l
e
s
b
u
r
g
,
 
S
t
.
 
M
a
r
y
'
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 

2
3

 
 
P
o
n
t
i
a
c
,
 
S
t
.
 
J
a
m
e
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
;
 
i
n
 
M
e
n
d
o
t
a
,
 
S
a
i
n
t
 
P
a
u
l

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 87



3
7

 
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 
K
e
w
a
n
e
e
,
 
S
a
i
n
t
 
L
u
k
e
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
;
 

1

 
 
M
o
n
m
o
u
t
h
,
 
H
o
l
y
 
F
a
m
i
l
y
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
.
 
 
O
S
F
'
s
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 

2

 
 
i
n
 
M
i
c
h
i
g
a
n
,
 
O
S
F
 
S
t
.
 
F
r
a
n
c
i
s
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 

3

 
 
E
s
c
a
n
a
b
a
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
n
o
w
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 

4

 
 
C
o
v
e
n
a
n
t
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
U
n
i
t
e
d
 

5

 
 
S
a
m
a
r
i
t
a
n
s
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
O
S
F
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
a
v
e
 

6

 
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
U
r
b
a
n
a
 
a
n
d
 
D
a
n
v
i
l
l
e
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
q
u
i
t
e
 
a
 

7

 
 
l
a
r
g
e
 
f
o
o
t
p
r
i
n
t
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
S
F
'
s
 
2
0
1
7
 
u
n
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
s
h
o
w
 
a
 

9

 
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
3
.
4
3
 
w
i
t
h
 
1
8
7
 
d
a
y
s
 

1
0

 
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
n
o
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
o
n
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
9
C
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
-
-
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
t
 
G
.
 

1
3

 
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
G
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 
 
G
.
 
 
S
o
r
r
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
 
2
0
0
9
G
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
f
l
o
a
t
i
n
g
 
r
a
t
e
.
 
 
O
S
F
 

1
5

 
 
i
s
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
9
G
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
m
a
y
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 

1
7

 
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.
 
 
O
S
F
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
p
a
y
 
p
r
o
p
e
r
t
y
 

1
8

 
 
t
a
x
e
s
 
o
n
 
i
t
s
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
T
h
o
m
a
s
 
O
t
t
,
 

2
0

 
 
V
i
c
e
-
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
T
r
e
a
s
u
r
y
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
O
S
F
 

2
1

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
h
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
f
e
w
 

2
2

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
:
 
 
G
o
o
d
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
;
 
g
o
o
d

2
4

3
8

 
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
,
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
u
s
 
h
e
r
e
 

1

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
f
o
r
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
p
a
s
t
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
w
e
e
k
s
.
 
 
P
a
m
,
 
t
h
a
n
k
s
 
a
 
l
o
t
.
 
 
S
o
r
r
y
,
 
i
t
'
s
 

4

 
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
 
f
i
r
e
 
d
r
i
l
l
.
 
 
W
e
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
t
h
i
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
h
i
p
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
3
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 
 
O
S
F
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 

7

 
 
c
o
u
n
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
 
f
o
r
 
i
t
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
f
o
r
 
-
-
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 

9

 
 
$
2
3
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
i
l
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
a
c
q
u
i
s
i
t
i
o
n
 

1
0

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
e
s
e
n
c
e
 
h
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
s
 
i
n
 
U
r
b
a
n
a
 
a
n
d
 
D
a
n
v
i
l
l
e
.
 
 
W
e
 

1
1

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
w
o
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
:
 
t
h
e
 
o
n
e
 
i
n
 
M
e
n
d
o
t
a
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
a
 

1
2

 
 
H
U
D
 
l
o
a
n
,
 
w
e
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
t
h
a
t
 
o
f
f
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 

1
3

 
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
$
1
6
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
n
 

1
4

 
 
s
o
m
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
t
h
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
w
e
'
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
o
f
f
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
W
e
 
l
o
o
k
 

1
6

 
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
f
 
I
 
m
a
y
 
a
s
k
 
a
n
 
i
m
p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 

1
8

 
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
s
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 

2
1

 
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
s
s
 
o
f
 

2
2

 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
i
f
 
w
e
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
i
s
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
:
 
 
$
1
.
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 88



3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
1
.
5
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
o
m
e
t
h
i
n
g
 
y
o
u
 
c
a
n
 

3

 
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
 
s
o
m
e
w
h
e
r
e
 
e
l
s
e
 
w
i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
o
r
g
a
n
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
:
 
 
A
b
s
o
l
u
t
e
l
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
y
o
u
 
d
o
 
t
h
a
t
,
 

5

 
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
d
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
3
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
$
4
0
 

6

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
r
a
n
g
e
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
w
h
y
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
c
h
a
s
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
T
H
O
M
A
S
 
O
T
T
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
s
o
 
h
e
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
w
h
o
 
u
s
u
a
l
l
y
 

1
1

 
 
c
o
m
e
s
 
o
n
 
b
e
h
a
l
f
 
o
f
 
O
S
F
,
 
i
s
 
A
n
n
e
 
D
o
n
a
h
o
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 

1
2

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
a
i
s
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
h
a
n
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
S
.
 
A
N
N
E
 
D
O
N
A
H
O
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
I
'
v
e
 
m
e
t
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 

1
5

 
 
y
o
u
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
w
o
r
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
d
o
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
P
a
m
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
s
 
T
o
m
 
j
u
s
t
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
,
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
w
a
s
 
o
n
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
i
t
 
i
n
 

1
8

 
 
2
0
1
8
,
 
b
u
t
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
,
 

1
9

 
 
e
v
e
r
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
w
a
s
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
u
p
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
y
o
u
r
 
h
e
l
p
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
A
n
n
e
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
2
2
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
o
u
 
g
o
t
 
i
t
.

2
4

4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
2
2
 
i
s
 
a
n
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 

1

 
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
-
-
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
o
f
 

2

 
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
a
n
d
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 

3

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 

4

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
-
-
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
m
o
d
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
h
a
s
 

6

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
t
o
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 

7

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
2
0
1
7
B
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
1
7
C
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

8

 
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
o
f
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 

9

 
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 
a
 
s
a
l
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
t
 
p
r
e
m
i
u
m
 
u
p
o
n
 

1
0

 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
a
r
e
 
-
-
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
 
-
-
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
i
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
,
 
i
f
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
t
o
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
i
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
-
-
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
f
e
r
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
s
a
l
e
 
a
t
 
p
a
r
 
-
-
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
e
d
 

1
5

 
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
b
e
 
o
f
f
e
r
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
s
a
l
e
 
a
t
 
p
a
r
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
n
c
e
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
o
f
t
e
n
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
e
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
a
 
p
r
e
m
i
u
m
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
l
o
w
 

1
8

 
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
m
o
r
e
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
i
f
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 

1
9

 
 
d
e
c
i
d
e
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
 
t
o
 
a
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 

2
1

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
a
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
l
y
 
c
a
u
s
e
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
-
-
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 

2
3

 
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
a
f
t
e
r

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 89



4
1

 
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
s
t
 
i
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
l
a
w
s
 
-
-
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
-
-
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
l
a
w
s
 
a
r
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
h
a
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 

3

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
F
A
 
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
t
o
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
i
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 

4

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
'
s
 
2
0
1
3
C
,
 
B
,
 
a
n
d
 
D
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
o
f
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 
c
o
n
t
r
o
l
l
e
d
 

6

 
 
b
y
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
,
 
i
n
 
o
r
d
e
r
 
t
o
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 

7

 
 
a
 
s
a
l
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
a
t
 
p
r
e
m
i
u
m
 
u
p
o
n
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
 

8

 
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
a
s
 
d
e
s
c
r
i
b
e
-
 
-
-
 
a
s
 
d
e
s
c
r
i
b
e
d
 
-
-
 
a
l
r
e
a
d
y
 

9

 
 
d
e
s
c
r
i
b
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
b
a
n
k
 
h
o
l
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

1
0

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
m
o
d
e
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
a
g
r
e
e
d
 
t
o
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
n
k
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
b
o
t
h
 
-
-
 
t
h
i
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

1
3

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
r
e
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
s
i
n
c
e
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
-
-
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
-
-
 
m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 

1
5

 
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
d
o
n
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
,
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
b
o
n
d
 

1
7

 
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
 
a
n
s
w
e
r
 
a
n
y
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
i
k
e
 
M
i
t
c
h
e
l
l
 
h
a
s
 
c
o
m
e
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
I
'
m
 
h
e
r
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 

2
3

 
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
N
o
.
 
5
 
a
n
d

2
4

4
2

 
 
2
2
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 

7

 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 

1
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
G
i
l
a
,
 
a
r
e
 
y
o
u
 
t
h
e
r
e
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
h
e
'
s
 
d
r
o
p
p
e
d
 
o
f
f
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 90



4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 

1
6

 
 
1
0
:
1
4
 
a
.
m
.
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
s
h
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
B
r
o
n
n
e
r
 

1
7

 
 
h
a
s
 
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
h
e
r
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
o
n
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 

1
8

 
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
l
e
t
'
s
 
g
e
t
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 

2
0

 
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
l
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
s
h
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 

2
2

 
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
h
a
s
 
e
n
t
e
r
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
V
e
r
y
 
g
o
o
d
.

2
4

4
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
f
o
r
e
 
I
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
I
t
e
m
 
N
o
.
 
2
1
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

1

 
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
t
o
 
e
x
i
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
a
s
 

2

 
 
p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
P
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
S
t
a
t
u
t
e
,
 
I
 

4

 
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
t
w
o
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
,
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

6

 
 
o
n
e
-
y
e
a
r
 
t
e
r
m
.
 
 
A
s
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
b
y
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
S
t
a
t
u
t
e
 
e
a
c
h
 

7

 
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
e
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 

8

 
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 

1
0

 
 
C
o
m
m
i
t
t
e
e
 
m
e
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
u
n
a
n
i
m
o
u
s
l
y
 

1
1

 
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 

1
2

 
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
l
o
o
k
 
i
n
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
a
t
 
N
o
.
 
2
1
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
r
i
g
h
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 
C
h
r
i
s
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
a
s
 

1
5

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 

1
9

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 

2
1

 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 91



4
5

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.

2
4

4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
t
'
s
 
g
e
t
 
M
r
.
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
 
b
a
c
k
 
i
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
C
o
n
g
r
a
t
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 

4

 
 
M
r
.
 
M
e
i
s
t
e
r
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
N
e
v
e
r
 
d
o
n
e
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
r
a
m
p
t
o
n
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
 

1
0

 
 
F
i
n
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
1
7
,
5
0
0
,
0
0
0
,
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
 

1
2

 
 
Z
o
o
l
o
g
i
c
a
l
 
S
o
c
i
e
t
y
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
o
d
a
y
'
s
 
t
h
e
m
e
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
 
Z
o
o
 
i
s
 
s
e
e
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
s
e
t
 
u
p
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 

1
5

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
n
o
w
 
t
o
 
m
i
n
i
m
i
z
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
o
f
 
a
n
y
 
a
d
v
e
r
s
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
C
o
d
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
w
i
l
l
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
h
e
 
z
o
o
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 

1
8

 
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
I
E
F
A
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
N
o
t
e
s
 

1
9

 
 
P
o
o
l
e
d
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
1
9
9
5
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
a
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 

2
0

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
w
o
 

2
1

 
 
b
a
n
k
s
:
 
T
h
e
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
r
n
 
T
r
u
s
t
 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 
a
n
d
 
P
N
C
 
B
a
n
k
.
 
 
I
n
 

2
2

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
r
e
m
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
-
-
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 

2
3

 
 
c
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
p
a
p
e
r
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
z
o
o
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
s
t
,

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 92



4
7

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 

1

 
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
 
r
i
s
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
Z
o
o
l
o
g
i
c
a
l
 
S
o
c
i
e
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
f
a
c
e
 
-
-
 

2

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
f
a
c
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
C
P
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
N
o
t
e
s
 
a
r
e
 

4

 
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 
p
a
y
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
r
n
 
T
r
u
s
t
 
C
o
m
p
a
n
y
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
c
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
p
a
p
e
r
 
b
e
a
r
s
 

6

 
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
r
e
s
e
t
 
a
t
 
l
e
a
s
t
 

7

 
 
o
n
c
e
 
e
v
e
r
y
 
2
7
0
 
d
a
y
s
.
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 

8

 
 
s
h
o
r
t
-
t
e
r
m
,
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
,
 
s
o
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
y
 
r
e
-
 
-
-
 

9

 
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
r
n
 

1
0

 
 
T
r
u
s
t
 
a
n
d
 
P
N
C
,
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
a
t
t
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
c
o
s
t
-
b
a
s
e
d
 

1
1

 
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
h
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
i
n
 
t
e
n
o
r
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
f
a
r
 
a
s
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
,
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
a
r
e
 

1
3

 
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
7
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
2
0
1
6
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
d
u
e
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
a
b
e
r
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
R
e
s
u
l
t
s
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
7
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 

1
6

 
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
.
 
 
I
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
f
o
r
e
c
a
s
t
 
w
e
 
a
l
s
o
 
s
t
r
e
s
s
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
s
 
b
y
 

1
8

 
 
a
s
s
u
m
i
n
g
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
.
 
 
A
s
 
a
 

1
9

 
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
o
c
i
e
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
o
n
l
y
 
b
e
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 

2
0

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
-
o
n
l
y
 
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
2
0
2
5
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

2
2

 
 
b
a
n
k
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 

2
3

 
 
e
s
s
e
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
n
o
 
r
i
s
k
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
.
 
 
A
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
r
,
 
w
e

2
4

4
8

 
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
T
a
b
 
2
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 

4

 
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
.
 

5

 
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
c
l
a
r
i
f
y
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
T
a
b
 
2
,
 
$
2
7
5
 

7

 
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
i
s
,
 
i
n
 
f
a
c
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
n
o
t
-
t
o
-
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 

8

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
d
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
p
a
c
k
e
t
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
d
 

1
0

 
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
s
.
 
 
T
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
m
a
x
i
m
u
m
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
r
e
s
e
t
 

1
2

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 

1
3

 
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
$
2
7
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
f
 

1
4

 
 
m
u
l
t
i
-
m
o
d
a
l
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
a
b
l
e
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 

1
5

 
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
o
l
d
 
i
n
 
o
n
e
 
o
f
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
m
o
d
e
s
:
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
l
y
,
 
o
n
 
a
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
 

1
7

 
 
t
o
 
B
a
r
c
l
a
y
s
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
s
u
c
h
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

1
8

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
s
e
l
e
c
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
;
 

1
9

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
l
y
,
 
t
h
a
t
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
s
o
l
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
s
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
a
 
t
r
a
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
o
f
f
e
r
i
n
g
;
 
o
r
 
t
h
i
r
d
l
y
,
 

2
1

 
 
p
o
t
e
n
t
i
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
m
a
y
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
l
y
 
b
e
 
s
o
l
d
 
o
n
 
a
 

2
2

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
p
l
a
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
l
y
 

2
3

 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
m
o
d
e
,
 
o
r
 
m
o
d
e
s
,
 
o
r

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 93



4
9

 
 
a
d
j
u
s
t
a
b
l
e
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
e
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 

1

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
e
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
t
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
t
t
o
m
 
o
f
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
,
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
l
o
o
k
 

3

 
 
a
t
 
S
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
U
s
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 

4

 
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
n
e
w
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
 
a
r
e
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 

6

 
 
t
o
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
s
t
i
l
l
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

7

 
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
o
f
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
i
n
g
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
,
 

8

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
l
y
,
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
n
e
w
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
o
r
 

9

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
,
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
a
 
m
i
x
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
'
s
 
l
o
n
g
-
t
e
r
m
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
a
r
e
 

1
1

 
 
A
a
2
 
f
r
o
m
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
,
 
A
A
-
 
S
&
P
,
 
A
A
+
 
f
r
o
m
 
F
i
t
c
h
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
a
l
s
o
 
h
a
s
 
s
h
o
r
t
-
t
e
r
m
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
g
r
a
d
e
 
d
e
b
t
 

1
3

 
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
 
o
f
 
E
M
I
G
 
-
-
 
V
M
I
G
 
1
 
f
r
o
m
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
,
 
A
1
+
 
f
r
o
m
 
S
&
P
,
 

1
4

 
 
a
n
d
 
F
1
+
 
f
r
o
m
 
F
i
t
c
h
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
a
r
e
 
a
t
 
p
a
g
e
 
1
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 

1
6

 
 
a
s
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
a
s
 
o
n
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
A
A
-
r
a
t
e
d
 

1
7

 
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
u
s
t
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
P
r
o
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
 

1
9

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
T
e
a
m
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
a
n
y
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
a
 

2
0

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
o
f
f
e
r
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
n
e
u
p
 
o
f
 
c
o
-
s
e
n
i
o
r
 

2
1

 
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
8
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
.
 
 
S
i
x
 

2
2

 
 
c
o
-
m
a
n
a
g
e
r
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
,
 

2
3

 
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
L
o
o
p
,
 
P
N
C
,
 
R
B
C
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
,
 
W
e
l
l
s

2
4

5
0

 
 
F
a
r
g
o
,
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
A
m
e
r
i
c
a
 
M
e
r
r
i
l
l
 
L
y
n
c
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
S
i
e
b
e
r
t
 

1

 
 
C
i
s
n
e
r
o
s
 
S
h
a
n
k
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
j
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
p
u
t
 
e
v
e
r
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
i
n
t
o
 

3

 
 
p
e
r
s
p
e
c
t
i
v
e
,
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 

4

 
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
n
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
H
i
g
h
e
r
 
E
d
.
 
S
e
c
t
o
r
,
 
b
o
t
h
 
i
n
 

5

 
 
t
e
r
m
s
 
o
f
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
o
l
l
a
r
 
v
o
l
u
m
e
.
 

6

 
 
A
n
d
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
c
l
o
s
e
s
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
p
d
a
t
i
n
g
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
j
o
b
s
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
m
y
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
 
o
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
R
i
c
h
,
 
c
a
n
 
y
o
u
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
 

1
1

 
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
 
a
n
d
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
w
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
2

 
 
t
a
x
,
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
i
m
p
a
c
t
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
W
e
l
l
,
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
,
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 

1
5

 
 
b
a
n
k
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
d
e
a
l
 
-
-
 
l
e
t
 
m
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
l
o
o
k
 
a
t
 
w
h
a
t
 
I
 

1
6

 
 
b
r
o
u
g
h
t
 
-
-
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
i
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
b
a
l
l
p
a
r
k
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
i
n
 
a
 
r
a
n
g
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
n
g
e
 
o
f
 
7
0
 
t
o
 

1
8

 
 
1
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
t
h
e
 

2
0

 
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
m
 
a
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
l
e
s
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
-
-
 

2
1

 
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
-
-
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
a
l
s
o
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
 

2
3

 
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
f
o
r

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 94



5
1

 
 
t
h
e
m
,
 
a
l
t
h
o
u
g
h
 
n
o
t
 
a
s
 
g
r
e
a
t
 
o
n
 
a
 
b
a
s
i
s
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
b
a
s
i
s
,
 

1

 
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
e
n
d
s
 
u
p
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
m
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 

2

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
f
o
r
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
w
e
 

3

 
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
b
r
e
a
k
d
o
w
n
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
s
e
r
i
a
l
 

4

 
 
a
n
d
 
t
e
r
m
 
b
o
n
d
s
,
 
w
e
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
c
a
n
'
t
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
w
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
n
o
w
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
w
a
i
t
 
t
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
n
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
l
i
s
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
i
t
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
W
e
'
l
l
 
a
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
i
t
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
l
i
s
t
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
4
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
 
i
s
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
l
 

1
5

 
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
f
 

1
6

 
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
.
 
 
T
h
e
i
r
 
e
x
a
c
t
 
t
i
t
l
e
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
E
v
a
n
g
e
l
i
c
a
l
 

1
7

 
 
R
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
H
o
m
e
s
 
o
f
 
G
r
e
a
t
e
r
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 

1
8

 
 
d
o
i
n
g
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
a
s
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 

2
0

 
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 

2
1

 
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 

2
2

 
 
$
1
5
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
,
 
o
r
 
r
e
i
m
b
u
r
s
e
 
f
o
r
 

2
3

 
 
c
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
i
t
u
r
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
$
1
3
,
7
5
0
,
0
0
0
 
t
o

2
4

5
2

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
r
 
a
 
p
o
r
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
5
A
 

1

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
5
B
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
0
 

2

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
a
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 

3

 
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
7
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
p
a
y
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 

4

 
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 
i
n
c
u
r
r
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
7
 

5

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
w
o
 

7

 
 
w
a
i
v
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
i
r
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
w
a
i
v
e
r
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

8

 
 
p
o
l
i
c
y
 
t
o
 
s
e
l
l
 
i
n
 
$
1
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
d
e
n
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
,
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
r
e
d
i
t
e
d
 
i
n
v
e
s
t
o
r
s
 
o
r
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 

1
0

 
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
b
u
y
e
r
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
a
t
 
o
r
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
,
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 

1
2

 
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
m
a
y
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
c
a
n
n
o
t
 
p
r
i
c
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
e
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
l
y
 
i
n
 

1
4

 
 
$
1
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
d
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
,
 
t
h
e
n
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
h
a
s
 

1
5

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 
a
 
w
a
i
v
e
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
o
n
l
y
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
0
5
A
 
a
n
d
 
B
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
0
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
i
n
g
 

1
7

 
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
F
u
n
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 

1
8

 
 
$
5
,
0
0
0
 
d
o
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 

1
9

 
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
f
o
r
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
i
n
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 

2
0

 
 
p
o
l
i
c
y
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
 

2
2

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 
c
a
r
e
 
r
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
o
f
 

2
3

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
2
8
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
g
a
r
d
e
n
 
h
o
m
e
s
,
 
5
7
4

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 95



5
3

 
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
a
p
a
r
t
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
8
7
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 

1

 
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
2
5
 
m
e
m
o
r
y
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
e
d
 
l
i
v
i
n
g
 
u
n
i
t
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
 

2

 
 
2
4
8
-
b
e
d
 
s
k
i
l
l
e
d
 
n
u
r
s
i
n
g
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
a
 
6
8
 
-
-
 

3

 
 
6
0
-
a
c
r
e
 
c
a
m
p
u
s
 
i
n
 
s
u
b
u
r
b
a
n
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
e
r
g
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
h
a
s
 
g
r
o
w
n
 
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
s
i
n
c
e
 
1
9
7
7
 
t
o
 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
-
s
i
t
e
 

6

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 
c
a
r
e
 
r
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 

7

 
 
a
r
e
a
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
1
7
t
h
 
l
a
r
g
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
n
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
i
s
 
i
s
s
u
i
n
g
 

9

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
r
a
t
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
a
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
u
n
d
e
r
w
r
i
t
i
n
g
 

1
0

 
 
b
y
 
-
-
 
w
i
t
h
 
B
B
&
T
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
U
s
e
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
 
a
 
t
o
t
a
l
 

1
2

 
 
R
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
1
0
8
 
-
-
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
1
0
8
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
F
u
n
d
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
-
 
-
-
 
a
l
m
o
s
t
 
$
1
4
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
4

 
 
a
 
D
e
b
t
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
R
e
s
e
r
v
e
 
F
u
n
d
 
o
f
 
a
l
m
o
s
t
 
$
2
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
7
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
r
a
t
e
d
.
 

1
6

 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
d
 
a
 
B
B
-
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
f
f
i
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 

1
7

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
F
i
t
c
h
 
i
n
 
M
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
2
0
1
7
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
t
e
l
l
 
y
o
u
 
a
l
l
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
B
r
i
d
g
e
g
a
t
e
,
 

2
0

 
 
b
u
t
 
w
e
'
r
e
 
r
u
n
n
i
n
g
 
a
 
l
i
t
t
l
e
 
s
h
o
r
t
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
n
o
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
n
o
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
?
 
 
O
h
,
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 
 
I
 

2
3

 
 
a
p
o
l
o
g
i
z
e
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
o
k
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
a
y
.
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
l
l

2
4

5
4

 
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
n
o
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
o
u
'
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
r
e
 
-
-
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
a
f
f
i
r
m
i
n
g
 

2

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
?
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
B
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
B
B
-
 

4

 
 
r
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
.
 
 
W
e
'
r
e
 
-
-
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
o
u
'
r
e
 
n
o
t
 
r
e
a
f
f
i
r
m
i
n
g
 
i
t
;
 
y
o
u
'
r
e
 

6

 
 
d
r
o
p
p
i
n
g
 
i
t
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
P
a
r
d
o
n
 
m
e
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
S
u
r
e
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
F
i
s
c
a
l
 
2
0
1
7
 
A
u
d
i
t
e
d
 

1
1

 
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
s
h
o
w
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
1
.
6
5
 
t
i
m
e
s
 

1
2

 
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
3
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
i
n
 
l
i
n
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
m
o
s
t
 

1
3

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
i
n
g
 
c
a
r
e
 
r
e
t
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
i
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 

1
5

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
$
6
,
2
0
0
,
9
4
3
.
 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 

1
6

 
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
p
a
y
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
d
a
y
,
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
h
e
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
 
S
t
e
v
e
 

1
8

 
 
Y
e
n
c
h
e
k
,
 
t
h
e
 
C
E
O
 
a
n
d
 
P
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 

1
9

 
 
o
f
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
M
i
c
h
a
e
l
 
F
l
y
n
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
C
F
O
 
o
f
 

2
0

 
 
F
r
i
e
n
d
s
h
i
p
 
V
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
S
c
h
a
u
m
b
u
r
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
D
o
n
 
H
e
m
m
e
s
c
h
,
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
a
t
t
o
r
n
e
y
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
o
u
l
d
 
y
o
u
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
F
L
Y
N
N
:
 
 
I
'
l
l
 
-
-

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 96



5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
h
,
 
y
o
u
 
w
i
l
l
?
 
 
P
l
e
a
s
e
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
F
L
Y
N
N
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
a
n
d
 

2

 
 
B
o
a
r
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
-
-
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
a
 
p
l
e
a
s
u
r
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

4

 
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
o
 

5

 
 
o
t
h
e
r
s
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
k
i
n
d
 
o
f
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
o
u
r
 

6

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
i
m
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
A
b
o
u
t
 
a
 

7

 
 
t
h
i
r
d
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
d
e
b
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
e
d
,
 

8

 
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
P
a
m
 
h
a
d
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
g
o
t
 
s
o
m
e
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 

9

 
 
i
n
 
h
o
w
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
i
f
 
t
h
e
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
d
o
e
s
n
'
t
 

1
0

 
 
c
o
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
e
 
n
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
n
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
w
a
n
t
 

1
2

 
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
p
i
e
c
e
 
a
c
c
o
m
p
l
i
s
h
e
d
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
i
f
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
i
s
n
'
t
 
f
a
v
o
r
a
b
l
e
,
 
t
h
e
n
 

1
4

 
 
w
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
d
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
d
e
r
 
n
e
x
t
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
 
B
u
t
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
i
f
 

1
5

 
 
e
v
e
r
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
w
o
r
k
s
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
p
l
a
n
,
 
w
e
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
 
d
e
b
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
y
e
a
r
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
,
 
l
i
k
e
 
I
 

1
7

 
 
s
a
i
d
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
$
1
0
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
r
 
s
o
 
i
n
 
t
o
t
a
l
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
p
i
e
c
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
w
e
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
,
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 

2
0

 
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
v
e
r
y
 
h
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
g
e
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
d
o
n
e
 
i
n
 
a
 

2
1

 
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
h
o
r
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
o
f
 
t
i
m
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
l
i
k
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

2
2

 
 
C
C
R
C
s
,
 
w
e
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
o
v
e
r
 
4
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
,
 
y
o
u
 

2
3

 
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
h
e
l
p
 
u
s
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
b
e
t
t
e
r
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l

2
4

5
6

 
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
i
t
h
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
,
 
i
m
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
r
a
t
i
o
s
 

1

 
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
l
o
w
e
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
i
t
 
w
i
l
l
 

2

 
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
 
o
u
r
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
o
 
c
i
t
e
 
o
p
e
n
 
o
n
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
w
h
a
t
,
 
d
o
 
y
o
u
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
v
i
n
g
s
 
f
o
r
 

5

 
 
t
h
i
s
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
F
L
Y
N
N
:
 
 
R
o
u
g
h
l
y
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
$
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
.
 

7

 
 
I
t
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
 
o
n
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
l
y
i
n
g
 

8

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
i
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
a
n
g
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
O
h
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
d
o
 
p
a
y
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
S
o
r
r
y
.
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
n
o
t
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
t
 
s
a
y
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
 
-
-
 
i
n
 

1
2

 
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
a
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 

1
4

 
 
d
o
 
p
a
y
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
 
w
e
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 

1
5

 
 
t
h
a
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
d
o
 
p
a
y
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
e
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
N
o
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
o
.
 
7
 
i
s
 
a
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
o
h
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

2
0

 
 
t
o
 
c
a
l
l
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
o
k
,
 

2
1

 
 
w
e
 
r
e
f
e
r
 
t
o
 
U
C
M
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
&
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
,
 
I
n
c
.
 

2
2

 
 
T
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
 

2
3

 
 
h
a
s
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
.
 
 
I
t
 
i
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 97



5
7

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
U
C
M
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
&
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
,
 

1

 
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
[
s
i
c
]
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 

2

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
b
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
C
F
O
 
o
f
 
U
 
o
f
 
C
 
M
e
d
i
c
i
n
e
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
i
f
 
w
e
 
c
o
u
l
d
 
s
w
i
t
c
h
 
i
t
 
t
o
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 

4

 
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
s
a
i
d
 
o
f
 
c
o
u
r
s
e
 
w
e
 
c
a
n
,
 
e
v
e
n
 
t
h
o
u
g
h
 

5

 
 
i
t
'
s
 
-
-
 
a
n
y
w
a
y
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
i
s
 

7

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
o
n
e
-
t
i
m
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
b
o
n
d
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 

8

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
e
r
i
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

9

 
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
4
5
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
 

1
0

 
 
a
l
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
 
I
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
0
4
 

1
1

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
y
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
5
4
4
-
b
e
d
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
 
-
-
 
l
i
c
e
n
s
e
d
-
b
e
d
 
a
c
u
t
e
 
c
a
r
e
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
,
 

1
4

 
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
3
7
4
 
b
e
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
l
y
 
s
t
a
f
f
e
d
.
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 

1
5

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
s
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
t
e
r
t
i
a
r
y
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

1
6

 
 
i
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
2
2
 
a
c
r
e
s
 
o
f
 
l
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
H
a
r
v
e
y
,
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
 
s
u
b
s
t
a
n
t
i
a
l
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
t
o
r
y
 
c
a
r
e
 

1
8

 
 
n
e
t
w
o
r
k
,
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
r
n
e
r
s
t
o
n
e
s
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
t
o
r
y
 

1
9

 
 
c
a
r
e
 
c
e
n
t
e
r
s
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
T
i
n
l
e
y
 
P
a
r
k
,
 
M
a
t
t
e
s
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
C
a
l
u
m
e
t
 
C
i
t
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
F
l
o
s
s
m
o
o
r
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
e
s
t
 
f
a
c
i
l
i
t
y
 

2
1

 
 
o
p
e
n
e
d
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
3
 
i
n
 
C
r
e
s
t
w
o
o
d
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
a
m
b
u
l
a
t
o
r
y
 
f
o
o
t
p
r
i
n
t
s
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 

2
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
f
o
r
 
O
u
t
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
 
R
e
h
a
b
 
i
n
 
C
a
l
u
m
e
t

2
4

5
8

 
 
C
i
t
y
;
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
W
e
l
l
n
e
s
s
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
F
l
o
s
s
m
o
o
r
;
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
C
a
n
c
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
i
n
 
M
o
k
e
n
a
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
s
 

3

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
2
,
5
0
0
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
,
 
e
q
u
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 

4

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
1
,
7
0
0
 
f
u
l
l
-
t
i
m
e
 
e
q
u
i
v
a
l
e
n
t
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
'
s
 
p
a
r
e
n
t
,
 

6

 
 
U
C
M
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
&
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
m
e
r
g
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
a
 

8

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
 
s
u
b
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
0
,
 

9

 
 
2
0
1
6
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
w
,
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
p
o
i
n
t
 
o
u
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
h
i
l
e
 

1
1

 
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
e
r
g
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 

1
2

 
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
,
 
t
h
e
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
p
u
t
 
f
o
r
t
h
 
h
e
r
e
 

1
3

 
 
a
r
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
U
C
-
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
-
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
U
C
M
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 

1
4

 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
-
-
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
&
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 

1
6

 
 
l
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
3
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 

1
8

 
 
r
a
t
e
d
 
B
a
a
1
 
b
y
 
M
o
o
d
y
'
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 

1
9

 
 
b
y
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
C
h
a
s
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

2
0

 
 
d
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
a
y
 
o
f
 
p
r
i
c
i
n
g
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 

2
1

 
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
a
 
b
r
o
a
d
 
g
e
o
g
r
a
p
h
i
c
 

2
3

 
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
,
 
a
t
t
r
a
c
t
i
n
g
 
p
a
t
i
e
n
t
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
S
o
u
t
h
 
a
n
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 98



5
9

 
 
S
o
u
t
h
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
s
u
b
u
r
b
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
a
 
m
a
p
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 

1

 
 
5
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
,
 
a
 
n
i
c
e
 
c
o
l
o
r
e
d
 
m
a
p
.
 
 
I
t
 
s
h
o
w
s
 

2

 
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
r
y
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
i
n
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
,
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
t
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
r
e
a
l
l
y
 
f
a
i
r
l
y
 
l
a
r
g
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
u
d
i
t
e
d
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
s
t
a
t
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
f
o
r
 

5

 
 
U
C
M
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
&
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
e
n
t
 

6

 
 
o
f
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
,
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
9
-
m
o
n
t
h
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 

7

 
 
e
n
d
e
d
 
J
u
n
e
 
3
0
,
 
2
0
1
7
,
 
s
h
o
w
s
 
g
o
o
d
 
d
e
b
t
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
 
c
o
v
e
r
a
g
e
 

8

 
 
o
f
 
2
.
6
 
a
n
d
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
d
a
y
s
 
c
a
s
h
 
o
n
 
h
a
n
d
 
o
f
 
4
4
6
 
d
a
y
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
U
C
M
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
&
 
H
o
s
p
i
t
a
l
 

1
0

 
 
D
i
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
,
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 

1
1

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
o
n
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
i
n
g
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
H
u
h
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
R
.
 
M
I
C
H
A
E
L
 
J
.
 
M
I
T
C
H
E
L
L
:
 
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
,
 
y
e
a
h
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
e
s
t
i
m
a
t
e
d
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
v
a
l
u
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
$
3
,
5
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
I
n
g
a
l
l
s
 
d
o
e
s
 

1
8

 
 
n
o
t
 
p
a
y
 
r
e
a
l
 
e
s
t
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
e
s
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
t
o
l
d
 
m
e
.
 
 
I
 

1
9

 
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
k
n
o
w
.
 
 
I
 
d
o
n
'
t
 
g
o
 
c
h
e
c
k
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
s
,
 
y
o
u
 
k
n
o
w
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
,

2
4

6
0

 
 
P
a
m
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
i
c
h
,
 
y
o
u
 
m
a
y
 
w
a
n
t
 
a
 
b
o
t
t
l
e
 
o
f
 
w
a
t
e
r
 

2

 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
i
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
s
o
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
r
e
 

4

 
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
f
a
s
t
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
d
o
 
t
h
e
y
 
s
a
y
 
a
b
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
B
s
 
o
f
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
s
p
e
a
k
i
n
g
?
 
 
B
e
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
v
e
;
 
b
e
 

6

 
 
b
r
i
e
f
;
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
 
s
e
a
t
e
d
,
 
r
i
g
h
t
?
 
 
I
'
m
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
l
o
c
k
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
w
e
'
l
l
 
g
o
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
8
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

8

 
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
-
-
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t
 

9

 
 
P
r
o
p
e
r
t
i
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
 

1
0

 
 
$
2
0
,
2
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
o
f
 
M
i
d
w
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
D
i
s
a
s
t
e
r
 
A
r
e
a
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

1
1

 
 
w
a
s
 
-
-
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 

1
2

 
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
C
o
d
e
 
f
r
o
m
 
2
0
0
8
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
2
0
1
2
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 

1
3

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
8
-
s
t
o
r
y
,
 
1
5
0
 
-
-
 

1
4

 
 
1
1
5
,
0
0
0
-
s
q
u
a
r
e
-
f
o
o
t
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
 
b
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
 
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
i
n
 

1
5

 
 
d
o
w
n
t
o
w
n
 
M
o
l
i
n
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
n
c
h
o
r
 
t
e
n
a
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
i
s
 

1
6

 
 
K
O
N
E
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
-
-
 
o
r
 
K
O
N
E
,
 
I
n
c
.
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
U
S
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
s
u
b
s
i
d
i
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
F
i
n
l
a
n
d
-
b
a
s
e
d
 
K
O
N
E
 
O
y
j
,
 

1
8

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
a
l
l
y
 
t
r
a
d
e
d
 
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
H
e
l
s
i
n
k
i
 

1
9

 
 
S
t
o
c
k
 
E
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
$
2
0
,
2
0
0
,
0
0
0
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
 

2
1

 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
f
 
a
 
N
e
w
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
 
T
a
x
 
C
r
e
d
i
t
 

2
2

 
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
$
6
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 

2
3

 
 
o
f
 
s
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
w
e
r
e
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
i
n

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 99



6
1

 
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
7
-
y
e
a
r
 
N
e
w
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
 
T
a
x
 
C
r
e
d
i
t
 

1

 
 
c
o
m
p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
m
e
 
t
o
 
a
n
 
e
n
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 

2

 
 
m
o
n
t
h
 
-
-
 
t
o
w
a
r
d
s
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
.
 
 
A
n
d
 

3

 
 
c
o
n
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
2
0
1
0
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 

4

 
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
G
r
e
a
t
 
-
-
 

5

 
 
G
r
e
a
t
 
W
e
s
t
e
r
n
 
B
a
n
k
 
o
f
 
B
e
t
t
e
n
d
o
r
f
,
 
I
o
w
a
,
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
r
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
N
e
w
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
 

8

 
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
n
o
 
a
m
o
r
t
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 

9

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
b
u
t
 
k
e
e
p
 
i
n
 
m
i
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
$
6
.
6
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
f
 

1
0

 
 
s
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 
N
e
w
 
M
a
r
k
e
t
s
 
T
a
x
 

1
1

 
 
C
r
e
d
i
t
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
-
-
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
a
w
a
y
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
r
 
w
a
s
 
U
.
S
.
 
B
a
n
k
.
 

1
3

 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
l
s
o
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
m
o
r
t
g
a
g
e
 
l
o
a
n
 

1
4

 
 
a
s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
'
s
 
s
u
b
o
r
d
i
n
a
t
e
 
d
e
b
t
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
w
e
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 

1
9

 
 
N
o
.
 
9
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
B
r
a
d
l
e
y
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
.
 

2
0

 
 
T
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
 
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
$
5
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
s
 

2
1

 
 
f
o
r
 
B
r
a
d
l
e
y
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
.
 
 
T
h
o
s
e
 
w
e
r
e
 

2
2

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
a
s
 
d
r
a
w
d
o
w
n
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
G
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
s
,
 
B
r
a
d
l
e
y
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
d
r
a
w
 
d
o
w
n
 
t
h
e

2
4

6
2

 
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
$
3
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
i
n
 
2
0
1
8
 
a
n
d
 

1

 
 
2
0
1
9
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
y
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
.
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
-
-
 

2

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 
t
h
e
m
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
 
o
f
 

3

 
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
s
 
t
o
 
m
a
k
e
 
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 

4

 
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o
 
a
n
y
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
.
 
 
B
o
n
d
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
'
s
 
s
t
i
l
l
 

5

 
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 
 
I
t
 
m
a
y
 
e
n
d
 
u
p
 

6

 
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
-
-
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 

7

 
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 

9

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
l
y
i
n
g
 
c
i
r
c
u
m
s
t
a
n
c
e
s
,
 
w
e
 
r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
0
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 

1
3

 
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
e
.
 
 
W
h
a
t
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 

1
4

 
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
e
 
i
s
 
l
o
o
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
i
s
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
b
a
n
k
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
 

1
6

 
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
.
 
 
T
h
e
i
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
l
e
t
t
e
r
 
o
f
 
c
r
e
d
i
t
 

1
7

 
 
b
a
n
k
 
i
s
 
B
M
O
 
H
a
r
r
i
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
r
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
f
u
n
d
i
n
g
 

1
8

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
P
N
C
 
B
a
n
k
.
 
 
1
0
0
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
9

 
 
o
u
t
s
t
a
n
d
i
n
g
 
b
a
l
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
l
l
e
g
e
'
s
 
2
0
0
3
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
0
7
 

2
0

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
r
e
f
u
n
d
e
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
n
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
d
 
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 

2
1

 
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
e
e
d
 
$
3
7
,
2
5
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 

2
2

 
 
t
e
r
m
 
o
f
 
b
o
t
h
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
a
n
k
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
 
i
s
 
f
o
r
 
7
 

2
3

 
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r
,
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
s
 
f
o
r
 
a
 
f
i
n
a
l

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 100



6
3

 
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
 
d
a
t
e
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
4
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
o
u
t
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
1
.
 
 
W
e
 

4

 
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
r
 
E
l
i
m
 
C
h
r
i
s
t
i
a
n
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 

5

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
o
f
 
a
 
F
i
r
s
t
 

6

 
 
A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
a
n
 
a
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
I
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

7

 
 
a
l
s
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
u
a
t
e
 
a
n
 

8

 
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
r
e
s
e
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
b
a
n
k
,
 
P
r
o
v
i
d
e
n
c
e
 
B
a
n
k
,
 

9

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
o
r
 
t
o
 
F
i
f
t
h
 
T
h
i
r
d
.
 
 
T
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
i
t
 

1
1

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
e
r
m
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

1
2

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
 
7
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
-
-
 
f
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
7
 
y
e
a
r
s
 

1
3

 
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
d
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
c
l
o
s
i
n
g
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
e
i
n
g
 

1
5

 
 
a
c
c
e
l
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 

1
6

 
 
b
a
n
k
 
t
e
r
m
 
w
a
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
-
-
 
w
a
s
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
n
e
w
e
d
 
n
e
x
t
 

1
7

 
 
S
e
p
t
e
m
b
e
r
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
s
 
m
y
 

1
9

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
.
 
 
A
n
y
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
n
e
x
t
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
2
,
 

2
2

 
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 
C
a
t
h
o
l
i
c
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 

2
3

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
o
f
 
a

2
4

6
4

 
 
F
i
r
s
t
 
S
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
T
r
u
s
t
 
I
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
 
b
e
t
w
e
e
n
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
U
.
S
.
 
B
a
n
k
 
N
.
A
.
,
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
 
t
r
u
s
t
e
e
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
u
a
t
e
 
t
h
e
 

3

 
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
I
n
d
e
x
 
P
u
t
 
R
a
t
e
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
b
y
 

4

 
 
f
i
v
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
i
t
 

5

 
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
m
a
k
e
 
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
m
o
d
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 

6

 
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
a
 
r
a
t
e
 
c
a
l
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 

7

 
 
a
g
e
n
t
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
V
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 

8

 
 
R
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
2
.
 
 
I
t
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 

9

 
 
L
a
k
e
 
F
o
r
e
s
t
 
B
a
n
k
 
&
 
T
r
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 

1
0

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
c
a
l
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
g
e
n
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
 

1
1

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
c
a
l
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
g
e
n
t
 
i
s
 
d
r
i
v
e
n
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
v
a
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
r
a
t
e
 

1
2

 
 
s
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e
 
o
f
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
e
t
i
n
g
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
b
y
 

1
4

 
 
f
i
v
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
f
r
o
m
 
2
0
2
2
 
t
o
 
2
0
2
7
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
I
'
l
l
 
c
o
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
m
y
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
m
a
r
k
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
M
o
v
i
n
g
 
o
n
 
n
e
x
t
 
t
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
3
.
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 

2
0

 
 
a
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
I
E
F
A
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
1
9
9
5
 

2
1

 
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
N
o
t
e
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
-
-
 
a
s
 
w
e
 

2
2

 
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
e
a
r
l
i
e
r
,
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
 
-
-
 
t
h
e
 
L
i
n
c
o
l
n
 
P
a
r
k
 

2
3

 
 
Z
o
o
l
o
g
i
c
a
l
 
S
o
c
i
e
t
y
 
i
s
 
r
e
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 101



6
5

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
A
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
,
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
t
w
o
 
r
e
m
a
i
n
i
n
g
 

1

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
'
r
e
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
o
n
 
p
a
g
e
 
2
,
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

2

 
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 

3

 
 
N
o
r
t
h
 
S
h
o
r
e
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
 
S
y
s
t
e
m
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
e
n
a
b
l
e
 

5

 
 
t
h
e
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
N
o
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

6

 
 
f
u
t
u
r
e
 
i
n
 
a
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
m
o
d
e
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 

7

 
 
o
p
i
n
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 

8

 
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
e
d
 
a
t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m
e
 
t
h
e
 
n
o
t
e
s
 
b
e
a
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 
a
 

9

 
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
 
m
o
d
e
.
 
 
S
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
t
o
 

1
0

 
 
g
o
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
.
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 

1
1

 
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
N
o
t
e
s
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
s
 
a
r
e
 
e
v
a
l
u
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
C
P
 

1
2

 
 
o
p
t
i
o
n
 
v
e
r
s
u
s
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
o
p
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
m
a
y
 
h
a
v
e
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
 
y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
4
 
i
s
 
a
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 

1
6

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
r
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
L
o
y
o
l
a
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
o
f
 
C
h
i
c
a
g
o
'
s
 

1
7

 
 
C
o
m
m
e
r
c
i
a
l
 
P
a
p
e
r
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
 
P
r
o
g
r
a
m
.
 
 
L
o
y
o
l
a
 

1
8

 
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
a
 
s
t
a
n
d
-
a
l
o
n
e
 

1
9

 
 
p
r
o
g
r
a
m
,
 
i
n
 
2
0
0
8
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
e
d
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
a
t
t
a
i
n
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
 
o
b
j
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
j
u
s
t
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
3
:
 

2
1

 
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
N
o
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
a
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
i
n
 

2
2

 
 
a
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
 
m
o
d
e
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
a
x
 

2
3

 
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
.

2
4

6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
5
,
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
C
a
r
m
e
l
 

3

 
 
H
i
g
h
 
S
c
h
o
o
l
.
 
 
T
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
f
 
a
 

4

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
o
f
 
a
 

5

 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
 
O
m
n
i
b
u
s
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
L
o
a
n
 

6

 
 
A
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
w
o
,
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 

7

 
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
u
a
t
e
 
a
n
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

8

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
t
e
r
m
 
b
y
 
s
i
x
 
y
e
a
r
s
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

9

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
m
u
l
a
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
e
n
t
 

1
0

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
l
t
e
r
 
-
-
 

1
1

 
 
a
l
t
e
r
s
 
t
h
e
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
t
a
x
a
t
i
o
n
 
r
a
t
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
e
x
t
,
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
6
,
 
L
i
t
t
l
e
 
C
i
t
y
 

1
5

 
 
F
o
u
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
i
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
W
i
n
t
r
u
s
t
 
-
-
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 

1
6

 
 
W
i
n
t
r
u
s
t
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
d
e
a
l
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
i
t
t
l
e
 
C
i
t
y
 
i
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
 
o
f
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 

1
9

 
 
t
o
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
u
a
t
e
 
a
n
 
e
x
t
e
n
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
t
e
r
m
,
 
a
n
d
 

2
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
f
o
r
m
u
l
a
 
t
h
a
t
'
s
 

2
1

 
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
e
n
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
w
h
a
t
 
m
a
y
 
l
i
e
 
a
h
e
a
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
i
s
 
f
e
d
e
r
a
l
 
t
a
x
 
r
e
f
o
r
m
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 
t
h
a
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 102



6
7

 
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
t
e
r
m
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 

1

 
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m
a
t
e
l
y
 
t
w
o
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
n
i
n
e
 
m
o
n
t
h
s
 

2

 
 
t
o
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
2
7
,
 
s
o
 
t
h
e
y
'
d
 
b
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
i
r
 

3

 
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
t
e
r
m
 
f
o
r
 
1
0
 
y
e
a
r
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
r
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
s
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
t
h
i
n
g
 
l
e
f
t
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
i
t
 
f
o
r
 
m
e
.
 
 
I
 
w
a
s
 
j
u
s
t
 

8

 
 
c
h
e
c
k
i
n
g
 
m
y
 
t
i
m
e
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
W
i
t
h
o
u
t
 
a
 
d
r
i
n
k
 
o
f
 
w
a
t
e
r
.
 

1
0

 
 
E
x
c
e
l
l
e
n
t
 
j
o
b
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
A
M
P
T
O
N
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
G
r
e
a
t
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
N
o
w
 
I
 
c
a
n
 

1
2

 
 
b
e
 
s
e
a
t
e
d
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
P
a
m
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
p
.
 
 
I
 
m
e
a
n
,
 
y
e
s
,
 
s
i
r
.
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
N
o
.
 
1
7
 
i
s
 
a
n
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
R
u
s
h
 

1
7

 
 
U
n
i
v
e
r
s
i
t
y
 
M
e
d
i
c
a
l
 
C
e
n
t
e
r
.
 
 
I
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
e
m
o
.
 
 
W
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
b
o
o
k
 
w
e
n
t
 
o
u
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
o
 
-
-
 
w
e
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
a
c
t
 

1
9

 
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
s
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
-
-
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
w
e
r
e
 
t
r
y
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
.
 
 
S
o
 

2
0

 
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
g
o
 
t
o
 
y
o
u
r
 
b
o
o
k
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
-
-
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
i
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
,
 
i
t
'
s
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
I
n
f
o
r
m
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
E
N
A
N
E
:
 
 
H
u
h
?
 
 
I
t
 
s
a
y
s
,
 
A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t

2
4

6
8

 
 
M
e
m
o
r
i
a
l
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
 
a
n
d
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
-
-
 

1

 
 
E
d
w
a
r
d
-
E
l
m
h
u
r
s
t
 
H
e
a
l
t
h
c
a
r
e
,
 
b
u
t
 
a
n
y
w
a
y
,
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
'
s
 
a
l
s
o
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
o
k
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
m
e
m
o
s
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 

3

 
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
u
s
h
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
-
-
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
1
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
w
e
r
e
 

5

 
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
i
n
 
D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
2
0
1
1
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
f
 

6

 
 
$
5
6
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0
.
 
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
i
e
s
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
o
w
n
e
r
 
o
f
 

7

 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
L
I
B
O
R
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
 
a
 

8

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
b
a
n
k
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
-
-
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
u
n
s
 
t
o
 

9

 
 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r
 
3
0
,
 
2
0
2
1
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
u
s
h
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
t
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 

1
1

 
 
2
0
1
1
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
b
a
n
k
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
t
o
 

1
2

 
 
a
 
n
e
w
 
b
a
n
k
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
r
u
n
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 

1
3

 
 
O
c
t
o
b
e
r
 
3
1
,
 
2
0
2
4
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
t
e
d
 
b
y
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
I
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
.
 
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
h
a
s
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 

1
5

 
 
c
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
 
t
o
 
h
o
l
d
 
t
h
e
 
S
e
r
i
e
s
 
2
0
1
1
 
B
o
n
d
s
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
6

 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 

1
7

 
 
w
i
l
l
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
d
o
 
s
o
.
 
 
I
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
,
 

1
8

 
 
J
P
 
M
o
r
g
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
s
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
b
l
e
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 

1
9

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
m
a
r
k
e
t
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
d
e
f
i
n
i
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
L
I
B
O
R
 
i
n
d
e
x
 
w
i
l
l
 

2
1

 
 
a
l
s
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
v
i
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
I
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
 
t
o
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
 

2
2

 
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
p
o
s
s
i
b
l
e
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
L
I
B
O
R
 
i
s
 
n
o
 
l
o
n
g
e
r
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
u
s
e
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 103



6
9

 
 
i
n
 
2
0
2
1
.
 
 
T
h
e
 
s
u
p
p
l
e
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
B
o
n
d
 
I
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
a
l
s
o
 

1

 
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
-
-
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
 
t
h
e
 
d
e
t
a
i
l
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
l
y
 

3

 
 
e
x
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
c
a
u
s
e
 
a
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
a
x
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
g
i
v
e
 
a
 
"
n
o
 
a
d
v
e
r
s
e
 

5

 
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
"
 
t
a
x
 
o
p
i
n
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
a
n
s
a
c
t
i
o
n
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
1
8
,
 
1
9
,
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
.
 

1
0

 
 
A
n
d
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
8
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
w
i
t
h
d
r
a
w
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
e
m
 
1
9
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
'
s
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
t
o
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
e
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
o
r
'
s
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
d
g
e
t
 
f
o
r
 

1
4

 
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
.
 
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
 
i
s
 
-
-
 
i
s
 
a
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
g
r
a
n
t
 
o
f
 

1
5

 
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
f
r
o
m
 
t
h
e
 
U
.
S
.
 
T
r
e
a
s
u
r
y
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
O
f
f
i
c
e
 
o
f
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
B
u
d
g
e
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 

1
7

 
 
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
u
s
.
 
 
W
e
 
a
r
e
 
a
s
k
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 

1
8

 
 
$
1
2
0
 
m
i
l
l
i
o
n
 
w
o
r
t
h
 
o
f
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
v
e
n
t
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
9

 
 
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
a
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
g
o
 
t
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
a
f
f
e
c
-
 
-
-
 
o
r
 
a
r
e
 

2
0

 
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
o
f
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
s
t
,
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
m
o
o
t
,
 
b
u
t
 

2
1

 
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
a
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
o
e
s
 
a
n
y
b
o
d
y
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 
 
T
h
i
s
 

2
3

 
 
i
s
 
p
r
i
m
a
r
i
l
y
 
f
o
r
 
I
n
d
u
s
t
r
i
a
l
 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 
B
o
n
d
s
;
 
S
o
l
i
d

2
4

7
0

 
 
W
a
s
t
e
;
 
o
c
c
a
s
i
o
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
H
o
u
s
i
n
g
;
 
a
n
d
 
B
e
g
i
n
n
i
n
g
 
F
a
r
m
e
r
 

1

 
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
i
d
e
n
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
o
r
 
i
s
 
t
h
i
s
 

3

 
 
j
u
s
t
 
a
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
W
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
b
r
o
a
d
l
y
,
 
b
u
t
 

5

 
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
u
n
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
t
y
,
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
c
h
a
r
a
c
t
e
r
i
z
e
 

6

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
o
r
e
 
a
s
 
a
 
p
l
a
c
e
h
o
l
d
e
r
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
I
n
c
i
d
e
n
t
a
l
l
y
,
 
o
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 

9

 
 
i
n
 
W
a
s
h
i
n
g
t
o
n
,
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
 
i
s
 
a
l
l
o
w
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
e
l
d
 
o
v
e
r
 

1
0

 
 
f
o
r
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
i
n
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
b
u
c
k
e
t
s
:
 
S
o
l
i
d
 

1
1

 
 
W
a
s
t
e
,
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
c
k
e
t
s
.
 
 
O
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
d
i
s
c
u
s
s
i
o
n
s
 

1
2

 
 
i
s
 
a
n
 
e
n
t
i
r
e
 
e
l
i
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
V
o
l
u
m
e
 
C
a
p
,
 
o
r
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
c
a
r
r
y
 
f
o
r
w
a
r
d
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
0
,
 
I
'
m
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
R
y
a
n
 

1
5

 
 
O
e
c
h
s
l
e
r
,
 
w
h
o
'
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
E
l
i
z
a
b
e
t
h
 
a
n
d
 
I
,
 
t
o
 

1
6

 
 
m
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
t
h
e
n
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
3
,
 
t
h
e
 
O
m
n
i
b
u
s
 

1
7

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
,
 
I
'
m
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
W
e
b
e
r
 
t
o
 

1
8

 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
0
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
b
o
o
k
 
i
s
 
a
 

2
1

 
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
n
c
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 

2
2

 
 
d
o
e
s
 
s
e
v
e
r
a
l
 
t
h
i
n
g
s
:
 
F
i
r
s
t
,
 
i
t
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
s
 
a
 
5
-
m
o
n
t
h
 

2
3

 
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
 
o
f
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
a
n
d

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 104



7
1

 
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
A
D
P
 
T
o
t
a
l
S
o
u
r
c
e
,
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

1

 
 
e
x
p
i
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
w
i
l
l
 
t
r
a
n
s
i
t
i
o
n
 

2

 
 
e
m
p
l
o
y
e
e
 
b
e
n
e
f
i
t
s
 
t
o
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
 
p
u
r
s
u
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
a
 

3

 
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
m
a
s
t
e
r
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
t
r
a
n
s
i
t
i
o
n
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 

4

 
 
i
n
h
o
u
s
e
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
t
 
a
l
s
o
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
s
 
a
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
,
 

6

 
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 

7

 
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
 
o
f
 
t
e
c
h
n
i
c
a
l
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
f
o
r
 
p
a
y
r
o
l
l
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
t
i
m
e
k
e
e
p
i
n
g
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
A
s
c
e
n
t
 
I
n
n
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
 
I
t
 

9

 
 
c
o
n
f
i
r
m
s
 
a
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
 
a
n
d
 
a
n
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
,
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 

1
0

 
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
P
r
o
c
u
r
e
m
e
n
t
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
t
o
r
s
,
 
w
i
t
h
 
a
 
v
e
n
d
o
r
 
o
f
 
I
T
 

1
1

 
 
N
e
t
w
o
r
k
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
i
n
g
 
S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
,
 
C
a
t
a
l
y
s
t
 
C
o
n
s
u
l
t
i
n
g
 

1
2

 
 
G
r
o
u
p
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
d
 
f
i
n
a
l
l
y
,
 
i
t
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
t
o
 
t
a
k
e
 

1
5

 
 
s
t
e
p
s
 
t
o
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
a
 
p
o
o
l
 
o
f
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
a
d
v
i
s
o
r
s
 
w
h
o
 
c
a
n
 

1
6

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
 
a
s
s
i
g
n
m
e
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
7

 
 
r
e
s
p
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
t
e
 
R
e
v
o
l
v
i
n
g
 
F
u
n
d
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
e
x
t
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
I
 
a
m
 

2
3

 
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
i
n
g
 
I
t
e
m
 
2
3
.
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
l
a
t
e
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e

2
4

7
2

 
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
,
 
s
o
 
i
t
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
B
o
o
k
,
 
b
u
t
 

1

 
 
i
n
s
t
e
a
d
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
t
h
e
 
l
a
s
t
 
i
t
e
m
 
i
n
 
y
o
u
r
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 

2

 
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
t
l
e
 
i
s
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
C
o
n
c
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
A
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
 
o
f
 
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
F
o
r
 
D
e
b
t
 
I
s
s
u
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
I
t
s
 
P
r
e
d
e
c
e
s
s
o
r
 

6

 
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
i
e
s
 
R
e
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
D
r
a
w
-
d
o
w
n
 
B
o
n
d
s
,
 
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
r
k
s
,
 

7

 
 
a
n
d
 
M
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
s
 
f
o
r
 
I
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
R
a
t
e
 
D
e
t
e
r
m
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

8

 
 
C
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
O
t
h
e
r
 
M
a
t
t
e
r
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
s
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
d
e
l
e
g
a
t
e
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 

1
0

 
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
a
n
d
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
o
f
f
i
c
e
r
s
 
t
h
e
 

1
1

 
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
o
n
d
 

1
2

 
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
r
i
s
e
n
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
n
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 

1
3

 
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
t
a
x
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
b
y
 

1
4

 
 
C
o
n
g
r
e
s
s
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
s
 
y
o
u
'
v
e
 
h
e
a
r
d
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
v
a
r
i
o
u
s
 

1
6

 
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
s
k
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
o
u
r
 
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
 

1
7

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
i
n
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
e
d
 
d
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
s
 

1
8

 
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
i
s
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
,
 
2
0
1
8
.
 
 
W
e
 
s
u
s
p
e
c
t
 

1
9

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
e
d
 
b
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
f
o
r
 

2
0

 
 
s
i
m
i
l
a
r
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
y
e
a
r
 
e
n
d
.
 
 
T
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
t
e
n
t
 

2
1

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
v
e
r
s
 
t
h
e
 
t
y
p
e
 
o
f
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 

2
2

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
a
r
e
 
s
e
e
k
i
n
g
,
 
w
e
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
s
k
 
y
o
u
 
t
o
 

2
3

 
 
a
t
t
e
n
d
 
a
n
o
t
h
e
r
 
s
p
e
c
i
a
l
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
s
e

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 105



7
3

 
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
c
o
n
t
e
m
p
l
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
c
o
v
e
r
 
t
h
r
e
e
 
b
a
s
i
c
 
t
y
p
e
s
 
o
f
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
s
:
 

3

 
 
T
h
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
i
s
 
w
h
a
t
 
i
s
 
r
e
f
e
r
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
s
 
D
r
a
w
-
d
o
w
n
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
 

4

 
 
T
h
e
s
e
 
a
r
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 
i
n
c
r
e
m
e
n
t
a
l
l
y
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
,
 
o
r
 

5

 
 
d
r
a
w
n
 
d
o
w
n
,
 
a
s
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
t
o
 
f
u
n
d
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
.
 
 
U
n
d
e
r
 

6

 
 
t
h
e
 
T
a
x
 
C
o
d
e
,
 
e
a
c
h
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
d
r
a
w
 
i
s
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 

7

 
 
n
e
w
 
b
o
n
d
 
w
i
t
h
 
i
t
s
 
o
w
n
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
d
a
t
e
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
I
R
S
 

8

 
 
g
u
i
d
a
n
c
e
,
 
a
 
b
o
n
d
 
i
s
 
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
o
n
l
y
 
w
h
e
n
 
m
o
n
e
y
 
i
s
 

9

 
 
a
c
t
u
a
l
l
y
 
p
a
i
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
n
d
.
 
 
A
s
 
a
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
,
 
a
n
y
 
d
r
a
w
s
 

1
0

 
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
d
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
w
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

1
1

 
 
b
e
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
a
s
 
t
a
x
a
b
l
e
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
 
c
a
l
l
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
t
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
a
 
B
o
n
d
 
B
u
y
e
r
 

1
3

 
 
a
r
t
i
c
l
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
e
d
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
b
e
l
i
e
v
e
 
i
s
 
i
n
 

1
4

 
 
y
o
u
r
 
f
o
l
d
e
r
s
,
 
t
i
t
l
e
d
 
"
H
o
u
s
e
 
T
a
x
 
B
i
l
l
 
W
r
e
a
k
i
n
g
 
H
a
v
o
c
 

1
5

 
 
w
i
t
h
 
T
a
x
-
E
x
e
m
p
t
 
P
r
i
v
a
t
e
 
A
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
 
D
r
a
w
-
d
o
w
n
 
B
o
n
d
s
.
"
 

1
6

 
 
T
h
i
s
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
w
i
l
l
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
a
l
l
o
w
 
t
h
e
 

1
7

 
 
d
r
a
w
 
d
o
w
n
 
o
r
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
a
l
l
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
s
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f
 

1
8

 
 
t
h
e
 
y
e
a
r
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
m
a
n
y
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
w
h
a
t
 
a
r
e
 

2
0

 
 
c
a
l
l
e
d
 
m
u
l
t
i
m
o
d
a
l
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
,
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 
d
i
f
f
e
r
e
n
t
 

2
1

 
 
t
y
p
e
s
 
o
f
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 
r
a
t
e
 
m
o
d
e
s
.
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
b
e
n
c
h
m
a
r
k
s
 

2
2

 
 
u
n
d
e
r
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
c
h
a
n
g
i
n
g
,
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
c
a
s
e
 

2
3

 
 
o
f
 
L
I
B
O
R
,
 
g
o
i
n
g
 
a
w
a
y
.
 
 
I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e

2
4

7
4

 
 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t
s
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
m
o
d
e
s
 
o
r
 
m
e
c
h
a
n
i
c
s
 
f
o
r
 

1

 
 
c
o
n
v
e
r
s
i
o
n
 
o
r
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
d
e
s
i
r
a
b
l
e
 
i
n
 

2

 
 
l
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
p
r
o
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
d
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
l
e
g
i
s
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
m
a
y
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
s
e
 

5

 
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
e
d
 
a
t
 
a
 
t
i
m
e
 
w
h
e
n
 
t
h
e
y
 

6

 
 
c
a
n
 
n
o
 
l
o
n
g
e
r
 
b
e
 
q
u
a
l
i
f
i
e
d
 
a
s
 
t
a
x
-
e
x
e
m
p
t
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
a
s
 
a
 

7

 
 
r
e
s
u
l
t
,
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
a
r
e
 
m
a
k
i
n
g
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
n
o
w
 
t
o
 
a
v
o
i
d
 

8

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
i
r
d
,
 
s
o
m
e
 
b
o
r
r
o
w
e
r
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
o
n
d
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

1
0

 
 
a
r
e
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
l
y
 
p
u
r
c
h
a
s
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
l
d
 
b
y
 
b
a
n
k
s
 
o
r
 
o
t
h
e
r
 

1
1

 
 
f
i
n
a
n
c
i
a
l
 
i
n
s
t
i
t
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
i
n
d
e
n
t
u
r
e
s
 
m
a
y
 
n
o
t
 

1
2

 
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 
m
o
d
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
h
e
n
-
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
i
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

1
3

 
 
r
a
t
e
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
s
.
 
 
A
g
a
i
n
,
 
t
o
 
a
v
o
i
d
 
a
 
s
i
t
u
a
t
i
o
n
 
w
h
e
r
e
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
b
o
n
d
 
m
i
g
h
t
 
b
e
 
c
o
n
s
i
d
e
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
i
s
s
u
e
d
,
 
t
h
e
 

1
5

 
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
s
 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
e
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t
 
p
e
r
m
i
t
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

1
7

 
 
w
h
i
c
h
 
a
r
e
 
o
u
t
s
i
d
e
 
t
h
e
 
p
a
r
a
m
e
t
e
r
s
 
s
e
t
 
f
o
r
t
h
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
8

 
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
r
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
n
d
 
i
s
s
u
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 

1
9

 
 
p
r
i
n
c
i
p
a
l
 
a
m
o
u
n
t
 
o
r
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
m
a
t
u
r
i
t
y
 
d
a
t
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
s
 

2
0

 
 
a
n
 
o
p
i
n
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
b
o
n
d
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
e
f
f
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 
w
i
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
a
d
v
e
r
s
e
l
y
 
a
f
f
e
c
t
 
t
a
x
 
e
x
e
m
p
t
i
o
n
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
r
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
q
u
e
s
t
i
o
n
s
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
N
o
 
r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.
)

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 106



7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
o
u
n
d
s
 
g
o
o
d
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
 
w
o
u
l
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 

2

 
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w
i
n
g
 

3

 
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
R
e
s
o
l
u
t
i
o
n
s
:
 
 
I
t
e
m
s
 
1
,
 
2
,
 
4
,
 
7
,
 

4

 
 
8
,
 
9
,
 
1
0
,
 
1
1
,
 
1
2
,
 
1
3
,
 
1
4
,
 
1
5
,
 
1
6
,
 
1
7
,
 
1
9
,
 
2
0
,
 
a
n
d
 
2
3
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 

9

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 

1
1

 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 

1
4

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
?
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?

2
4

7
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q
u
i
c
k
l
y
,
 
I
'
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
d
v
i
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
C
o
u
n
s
e
l
 

1
6

 
 
t
h
a
t
 
I
 
m
u
s
t
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
a
d
e
 
a
 
m
i
s
t
a
k
e
 
o
n
 
v
o
t
e
s
 
-
-
 
o
n
 
v
o
t
i
n
g
 

1
7

 
 
o
n
 
N
o
.
 
5
.
 
 
I
 
d
i
d
 
n
o
t
 
c
l
e
a
r
l
y
 
s
t
a
t
e
 
N
o
.
 
5
.
 
 
S
o
.
.
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
I
 
n
e
e
d
 
t
o
 
s
t
e
p
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
l
l
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
o
 
h
a
v
e
 

2
0

 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
s
t
e
p
 
o
u
t
.
 
 
I
 
a
p
o
l
o
g
i
z
e
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 
1
1
:
0
0
 
o
'
c
l
o
c
k
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
 
a
l
w
a
y
s
 
t
a
k
e
 
m
y
 
c
o
u
n
s
e
l
'
s
 

2
3

 
 
w
o
r
d
 
f
o
r
 
i
t
.
 
 
S
o
.
.
.

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 107



7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
n
o
w
 
1
1
:
0
0
 
o
'
c
l
o
c
k
;
 
l
e
t
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
h
a
s
 
e
x
i
t
e
d
 
t
h
e
 

2

 
 
r
o
o
m
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 

4

 
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
p
a
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
d
o
p
t
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
 
N
o
.
 
5
 
f
o
r
 

5

 
 
O
S
F
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
,
 

1
0

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
E
B
E
R
:
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
m
 
s
o
r
r
y
.
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
.
 

1
3

 
 
I
t
 
c
a
n
'
t
 
b
e
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
L
a
u
g
h
t
e
r
.
)
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
t
 
w
a
s
 
m
y
 
b
i
r
t
h
d
a
y
 

1
6

 
 
y
e
s
t
e
r
d
a
y
,
 
s
o
 
I
'
m
 
a
 
y
e
a
r
 
o
l
d
e
r
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
L
a
u
g
h
t
e
r
.
)
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
t
'
s
 
m
y
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
S
o
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 

2
0

 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
,
 
a
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
a
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
t
 

2
2

 
 
S
e
c
r
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
e
a
s
e
 
c
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
C
e
r
t
a
i
n
l
y
.

2
4

7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
n
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
,
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
c
a
l
l
 

1

 
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
l
l
.
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
F
u
e
n
t
e
s
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
E
N
T
E
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
J
u
r
a
c
e
k
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
U
R
A
C
E
K
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
K
n
o
x
?
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
K
N
O
X
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
M
c
C
o
y
 
v
i
a
 
a
u
d
i
o
 
c
o
n
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
O
b
e
r
n
a
g
e
l
?
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
B
E
R
N
A
G
E
L
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
s
.
 
S
m
o
o
t
s
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
M
O
O
T
S
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
?
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
A
n
d
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
?
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
e
s
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
t
h
e
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
s
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 
 
S
o
r
r
y
 
a
b
o
u
t

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 108



7
9

 
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
e
v
e
r
y
b
o
d
y
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
n
y
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
b
u
s
i
n
e
s
s
 
t
o
 
c
o
m
e
 

2

 
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
O
n
e
 
v
e
r
y
 
q
u
i
c
k
 
m
a
t
t
e
r
.
 
 
F
o
r
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 

4

 
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
n
g
e
r
 
s
e
r
v
i
n
g
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
a
 
f
o
r
m
e
r
 

5

 
 
c
o
l
l
e
a
g
u
e
 
o
f
 
o
u
r
s
,
 
N
o
r
m
 
G
o
l
d
,
 
w
e
 
a
r
e
 
c
i
r
c
u
l
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
 

6

 
 
g
e
t
 
w
e
l
l
 
c
a
r
d
 
f
o
r
 
h
i
m
.
 
 
H
i
s
 
d
a
u
g
h
t
e
r
s
 
t
o
l
d
 
m
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 

7

 
 
e
n
j
o
y
e
d
 
h
i
s
 
t
i
m
e
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
,
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
B
o
a
r
d
 

8

 
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
s
o
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
m
e
r
 
-
-
 

9

 
 
c
u
r
r
e
n
t
 
b
o
a
r
d
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
,
 
e
v
e
n
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
d
i
d
 
n
o
t
 
s
e
r
v
e
 
w
i
t
h
 

1
0

 
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
l
d
,
 
w
e
'
d
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
i
t
 
i
f
 
y
o
u
 
s
i
g
n
 
t
h
e
 
g
e
t
 
w
e
l
l
 

1
1

 
 
c
a
r
d
 
a
n
d
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
d
o
e
s
 
a
s
 
w
e
l
l
.
 
 
I
 
k
n
o
w
 
h
e
 
w
o
u
l
d
 

1
2

 
 
a
p
p
r
e
c
i
a
t
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
Y
o
u
 
h
a
v
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
r
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

1
4

 
 
r
o
o
m
 
w
i
t
h
 
u
s
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
E
I
S
T
E
R
:
 
 
Y
e
a
h
.
 
 
M
a
r
i
 
h
a
s
 
i
t
.
 
 
I
t
'
s
 
g
o
i
n
g
 

1
6

 
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
.
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
L
e
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
o
r
d
 
s
h
o
w
 
t
h
a
t
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
 

1
8

 
 
G
o
e
t
z
 
h
a
s
 
r
e
t
u
r
n
e
d
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
m
 
a
t
 
1
1
:
0
1
 
a
.
m
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
k
a
y
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 

2
0

 
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
e
x
c
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 
o
f
 
m
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

2
1

 
 
u
n
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
O
E
T
Z
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.

2
4

8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
G
o
e
t
z
.
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
?
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
O
R
N
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
H
o
r
n
e
.
 

4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
A
y
e
.
 

8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
b
l
i
c
 
C
o
m
m
e
n
t
:
 
A
n
y
 
p
u
b
l
i
c
 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t
 
f
o
r
 

1
0

 
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
?
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
M
r
.
 
C
h
a
i
r
m
a
n
,
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
a
 
d
u
e
 
t
h
a
n
k
-
y
o
u
 

1
2

 
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
E
x
e
c
u
t
i
v
e
 
D
i
r
e
c
t
o
r
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
s
t
a
f
f
 
f
o
r
 
p
u
t
t
i
n
g
 

1
3

 
 
t
h
i
s
 
w
h
o
l
e
 
d
e
a
l
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
I
t
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
h
a
p
p
e
n
 

1
4

 
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
b
u
t
 
h
e
r
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
i
s
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 
t
h
e
r
e
 

1
5

 
 
w
a
s
 
o
b
v
i
o
u
s
l
y
 
a
 
l
o
t
 
o
f
 
h
a
r
d
 
w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
 
l
o
n
g
 
h
o
u
r
s
 
w
e
n
t
 

1
6

 
 
i
n
t
o
 
p
u
t
t
i
n
g
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
.
 
 
I
t
 
w
a
s
 
n
o
 
e
a
s
y
 
t
a
s
k
 
t
o
 

1
7

 
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
 
t
h
i
s
 
t
o
d
a
y
.
 
 
S
o
 
I
 
t
h
i
n
k
 
w
e
 
o
w
e
 
t
h
e
m
 
a
 
v
o
t
e
 
o
f
 

1
8

 
 
c
o
n
f
i
d
e
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
 
v
e
r
y
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
,
 

2
0

 
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
a
n
t
e
d
 
t
o
 
s
a
y
 
t
h
e
 
s
a
m
e
.
 
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
a
n
k
 
t
h
e
 

2
1

 
 
c
l
i
e
n
t
s
 
-
-
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
I
 
d
i
d
n
'
t
 
m
e
a
n
 
t
o
 
j
u
m
p
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
-
-
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
I
F
A
 
f
o
r

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 109



8
1

 
 
u
t
i
l
i
z
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
r
t
i
c
i
p
a
t
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
S
t
a
f
f
 
f
o
r
 

1

 
 
w
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
y
 
d
i
d
 
h
e
r
e
 
t
o
d
a
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
s
o
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
M
e
m
b
e
r
s
 

2

 
 
f
o
r
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
l
a
s
t
 
m
o
n
t
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
I
 
w
i
l
l
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
t
h
a
t
 
w
e
 
m
a
y
 

3

 
 
n
e
e
d
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f
 
y
o
u
r
 
a
v
a
i
l
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
a
n
d
 
f
l
e
x
i
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 

4

 
 
n
e
x
t
 
t
w
o
 
w
e
e
k
s
 
a
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
a
r
e
 
s
o
m
e
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
 
t
h
a
t
 

5

 
 
m
a
y
 
b
e
 
c
o
m
i
n
g
 
u
p
.
 

6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
 
w
i
t
h
 
t
h
a
t
,
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
x
t
 
R
e
g
u
l
a
r
 

7

 
 
S
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
d
 
m
e
e
t
i
n
g
 
w
i
l
l
 
b
e
 
J
a
n
u
a
r
y
 
1
1
t
h
.
 
 
A
n
d
 
I
'
d
 
l
i
k
e
 

8

 
 
t
o
 
r
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
a
 
M
o
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
A
d
j
o
u
r
n
.
 

9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
s
 
t
h
e
r
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
?
 

1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Z
E
L
L
E
R
:
 
 
S
o
 
m
o
v
e
d
.
 

1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P
O
O
L
E
:
 
 
S
e
c
o
n
d
.
 

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
A
 
m
o
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
Z
e
l
l
e
r
,
 
a
 

1
3

 
 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 
b
y
 
M
r
.
 
P
o
o
l
e
.
 

1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
l
l
 
t
h
o
s
e
 
i
n
 
f
a
v
o
r
?
 

1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
C
h
o
r
u
s
 
o
f
 
a
y
e
s
.
)
 

1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
O
p
p
o
s
e
d
?
 

1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
c
C
O
Y
:
 
 
A
y
e
.
 

1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
A
I
R
M
A
N
 
A
N
D
E
R
B
E
R
G
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
a
y
e
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
i
t
.
 

1
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
h
a
n
k
 
y
o
u
.
 

2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
E
C
H
S
L
E
R
:
 
 
T
h
e
 
t
i
m
e
 
i
s
 
1
1
:
0
3
 
a
.
m
.
 

2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(
W
h
i
c
h
 
w
e
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 

2
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
h
a
d
.
)
 

2
3

2
4

8
2

 
 
S
T
A
T
E
 
O
F
 
I
L
L
I
N
O
I
S
 
 
 
)
 

1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 
S
S
:
 

 
 
C
O
U
N
T
Y
 
O
F
 
C
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
)
 

2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
r
a
d
 
B
e
n
j
a
m
i
n
,
 
b
e
i
n
g
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
d
u
l
y
 
s
w
o
r
n
 
o
n
 
o
a
t
h
,
 

3

 
 
s
a
y
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
h
e
 
i
s
 
a
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
,
 
t
h
a
t
 

4

 
 
h
e
 
r
e
p
o
r
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 

5

 
 
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
o
f
 
s
a
i
d
 
h
e
a
r
i
n
g
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
e
g
o
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
a
 

6

 
 
t
r
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
c
r
i
p
t
 
o
f
 
h
i
s
 
s
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
e
s
 
s
o
 

7

 
 
t
a
k
e
n
 
a
s
 
a
f
o
r
e
s
a
i
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
t
a
i
n
s
 
a
l
l
 
t
h
e
 
p
r
o
c
e
e
d
i
n
g
s
 

8

 
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
a
t
 
s
a
i
d
 
I
l
l
i
n
o
i
s
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
A
u
t
h
o
r
i
t
y
 
M
e
e
t
i
n
g
.
 

9

1
0

1
1

1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
e
r
t
i
f
i
e
d
 
S
h
o
r
t
h
a
n
d
 
R
e
p
o
r
t
e
r
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
o
.
 
 
0
8
4
-
0
0
4
8
0
5
 

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 110



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

APPROVAL OF REQUESTS TO PARTICIPATE VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE 
ADOPTED 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
NV Bronner 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

Y Fuentes NV McCoy (ADDED) 
(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 

Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 111



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

DECEMBER 14, 2017 AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

Y Fuentes NV McCoy (ADDED) 
(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 

Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 112



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

MINUTES 
DEFERRED 

 
 

 
 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 113



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
ADOPTED 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

Y Fuentes NV McCoy (ADDED) 
(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 

Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 114



NO. 1 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-NP01 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE LINCOLN PARK ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 115



NO. 2 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-NP02 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 116



NO. 3 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-HC03 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – ANN & ROBERT H. LURIE CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL OF 

CHICAGO 
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 
(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 

Y Zeller 

NV Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
NV Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 117



NO. 4 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-HC04 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – EVANGELICAL RETIREMENT HOMES OF GREATER 

CHICAGO, INC. D/B/A FRIENDSHIP VILLAGE OF SCHAUMBURG 
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 118



NO. 5 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-HC05 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

NV Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 119



NO. 6 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-HC06 
501(C)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE ADMIRAL AT THE LAKE 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Knox Y Smoots 

Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 
(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 

Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 120



NO. 7 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-HC07 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – THE INGALLS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 121



NO. 8 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD08 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $20,200,000 IN 

AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY'S 
MIDWESTERN DISASTER AREA REFUNDING REVENUE BOND (KONE CENTRE 

PROJECT), SERIES 2017, THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH ARE TO BE LOANED TO 
FINANCIAL DISTRICT PROPERTIES KP, LLC 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 122



NO. 9 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD09 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY BY THE ILLINOIS 
FINANCE AUTHORITY OF FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES RELATING TO ITS 

$25,000,000 MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL AMOUNT REVENUE BONDS (BRADLEY 
UNIVERSITY PROJECT) SERIES 2017A AND $25,000,000 MAXIMUM PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT REVENUE BONDS (BRADLEY UNIVERSITY PROJECT) SERIES 2017B, 

ALONG WITH RELATED DOCUMENTS; AND RELATED MATTERS 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 123



NO. 10 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD10 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $37,250,000 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, 
SERIES 2017 (ELMHURST COLLEGE); AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF A BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT, A TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 
AND AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS; AND APPROVING RELATED 

MATTERS 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 124



NO. 11 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD11 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST 

AMENDMENT TO THE BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS 
FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2013 (ELIM CHRISTIAN 

SERVICES), TO PROVIDE FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE 
INTEREST RATE AND INITIAL MANDATORY PURCHASE DATE AND CERTAIN 

OTHER MATTERS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ANY OTHER 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE TO EFFECT THE MATTERS SET FORTH 

IN SUCH FIRST AMENDMENT; AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED 
MATTERS 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 125



NO. 12 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD12 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A SUPPLEMENTAL BOND 

INDENTURE RELATING TO ITS VARIABLE RATE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 
(CARMEL CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL) 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 126



NO. 13 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD13 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS, MODIFICATIONS AND 

SUPPLEMENTS TO THE TRUST INDENTURE AND RELATED DOCUMENTS DATED AS 
OF NOVEMBER 1, 1995, AS HERETOFORE SUPPLEMENTED AND AMENDED, 

PURSUANT TO WHICH THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY PROVIDES FOR THE 
ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY FROM TIME TO TIME OF NOT IN EXCESS OF $433,200,000 

IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT AT ANY ONE TIME OUTSTANDING OF 
COMMERCIAL PAPER REVENUE NOTES (POOLED FINANCING PROGRAM) (THE 

“NOTES”) PURSUANT TO A POOLED TAX‑EXEMPT COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAM 
(THE “PROGRAM”) 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 127



NO. 14 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD14 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS, MODIFICATIONS AND 

SUPPLEMENTS TO THE BOND TRUST INDENTURE DATED AS OF JUNE 1, 2008, AS 
HERETOFORE SUPPLEMENTED AND AMENDED, PURSUANT TO WHICH THE 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY PROVIDES FOR THE ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY 
FROM TIME TO TIME OF NOT TO EXCEED $95,000,000 IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT AT ANY ONE TIME OUTSTANDING OF COMMERCIAL PAPER REVENUE 

NOTES (LOYOLA UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO FINANCING PROGRAM) (THE “NOTES”) 
PURSUANT TO A TAX EXEMPT COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAM; AUTHORIZING 

AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN AMENDMENTS, MODIFICATIONS 
AND SUPPLEMENTS TO CERTAIN RELATED BOND, CREDIT, TAX AND FINANCING 
DOCUMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 128



NO. 15 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD15 
AMENDATORY RESOLUTION MODIFYING CERTAIN TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY EDUCATIONAL FACILITY REVENUE BOND, SERIES 
2016 (MOUNT CARMEL HIGH SCHOOL PROJECT), THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH HAVE 

BEEN LOANED TO MOUNT CARMEL HIGH SCHOOL 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 129



NO. 16 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD16 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN AMENDMENT 

TO THE BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 20, 2014 UNDER WHICH 
THE SERIES 2014 BOND WAS ISSUED AND SOLD TO NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY 

BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN OTHER 
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE SERIES 2014 BOND; AND 

RELATED MATTERS (LITTLE CITY FOUNDATION) 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 130



NO. 17 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD17 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTEREST RATE CONVERSION OF THE RUSH 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OBLIGATED GROUP IFA SERIES 2011 BONDS 
(“RUMC”) AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 

SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE AND ANY OTHER DOCUMENTS TO PROVIDE 
FOR THE CONVERSION AND TO MAKE CERTAIN AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE 

INTEREST RATE CALCULATIONS AND CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 131



NO. 18 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD18 
WITHDRAWN 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 132



NO. 19 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD19 
RESOLUTION OF INTENT REQUESTING AN INITIAL ALLOCATION OF CALENDAR 

YEAR 2018 PRIVATE ACTIVITY BOND VOLUME CAP IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$120,000,000 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 133



NO. 20 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD20 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CONFIRMING VARIOUS PROCUREMENT MATTERS, 

INCLUDING (I) A CONTRACT WITH ADP TOTALSOURCE, INC. (EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS AND PAYROLL SERVICES), (II) A CONTRACT AMENDMENT WITH 

ASCENT INNOVATIONS, LLC (PAYROLL SERVICES SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND 
SUPPORT), (III) A CONTRACT AND AMENDMENT WITH CATALYST CONSULTING 

GROUP, INC. (INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING AND SUPPORT) AND (IV) 
A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORS 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 134



NO. 21 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD21 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY 
ADOPTED 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 135



NO. 22 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD22 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES RELATED TO THE 

SERIES 2013C AND SERIES 2013D BONDS ISSUED FOR THE BENEFIT OF ELMHURST 
MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE AND THE SERIES 2017B AND SERIES 2013C BONDS 

ISSUED FOR THE BENEFIT OF EDWARD ELMHURST HEALTHCARE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FLEXIBILITY WITH RESPECT TO INTEREST RATE MODES 

ADOPTED 
 

 
December 14, 2017 
 
10 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

NV Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 136



NO. 23 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2017-1214-AD23 
RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE AMENDMENT OF DOCUMENTS FOR DEBT ISSUES 

OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY AND ITS PREDECESSOR AUTHORITIES 
RELATING TO DRAW DOWN BONDS, BENCHMARKS AND MECHANICS FOR 

INTEREST RATE DETERMINATIONS AND OTHER MATTERS 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
December 14, 2017 
 
11 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
E Bronner Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Fuentes Y McCoy (ADDED) 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y Zeller 

Y Goetz E O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
Y Juracek Y Poole   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
 E – Denotes Excused Absence 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 137



 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Operating Revenues and Expenses are direct results of our basic business operations. Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses are 
netted against each other and include interest and investment income and expenses, bad debt adjustments, transfers to the State of 
Illinois and realized/unrealized gains and losses on investments. Net Income/ (Loss) is our bottom line.  
* Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31. This Statement establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools. For most other governmental entities, it 
establishes fair value standards for investments in (a) participating interest-earning investment contracts, (b) external investment 
pools, (c) open-end mutual funds, (d) debt securities, and (e) equity securities, option contracts, stock warrants, and stock rights 
that have readily determinable fair values.   

• Authority investment manager advises that global market conditions contribute to this. 
• Past performance does not direct the outcome of future outcomes; however in FY2015 investment 

income total was $642 thousand compared to (unaudited) FY2016 total $ 742 thousand. 

 
 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 
 
 Date:  February 8, 2018   

   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lyle McCoy 
 Gila J. Bronner George Obernagel 
 James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
 Lerry Knox  
   
 
From:  Ximena Granda, Controller 
 
Subject: Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports as of January 31, 2018** 
 
**All information is preliminary and unaudited. 
 
 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-UNAUDITED 

 
1. GENERAL OPERATING FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME 

 
a. Total Annual Revenues equal $3.6 million and are $1.3 million or 55.3% higher than budget 

due primarily to higher closing fees. Closing fees year-to-date of $2.7 million are $1.1 million or 
62.8% higher than budget. Annual fees of $172 thousand are $5 thousand higher than the 
budgeted amount. Administrative service fees of $111 thousand are $82 thousand higher than 
budget.  Application fees total $20 thousand and are $1 thousand lower than the budgeted 
amount. Total accrued interest income from loans in connection with the former Illinois Rural 
Bond Bank local government borrowers and other loans totaled $354 thousand (which has 
represented a declining asset since 2014).  Net investment income position is at $155 thousand for 
the fiscal year and is $81 thousand higher than budget.   

 
b. In January the Authority generated $215 thousand in closing fees, lower than the monthly 

budgeted amount of $241 thousand.  Closing fees were received from:  Ann & Robert Lurie 
Children's Hospital of Chicago for $211 thousand and one Beginning Farmer bond for $4 
thousand.  
 

c. Total Annual Expenses of $1.8 million were $478 thousand or 20.8% lower than budget, which 
was mostly driven by below budget spending on professional services and employee related 
expenses. Year-to-date, employee and professional services expenses total $1.5 million; with each 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 138

http://www.il-fa.com/


 
 

2 
 

function at 24.1% and 26.0% under budget, respectively. Annual occupancy costs of $95 
thousand are 6.5% lower than budget, while general and administrative costs are $232 thousand 
for the year, which is 15.3% higher than budget.  Total depreciation cost of $9 thousand is 64.0% 
below budget.  Total cash transfers in from the Primary Government Borrowing Fund (setup to 
track financial activity on behalf of the State of Illinois) to the General Operating Fund are $58 
thousand.  
 

d. In January, the Authority recorded operating expenses of $350 thousand, which was higher than 
the monthly budgeted amount of $309 thousand.   
 

e. Total Monthly Net Loss of $23 thousand was driven by lower than expected closing fees.    
 

f. Total Annual Net Income is $1.8 million.  The major driver of the annual positive bottom line 
continues to be the level of overall spending at 20.8% below budget, as well as higher than 
expected closing fees.  
 

2. ALL FUNDS-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 
The Authority, as of January 31, 2018, is a $124.8 million dollar agency, but the Authority also 
accounts for activity in the Other State of Illinois Debt Fund.  Total Assets in the Other State of 
Illinois Debt Fund are $1.3 billion. The Authority maintains compliance for nearly $25.0 billion in 
outstanding debt. 

 
 
3. GENERAL OPERATING FUND-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

In the General Fund, the Authority continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with total net 
position of $58.5 million. The total assets in the General Fund are $58.9 million (consisting mostly of 
cash, investments, and receivables). Unrestricted cash and investments total $43.6 million (with $6.2 
million in cash). Notes receivables from the former Illinois Rural Bond Bank local governments total 
$12.0 million. Participation loans, DACA (pilot medical student loans in exchange for service in 
medical underserved areas in Illinois) and other loans receivables are at $2.3 million.  
 
 

4. YEAR TO DATE ACTIVITY FOR ALL OTHER FUNDS 
a. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the “Other State of Illinois Debt Fund” 

is comprised of bond activity for the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”), the 
Illinois Medical District Commission (“IMDC”) and Northern Illinois University Foundation 
(“NIUF”).  The majority of the activity in this fund derives from the Clean Water Initiative 
(“CWI”) bonds issued for IEPA. Total assets in this fund total $1.3 billion, of which CWI Bonds 
total $1.1 billion.  The Series 2016 CWI Bonds closed on September 12, 2016 in the amount of 
$500 million and the Series 2017 CWI Bonds closed on September 12, 2017 in the amount of 
$560 million.  Restricted investments total $482.6million with accrued investment income at 
$514 thousand.  
   

b. The Locally Held Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving Loan Funds have total year-to-date 
receipts of $247 thousand.  Year-to-date loan repayments under the Fire Truck and Ambulance 
Revolving Loan Funds are $1.9 million and $296 thousand, respectively.  The Net Position for 
Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving Loan Funds on the Authority’s balance sheet is $23.3 
million and $4.2 million, respectively.  

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 139



 
 

3 
 

The Illinois Agricultural Loan Guarantee Fund and the Illinois Farmer Agribusiness Loan 
Guarantee Fund include restricted assets held by the State Treasurer to make payouts of losses in 
relation to the Authority’s agricultural loan guarantee programs.  As of January 31, 2018, the 
Agricultural Loan Guarantee Fund had a Restricted Net Position of $10.2 million and the 
Agribusiness Fund had a Restricted Net Position of $8.0 million, with no loss reserves in either 
fund.  However, the Industrial Revenue Bond Insurance Fund includes restricted assets held 
locally by the Authority to make payouts of losses in relation to the Authority’s agricultural loan 
guarantee programs (please see Senate Bill 324, Public Acct 99-0509).  The Restricted Net 
Position for the Industrial Revenue Bond Insurance Fund was $11.5 million as of January 31, 
2018. 

 
c. All other nonmajor funds recorded total year-to-date revenues of $227 thousand. Year-to-date 

expenses total $9 thousand as of January 31, 2018.  Total Net Position in the remaining non-
major funds is $38.1 million.  

 
d. The Metro East Police District Commission is reported as an agency/fiduciary fund, which has 

total assets of $6 thousand in the custody of the Authority. The Illinois Finance Authority NFP 
Development Fund has a total net position of $12 thousand.  

 
 
5. AUTHORITY AUDITS AND REGULATORY UPDATES  

The Fiscal Year 2017 two-year Compliance Audit Examination is in its final stages.  On February 
7, 2018 the Authority had a pre-exit conference meeting to discuss the findings.  Currently we 
have fifteen findings.  In the coming weeks additional information will be provided to the Board 
on the findings. The Fiscal Year 2017 Internal Audit is ongoing.   
 

6. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
The Fiscal Year Comparison of Bonds Issued, the Fiscal Year 2018 Bonds Issued, Schedule of 
Debt and the State of Illinois Receivables Summary being presented as supplementary financial 
information in your manila folder.  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ Ximena Granda 
Controller 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 140



1 of 4

 JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUNE 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

BUDGET 

  
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
($) 

 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
(%)

Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 136,265$       226,532$       486,374$     19,345$     376,290$    1,279,665$   215,338$    2,739,809$  1,683,442$ 1,056,367$   62.8%
Annual Fees 21,005           23,599           20,265         22,158        25,018        26,081          34,256        172,382       167,060       5,322             3.2%
Administrative Service Fees -                     10,500           20,000         33,500        500             40,500          6,000          111,000       29,167         81,833          280.6%
Application Fees 100                4,100             3,000           2,300          3,000          6,100            1,100          19,700         21,000         (1,300)           -6.2%
Miscellaneous Fees 104                -                     10,336         338             14,750        -                    108             25,636         267              25,369          9495.5%
Interest Income-Loans 50,587           49,369           52,190         50,787        50,356        50,244          50,240        353,773       366,176       (12,403)         -3.4%
Other Revenue 164                163                162              57,382        161             160               160             58,352         97                58,255          59799.4%
Total Operating Revenue: 208,225$       314,263$       592,327$     185,810$   470,075$    1,402,750$   307,202$    -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          3,480,652$  2,267,209$ 1,213,443$   53.5%

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 133,489$       139,259$       131,705$     131,125$   128,774$    124,356$      181,610$    970,318$     1,278,592$ (308,274)$     -24.1%
Professional Services 75,916           38,669           50,322         114,233     46,325        68,966          113,925      508,356       686,581       (178,225)       -26.0%
Occupancy Costs 14,324           12,110           13,155         13,506        12,721        12,505          16,610        94,931         101,500       (6,569)           -6.5%
General & Administrative 28,531           28,689           33,165         30,977        35,469        38,158          36,598        231,587       200,893       30,694          15.3%
Depreciation and Amortization 1,177             1,177             1,177           1,148          1,843          1,047            1,047          8,616           23,919         (15,303)         -64.0%
Total Operating Expense 253,437$       219,904$       229,524$     290,989$   225,132$    245,032$      349,790$    -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          1,813,808$  2,291,485$ (477,677)$     -20.8%

Operating Income(Loss) (45,212)$        94,359$         362,803$     (105,179)$  244,943$    1,157,718$   (42,588)$     -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          1,666,844$  (24,276)$     1,691,120$   6966.2%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Miscellaneous Non-Opertg Rev/(Exp) -$               -$               -$             -$           -$            -$              -$            -$            -$               -$           -$             -$             -$             -$              #DIV/0!
Bad Debt Adjustments (Expense) -                     -                   1,169           (1,169)           -100.0%
Interest and Investment Income* 34,141           51,568           39,087         42,092        39,346        43,482          45,731        295,447       145,833       149,614        102.6%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Invests (3,209)            (5,094)            (2,750)          7                 31               (1,469)           (3,131)         (15,615)        (14,581)       (1,034)           7.1%
Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Invests 11,539           9,008             (35,070)        (25,750)      (48,369)       (13,632)         (22,568)       (124,842)      (58,333)       (66,509)         114.0%
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp) 42,471$         55,482$         1,267$         16,349$     (8,992)$       28,381$        20,032$      -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          154,990$     74,088$       80,902$        109.2%

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers (2,741)$          149,841$       364,070$     (88,830)$    235,951$    1,186,099$   (22,556)$     -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          1,821,834$  49,812$       1,772,022$   3557.4%

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds 58,296$         -$               -$              58,296$       -$             58,296          0.0%
Transfers out to other funds (58,296)          -                     (58,296)        -                   (58,296)         0.0%
Total Transfers In (Out) -$               -$               -$             -$           -$            -$              -$            -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          -$             -$             -$              0.0%

Net Income (Loss) (2,741)$          149,841$       364,070$     (88,830)$    235,951$    1,186,099$   (22,556)$     -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          1,821,834$  49,812$       1,772,022$   3557.4%

** Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Investments is not not available as of August 2, 2017
*Interest and Investment income for the month of July are estimates

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

GENERAL OPERATING FUND

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 AS OF JANUARY 31, 2018

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 141



2 of 4

FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL AGENCY

FUND* FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 2,739,809$           -$                       -$                        -$                 2,739,809$        -$                          2,739,809$        -$                 
Annual Fees 172,382                -                             -                              -                       172,382             -                                172,382             -                       
Administrative Service Fees 111,000                -                             -                              -                       111,000             -                                111,000             -                       
Application Fees 19,700                  -                             -                              -                       19,700               -                                19,700               -                       
Miscellaneous Fees 25,636                  246,531                 -                              107                  272,274             -                                272,274             -                       
Interest Income-Loans 353,773                16,147                   1,860                      7,201               378,981             9,657,176                 10,036,157        -                       
Other Revenue 58,352                  -                             -                              -                       58,352               -                                58,352               -                       
Total Operating Revenue: 3,480,652$           262,678$               1,860$                    7,308$             3,752,498$        9,657,176$               13,409,674$      -$                 

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 970,318$              -$                       -$                        970,318$           -$                          970,318$           -$                 
Professional Services 508,356                1,668                     1,643                      7,853               519,520             -                                519,520             -                       
Occupancy Costs 94,931                  -                             -                              -                       94,931               -                                94,931               -                       
General & Administrative 231,587                -                             -                              39                    231,626             -                                231,626             -                       
Interest Expense -                            -                             -                              1,197               1,197                 12,771,442               12,772,639        -                       
Depreciation and Amortization 8,616                    -                             -                              -                       8,616                 -                                8,616                 -                       
Total Operating Expense 1,813,808$           1,668$                   1,643$                    9,089$             1,826,208$        12,771,442$             14,597,650$      -$                 

Operating Income(Loss) 1,666,844$           261,010$               217$                       (1,781)$            1,926,290$        (3,114,266)$              (1,187,976)$       -$                 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous non-opertg rev/(exp) -$                      -$                       -$                        -$                   -$                          -$                   -$                 
Transfer of funds and program interest from the State of Illin -                            -                             -                              -                       -                         -                                -                         -                       
Interest and invesment income* 295,447                23,972                   17,839                    262,860           600,118             2,263,350                 2,863,468          6                      
Realized Gain (Loss) on sale of investment (15,615)                 (1,102)                    (3,438)                     (244)                 (20,399)              (554,858)                   (575,257)            -                       
Net Appreciation (Depr) in fair value of investments** (124,842)               3,134                     3,031                      (42,520)            (161,197)            1,405,774                 1,244,577          -                       
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 154,990$              26,004$                 17,432$                  220,096$         418,522$           3,114,266$               3,532,788$        6$                    

-                       
Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers 1,821,834$           287,014$               17,649$                  218,315$         2,344,812$        -$                          2,344,812$        6$                    

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds 58,296$                -$                       -$                        -$                 58,296$             -$                          58,296$             -$                 
Transfers out to other funds (58,296)                 -                             -                              -                       (58,296)              -                                (58,296)              -                       
Total Transfers In (Out) -$                      -$                       -$                        -$                 -$                   -$                          -$                   -$                 

Net Income (Loss) 1,821,834$           287,014$               17,649$                  218,315$         2,344,812$        -$                          2,344,812$        6$                    
*Interest and Investment income for the month of July are estimates
** Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Investments is not not available as of August 2, 2017

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 AS OF JANUARY 31, 2018

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 142



3 of 4

LOCALLY HELD LOCALLY HELD
FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL METRO EAST

GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL POLICE DISTRICT
FUND FUND FUND 1,279,665             FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS COMMISSION

Assets and Deferred Outflows:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted:
Cash & cash equivalents 6,170,237$           -$                           -$                      40,525$                6,210,762$            6,210,762$            -$                        
Investments 26,478,267           -                                 -                            3,598,488             30,076,755            30,076,755            -                              
Accounts receivable, Net 188,637                -                                 -                            -                            188,637                 188,637                 -                              
Loans receivables, Net 3,954                    -                                 -                            -                            3,954                     3,954                     -                              
Accrued interest receivable 640,176                -                                 -                            14,272                  654,448                 654,448                 -                              
Bonds and notes receivable 1,574,100             -                                 -                            -                            1,574,100              1,574,100              -                              
Due from other funds 11,549                  -                                 -                            11,549                   11,549                   -                              
Prepaid Expenses 139,712                -                                 -                            139,712                 139,712                 -                              
Total Current Unrestricted Assets 35,206,632$         -$                           -$                      3,653,285$           38,859,917$          -$                           38,859,917$          -$                        

Restricted:
Cash & Cash Equivalents -$                      1,068,567$                871,610$              1,940,506$           3,880,683$            87,701,998$              91,582,681$          6,195$                    
Investments -                            1,759,311                  1,699,944             11,271,181           14,730,436            479,278,745              494,009,181          -                              
Accrued interest receivable -                            16,870                       6,179                    6,663                    29,712                   513,396                     543,108                 -                              
Due from other funds -                            -                            49,335                  49,335                   49,335                   -                              
Due from primary government -                            -                                 -                            -                             -                             -                              
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units -                            -                            -                             -                             -                              
Loans receivables, Net -                            -                            -                             -                                 -                             -                              
Total Current Restricted Assets -$                      2,844,748$                2,577,733$           13,267,685$         18,690,166$          567,494,139$            586,184,305$        6,195$                    
Total Current Assets 35,206,632$         2,844,748$                2,577,733$           16,920,970$         57,550,083$          567,494,139$            625,044,222$        6,195$                    
Non-current Assets:
Unrestricted: -                            
Investments 10,944,348$         -$                           -$                      686,888$              11,631,236$          11,631,236$          -$                        
Loans receivables, Net 2,261,333             -                                 -                            -                            2,261,333              2,261,333              -                              
Bonds and notes receivable 10,465,037           -                                 -                            -                            10,465,037            10,465,037            -                              
Total Noncurrent Unrestricted Assets 23,670,718$         -$                           -$                      686,888$              24,357,606$          -$                           24,357,606$          -$                        

Restricted:
Cash & Cash Equivalents -$                      -$                           -$                      -$                      -$                       -$                       -$                        
Investments -                            -                                 -                            2,314,384             2,314,384              3,337,846                  5,652,230              -                              
Funds in the custody of the Treasurer -                            2,401,503                  296,913                18,209,922           20,908,338            20,908,338            -                              
Accrued interest receivable -                            -                             -                             
Loans receivables, Net -                            18,094,427                1,378,640             130,663                19,603,730            19,603,730            -                              
Bonds and notes receivable from primary government -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             712,272,467              712,272,467          -                              
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             9,203,284                  9,203,284              -                              
Total Noncurrent Restricted Assets -$                      20,495,930$              1,675,553$           20,654,969$         42,826,452$          724,813,597$            767,640,049$        -$                        

Capital Assets
Capital Assets 841,130$              -$                           -$                      -$                      841,130$               -$                           841,130$               -$                        
Accumulated Depreciation (791,234)               -                                 -                            -                            (791,234)                -                                 (791,234)                -                              
Total Capital Assets 49,896$                -$                           -$                      -$                      49,896$                 -$                           49,896$                 -$                        

Total Noncurrent Assets 23,720,614$         20,495,930$              1,675,553$           21,341,857$         67,233,954$          724,813,597$            792,047,551$        -$                        

Total Assets 58,927,246$         23,340,678$              4,253,286$           38,262,827$         124,784,037$        1,292,307,736$         1,417,091,773$     6,195$                    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred loss on debt refunding -$                      -$                           -$                      -$                      -$                       337,221$                   337,221$               -$                        
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES -$                      -$                           -$                      -$                      -$                       337,221$                   337,221$               -$                        

Total Assets & Deferred Inflows of Resources 58,927,246$         23,340,678$              4,253,286$           38,262,827$         124,784,037$        1,292,644,957$         1,417,428,994$     6,195$                    

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY
January 31, 2018

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 143



4 of 4

LOCALLY HELD LOCALLY HELD
FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER SUBTOTAL OTHER TOTAL METRO EAST

GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR IFA STATE OF IL DEBT ALL POLICE DISTRICT
FUND FUND FUND 1,279,665             FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS COMMISSION

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY
January 31, 2018

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payable from unrestricted current assets:
Accounts payable 65,161$                -$                           -$                      -$                      65,161$                 -$                           65,161$                 -$                        
Accrued liabilities 84,045                  -                                 -                            -                            84,045                   -                                 84,045                   -                              
Due to employees 95,721                  -                                 -                            -                            95,721                   -                                 95,721                   -                              
Due to primary government 50,001                  -                                 -                            -                            50,001                   -                                 50,001                   -                              
Due to other funds 11,341                  -                                 -                            -                            11,341                   -                                 11,341                   -                              
Other liabilities -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             -                                 -                             6,189                      
Unearned revenue, net of accumulated amortization 167,791                -                                 -                            -                            167,791                 -                                 167,791                 
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Current Assets 474,060$              -$                           -$                      -$                      474,060$               -$                           474,060$               6,189$                    

Payable from restricted current assets:
Accounts payable -                            -                                 -                            -                             -                                 -                             -                              
Obligation under securites lending of the State Treasurer -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             -                                 -                             -                              
Accrued interest payable -$                      -$                           -$                      208$                     208$                      4,712,123$                4,712,331$            -$                        
Due to other funds -                            -                                 -                            363                       363                        363                        -                              
Due to primary government -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             -                             -                              
Bonds and notes payable from primary government -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             3,695,901                  3,695,901              -                              
Bonds and notes payable from State component units -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             513,809                     513,809                 -                              
Current portion of long term debt -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             424,402                     424,402                 -                              
Other liabilities -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             -                                 -                             -                              
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Current Assets -$                      -$                           -$                      571$                     571$                      9,346,235$                9,346,806$            -$                        
Total Current Liabilties 474,060$              -$                           -$                      571$                     474,631$               9,346,235$                9,820,866$            6,189$                    

Noncurrent Liabilities
Payable from unrestricted noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent payables 585$                     -$                           -$                      -$                      585$                      -$                           585$                      -$                               
Assets 585$                     -$                           -$                      -$                      585$                      -$                           585$                      -$                        

Payable from restricted noncurrent assets:
Bonds and notes payable from primary government -$                      -$                           -$                      -$                      -$                       1,268,700,043$         1,268,700,043$     -$                        
Bonds and notes payable from State component units -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             14,598,679                14,598,679            -                              
Noncurrent portion of long term debt -                            -                                 -                            187,322                187,322                 187,322                 -                              
Noncurrent loan reserve -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             -                             -                              
Total Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Noncurrent -$                      -$                           -$                      187,322$              187,322$               1,283,298,722$         1,283,486,044$     -$                        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 585$                     -$                           -$                      187,322$              187,907$               1,283,298,722$         1,283,486,629$     -$                        
Total Liabilities 474,645$              -$                           -$                      187,893$              662,538$               1,292,644,957$         1,293,307,495$     6,189$                    

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 49,896$                -$                           -$                      -$                      49,896$                 -$                           49,896$                 -$                        
Restricted for Locally Held Agricultural Guarantees -                            -                                 -                            11,481,603           11,481,603            -                                 11,481,603            -                              
Restricted for Public Safety Loans -                            23,053,665                4,235,636             -                            27,289,301            -                                 27,289,301            -                              
Restricted for Agricultural Guarantees and Rural Development Loans -                            -                                 -                            19,777,512           19,777,512            -                                 19,777,512            -                              
Restricted for Renewable Energy Development -                            -                                 -                            2,261,518             2,261,518              -                                 2,261,518              -                              
Restricted for Credit Enhancement -                            -                                 -                            -                            -                             -                                 -                             -                              
Restricted for Low Income Community Investments -                            -                                 -                            12,653                  12,653                   -                                 12,653                   -                              
Unrestricted 56,580,871           -                                 -                            4,323,334             60,904,205            -                                 60,904,205            -                              
Current Change in Net Position 1,821,834             287,013                     17,650                  218,314                2,344,811              -                                 2,344,811              6                             
Total Net Position 58,452,601$         23,340,678$              4,253,286$           38,074,934$         124,121,499$        -$                           124,121,499$        6$                           

Total Liabilities & Net Position 58,927,246$         23,340,678$              4,253,286$           38,262,827$         124,784,037$        -$                           1,417,428,994$     6,195$                    

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 144



 
 

 

     
 

STATE of ILLINOIS 
DETAILED RECEIVABLES SUMMARY (UNAUDITED) 

AS OF February 7, 2017 
 

As of November 1, 2015 the Illinois Finance Authority has purchased the following receivables on behalf of the State of 
Illinois, pursuant to Resolutions 2015-1112-AD11 and 2016-0211-AD07: 
 

Vendor Payment dates Amount  
 Cosgrove Distributors Inc.   12/21/2015 $9,225.92  
 

 
Payment received by IFA ($9,225.92) 

 
 Balance due from Cosgrove Distributors $0.00  

       
 Grayboy Building Maintenance 12/16/2015 $15,790.36  
 

 
Payment received by IFA ($15,790.36) 

 
 Balance due from Grayboy Building Maint. $0.00  

       
 M. J. Kellner Co. Inc. 12/28/2015 $1,806,912.20  
 M. J. Kellner Co. Inc. 3/31/2016 1,929,224.10 
 

 Payment received by IFA ($3,732,458.28) 
   Balance due from M.J. Kellner $3,678.02  
 

    Smith Maintenance Company 11/25/2015 $251,665.26 
 Smith Maintenance Company 12/29/2015 125,832.63 
 Smith Maintenance Company 2/10/2016 129,811.11 
 Smith Maintenance Company 3/21/2016 151,826.83 
 Smith Maintenance Company 4/14/2016 151,826.83 
 Smith Maintenance Company 5/19/2016 151,826.83 
 Smith Maintenance Company 6/23/2016 107,795.38 
 Smith Maintenance Company 7/21/2016 107,795.38 
    $1,178,380.25 
  Payment received by IFA (1,178,380.25)  

 
Balance due from Smith Maintenance $0.00 

     
Sysco St. Louis LLC 12/16/2015 $32,418.85  

 
 

Total  State of Illinois Assigned/Purchased 
Receivables $4,971,951.65   

 

Total  State of Illinois Assigned/Purchased 
Receivables Payment Received $4,935,854.78  

 
 
 

 

Balance due from State of Illinois 
Assigned/Purchased Receivables $36,096.87    

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 145



Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing

3,779,532,495$           

4,142,695,438$        

$2,874,987,225

Principal Issued

Principal Issued

5
7 Healthcare - Hospital

1 Local Government

1 Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 20,200,000

1 Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 59,980,000
560,025,000

31

Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 1,128,225

Healthcare - CCRC 388,700,000

6 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 296,974,000

4 Education 239,050,000

Bond Issuance Analysis

The Authority issued $223,550,000 in conduit debt during the month of January, 2018. This is 91% higher than 
January, 2017 at $20,000,000. Total issuance for FY 2018 is $2,874,987,225. This is 6% lower than the same 
period for FY 2017 at $3,047,277,400. The IFA has issued 25 conduit bonds and six beginner farmer bonds in 

 FY 2018. 

1 Local Government 500,000,000

58

Fiscal Year 2018

1,308,930,000

# Market Sector

6

7 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 221,407,000
2 Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 28,951,409
2 65,365,000

7 Healthcare - CCRC 310,364,967
1 Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 9,969,162

1 Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 130,000,000
12 Healthcare - Hospital 2,568,650,000

18 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 3,765,900
7 Education 304,222,000

54

Fiscal Year 2017

# Market Sector

9 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 717,050,000
1 Local Government 14,540,000

13 Healthcare - Hospital 1,869,903,000
6 Healthcare - CCRC 381,762,000

10 Education 692,515,000
1 Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 100,000,000

Bonds Issued - Fiscal Year Comparison
for the Period Ending January 31, 2018

Fiscal Year 2016

# Market Sector

14 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 3,762,495

Principal Issued

A-BFB 0.1%
E-PC 18.3%
FTFRB 2.6%
HO 49.5%
CCRC 10.1%
501(c)(3) 19.0%
LG 0.4%
Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2016

A-BFB 0.0%
E-PC 8.3%
HO 45.5%
CCRC 13.5%
MWDAB 0.7%
501(c)(3) 10.3%
MH 2.1%
LG 19.5%
Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2018

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 146



Bonds Issued between July 01, 2017 and January 31, 2018

Initial Interest 
Rate

Bonds Issued and Outstanding
 as of 

January 31, 2018

Bonds 
RefundedBond Issue Date Issued Principal Issued

A-BFB Beginner Farmer Bond 07/01/2017 Variable 1,128,225 0

501(c)(3) YMCA of Rock River Valley 07/25/2017 Variable 9,500,000 5,234,000

CCRC Three Crown Park 07/25/2017 Variable 34,210,000 34,210,000

501(c)(3) Chicagoland Laborers Training and Apprentice Fund 08/10/2017 Fixed at Schedule 12,950,000 0

E-PC Rosalind Franklin University 08/23/2017 Fixed at Schedule 112,390,000 62,390,000

E-PC Bradley University 09/01/2017 Variable 50,000,000 50,000,000

HO Southern Illinois Healthcare Enterprises 09/12/2017 Variable 66,845,000 0

CCRC Tabor Hills Supportive Living Community 09/19/2017 Variable 16,000,000 16,000,000

LG Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund 09/12/2017 Fixed at Schedule 560,025,000 0

E-PC Bradley University 09/01/2017 Fixed at Schedule 39,500,000 0

HO UnityPoint Health 10/20/2017 Fixed at Schedule 19,500,000 12,000,000

HO Blessing Hospital 11/17/2017 Variable 15,955,000 0

CCRC Greenfields of Geneva 11/17/2017 Fixed at Schedule 65,000,000 65,000,000

HOUS Better Housing Foundation (Windy City Portfolio Project) 11/21/2017 Fixed at Schedule 59,980,000 0

501(c)(3) Chicago Charter School Foundation 11/30/2017 Variable 51,310,000 0

HO OSF Healthcare System 12/20/2017 Variable 235,000,000 49,000,000

501(c)(3) Cantigny Foundation 12/27/2017 Variable 58,000,000 0

501(c)(3) The Lincoln Park Zoological Society 12/27/2017 Variable 70,354,000 70,000,000

E-PC Elmhurst College 12/27/2017 Variable 37,160,000 37,000,000

501(c)(3) CHF- Chicago, LLC (University of Illinois at Chicago) 12/19/2017 Fixed at Schedule 94,860,000 0

HO Northwestern Memorial HealthCare 12/19/2017 Fixed at Schedule 706,900,000 593,500,000

CCRC Friendship Village of Schaumburg 12/28/2017 Fixed at Schedule 122,550,000 108,371,437
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 147



HO Ingalls Memorial Hospital 12/29/2017 Variable 41,180,000 41,180,000

MWDAB Kone Center Project 12/29/2017 Variable 20,200,000 20,200,000

CCRC The Admiral at the Lake 12/29/2017 Fixed at Schedule 150,940,000 147,612,110

HO Ann & Robert Lurie Children's Hospital of Chicago 01/18/2018 Fixed at Schedule 223,550,000 223,550,000

Total Bonds Issued as of January 31, 2018 2,874,987,225$  1,535,247,547$    

Legend: Fixed Rate Bonds as shown
DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond
      VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Variable Rate Bond that does not include the cost of the LOC arrangement.                        
        

Beginner Farmer Bonds Funded between July 01, 2017 and January 31, 2018

Initial 
Interest 

RateBorrower Date Funded Loan Proceeds Acres County

Kevin Timothy Thole 07/06/2017 3.50 70,000 40.00 Montgomery
Matthew& Jana Roark 10/02/2017 3.5 129,675 95.58 Lawrence
Levi B. & Megan N. Yager 12/15/2017 3.25 193,800 40.00 Jasper
Jason Hayes 12/15/2017 3.85 502,250 60.00 Logan
Ethan Keller 12/21/2017 3.90 107,500 42.00 Jasper

Total Beginner Farmer Bonds Issued 1,128,225$    357.58

Maria Kern 12/27/2017 3.625 125,000 80.00 Montgomery

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 148



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Finance Authority  "IFA" [ b ]

Agriculture 4
Education 5
Healthcare 6
Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwest Disaster] 11
Local Government 17
Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 18

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 19
Exempt Facilities Bonds 20

1          Total IFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA" [ b ]

Education 25
Healthcare 26
Industrial Development 27
Local Government 31
Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 32
501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 33
Exempt Facilities Bonds 34

Total IDFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB" [ b ]

50

Total IRBB Principal Outstanding

Illinois Health Facilities Authority "IHFA" 45
Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA" 43

Illinois Farm Development Authority "IFDA" [ f ] 48

General Purpose Moral Obligations

* Issued through IRBB - Local Government Pools 50
*Issued through IFA - Local Government Pools 12
Issued through IFA - Illinois Medical District Commission 15

Total General Moral Obligations

* All the Local Government bonds were defeased as of August 1, 2014.

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligations

Issued through IFA 14
Issued through IDFA 30

Total Financially Distressed Cities

State Component Unit Bonds [ c ]

Issued through IDFA [ i ] 29

Issued through IFA [ i ] 13

Total State Component Unit Bonds

Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds [Flood Relief] 10

Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds**
Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds** 9

Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds***

** Programs expired as of 12/31/2010. There have been no new issues subsequent to the expiration date of these Federal programs.

***
The IFA manages the QECB allocation for the entire State of Illinois. All QECB's to date have been issued by local governments or state universities. The QECB program 

currently has no set expiration date under Federal law.  IFA's remaining QECB allocation of $4,755,783 has been reserved for use by state universities.

666,972,000$                 16,940,000$                  12,900,000$           
1,000,457,000$              204,058,967$                214,849,804$         N/A

133,846,000$                 (17,865,000)$                 82,795,000$           
IFA Cap:  $4,755,783
Cities/Counties Cap:  

$46,295,717 

N/A

63,634,933$                  63,099,457$                 N/A 41,530,000$                        

 Designated by the Governor of the State of Illinois to manage and coordinate the re-allocation of Federal ARRA Volume Cap and the issuance of Recovery Zone 
Bonds in the State of Illinois to fully utilize RZBs before December 31, 2010. 

Section I (d) ARRA Act of 2009 Volume 

Cap Allocated [ h ]
 City/Counties Ceded 
Voluntarily to/(by) IFA 

Bonds issued as of 
December 31, 2014

Remaining ARRA Volume Cap for 
each Program as of December 31, 

2014

1,095,583,966$             

Section I (c) Principal Outstanding  Remaining MDAB 
Volume Cap  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

14,050,000$                   13,415,000$                  150,000,000$         136,585,000$                       

Designated exclusive Issuer by the Governor of the State of Illinois to issue Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds in Illinois. This Federal program expired as of December 31, 2012.

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]

-$                                -$                               
-                                  -                                 

-$                                -$                               50,000,000$           50,000,000$                         

-                                  -                                 
599,372,488                   1,095,583,966               

599,372,488$                 

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]

14,050,000                     13,415,000                    

2,882,834,675$                    

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]

Section I (b) Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017

28,150,000,000$    

294,285,000$                 197,755,000$                
490,472,000$                 402,698,000$                

January 31, 2018

13,436,353$                   11,158,212$                  

Total Illinois Finance Authority Debt 25,114,854,025$            25,267,165,325$           

1,069,175,454$              

-$                                -$                               

173,585,744                  
222,207,364                   173,166,782                  

271,969,576                  
1,665,996,057$              1,773,576,908               

149,915,000$                 203,500,000                  

73,600,000                     73,600,000                    
171,430,244                   

939,189,831$                

Conduit debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)] which does not constitute an indebtedness or an obligation, either general or moral, or a pledge of the full faith or 
a loan of the Authority, the State of Illinois or any Political Subdivision of the State within the purview of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provisions with special limited obligations of the 
Authority secured under provisions of the individual Bond Indentures and Loan Agreements with the exception of the bonds identified below in Section I (b) -- General Purpose Moral Obligation/State 
Component Parts -- which are subject to the $28.15B cap in Section 845-5(a).

Section I (a) Principal Outstanding    #  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity 

51,839,174$                   48,400,851$                  
4,345,951,386$              4,326,566,797               

153,127,575$                 

23,247,485,218$            

82,249,117                     81,806,874                    
519,192,342                   437,030,430                  

June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

15,265,699,341$            

1,235,655,000               

23,716,364,283$             

496,388                          

14,998,359,732             
889,671,685$                 858,335,419                  
725,285,000$                 

ref:  C:\Users\bfletcher\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9UGRY0F4\03- Schedule of Debt 01312018.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2018
2/7/2018  5:16 PM        Page 1

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 149



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Power Agency

Agri Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt]
Fund # 994 - Fund Balance $10,206,209 72

AG Loan Guarantee Program
Fund # 205 - Fund Balance  $8,003,713 [ e ]

Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program 64 75
Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 67 78
Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 63 74
Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 66 77

Total State Guarantees

155 Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program      Fund # 572 117 113

22 Ambulance Revolving Loan Program        Fund # 334 116 112

Environmental [Large Business]
Issued through IFA 22
Issued through IDFA 37

Total Environmental [Large Business]

Environmental [Small Business]

Participation Loans
Business & Industry 86  
Agriculture 98  

Participation Loans excluding Defaults & Allowances 99  

##
##

Local Government Direct Loans ##

Rural Bond Bank Local Government Note Receivable 
FmHA Loans ##
Renewable Energy [RED Fund] ##

Total Loans Outstanding

[ a ] Total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.
[ b ] State Component Unit Bonds included in balance.
[ c ] Does not include Unamortized issuance premium as reported in Audited Financials.
[ d ] Program Limitation reflects the increase to $3 billion effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ e ] Program Limitation reflects the increase from $75 million to $225 million effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ f ] Beginner Farmer Bonds are currently updated annually; new bonds will be added under the Illinois Finance Authority when the bond closes.

[ g ]

[ h ]

[ i ] Includes EPA Clean Water Revolving Fund

* Balances as of August 31, 2017 are estimated and subject to change.

111,980,000$                 111,150,000$                2,425,000,000$      

14,475,000$                   

Total Environment Bonds Issued under Act 111,980,000$                 111,150,000$                2,500,000,000$      2,388,850,000$                    

Section VI Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

Note:  Due to deposits in transit, the Fund Balance at the IOC may differ from the IFA General Ledger. In May, 2014 the OSF transferred the Fund Balance to a Locally Held Fund by the IFA.

20,057,851$    

2,313,850,000$                    

-$                                -$                               75,000,000$           75,000,000$                         

Higher Education Loan Act (110 ILCS 945 or “HELA”)

Recovery Zone Facility Revenue Bonds - Federal government allocated volume cap directly to all 102 Illinois counties and 8 municipalities with population of 100,000 or more. [Public Act 96-1020]

963,250                  163,518                                                   147,030 
2,000,000               1,107,838                       

1,289,750               627,638                          501,477                         

-                                 

12,039,137                    12,069,137                     

IRBB funds were defeased and transferred into a note receivable with the IFA.

Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds - Illinois Counties eligible for Midwest Disaster Bonds included Adams, Calhoun, Clark, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Hancock, Henderson, Jasper, Jersey, 
Lake, Lawrence, Mercer, Rock Island, Whiteside and Winnebago.

Section VIII Principal Outstanding

15,000,000$                   15,000,000$                           200,000,000$         [ d ] 185,000,000$                       

29,100,017             99,724                            93,745                           

Plus:  Legacy IDFA Loans in Default 936,358                          3,170                             

34,353,017             14,065,860                     12,779,394                    

Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 938,353                          5,165                             
Total Participation Loans 97,729                            91,750                           

6,079,859               

Illinois Finance Authority Funds at Risk

Section VII
 Original Amount 

Principal Outstanding
June 30, 2017

23,020,158             99,724                            

January 31, 2018

13,645,000$                  
97,505,000                     97,505,000                    

93,745                           

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 825-80 and 825-85 

Section V Principal Outstanding  Cash and Investment
 Balance  June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

Issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]

2,868,467$             
18,094,427$          5,229,381$             

1,672,960$      1,378,640$            

1,251,934        1,163,120                   988,652                        
578,360           565,907                      481,021                        

8,663,388$      7,628,663$                 385,000,000$   377,371,337$   6,484,363$                   

-$                 
866,646           857,434                      728,819                        

5,966,448$      5,042,202$                 160,000,000$   154,957,798$   4,285,871$                   

2,696,940$      2,586,461$                 225,000,000$   222,413,539$   2,198,492$                   

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 830-25 (see also P.A.96-103); 830-30; 830-35; 830-45 and 830-50]

Section IV Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

 Remaining 
Capacity  State Exposure June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Section 825-65(f); 825-70 and 825-75] - see also P.A. 96-103 effective 01/01/2010

Section III Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

Clean Coal, Coal, Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency Projects -$                                -$                                       3,000,000,000$      [ d ] 3,000,000,000$                    

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(b)]

Section II Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

-$                                -$                                       4,000,000,000$      4,000,000,000$                    

 Statutory Debt 
Limitation Remaining HELA Debt LimitationJune 30, 2017 January 31, 2018

Midwestern University Foundation - Student Loan Program Revenue 
Bonds

ref:  C:\Users\bfletcher\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9UGRY0F4\03- Schedule of Debt 01312018.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2018
2/7/2018  5:16 PM        Page 2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 150



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 8, 2018 
 

1 
 

CONTRACTS/AMENDMENTS EXECUTED 
 Vendor Initial Term Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Services Provided 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Small Purchases ADP TotalSource 01/01/2018-

05/31/2018 $98,000 Contract executed. Employee Benefits and Payroll 
Services 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Exempt Baker & Hostetler LLP 01/10/2018-

01/09/2020 $250,000 Contract executed Legal services related to data 
security 

The Crypsis Group and 
Baker & Hostetler LLP (as 
IFA legal counsel) 

01/10/2018-
01/09/2019 $43,750 Contract executed. Consult with web security 

analysis and best practices 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Small Purchases Xerox 02/05/2018-

02/04/2021 $5,860 Order processed. February 
delivery of new replacement. 

Lease for color copier 

Enterprise Holdings 01/01/2018-
12/31/2018 $5,000 Basic Ordering Agreement 

executed. Car rentals 

CDW-G 01/25/2018 $2,909 PO sent. Server software 
Malelo 01/25/2018 $550 PO sent. Back up tapes 

      
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 151



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 8, 2018 
 

2 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS 
 Vendor Expiration 

Date 
Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Services Provided 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases DropBox  02/18/2018 $1,670 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. File Sharing for Board books 

First Choice Services 
renewal  02/25/2018 $800 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. Annual Water Filtration Lease 

National Tek 
Services, Inc   02/28/2018 $16,601 Bid for Symantec and separate 

bid for tape storage in process. 
Symantec Backup Services 3 
year renewal, tape storage 

National Tek 
Services, Inc.  03/25/2018 $1,750 Renew license. Trend Micro Enterprise 

Security for EndPoint 
Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

 

Acacia Financial 
Group, Inc. 03/01/2018 $225,000 RFP/Exemption. Financial Advisors 

Sycamore Advisors, 
LLC 03/01/2018 $225,000 RFP/Exemption. Financial Advisors 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

National Tek 
Services, Inc. 03/31/2018 $1,245 Renew license. MailArchiva software 

Tallgrass Systems  03/31/2018 $4,491 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Barracuda energizer updates 
and replacement 

Tallgrass Systems 
Limited  03/31/2018 $1,649 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. 
Barracuda 300A Technology 
Refresh 

United States Postal 
Service  03/31/2018 $356 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. PO Box 2016 

Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 
 

Mesirow Insurance 
Services  04/04/2018 $297,900 

Continue with State Master 
CMS4819650, expires 4/30/18, 
one 1 year renewal remaining. 

Insurance Brokering Services 

Com Microfilm 
Company, Inc. (Doc 
Image) 

04/17/2018 $75,000 State in process of RFP. 
Continue with State Master. Document Imaging 

      
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 152



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 8, 2018 
 

3 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS (cont’d) 
 Vendor Expiration 

Date 
Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Services Provided 

Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

Com Microfilm 
Company, Inc. 04/17/2018 $75,000 State in process of RFP. 

Continue with State Master. Document Imaging 

 Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 
 

National Tek 
Services, Inc.-ADM 
Manage  

04/19/2018 $1,480 
Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. Manage Engine ADMManager  

Marcor Technologies  05/06/2018 $4,500 BidBuy quote MailArchiva Support 3 years 
Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

Arbitrage Compliance 
Specialists 05/31/2018 $49,000 RFP TBD Arbitrage Liability Calculation 

Services/Bond Comp 
Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

Hewlett Packard 
Enterprise  05/31/2018 $5,627 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. Hardware Support Care Packs 

MX Save  06/12/2018 $588 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. Disaster Recovery for email 

GoDaddy  06/14/2018 $150 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

SSL Certificate for Mobile 
Device Management 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

Merlinos & 
Associates 06/15/2018 $45,040 RFP TBD Actuarial Services 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Renewal 
  

Ascent Innovations  06/23/2018 $155,128 Renewals available for $42K/yr. Accounting Software 
Maintenance and Support 

3rd Coast Imaging, 
Inc. 06/30/2018 $10,000 Renewal? Printing Services for Monthly 

Board Books 
Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

Com Microfilm 
Company, Inc.  06/30/2018 $7,230 Continue with State Master. 

State in process with RFP. 
Docuware Maintenance and 
Support 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases Novanis IT Solutions  06/30/2018 $203 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. Encryption of laptops 

Presidio Networked 
Solutions  06/30/2018 $3,292 Continue with new State 

Master. Contract in process.   
Production 
Support/Subscription VMWare 

      
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 153



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 8, 2018 
 

4 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS (cont’d) 

 Vendor Expiration 
Date 

Estimated Not 
to Exceed Value 

Action/Proposed Method of 
Procurement Services Provided 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 
 

CDW Government 
LLC (SmartNet) 

06/30/2018 $422 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

SmartNet Technical Support 

Tallgrass Systems 
SmartNet  

06/30/2018 $540 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Cisco SmartNet 

East Bank Records 
Management  

07/30/2018 $20,000 Sole economically feasible 
Purchase. 

Records Storage 

United States Postal 
Service Prepaid 
Postage  

08/08/2018 
$1,000 

Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Chicago and Mt. Vernon 
postage 

GoDaddy Web 
Hosting 

08/10/2018 $539 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Web Hosting Server 

GoDaddy 2018 SSL 
Cert 

08/23/2018 $299 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

SSL Certificate 

Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

CDW Government 
LLC Cisco switches 
and support  

09/10/2018 
$11,939 

Continue with State Master 
CMS4819650, expires 4/30/18, 
one 1 year renewal remaining. 

Cisco switches, firewall, router 
and support 

CDW Government 
LLC HPE  

09/17/2018 
$37,380 

State Master? HP Servers, disk array, tape 
drive 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

SHI International 
Corp 

10/16/2018 $4,560 BidBuy quote. Enterprise Mobility Mgmt 
System 

WellSpring Software, 
Inc. 

10/30/2018 $100 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Annual support for software 
to print checks 

      
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 154



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 8, 2018 
 

5 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS (cont’d) 
 Vendor Expiration 

Date 
Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Services Provided 

I Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

 
 

Sullivan Reporting  10/31/2018 $9,500 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

BOA for Transcription Services 

United Parcel Service  11/21/2018 $4,000 Continue with State Master Package Delivery 
Google Ad 2017-2018 12/3/2018 $4,500 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. 
IFA Ad Page 

Network Solutions 
IDFA  

12/20/2018 $39 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Renewal of www.idfa.com 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

Cleararc Capital, Inc. 
Amend Invest  

12/26/2018 $900,000 RFP? Investment Management 
Services 

Illinois Procurement Code-Sole 
economically feasible Purchase 

Bloomberg Finance 
L.P. - Anywhere 

12/30/2018 $43,200 Sole economically feasible with 
incumbent. 

Bloomberg Terminal License 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Anticipation of Litigation 

G&R Public Law & 
Strategies  

11/18/2018 $100,000 TBD Anticipation of Litigation 

Jenner & Block LLP  12/8/2018 $250,000 TBD Anticipation of Litigation 
 Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

Enterprise Car Rental  12/31/2018 $5,000 Continue with State Master. 
State in process with RFP 

Car Rental 

      
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 155



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 

From:  Lorrie Karcher and Pat Evans 
 

Date:  February 8, 2018 
 

Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 
 

 Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

 Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

 Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for the attached projects 
 

 Amount:  Up to $534,600 maximum of new money for each project 
 

 Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 
 Total Requested: $389,820 
 
 Calendar Year Summary: (as of February 1, 2018) 

– Volume Cap:  $TBD (Note:  IFA allocation request/award pending for CY 2018) 
– Volume Cap Committed:  $TBD 
– Volume Cap Remaining:   $TBD 
– Average Farm Acreage:  65 
– Number of Farms Financed:  2 

 
 IFA Benefits: 

–  Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct IFA or State funds at risk 
–  New Money Bonds:   

– IFA conveys tax-exempt, municipal bond status onto the financing  
– Will use dedicated 2018 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer Bond transactions  

 

 IFA Fees:   
 One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project  
 

 Structure/Ratings:  
 Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s bank (the 

“Bank”) 
 The Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan (typically 1st Mortgage) 
 Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Bank, just as with any 

commercial loan 
 Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured commercial loan 

 

 Bond Counsel: Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. 
Stephen F. Welcome, Esq. 

 Three First National Plaza, Suite 4300 
 Chicago, IL  60602 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 156



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2 February 8, 2018 
 Lorrie Karcher and Pat Evans 
 
A. Project Number:  30397 
Borrower(s): Bergbower, Justin Joseph 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Newton, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $86,820 
Use of Funds: Farmland –65.9 acres of farmland  
Purchase Price: $204,290 / $3,100 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 15% 
% IFA Bonds 42.5% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”) 42.5% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Fox (North) & Willow Hill 
Counties/Regions: Jasper / Southeastern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: Peoples State Bank of Newton / Brian Bohnhoff 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    15 
 State Senate:       55 
 State House:     109 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty-year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin on February 1, 2019. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid 
annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on February 1, 2019  with the thirtieth and final payment of all 
outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 

 
B. Project Number:  30398 
Borrower(s): Jaeger, Brett D. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Waggoner, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $303,000 
Use of Funds: Farmland –an undivided 60% of 100 acres of farmland including grain bins 
Purchase Price: $606,000 ($6,000 bins) / $10,000 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 5% 
% IFA Bonds 45% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”) 50% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Pitman 
Counties/Regions: Montgomery / Central 
Lender/Bond Purchase: First National Bank of Raymond / Neil Jordan 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    13 
 State Senate:       48 
 State House:     95 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty-year amortization schedule, with the 
first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof 
shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year from the date of closing with the twentieth 
and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty years from the date of closing. 

 
 
 

 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 157



 

 
  
February 8, 2018 

 CONDUIT
 
 
$25,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C (Better Housing Foundation Ernst Portfolio 
Project) 

 
REQUEST Purpose: Bonds will be issued in one or more series and bearing interest on either a tax-exempt or taxable basis.  

Bond proceeds will be used by BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (the “Borrower”), an Illinois limited 
liability company and special purpose affiliate of the Better Housing Foundation, an Ohio nonprofit corporation 
(and 501(c)(3) corporation) (“BHF” or the “Sole Member”), to: (i) pay a portion of the costs of acquisition, 
rehabilitation, and equipping of 17 multifamily affordable residential rental properties with approximately 186 
residential housing units (at addresses identified on p. 6 of this report and, collectively, the “Projects”), (ii) fund 
one or more debt service reserve funds for the benefit of the Series 2018 Bonds, and (iii) pay a portion of the costs 
of issuance relating to the Series 2018 Bonds, all as permitted by the Illinois Finance Authority Act (collectively, 
the “Financing Purposes”).  
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 
Volume Cap Not Required: This financing will not require Volume Cap due to the 501(c)(3) ownership status of 
the Sole Member of the limited liability company that will be purchasing the subject 17-property portfolio. The 
Bonds will be issued to also satisfy the low- and moderate-income tenant income requirements specified under 
Section 142(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Additionally, each of the 17 properties will be 
subject to Land Use Restriction Agreements and a Tax Regulatory Agreement that will require that the properties 
comply with applicable tenant income restrictions and limit rental rates until the later of (i) a minimum of 15 years 
following the date of closing or (ii) until the IFA Series 2018 Bonds are paid in full. Additionally, (a) a minimum 
of 75% of the units must be allocated for lease to income qualified low- and moderate income individuals and 
families earning less than 80% of the area median gross income (adjusted for family size) and (b) a minimum of 
40% of the units must be allocated for lease to income qualified individuals and households earning less than 60% 
of the area median gross income.   
Extraordinary Conditions: None. 

BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution (One-time consideration) 

MATERIAL CHANGES None. This is the first time this Project has been considered by the IFA Board of Directors. 

JOB DATA  2 Current jobs 1-2 New jobs projected  

 N/A Retained jobs N/A Construction jobs projected  

DESCRIPTION ● Project Locations: 17-property multifamily housing portfolio located in Chicago (Cook County) (Please see p. 6 
for the addresses of the 17 Project sites.)  

 ● Type of entity: BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC is an Illinois limited liability company and is a single 
purpose legal entity formed to acquire, rehab, equip and own the subject 17-property, 186-unit residential unit 
multifamily portfolio, on behalf of the Sole Member (i.e., the Better Housing Foundation).  
● Better Housing Foundation, a nonprofit organization incorporated under Ohio law and established in 2015, will 
engage (through its legal affiliates) Integrus Realty Group LLC (Chicago, IL) to manage the subject 17-property, 
186-unit residential unit affordable multifamily rental portfolio.  Integrus Realty Group LLC is a for-profit 
management company engaged by the Borrower to undertake contractual pre-acquisition work and related pre-
acquisition due diligence, including third-party reports, and will be responsible for managing the Project.  
Integrus’ principal owners and senior management currently manage 778 affordable housing units in the City of 
Chicago that are owned by affiliates of BHF (and located in the same general area as the 17-property Ernst 
Portfolio.  
● In addition to the 501(c)(3) ownership, all properties will be subject to a Land Use Restriction Agreement that 
will require that the subject projects are maintained as affordable housing properties for the greater of (i) a 
minimum of 15 years or (ii) the date on which the IFA Bonds (or any subsequent Refunding Bonds) are repaid in 
full.    The Foundation’s mission requires that a minimum of 75% of units be allocated to qualified low- and 
moderate income tenants earning less than 80% of the area median gross income (adjusted for family size) and 
consistent with HUD income limits. 
 
 
 
 
 

CREDIT INDICATORS ● The plan of finance contemplates Bonds to be sold in 3 series (and comprised 2 senior series (1 tax-exempt 
series and 1 taxable series to cover non-qualified costs); and 1 subordinate tax-exempt series.   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 158



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 2   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
● BHF has applied to S&P Global Ratings for ratings on the Project and anticipate ratings in the low Single A 
range for the Senior Tax-Exempt 2018A-1 Bonds and Senior Taxable 2018A-2 Bonds (e.g., ‘A-’, and ratings in 
the low Triple-B range (e.g., ‘BBB-’ for the Subordinate Tax-Exempt 2018B Bonds).   

SECURITY ● The Bonds will be secured by Project Revenues and a First Mortgage on the subject properties (Projects) and a 
collateral assignment of Rents and Leases. Also see the headings titled “Security – Senior Series 2018A…” (see 
pp. 4-5) and “Security – Subordinate Series 2018B Tax Exempt Bonds” (see p. 5). 

MATURITY 
 

● Pursuant to the Bond Resolution, the proposed Bonds will mature no later than 40 years from the issuance date 
(Note: the anticipated final maturity date is presently December 2053 (35 years).) 

SOURCES AND USES 
(SUBJECT TO CHANGE – 

ALSO SEE P. 3) 

Sources:  Uses:   

 Senior Series 2018A-1 Tax-
Exempt Bonds 

 
$15,085,000 

Acquisition – 17 Properties (186-
units) 

 
$16,000,000 

  

 Series 2018A-1 (Original Issue 
Discount) (331,084) Rehabilitation 325,000  

 Series 2018A-2 (Taxable) Bonds 675,000    
 

  
Third Party Reports & Other Pre-
Acquisition Costs 481,313  

 Series 2018A-2 (Original Issue 
Discount) (2,693) Settlement Statement Expenses 150,000  

  
 Subordinate Series 2018B Tax-

Exempt Bonds 3,180,000 

 
Escrowed Real Estate Taxes (24 
mo.’s) 300,000  

 Series 2018B (Original Issue 
Discount) 69,070 Debt Service Reserve Fund  574,490  

      
    Costs of Issuance 706,350  
 Total  $18,537,153 Total  $18,537,153  

RECOMMENDATION 

AND CONDITIONS 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval.  

REPORT CONTENTS   

        Report Contents                                                                                                                 Pages  
 
       2-Page Summary/Overview – pp. 1-2: 
1. Summary/Overview/Recommendation and Conditions – 2-Page Summary                           1-2 
 

Project Details – pp. 3 on 
2. Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds Summary                                                                 2 & 3 
3. Description of Financing Structure; Bond Ratings; Project Rationale                                    4-6 
4. Project Summary (Project Description from Bond Resolution)                                                 6 
5. The Borrowers, The Sole Member, The Acquisition Consultant & The Property Manager   7-9   
6. Summary Characteristics of the 17 Property Portfolio and Due Diligence Reports              9-12 
7. Project Regulation - Land Use Restriction & Tax Regulatory Agreements                              12                   
8. Economic Disclosure Statement (includes disclosure on Sellers) & Professional Team    12-14 
9. Site Map of the 17 Properties                                                                                                    14 
10. Confidential Information                                                                                                        15+  

 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 159



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 3   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
February 8, 2018 

 

Project:  BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Better Housing Foundation Ernst 
Portfolio Project) 

STATISTICS 
Project Number:  12422 Amount: $25,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)  
Type:  501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds IFA Staff: Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher 
Locations: Chicago County/ 
  Region:  Cook County/Northeast    

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution (one-time consideration)  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds No IFA funds at risk 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval No extraordinary conditions 

VOTING RECORD 

This is the first time this Project has been considered by the IFA Board of Directors. 

PURPOSE 

Bond proceeds will be issued in one or more series and used by the Borrower to finance the acquisition and 
rehabilitation of 17 multifamily properties with 186 units located in Chicago. Additionally, bond proceeds will be 
used to capitalize debt service reserves and to pay costs of issuance.  Details regarding the 17 properties to be 
acquired are presented on p. 6.   

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bond financing that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital 
projects that will be used to further their charitable mission. IFA’s issuance will convey federal income tax-exempt 
status on interest earned on the Bond paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense. 

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS (SUBJECT TO CHANGE – same as p. 2) 

Sources:  Uses:  

Senior Series 2018A-1 Bonds 
(Tax-Exempt) 

$15,085,000 Acquisition – 17 Projects $16,000,000 

Series 2018A-1 Bonds 
(Discount) (331,084) Rehabilitation 325,000 

** Senior (Taxable) Series 
2018A-2 Bonds 675,000 

Third Party Reports & Other Pre-Acquisition 
Costs 481,313 

  Settlement Statement Expenses 150,000 
Subordinate Series 2018B (Tax-
Exempt) 3,180,000 Escrowed Real Estate Taxes (24 mo’s.) 300,000 
Subordinate Series 2018B Bonds 
(Discount)  (69,070) Debt Service Reserve Fund 574,490 

  Costs of Issuance 706,350 

Total $18,537,153 Total $18,537,153 

 
**Note: Taxable proceeds are primarily expected to fund a Real Estate Tax Escrow (sufficient to cover 2 years of real property taxes) 
and Costs of Issuance that exceed 2% of bond proceeds. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 160



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 4   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
JOBS 

Current employment:      2 Projected new jobs: 1-2 
Jobs retained:              N/A Construction jobs: N/A 

FINANCING SUMMARY – SUMMARY OF STRUCTURE – BASIS OF RATING 

Structure:  The plan of finance contemplates the public issuance of an amount not-to-exceed $25.0 million of 
tax-exempt debt to be issued in multiple series that would be underwritten by Stifel Nicolaus & 
Company, Incorporated. Fixed Rate Bonds would be sold based on the Projects’ assigned ratings 
(see discussions of Security for the Senior Bonds and for the Subordinate Series of Bonds below; 
also see the discussion presented under the heading of “Ratings” – see p. 5). The anticipated 
issuance amount (net of Original Issue Discount) based on sizing estimates was approximately 
$18.5 million as of 1/22/2018. 

 
Security – Senior 
Series 2018A-1  
Tax-Exempt 
Bonds and  
Series 2018A-2 
Taxable Bonds  
(the “Senior  
Bonds”):  Trust Estate: The Bonds are secured by the Trust Estate created in the Trust Indenture, which 

includes all right, title and interest to (a) the Note, the Mortgages, the Land Use Restriction 
Agreements, and the Loan Agreement (other than the Unassigned Rights of the Authority) – each 
of these items is discussed further below; (b) all funds, money and securities held by the Trustee 
(i.e., Wilmington Trust, National Association) under the terms from the Indenture (except with 
respect to the Rebate Fund), (c) any and all other rights and interests in property conveyed, 
mortgaged, pledged, assigned, or transferred as and for additional security for the Bonds, and (d) 
all proceeds of the foregoing. 

 
The Note: The Borrower will be obligated under the Loan Agreement to make payments, when 
due, on the Bonds as well as certain other fees and expenses in connection with the Bonds. As 
evidence of their obligations to make the Loan Payments with respect to the Bonds, the Borrower 
will execute and deliver to the Trustee a promissory note (the “Note”). 
 
Mortgages: As further security, the Bonds will be secured by a First Mortgage on each of the 4 
properties and a collateral assignment of Rents and Leases (for all residential and commercial 
units across the 4 properties). The Mortgages will grant a first lien on and first security interest in 
the Borrower’s interest in the Projects.  
 
Furthermore, the Mortgages will secure the Senior Bonds and the Subordinate Bonds in that order 
of priority. 

 
Bond Payments will be derived solely from operation of the Projects and the various funds 
and accounts held by the Bond Trustee (Wilmington Trust, National Association) under the 
Trust Indenture: This financing will be rated by S&P Global Ratings as a stand-alone project 
financing. Again, the Borrower’s obligation to make scheduled payments on the Bonds will be 
derived from the operation and maintenance of the Project (consisting of the 17 subject properties) 
and of monies held in various Funds and Accounts established under the Indenture.  
 
Rate Covenant: Additionally, the Borrower has agreed in the Loan Agreement to use its best 
efforts to fix, charge, and collect rents, fees, and charges in connection with the operation and 
maintenance of the Projects such that for each fiscal year the Debt Service Coverage Ratio will not 
be less than: 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 161



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 5   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
(i) 1.25x on all outstanding Senior Bonds (i.e., combined payments on the Senior Tax-

Exempt Series 2018A-1 and Senior Taxable Series 2018A-2 Bonds); and  
(ii) 1.10x on combined payments for all Outstanding Senior and Subordinate Bonds (i.e., 

combined Debt Service Coverage on all IFA Senior Series 2018A-1/A-2 Bonds and IFA 
Subordinate Series 2018B Bonds issued for the Financing Purposes).  

 
 In the event that the Borrower is unable to satisfy the applicable Coverage Test 

requirements, the Borrower will be required to engage an external management 
consultant with expertise in matters relating to owning and operating multifamily 
residential rental housing properties to make recommendations with respect to the 
operations of the Projects and the sufficiency of rates, fees, and charges imposed by 
the Borrower in order to improve the applicable Debt Service Coverage Ratios to 
satisfy the applicable Coverage Tests.  

 Note: as provided for in the bond documents and disclosed in the Preliminary 
Official Statement, failure to satisfy the Rate Covenant will not constitute an Event of 
Default with respect to the Bonds. Additionally, the ability of the Borrower to 
increase Project rents may be limited by the applicable Land Use Restriction 
Agreements for these properties (which impose tenant income requirements on a 
minimum of 75% of the units). 

 
Proceeds of the Taxable Series 2018A-2 Bonds will be used to pay excess costs of issuance and 
other costs that are not eligible (e.g., two years of escrowed real estate taxes) for tax-exempt 
financing.   

 
Security –  
Subordinate 
Series 2018B  
Tax-Exempt 
Bonds: The Subordinate Series 2018B Bonds (the “Subordinate Bonds”) will be secured by the same 

security as the Senior Series 2018A-1 and Senior Series 2018A-2 Taxable Bonds (the “Senior 
Bonds”), but are subordinate in all respects to the Senior Bonds.  

 
 Note: A payment default on the Subordinate Bonds alone will not constitute an Event of 

Default on the IFA Series 2018 Bonds while the Series 2018 Senior Bonds remain 
outstanding.  

  
Ratings: The Borrower has applied to S&P Global Ratings for a rating and anticipates assignment of 

a rating by mid-February.  The Working Group anticipates ratings in the range of ‘A-’ for the 
Senior Series 2018 A-1 Tax-Exempt Bonds and Series 2018 A-2 Taxable Bonds and ‘BBB-’ for 
the Subordinate Series 2018B Bonds. 

 
 The Key Structuring Element Supporting the S&P Debt Rating is the Flow of Project Revenues 

Under Which Bondholders Are Paid First, Before Operating Expenses: The key structuring 
element underlying the S&P rating on this and prior multifamily transactions that have been 
assigned investment grade ratings under this structure is the priority of payment on both the Senior 
and Subordinate Bonds relative to operating expenses. S&P’s methodology assumes that debt 
service to bondholders is paid first, before operating expenses.    
 

Maturity:  The anticipated final maturity date is in 35 years (2053) based on the anticipated ‘A-’/ ‘BBB-’ 
ratings (application for rating to S&P Global Ratings in process as of 1/31/2018) for the Senior 
Series 2018A1/A2 Bonds and the Subordinate Series 2018B Bonds, respectively.  

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 162



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 6   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
Estimated 
Interest Rates:  The estimated all-in interest rate on the 3 series of Bonds is estimated to range between 4.75% and 

5.40% based on market conditions (and market expectations) as of 1/22/2018.    
 
Estimated  
Closing Date:  February or March 2018  
 
Rationale / Project 
Impact: Creation of new, land-use restricted affordable housing units (with improvements) at 17 properties 

that will preserve the existing 186 residential units as affordable rental housing for a minimum of 
15 years or until the IFA Bonds are paid in full (whichever is later).  

 
 Each of the 17 Projects will be subject to its own Land Use Restriction Agreement that will be in 

effect for a minimum of 15 years (i.e., 2033) after the date of closing of the proposed IFA Series 
2018 Bonds. The maximum term of each Land Use Restriction Agreements associated with the 
IFA Series 2018 Bonds will coincide with the final maturity date of the IFA Series 2018 Bonds 
(unless any IFA Tax-Exempt Bonds (or Tax-Exempt Refunding Bonds, if issued in the future) are 
paid in full prior to the final maturity date). (Also see “Land Use Restriction Agreements” – p. 
12.) These Land Use Restriction Agreements, along with a Tax Regulatory Agreement, will assure 
that these properties are subject to more stringent income-based tenant limitations as a result of 
Better Housing Foundation’s acquisition of these properties. 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION) 

Bond proceeds will be used by BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (the “Borrower”), an Illinois limited 
liability company and special purpose affiliate of the Better Housing Foundation, an Ohio nonprofit corporation 
(and 501(c)(3) corporation) (“BHF” or the “Sole Member”), to: (i) pay a portion of the costs of acquisition, 
rehabilitation, and equipping of 17 multifamily affordable residential rental properties with approximately 186 
residential housing units (at the addresses identified immediately below and collectively, the “Projects”), (ii) fund 
one or more debt service reserve funds for the benefit of the Series 2018 Bonds, and (iii) pay a portion of the costs 
of issuance relating to the Series 2018 Bonds, all as permitted by the Illinois Finance Authority Act (collectively, the 
“Financing Purposes”).  

The 17 Projects: 

The 17 properties that will be acquired by the Borrowers in connection with the issuance of the Bonds are listed below (each a “Project” and 
collectively, the “Projects”), together with a description of the number of residential units in each Project, the location of each Project, the 
Borrower associated with each Project and the maximum principal amount of bond proceeds allocable to each such Project (the following not-to-
exceed parameters were cited in the TEFRA Hearing Notices published for these Projects):   

1) 734-36 East 95th Street, Chicago, Illinois 60619 (6 residential units/$850,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
2) 1418 East 67th Place, Chicago, Illinois 60637 (6 residential units/$840,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
3) 3652-54 South Indiana Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60653 (7 residential units/$1,150,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
4) 3656-58 South Indiana Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60653 (6 residential units/$1,100,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
5) 4952-56 South Vincennes Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60615 (8 residential units/$1,940,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated); 
6) 4956-58 South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60615 (12 residential units/$1,800,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
7) 5715-17 South Indiana Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60637 (8 residential units/$1,260,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
8) 6605-07 South Greenwood Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60637 (6 residential units/$840,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
9) 6609-11 South Greenwood Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60637 (6 residential units/$ 840,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
10) 6800 South Clyde Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60649 (18 residential units/$2,250,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
11) 6900-08 South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60637 (24 residential units/$2,850,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
12) 8056 South Ellis Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60619 (12 residential units/$1,460,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
13) 8100 South Evans Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60619 (12 residential units/$1,440,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated; 
14) 8200 South Evans Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60619 (22 residential units/$2,230,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated). 
15) 9032 South Dauphin Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60619 (8 residential units/$990,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated);  
16) 9300 South Bishop Street, Chicago, Illinois 60620 (19 residential units/$2,060,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated); and 
17) 9942 South Walden Parkway, Chicago, Illinois 60643 (6 residential units/$1,010,000 maximum amount of Bonds allocated).  

Although the not-to-exceed amount specified in the Bond Resolution is $25,000,000, the anticipated issuance 
amount is approximately $18.5 million based on preliminary working group estimates as of 1/22/2018.  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 163



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 7   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
BUSINESS SUMMARY 

The Borrower: BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC is an Illinois limited liability company (the “Borrower”).  
 

The sole member of the Borrower is Better Housing Foundation, an Ohio nonprofit corporation 
and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, and exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code (the “Sole 
Member”).  Additional information regarding the Better Housing Foundation is provided below 
(p. 7) under the caption the “Sole Member”. 

 
Ownership of the  
Projects by the  
Borrowers: The Borrower will be acquiring 17 properties with a total of 186 residential units in Chicago.  A 

site map of the 17 Projects is presented on p. 14.  

The Borrower has been established to purchase and own the subject 17-property portfolio.   

The subject properties will be the only assets owned by the Borrower subsequent to closing of the 
proposed IFA Series 2018 Bonds. The asset or assets of the Borrower will be the underlying 17 
properties owned by it.  

The Borrower does not intend to acquire any substantial assets or engage in any substantial 
business activities other than those related to the ownership of the properties acquired in 
connection with the proposed IFA Series 2018 Bonds  

The Sole 
Member: The Better Housing Foundation (“BHF” or the “Sole Member” of the Borrower) is an Ohio 

nonprofit corporation formed for the purpose for the purpose of providing quality, affordable 
housing to persons of low income across the United States. The Sole Member received a 
determination letter from the IRS dated April 23, 2015 for its tax-exempt status as an organization 
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.  

 The Sole Member does not own any assets.  Rather, BHF is the sole member of several special 
purpose entities whose assets consist solely of affordable rental housing properties acquired in 
connection with the issuance of tax-exempt bonds.   

Prior BHF Conduit 
Bond Issues 
through IFA: To date BHF has used proceeds of three IFA Bond issues to finance the acquisition of two 

portfolios of affordable rental apartment properties since 2016.  The three portfolios of projects 
acquired with IFA Bond proceeds to date each currently maintain the investment grade ratings 
originally assigned to those bond issues at the time of issuance. 

 
1. In November 2017, IFA issued $59,980,000 of Bonds to finance the acquisition of the 4-

property, 528-unit Windy City portfolio with properties located in Addison, Glen Ellyn, 
Mundelein, and St. Charles, Illinois.  BHF is the Sole Member of the 4 limited liability 
companies that were each formed to own one of the four projects.  The senior and 
subordinate series of Windy City Portfolio Bonds were rated ‘A-’ and ‘BBB-’, 
respectively, by S&P Global Ratings.  The Series 2017 Bonds (Windy City Portfolio) 
currently maintain those ratings and posted a 93% residential occupancy rate as of 
January 1, 2018.      

2. In May 2017, IFA issued $51,805,000 of Bonds to finance the acquisition of the 45-
property, 518-unit Icarus-WPD Portfolio) located on the South Side of Chicago.  BHF is 
the Sole Member of the Project Owner (i.e., BHF Chicago Housing Group B LLC).  The 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 164



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 8   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
senior and subordinate series of Icarus-WPD Portfolio Bonds were rated ‘A-’ and ‘BBB-’ 
respectively by S&P Global Ratings.  The Series 2017 Bonds (Icarus-WPD Portfolio) 
currently maintain those ratings and posted a 92% occupancy rate as of January 1, 2018.  

3. In July 2016, IFA issued $13,560,000 of Bonds to finance the acquisition of a 13-
property, 262-unit Shoreline Portfolio located on the South Side of Chicago (Better 
Housing Foundation Shoreline Portfolio).  BHF is the Sole Member of the Project Owner 
(i.e., Lindran Properties LLC).  The senior and subordinate series of Shoreline Bonds 
were rated ‘BBB’ and ‘BBB-’, respectively, by S&P Global Ratings and the Series 2016 
Bonds (Better Housing Foundation Shoreline Portfolio) currently maintain those ratings 
and posted an 88% occupancy rate as of January 1, 2018. 

BHF’s 
Governance: The Sole Member is governed by a Board of Directors, which currently consists of five members – 

who are identified immediately below.  Mr. Antonio, Mr. Dayan, and Mr. Morgan (#4, #5, and #6 
below) are local, Illinois residents who were appointed to serve as BHF Directors within the past 
year.  According to the draft Preliminary Official Statement, each has the following experience 
managing and working with other affordable housing and other not-for-profit organizations: 

 
1. Daniel Renz, President.  Mr. Renz is the founder and owner of SwitchHub, a financial services 

recruiting firm based in Dublin (Columbus), OH (see www.switchub.org).   Prior to founding SwitchHub, Mr. 
Renz served in various capacities (from lending to private banking at Merrill Lynch.   

2. Meredith Rosenbeck, Secretary and Treasurer.  Ms. Rosenbeck is a resident of Dublin, Ohio. 
She is a practicing attorney with over 10 years of experience working with nonprofit organizations.  She 
currently runs her own law practice focused on nonprofit organizations.  She has served as legal counsel to the 
Sole Member since its inception in 2015.   

3. Tracy Hughey, Board Member.  Ms. Hughey is the Director of Operations for an Ohio-based long 
term care provider that operates over 20 long term care facilities in Ohio.  Ms. Hughey is an experienced leader 
in the nonprofit community, leading initiatives ranging from education to affordable housing and community 
development. Ms. Hughey is committed to fulfilling the charitable mission of the Foundation -- providing 
quality, affordable housing to low income families.   

4. Douglas J. Antonio, Board Member.  Mr. Antonio is an experienced real estate attorney with 
extensive experience financing real estate projects structured with various federal, state, and local programs.  
Mr. Antonio has advised clients that have financed projects using tax-exempt housing bonds, low income 
housing tax credits, and New Markets Tax Credits.  Mr. Antonio is an attorney at Sugar Felsenthal Grais & 
Hammer LLP in Chicago, Illinois.  

5. Max S. Dayan, Board Member.  Mr. Dayan currently serves as the Director of Development for the 
Libenu Foundation of Skokie, Illinois, a non-profit providing supervised group housing serving Jewish adults 
with developmental disabilities in the Chicago area.  Mr. Dayan has been working with the special needs 
community since 2009, beginning as a direct service provider before becoming a Qualified Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities Professional (“QIDP”) for Clearbrook of Arlington Heights, Illinois in 2013.  
Clearbrook is a leading service provider to the developmentally disabled.   

6.   Jon Morgan, Board Member. Mr. Morgan is a co-founding principal of Interra Realty of Chicago.  He 
is focused on the disposition and acquisition of multi-family, office and retail assets of all classes.  Mr. Morgan 
has also cultivated a niche representing variety of financial institutions in the disposition of REO assets, short 
sales, and mortgage collateralized note sales.  In 2008, Mr. Morgan was named the Top New Investment Sales 
Broker by the Chicago Association of Realtors Commercial Forum and was featured in the Wall Street Journal.  
He was also recognized with the Gold Achiever Award for outstanding sales accomplishments in 2011 in 
Commercial Sales Volume from the Commercial Forum of the Chicago Association of Realtors.   

 
Consultants  
Engaged by the 
Sole Member: The consulting companies engaged by the Borrower (on behalf of the Sole Member) will include 

(i) an Acquisition Consultant and (ii) a Property Manager.   
 

Note:  as reported below, the Acquisition Consultant and Property Manager are affiliated 
entities under common ownership and management control (i.e., same principals and 
managers).   
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 165



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 9   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
 The Acquisition Consultant.  The Better Housing Foundation will enter into an Acquisition 

Services Agreement with Desak Development Corp., an Illinois corporation (“Desak” or the 
“Acquisition Consultant”).  Pursuant to the Acquisition Services Agreement, Desak will provide 
advisory services related to the acquisition, design, planning, financing, and rehabilitation of the 
Projects.  The Acquisition Consultant has funded upfront escrow deposits, and pre-acquisition due 
diligence reports (e.g., appraisal reports; property condition reports; environmental site assessment 
reports).   

 
In consideration for paying all pre-acquisition due diligence expenses and good faith escrow 
deposits in connection with a purchase option on the properties, the Acquisition Consultant will be 
paid approximately $481,000 upon issuance of the Series 2018 Bonds.  Proportional amounts of 
the Bond Proceeds associated with the first three IFA Better Housing Foundation portfolio 
acquisition pools were also used to finance these pre-acquisition due diligence expenses (and were 
approved in connection with S&P’s ratings assignments on the prior Better Housing Foundation 
financings).     
 

 The Property Manager.  The Projects will be managed by Integrus Realty Group LLC, an 
Illinois limited liability company established in 2015 and based in Chicago, Illinois (“Integrus” or 
the “Manager”). The Manager currently manages a total of approximately 300 properties overall 
(including 28 properties owned by affiliates of the Better Housing Foundation with approximately 
778 units).  The properties are located primarily in south side and west side neighborhoods in 
Chicago.  The key personnel of the Manager include (i) Mr. L. Mark DeAngelis, who is also the 
president of Desak Development Corp. (which is the Acquisition Consultant for the Borrower) and 
(ii) Ms. Afia Watts, Lead Property Manager. 

 
 Integrus currently manages 778 units owned by the Better Housing Foundation (and its affiliates).  

Each Integrus-managed property owned by BHF is a low-income property (and each property 
leases a minimum of 40% of the units to persons or families earning at or below 60% of Adjusted 
Median Income (“AMI”) for Cook County, as adjusted for family size. 

 
Pursuant to a Management Agreement with the Borrower, the Manager will be engaged to 
undertake marketing, leasing, rent collection, lease enforcement, maintenance and repairs, the 
provision of utilities and services, and obtaining insurance for the Projects.  Additional services 
will include, among other duties: providing asset management oversight, reviewing financial and 
operating information relating to the Projects (including periodic financial statements, operating 
reports, and capital and operating budgets), meeting with the Borrower to review the performance 
of the Projects, monitoring compliance with the Borrower’s financial and operating covenants, and 
assisting the Borrower with continuing disclosure obligations in connection with the IFA Series 
2018 Bonds. 
 
Under the Management Agreement, the Manager will be paid a monthly fee. The initial monthly 
Management Fee will equal approximately 4.50% of effective gross income for the 17 Ernst 
Portfolio Projects.  

 
Summary  
Characteristics 
of the 17 
Portfolio 
Projects: The 17-property portfolio to be purchased with the IFA Series 2018 Bonds is comprised of 186 

residential units. The addresses of the 17 properties are identified in the table below (p. 10).  
 
 Currently, 15 of the 17 properties have units occupied by tenants who hold Section 8 HUD 

Housing Choice Vouchers issued by the Chicago Housing Authority.  Overall, 76units (or 41% of 
the 186 total units) are occupied by tenants who hold HUD HCV Vouchers (see table on p. 10).  
All 17 properties are currently market rate properties.  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 166



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 10   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
 

Notably, rents on 166 out of 186 units at the 17 properties (i.e., 89.2% of the units) are lower than 
the FY 2018 HUD Fair Market Rents reported for the Chicago MSA.  Presently, given that only 
76 (i.e., 40.9%) of the 166 units are leased to HUD HCV Voucher tenants, it appears that the 
Property Manager has substantial room to attract HUD HCV Voucher tenants to the 90 existing 
units with rents below current FY 2018 HUD Fair Market Rents.  Of the larger units targeted to 
families (i.e., the 3BR, 4BR, and 5BR units), currently 61 out of 69 of such units feature rents that 
are below the FY 2018 HUD Fair Market Rents.   

 
 Note:  Internal Revenue Code requirements resulting from the BHF acquisition and the proposed 

tax-exempt bond financing only impose tenant income restrictions on the 17 properties.  The 
proposed Series 2018 Bonds will not impose any IRS-mandated monthly rent restrictions on the 17 
properties.  

  
Current unit mixes, monthly rents, and the number of existing HUD Voucher Units at each of the 17 
properties are reported in the following table: 

 

Source:  The Borrower 
 

Efficiency 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR
FY 2018 879$          1,014$       1,180$       1,501$       1,794$       
FY 2017 912$          1,055$       1,232$       1,569$       1,878$       
% Change: -3.62% -3.89% -4.22% -4.33% -4.47%

HUD Fair Market Rents - FY 2017 and FY 2018
Chicago - Joliet - Naperville HUD Metro Fair Market Rents - By # Bedrooms

 
   Source:  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s website 

No. P roperty (all Chicago) S tudio 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR 5-BR #  Units -  
T otal

#  -  
S ection 8 
V oucher 

Units

1 7 3 4 - 7 3 6  E.  9 5 th S tre e t 1,2 0 0$   
#  Units by Type 6 6 0

2 14 18 - 14 2 0  E.  6 7 th P la c e 1,0 10$   1,0 10$   
#  Units by Type 4 2 6 3

3 3 6 5 2  S .  India na $ 5 0 0 1,2 7 5$   1,3 0 0$   
#  Units by Type 1 1 5 7 3

4 3 6 5 6  S .  India na 1,2 5 0$   1,2 5 0$   1,3 5 0$   
#  Units by Type 1 1 4 6 6

5 4 9 5 2 - 4 9 5 6  S .  V inc e nne s 1,6 4 0$   2 ,0 2 5$  
#  Units by Type 6 2 8 0

6 4 9 5 6  S .  Mic higa n 1,0 0 0$   9 4 5$      1,13 2$   1,3 2 1$   
#  Units by Type 1 5 4 2 12 12

7 5 7 15 - 5 7 17  S .  India na $ 7 7 5 1,2 4 7$   
#  Units by Type 2 6 8 6

8 6 6 0 5 - 6 6 0 7  S .  Gre e nwood 1,0 2 5$   1,0 10$   
#  Units by Type 1 5 6 4

9 6 6 0 9 - 6 6 11 S .  Gre e nwood 9 5 0$      $ 1,0 2 5
#  Units by Type 1 5 6 6

10 6 8 0 0  S .  Clyde 8 7 5$      1,0 00$   
#  Units by Type 15 3 18 5

11 6 9 0 0 - 6 9 0 8  S .  Mic higa n 8 5 1$      
#  Units by Type 2 4 2 4 7

12 8 0 5 6  S .  Ellis Ave . 8 7 5$      8 75$      
#  Units by Type 9 3 12 4

13 8 10 0  S .  Eva ns Ave . 8 2 2$      $ 9 8 0
#  Units by Type 9 3 12 2

14 8 2 0 0  S .  Eva ns Ave . 6 2 9$      7 2 1$      7 9 0$      
#  Units by Type 6 6 10 22 2

15 9 0 3 2  S .  Da uphin Ave . $ 8 9 0
#  Units by Type 8 8 5

16 9 3 0 0  S .  Bishop S tre e t 7 0 0$      7 8 6$      8 0 0$      
#  Units by Type 3 11 5 19 5

17 9 9 4 2  S .  Wa lde n Pkwy. 8 5 0$      $ 1,2 8 7
#  Units by Type 1 5 6 6

9 2 9 7 9 4 5 18 6 186 7 6

Ernst Portfolio Rents (Chicago, Illinois) - By Property (as of 1/1/2018)

Tota l Units by Unit Type :

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 167



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 11   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
HUD Fair Market Rents are reduced in FY 2018 compared to FY 2017.  Pursuant to HUD regulations, 
annual Fair Market Rents (i.e., FY 2018) can drop no lower than 90% of the HUD Fair Market Rent values 
established for the preceding fiscal year (i.e., FY 2017).   

 
Current Unit  
Occupancies & 
Property 
Condition 
Assessments:   ICG, Inc. of Baltimore, Maryland was engaged to prepare a Property Condition Assessment 

report for each of the 17 properties with dates of inspection occurring on August 1 and August 2, 
2017. _______. 

 The table below (i) identifies the estimated costs of “critical repairs” and “non-critical repairs” to 
be completed at each Project and (ii) recent capital expenditures undertaken by the Seller at each 
Project. 

 

Property
No. Address Units

Occupied
Units Occupancy

Year 
Built

Critical
Repairs

Immediate
Repairs

1 734-736 East 95th Street 6                   6                   100% 1897 5,775              2,083              -                     

2 1418-1420 East 67th Place 6                   6                   100% 1913 585$               760$               16,100$           

3 3652 S. Indiana Avenue 7                   7                   100% 1894 6,775              -                      -                     

4 3656 S. Indiana Avenue 6                   6                   100% 1894 400                 2,500              71,200            

5 4952-4956 S. Vincennes 8                   8                   100% 2008 675                 250                 -                     

6 4956 S. Michigan 12                 12                 100% 1925 275                 10,000             8,000              

7 5715-5717 S. Indiana Ave. 8                   8                   100% 1926 1,500               11,000             6,200              

8 6605-6607 S. Greenwood 6                   6                   100% 1915 1,425               500                 24,100            

9 6609-6611 S. Greenwood 6                   6                   100% 1919 775                 -                      24,100            

10 6800 S. Clyde Avenue 18                 18                 100% 1926 650                 750                 167,000          

11 6900-6908 S. Michigan Avenu 24                 22                 92% 1926 3,450              2,750              356,800          

12 8056 S. Ellis Avenue 12                 11                  92% 1938 2,700              750                 196,000          

13 8100 S. Evans Avenue 12                 12                 100% 1938 125                  11,250             57,500            

14 8200 S. Evans Avenue 22                 22                 100% 1938 3,500              12,500             21,700            

15 9032 S. Dauphin Avenue 8                   8                   100% 1938 100                  7,500              7,800              

16 9032 S. Bishop Street 19                 19                 100% 1938 2,425              -                      153,400          

17 9942 S. Walden Pkwy. 6                   6                   100% 1959 1,775               1,250               26,500            

Total 186          183          98.4% 32,910$      63,843$     1,136,400$ 

Unit Occupancy - Building Information - Pending Repairs & Seller CapEx

Unit Mix
Recent 

CapEx - By 
Seller

Sources:  Seller & ICG, Inc. (Property Assessment Report) 
 

Recent capital expenditures undertaken by the Seller (since 2012) at the 17 properties totaled 
$1,136,400 (or approximately $6,110 per unit) and are reported in the far right column in the table 
above.   
 
Additionally, critical and immediate repair (to be bond-financed) are also reported for each 
property in the table above.   
According to the Seller, the subject units posted 98.4% composite occupancy as of January 1, 
2018.   

 
Repair & 
Replacement 
Reserve: Additionally, the Borrower has budgeted (i.e., $300 per unit-per year subject to 3% escalation 

annually) of Repair & Replacement Reserve Expenses to properly reflect ongoing investments 
necessary to maintain the 17 properties.  This amount was submitted to S&P in connection with 
their ratings assessment.   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 168



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 12   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
Phase I 
Environmental 
Audit Reports: The Borrower obtained an independent Phase I Environmental Site Assessment prepared by ICG, 

Inc. of Baltimore, MD for each of the 17 properties (the “Environmental Assessments”) in 
connection with inspections completed in August 2017.   

 
 Conclusion:  The Environmental Assessments, as to be reported in Appendix A to the Preliminary 

Official Statements revealed (i) no on-site recognized environmental conditions (“REC”) and (ii) 
no on-site historical recognized environmental conditions (“HREC”) at any of the 17 Project sites.  
However, the Environmental Assessments noted other environmental issues applicable to all of the 
Projects in connection with asbestos-containing material and lead-based paint, which are likely to 
have been used at the Projects (most of which were originally construction in the 1920s or 1930s).  
The Environmental Assessments also revealed damages at some of the Projects, which were 
classified as “Immediate Repairs” and with costs itemized in the table above (p. 11).    

 
PROJECT REGULATION:  LAND USE RESTRICTION AND TAX REGULATORY AGREEMENTS  

 
Will Provide for Tenant Income Restrictions on a Minimum of 75% of the 186 Units for a Minimum Period 

of 15 Years (or until 100% of the IFA Bonds are redeemed) 
 
 Land Use Restriction Agreements (“LURA”).  All 17 properties to be acquired with the IFA 

Series 2018 Bonds will be subject to a Land Use Restriction Agreement under which the Borrower 
(and any successor as Owner) will be obligated (pursuant to Section 142(d) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 and during the Qualified Project Period (i.e., a minimum of 15 years from 
the closing date or the date on which the Series 2018 Bonds or any Refunding Bonds are repaid in 
full) at least 40% of the completed units (i.e., 75 units) be occupied by families or individuals 
whose adjusted income does not exceed 60% (adjusted for family size) of the median gross 
income for the area.  

 
 Tax Regulatory Agreement.  The Tax Regulatory Agreement will impose additional 

requirements relating to the 501(c)(3) tax-exempt treatment of the Sole Member, including the 
requirement that a minimum of 75% of the completed units (i.e., 140 units)  be rented to persons 
whose income does not exceed 80% (adjusted for family size) of the area median gross income. 
Accordingly, upon acquisition by the Borrower, these properties must maintain a higher 
percentage of below-median-income units than specified by standard HUD income restrictions.  

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Applicant/ 
Sole Member of 
Borrowers: (1) Better Housing Foundation, c/o Mr. Daniel Renz, President, Better Housing Foundation, 6932 

Rings Rd., #234, Amlin, OH, 43002, Tel.: 440.552.0872 
 (2) Ms. Meredith Rosenbeck, Secretary-Treasurer, c/o Rosenbeck Law, LLC, 5701 Tynecastle 

Loop, Dublin, OH 43016;  Tel: 614.546.8042; Email: mrosenbecklaw@yahoo.com.   
 
Acquisition 
Consultant: Desak Development Corp., 2539 W. Peterson Ave., Chicago, IL 60659 
 Contact:  Mr. L. Mark DeAngelis, President; Tel.: 312.307.2138 
 
Site Locations: The 17 site locations are listed on p. 6 of this report (also see site maps on p. 14). 
 
Project Name:  Illinois Finance Authority, 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds, BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC 

(Better Housing Foundation Ernst Portfolio Project), Senior Tax-Exempt Series 2018A-1, Senior 
Taxable Series 2018A-2 and Subordinate Tax-Exempt Series 2018B   

 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 169



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 13   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
Governance   
of the Sole  
Member: The Sole Member of each of the Borrower (i.e., BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC) is the 

Better Housing Foundation of Amlin, Ohio, a 501(c)(3) corporation and Ohio nonprofit 
corporation.  The Better Housing Foundation is governed by a 6-member board, which currently 
consists of the following Members (see p. 8 for their professional profiles): 

1. Mr. Daniel Renz, President (Dublin, Ohio) 
2. Ms. Meredith Rosenbeck, Secretary-Treasurer (Dublin, Ohio) 
3. Ms. Tracy Hughey, Board Member (Columbus, Ohio) 
4. Mr. Douglas J. Antonio, Board Member (Chicago, Illinois) 
5. Mr. Max Dayan, Board Member (Skokie, Illinois) 
6. Mr. Jon Morgan, Board Member (Chicago, Illinois) 

 
Property 
Manager –  
Post-Closing: Integrus Realty Services, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, 2539 W. Peterson Ave., 

Chicago, IL 60659 
 Contacts:  Mr. Anthony Jackson, Director of Operations; Tel:  773.728.4000; and Ms. Afia Watts, 

Lead Property Manager; Tel.:  773.728.4000 
 
Seller Disclosure –  
17 Properties: Seller #1:  Twelve of the 17 subject properties are owned by Ernst Development LLC, an 

Illinois limited liability company (www.ernstdevelopmentllc.com) directly, or through an 
affiliate: 

 Manager:  Mr. Nate Ernst, Manager, 2835 N. Sheffield Ave., Suite 312, Chicago, IL 
60657.  (P) 773.698.6863 

 Counsel to Seller #1:  Mr. John R. Potts, Brotschul Potts LLC, 30 N. LaSalle St., Suite 
1402, Chicago, IL 60602-3353; (P) 312.551. 9003 

Seller #2:  Five of the 17 subject properties are owned by Housing Initiatives Series LLC, an 
Illinois limited liability company, or through an affiliate: 

 Manager:  Mr. Scott McNaughton, Manager, 123 E. Ogden, Suite 202, Hinsdale, IL 
60521; (P) 630.655.0559 

 Counsel to Seller #2:  Mr. John R. Potts, Brotschul Potts LLC, 30 N. LaSalle St., Suite 
1402, Chicago, IL 60602-3353; (P) 312.551. 9003 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Sole Member: Better Housing Foundation Amlin, OH Daniel Renz, President 
Sole Member’s Counsel: Rosenbeck Law LLP Dublin, OH Meredith Rosenbeck 
 Borrower’s Counsel - Local: Chuhak & Tecson P.C. Chicago, IL Adam Moreland 
Bond Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP Chicago, IL Tom Smith 
Underwriter: Stifel Nicolaus & Co., Inc. Atlanta, GA Cody Wilson 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Butler Snow LLP Atlanta, GA David Williams 
Bond Trustee: Wilmington Trust Dallas, TX Cam Lindsey 
Trustee’s Counsel: Ballard Spahr LLP Atlanta, GA Han Choi, 
     Stephanie Kim  
Bond Rating: S&P Global Ratings 
  (Structured Finance Group) Chicago, IL   
Dissemination Agent: Disclosure Advisors LLC Columbus, OH Paul Rutter 
Acquisition Consultant: Desak Development Corp. Chicago, IL L. Mark DeAngelis 
Property Manager: Integrus Realty Group LLC Chicago, IL Anthony Jackson, 
     Afia Watts 
Counsel to the 2 Sellers: Brotschul Potts LLC Chicago, IL John R. Potts 
Auditor to the Borrower  
  and Sole Member: To be determined 
Architect: Not applicable 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 170



  
BHF Chicago Housing Group C LLC (Ernst Portfolio Project) Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 14   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
General Contractor: To be managed and supervised by the Property Manager (Integrus Realty Group LLC) 
Appraiser: BBG, Inc. Chicago, IL  Ken Konrath, MAI 
     David Cardo 
Property Condition  
Report: ICG, Inc. Baltimore, MD Michael Pickering 
     Sherry Anderson   
Environmental Site  
Assessment: ICG, Inc. Baltimore, MD Michael Pickering 
     Sherry Anderson   
IFA Counsel: Charity & Associates, P.C. Chicago, IL Tim Hinchman 
IFA Financial Advisor: Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL Phoebe Selden,  
     Siamac Afshar 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS - 17 PROPERTY PORTFOLIO 
 

U.S. Congressional Illinois Senate Illinois House
Ernst Portfolio - Chicago, IL Multiple Multiple Multiple

 
Site Map of the 17 Ernst Portfolio Projects 

 
 

 
Source:  Bing Maps 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 171



 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher 
 
Date:  February 8, 2018 
 
Re:  Resolution Supplementing Resolution 2017-1214-NP02 Providing for the Issuance by the Illinois 

Finance Authority of Not To Exceed $275,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of Illinois 
Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (University of Chicago); 
and Authorizing and Approving Certain Related Matters 

   
 
Request: 
 
The University of Chicago (the “University”) is requesting approval of a Resolution to supplement a Final Bond 
Resolution (the “December 14th Resolution”) authorizing and approving the issuance of not-to-exceed $275.0 
million in aggregate principal amount of its revenue bonds in one or more series (the “Bonds”) and bearing interest 
at one or more fixed or variable interest rates and loans and loaning the proceeds thereof to the University of 
Chicago (the “University” or the “Borrower”).   
 
Impact:   
 
Although the December 14th Resolution authorized a not-to-exceed issuance amount of $275.0 million and included 
flexibility for the University to issue under a variety of structures, the authority to issue taxable bonds was not 
contemplated.   
 
The attached supplemental Resolution will enable the proposed Bonds to be issued in either Tax-Exempt or Taxable 
interest rate modes.   
 
Approval of this supplemental Resolution is being requested in an abundance of caution at the request of the 
University.   
 
As presently contemplated (as of 1/23/2018), the University anticipates issuing $125.0 million of Tax-Exempt 
Bonds through the Authority and $50.0 million of Taxable Bonds through the Authority.  (The not-to-exceed 
parameter established in the December 14th Resolution was $275.0 million.) 
 
Anticipated closing will occur during the week of March 5, 2018. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Credit Review Committee recommends approval of the accompanying Resolution (pp. 2-6) supplementing 
Resolution 2017-1214-NP02 as requested. 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel:  Schiff Hardin LLP Chicago, IL  Bruce Weisenthal 
Auditor: KPMG LLP Chicago, IL Kurt Gabaouer 
 Borrower Financial Advisor: Prager & Co., LLC San Francisco, CA Susan Fitzgerald 
    New York, NY Mary Jane Darby 
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Nancy Burke 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 172



The University of Chicago Amendatory Bond Resolution 
  to authorize one or more Taxable Series 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds and Revenue Refunding Bonds   December 14, 2017 
Page 2   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL - Continued 

 
Senior Manager: Barclays Capital, Inc. New York, NY John Augustine 
Co-Senior Managers: Loop Capital Markets, LLC Chicago, IL Clarence Bourne  
  PNC Capital Markets LLC Cleveland, OH Mary Grace Pattison 
  RBC Capital Markets LLC Chicago, IL Kevin Hoecker 
  Wells Fargo Securities New York, NY Sally Bednar 
  Bank of America Merrill Lynch (BAML) San Francisco, CA Chris Cowen 
  Siebert Cisneros Shank & Co. Chicago, IL Karen Walker 
Disclosure Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP Chicago, IL Lorraine Tyson 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Pugh Jones & Johnson, P.C. Chicago, IL Glenn Weinstein 
Trustee: Wells Fargo Bank, NA Chicago, IL Gail Klewin   
  
IFA Counsel: Burke Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. Chicago, IL Steve Welcome 
IFA Financial Advisor: Sycamore Advisors LLC Chicago, IL Courtney Tobin, 
     Olyvia Jarmoszka 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-0208-NP__ 

RESOLUTION SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION 2017-1214-NP02 PROVIDING FOR 

THE ISSUANCE BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY OF NOT TO EXCEED 

$275,000,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

ADJUSTABLE RATE DEMAND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017 (UNIVERSITY OF 

CHICAGO); AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate duly organized and validly existing 

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Authority”), including, without limitation, the Illinois 

Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq., as supplemented and amended (the “Act”), is authorized by the 

laws of the State of Illinois, including, without limitation, the Act, to issue its revenue bonds for the purposes set 

forth in the Act and to permit the expenditure of the proceeds thereof to defray, among other things, the costs of the 

planning, design, acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement, expansion and equipping of “educational 

facilities,” as defined in the Act, and to provide for the refunding and defeasance of any bonds deemed necessary in 

connection with any purpose of the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, on December 14, 2017, the Authority adopted Resolution 2017-1214-NP02, (the “Original 

Resolution”) authorizing and approving the issuance of not to exceed $275,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 

its revenue bonds in one or more series (the “Bonds”) and bearing interest at one or more fixed or variable rates and 

the loaning the proceeds from the sale thereof to The University of Chicago, an Illinois not for profit corporation 

(the “University”); and  

WHEREAS, the Original Resolution contemplated that the Bonds would be issued pursuant to one or more 

multi-modal documents and provided different alternatives with respect to the terms of the Bonds, including that the 

Bonds may be issued as fixed and/or variable rate bonds and the Bonds may be sold on either a public and/or private 

placement basis; and  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 173



The University of Chicago Amendatory Bond Resolution 
  to authorize one or more Taxable Series 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds and Revenue Refunding Bonds   December 14, 2017 
Page 3   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 

WHEREAS, such alternatives were set forth in Original Resolution in order to provide flexibility to the 

University under the circumstance where proposed tax reform legislation (the “Proposed Tax Act”) provided for the 

elimination of tax-exempt debt for the benefit of certain not for profit institutions, including the University; and 

WHEREAS, such provisions of the Proposed Tax Act with respect to the elimination of the availability of 

such tax-exempt debt were ultimately not enacted; and 

WHEREAS, the University now desires to issue the Bonds consisting of two series of publically offered, 

fixed rate bonds with one series to be issued on a tax-exempt basis and one series to be issued on a taxable basis; and 

WHEREAS, such two series of the Bonds are expected to be designated (i) the Illinois Finance Authority 

Revenue Bonds, The University of Chicago, Series 2018A (the “Series 2018A Bonds”) and (ii) the Illinois Finance 

Authority Taxable Revenue Bonds, The University of Chicago, Series 2018B (the “Series 2018B Bonds”); and  

WHEREAS, the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B will be issued pursuant to the terms of separate 

trust indentures (collectively, the “Indentures”), each dated as of February 1, 2018 between the Authority and Wells 

Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee; and  

WHEREAS, the aggregate principal of Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds will not exceed 

$275,000,000 and 

WHEREAS, the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds will be 

loaned to the University through the purchase of two separate promissory notes (collectively, the “Notes”), to be 

issued by the University pursuant to separate Loan Agreements (collectively, the “Loan Agreements”), each dated as 

of February 1, 2018 between the Authority and the University), and assigned by the Authority to the Trustee 

pursuant to the related Indenture as security for the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds, as applicable; 

and  

WHEREAS, the University will use the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 

2018B Bonds for one or more of the Financing Purposes (as defined in the Original Resolution); and  

WHEREAS, the University has requested the Authority supplement the Original Resolution to approve the 

issuance of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds as fixed rate, publically offered bonds, with the 

Series 2018A Bonds being issued on a tax-exempt basis and the Series 2018B Bonds being issued on a taxable basis 

and reaffirm the other matters set forth in the Original Indenture; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to so approve the issuance of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 

2018B Bonds as described above and reaffirm the other matters set forth in the Original Resolution;  

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the members of the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1. Bonds.    In order to obtain the funds to loan to the University to be used for the Financing 

Purposes, the Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds.  

The Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds shall be issued under and secured by and shall have the terms 

and provisions set forth in each of the respective Indentures; provided, however, that the aggregate principal amount 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 174



The University of Chicago Amendatory Bond Resolution 
  to authorize one or more Taxable Series 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds and Revenue Refunding Bonds   December 14, 2017 
Page 4   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds shall not exceed $275,000,000 (excluding original issue 

discount or premium, if any, plus accrued interest, if any).  

The Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds shall mature not later than 40 years from the date of 

their issuance, and shall have maturities or mandatory bond sinking fund redemption as provided in each of the 

respective Indenture.  The Series 2018A Bonds shall be issued on a tax-exempt basis and shall bear interest at one or 

more fixed rates of interest; provided, however, that such fixed rates of interest for the Series 2018A Bonds shall not 

exceed a weighted average annual interest rate of 8.0% per annum.   The Series 2018B Bonds shall be issued on a 

taxable basis and shall bear interest at one or more fixed rates of interest; provided, however, that such fixed rates of 

interest for the Series 2018B  Bonds shall not exceed a weighted average annual interest rate of 8.0% per annum.   

The Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds shall be issued only as fully registered bonds without 

coupons.  The Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Authority by the 

manual or facsimile signature of its Chairperson, its Vice Chairperson or its Executive Director and attested by the 

manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, or any person duly appointed by the 

members of the Authority to serve in such office on an interim basis, and may have the corporate seal of the 

Authority impressed manually or printed by facsimile thereon. 

Each issue of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds shall be issued and sold by the 

Authority and purchased by the Underwriter (as defined in the Original Resolution) for such issue at a purchase 

price of not less than 98% of the principal amount of such Series 2018A Bonds and Series 2018B Bonds, 

respectively, excluding, in each case, any original issue discount or premium, if any, plus accrued interest, if any.  

The Underwriter for each such issue of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds, respectively, shall 

receive underwriting compensation with respect to the sale of any such Series 2018A Bonds and Series 2018B 

Bonds, including underwriting discount, not in excess of 2% of the principal amount of such Series 2018A Bonds 

and such Series 2018B Bonds, respectively, excluding, in each case, original issue discount or premium, if any in 

connection with the sale of such Series 2018A Bonds and such Series 2018B Bonds. 

The Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds and the interest thereon shall be limited obligations 

of the Authority, payable solely from the income and revenues to be derived by the Authority pursuant to each of the 

respective Loan Agreements and each of the respective Notes (except such income and revenues as may be derived 

by the Authority pursuant to the Unassigned Rights (as defined in each of the respective Indentures)).  The Series 

2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds and the interest thereon shall never constitute a general obligation or 

commitment by the Authority to expend any of its funds other than (i) proceeds of the sale of the Series 2018A 

Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds, (ii) the income and revenues derived by the Authority pursuant to each of the 

respective Loan Agreements and Notes and other amounts available under each of the respective Indentures and (iii) 

any money arising out of the investment or reinvestment of said proceeds, income, revenue or receipts.   

 Section 2. Authority Documents.  The Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution (by 

manual or facsimile signature) by an Authorized Officer (as defined in the Original Resolution), and the delivery 

and use, of the Indentures and the Loan Agreements and reaffirms its authorization and approval of each of the other 

applicable Authority Documents (as defined in the Original Resolution).  The Secretary or any Assistant Secretary 

of the Authority is hereby authorized to attest, and may affix the official seal of the Authority to the Indentures, the 

Loan Agreements and any other Authority Document.  The Indentures and the Loan Agreements related to the 

Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds, respectively, shall be substantially in the forms of the Indentures 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 175



The University of Chicago Amendatory Bond Resolution 
  to authorize one or more Taxable Series 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds and Revenue Refunding Bonds   December 14, 2017 
Page 5   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
and the Loan Agreements previously provided to and on file with the Authority and hereby approved, or with such 

changes therein as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such 

execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the terms of 

the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds, respectively.   Each of the remaining Authority Documents 

shall be in the form to be approved by bond counsel, by counsel for the University and by counsel to the Authority.   

When the Indentures, the Loan Agreements or any other Authority Document is executed and delivered on behalf of 

the Authority as herein provided and as provided in the Original Resolution, such Indenture, Loan Agreement or 

other Authority Document will be binding on the Authority; and that from and after the execution and delivery of 

such Indenture, Loan Agreement or other Authority Document, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority 

are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as 

may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the provisions of such Indenture, Loan Agreement or 

other Authority Document as executed. 

 Section 3. Original Resolution.  Except to the extent modified by this Resolution, the Authority 

hereby ratifies and confirms the authorizations and approvals and all terms and provisions set forth in the Original 

Resolution, including, without limitation, the approval of the execution and delivery of any applicable Additional 

Transaction Documents, the approval of the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 

Statement (as such terms are defined in the Original Resolution) by the Underwriter in connection with the public 

offering and sale of any of the Series 2018A Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds and the authorization and approval 

of the members, officers, agents and employees of the Authority to do all such acts and things and to execute or 

accept all documents referred to therein.   

 Section 4. Subsequent Activity.  Each Authorized Officer of the Authority is hereby further 

authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, deliver and file all 

such documents, agreements, certificates and undertakings after the date of issuance of any of the Series 2018A 

Bonds and the Series 2018B Bonds as may be necessary to carry out the terms set forth in the Indentures, the Loan 

Agreements and the other related Authority Documents or other related bond or financing documents, including, 

without limitation, delivering all notices and certificates described therein and entering into supplements or 

amendments to the Indentures, the Loan Agreement or such or such other Authority Documents or such other bond 

or financing documents contemplated by the terms thereof. 

 Section 5. Authorization and Ratification of Acts.  The members, officers, agents and employees of 

the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute or accept all such as 

may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of this Resolution, the Original Resolution, the 

Indentures, the Loan Agreement, the other Authority Documents and the Additional Transaction Documents, and all 

of the acts and doings of the members, officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with 

the intent and purposes of this Resolution and the Original Resolution and within the parameters set forth herein and 

in the Original Resolution (except to the extent modified by this Resolution), whether heretofore or hereafter taken 

or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.  Unless otherwise provided therein, 

wherever in the Indentures, the Loan Agreements, any other Authority Documents or any other document executed 

in connection with the issuance of the Series 2018A Bonds or the Series 2018B Bonds it is provided that an action 

shall be taken by the Authority, such action shall be taken by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, or in the event 

of the unavailability, inability or refusal of an Authorized Officer to take such action, by any two members of the 

Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, empowered, and delegated the power and duty and directed to take 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 176



The University of Chicago Amendatory Bond Resolution 
  to authorize one or more Taxable Series 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds and Revenue Refunding Bonds   December 14, 2017 
Page 6   Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
such action on behalf of the Authority, all within the parameters set forth herein and in the Original Resolution 

(except to the extent modified by this Resolution). 

 Section 6. Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if 

any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not 

affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 7. Conflict.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby 

superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

passage, as by law provided. 
 

  
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 177



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Richard K. Frampton, EVP 
 
Date:  February 8, 2018 
 
Re:  Preliminary Bond Resolution authorizing development of a Community Bank Bond Program 

pursuant to an application submitted by StoneCastle Advisors LLC for the issuance of one or more 
series of Illinois Finance Authority Taxable Revenue Bonds in an aggregate principal amount now 
estimated not-to-exceed $250,000,000 

  
 
I.  Request:  a Preliminary Bond Resolution on a Program Development Matter – The Illinois 
Community Bank Bond Program: 
 
StoneCastle Advisors LLC (the “Sponsor), an SEC-registered investment advisor, has submitted an application to 
the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority” or “IFA”) for the issuance of up to $250,000,000 of Taxable 
Revenue Bonds to provide loans to community banks in Illinois. 
 
The Sponsor defines a “community bank” to mean banks, savings associations and their holding companies with 
less than $10 billion in consolidated assets that serve local markets. 
 

 The proposed Bonds will be investment grade-rated by the Kroll Bond Rating Agency (“Kroll”) and sold 
on a private placement basis to Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”) identified by the Sponsor. 

 The target bond rating is ‘BBB’ or better (Kroll).   
 The proposed conduit (taxable) bonds would be non-recourse to the Authority. 
 The maximum proposed bond term is estimated at 12 years from the issuance date.  (The actual maturity 

may be shorter due to prepayments on the Tier-2 Loans after the fifth anniversary date after issuance.)   
 
The underlying borrowers of these subordinate debt bond issues have been community banks.   
 
Eligible banks would be limited to (i) community banks headquartered in Illinois and (ii) community banks with 
branches located in Illinois.   
 
Additional information describing the benefits of the Program to community banks is provided below (see Section 
III – pp. 2-3). 
 
 
II. IFA Role as Conduit Issuer for the Community Bank Bond Program:  
 
The Authority will serve as a conduit issuer of Taxable Revenue Bonds issuing the proposed Bonds on a non-
recourse basis.  
 
As proposed, StoneCastle Advisors, LLC (Sponsor) will be responsible for credit approving each prospective 
community bank that participates in the multi-bank (i.e., composite) pooled collateralized loan program based on 
credit criteria established by Kroll.   
 
The Sponsor anticipates that the underlying loans to the participating (and pre-designated) community banks will 
qualify as “Tier-2 Loans” and “regulatory capital” for such banks based on prior experience in providing 
subordinate debt to community banks.   
 
Various StoneCastle affiliates have experience investing in investment grade-rated Collateralized Loan Obligation 
Pools and debt- (and related equity-) based products issued by community banking institutions nationally.  
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 178



Community Bank Bond Program  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
(StoneCastle Advisors, LLC – Sponsor)   
Conduit Taxable Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 2   Richard K. Frampton  
 

A. Public Purpose: 
 

The goal of the proposed transaction is to foster economic growth and create jobs in the State of Illinois.  
The proposed transaction seeks to provide cost-efficient capital to community banks in Illinois to enable 
these institutions to make affordable credit available to small businesses in the State, thereby leveraging 
existing capabilities.   
 

 
B. Program Would Provide “Multiplier Effect” on Illinois Community Bank Lending Capacity: 

 
More specifically, Bond Proceeds would be used to originate subordinate loans to Illinois community banks 
or bank holding companies (i.e., “Tier-2 Loans”) that the Sponsor (StoneCastle) anticipates would qualify 
as regulatory capital in Illinois for the borrowing institutions.   
 
Because regulatory capital has a multiplier effect for banks, if the subordinate debt were fully deployed to 
originate loans, StoneCastle estimates that, on average, 9x leverage for each dollar of regulatory capital will 
be created. 
 
Accordingly, StoneCastle concludes that a $250 million IFA Bond issue could generate over $2 billion of 
new lending and investment by Illinois Community Bank Bond Program borrowers, thereby resulting in job 
creation and economic activity in Illinois communities served by participating institutions. 
 

 
C. IFA as Conduit Issuer Could Generate “ESG” Investor Interest 

 
The Sponsor believes there is significant demand for Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”) 
qualifying investments, particularly within the thematic sectors of “community investing” or “local 
investing”.   
 
Management of StoneCastle Advisors believes that the proposed IFA Community Bank Bond Program will 
satisfy ESG investing requirements thereby resulting in additional investor demand to this asset class from 
ESG institutional investors, further improving access to capital for Illinois community banks and holding 
companies. 
 

 
III. Program Benefits to Illinois Community Bank Participants – Subordinate Loan Program (Tier-2 
Loans) to Create Additional Regulatory Capital: 
 
By initiating the Community Bank Bond Program, IFA would issue Taxable Bonds that would provide up to $250 
million of subordinate loans that would qualify as Tier-2 Regulatory Capital, thereby generating 9x leveraging as 
estimated (on average) by StoneCastle.   
 
Key Program Features include the following: 
 

 Eligible Participants:   
o Community banks domiciled or that have branches in the State of Illinois would qualify for financing 

under the Program  
 Subject to Sponsor/Rating Agency credit approval standards for participation in the 

Community Bank Bond Program  
 Would offer flexible lending to prospective borrowers, ranging from $1 million to $15 million funded by 

the bond sale.  
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 179



Community Bank Bond Program  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
(StoneCastle Advisors, LLC – Sponsor)   
Conduit Taxable Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 3   Richard K. Frampton  
 

 
 For the borrowing banks, interest paid on the Tier-2 Loans is deductible from income taxes (whereas 

dividends on preferred and common equity are not deductible). 
o As a result, the Program’s subordinated debt provides tax-advantaged capital at a net cost of 4% to 5%  

 This tax-advantaged capital solution has a significantly lower costs than (i) the 12%+ returns 
expected for Common Equity or (ii) the 7%+ return expected for Preferred Stock 

o Additionally, under this Program, community banks are able to improve capitalization without diluting 
their existing shareholders. 

 As contemplated, the Program would provide Tier-2 capital to the participating banks, enabling the funding 
of additional loans (i.e., growth) through a “multiplier effect”, which generally works as follows: 
o For every $1 of additional regulatory capital (including Tier-2 subordinate loans), a bank can make 

approximately $7-$10 of additional loans (with an estimate of $9 for a “typical” community bank). 
o Accordingly, as a result of the proposed $250 million to be issued under the Community Bank 

Bond Program, the Program could generate up to $2 billion of new loans to small businesses as a 
result of the leveraging impact of the subordinate loans (as Tier-2 regulatory capital). 

 Note:  Prospective banks or bank holding companies will be required to notify and receive approval from 
its primary regulators before borrowing under this proposed program. 

 
 
IV. Background - StoneCastle Advisors, LLC and its parent company (StoneCastle Partners, LLC) 
 

A. StoneCastle Advisors, LLC (the “Sponsor”):   
 
StoneCastle Advisors, LLC, as Sponsor, will be responsible for originating, underwriting (and applying for 
a debt rating from Kroll – anticipated at ‘BBB’ or higher), monitoring, and servicing the portfolio of capital 
loans to community banks.   
 
The Sponsor will identify both (i) the participating community banks that will borrower through the 
Program, and (ii) the target institutional investors for the private placement.   StoneCastle Advisors, LLC is 
an SEC-registered investment advisor.  
 
The Sponsor is wholly-owned by StoneCastle Partners, LLC. 
 
 

B. StoneCastle Partners, LLC (the “Parent Company”): 
 

StoneCastle Partners, LLC is a leading asset management firm focused exclusively investing in community 
banks and related financial assets throughout the United States, with community bank investments in all 50 
states.   
 
The Parent Company’s community bank financing activities also include originating and funding 
subordinate loans to bank holding companies.   
 
Community bank financing activities are also undertaken by various affiliated companies, including a 
publicly traded closed-end fund, StoneCastle Financial Corporation (“SCFC”), which is publicly traded 
(NASDAQ: “BANX”) and investment grade rated.   Both SCFS (‘A+’) and SCFS’s preferred shares 
(‘BBB+’) are currently investment grade rated by Kroll.   
 
StoneCastle Partners and its affiliates have substantial experience working with community banks, state 
and federal regulators, and industry trade organizations (e.g., the American Bankers Association).   
 
StoneCastle Partners collectively manages over $12 billion of assets focused on community banks, 
including over $2 billion of capital invested in more than 250 community banking institutions and over $10 
billion of institutional cash in over 650 community and national banks as of 12/31/2017. 
 
The Parent Company is headquartered in New York, NY, with offices in Atlanta, Memphis, Los Angeles, 
Chicago, Denver, and Salt Lake City and had approximately 65 employees as of 6/30/2017.   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 180



Community Bank Bond Program  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
(StoneCastle Advisors, LLC – Sponsor)   
Conduit Taxable Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 4   Richard K. Frampton  
 

The Parent Company is majority-owned and managed by its employees and its managing partners Joshua S. 
Siegel (CEO) and George Shilowitz (Co-CEO).  Both CharlesBank Capital Partners, LLC (a private equity 
firm based in Boston) and CIBC Capital Corporation (a subsidiary of Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce) own minority interests in the Parent Company. 
 
 

C. About StoneCastle’s Investment Team: 
 

The StoneCastle Advisors/StoneCastle Partners investment team is comprised of professionals with 
substantial expertise investing in community banks, and includes former bank managers, credit officers, 
private equity investors, rating agency analysts, bank examiners, fixed income specialists, and attorneys.   
 
This investment team is responsible for a rigorous, fundamental-based, bottom-up, credit and investment 
analysis on each community bank investment opportunity.    
 
StoneCastle Advisors/StoneCastle Partners’ due diligence review examines each community bank’s 
geographic footprint, regulatory filings and financial statements, business plan, and management team, 
among key factors.   
 
Following origination, all investments are monitored continuously via calls with the bank’s management 
team, quarterly regulatory filings and financial statements, and related information.   
 
This same methodology will be applied by the same managers responsible for overseeing the investing, 
lending, placement, and portfolio management activities of the proposed Illinois Community Bank Bond 
Program.   
 
Professional profiles of the Sponsor’s (i.e., StoneCastle’s) key management team will be presented in 
connection with a Final Bond Resolution for this financing. 
 
 

D. StoneCastle’s Prior Experience Structuring, Originating, and Managing Investment Grade-
Rated Pooled Community Bank Debt Obligations: 
 
The specialized experience of StoneCastle’s investment team, includes a track record of successfully 
structuring, originating, and managing investment portfolios comprised of pooled equity and debt 
instruments (including subordinate debt) originated on behalf of (multiple) community banks.    
 
StoneCastle’s experience in originating and managing community bank investment portfolios has 
included both investment grade-rated private placements and public securities offerings.   
 
o Most recently, StoneCastle’s investment team was involved as the portfolio manager and servicer 

(through its StoneCastle Investment Management, LLC) for a pooled debt issuance of $205.0 million 
(Community Funding CLO, Ltd.) that was privately placed to an institutional investor in October 2015.   

o This 2015 portfolio consisted primarily of unsecured, subordinated loans to FDIC-insured 
community/savings banks or their respective holding companies (each an “Obligor”) – these are the 
same targeted borrowers proposed under the proposed Community Bank Bond Program. 

 
 Demonstrating the viability of the pooled community bank subordinate debt obligation concept, 

the $205.0 million 2015 Notes were issued subject to obtaining a minimum rating of ‘A3 (sf)’ by 
Moody’s. 

 The Moody’s Press Release for these 2015 Notes is attached (see Attachment 2 to this 
memorandum). 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 181



Community Bank Bond Program  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
(StoneCastle Advisors, LLC – Sponsor)   
Conduit Taxable Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 5   Richard K. Frampton  
 
V.  Sponsor’s Program Development Plan – Next Steps: 
 
Assuming that the proposed Preliminary Bond Resolution is approved at the February 8th Board Meeting (see 
Attachment 1), the Sponsor plans to initiate program development, which will include the following activities: 
 

A. engaging prospective ESGs as potential investors (in the conduit IFA-issued Taxable Bonds);  
B. develops participant qualification criteria (including, but not limited to developing performance metrics 

and related evaluative criteria) in conjunction with Kroll (see Attachment 3:  Kroll Research Report :  “The 
Case for Community Banks, June 2, 2017);  

C. obtaining general regulatory approval of the Program from community banking regulators; and, 
D. obtaining approval from community banking regulators that the proposed subordinate loans will qualify as 

“Tier-2” regulatory capital for the community bank participants.  
 
The accompanying Preliminary Bond Resolution (see Attachment 1) will evidence the Illinois Finance Authority’s 
interest in developing a conduit, Taxable Bond-financed, Pooled Community Bank Bond Program with StoneCastle 
that will serve community banks domiciled in Illinois or those with branch locations in Illinois. 
 
 
VI.  Recommendation and Comments: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the accompanying Preliminary Bond Resolution (p. 7) that will support StoneCastle’s 
preliminary program development feasibility and due diligence undertaking. 
 
If StoneCastle’s program development effort is ultimately successful, StoneCastle will authorize bond counsel and 
placement counsel to initiate drafting of bond and underwriting/securities documents.   
 
Upon completing all legal and securities documentation to the satisfaction of all transaction counsel (including 
Special Counsel to the Illinois Finance Authority), StoneCastle would then return to the IFA Board of Directors and 
request consideration of a Final Bond Resolution that would authorized issuance of the proposed conduit, taxable 
Community Bank Bond Program (now proposed in an amount not-to-exceed $250.0 million).   
 
Notably, in connection with consideration of the Final Bond Resolution, more comprehensive descriptive 
information regarding the structure, mechanics, and borrower characteristics will be will be reported to the IFA 
Board of Directors. 
 
 
VII.  Preliminary Transaction Participant List – as of 1/31/2018: 
 
Conduit Bond Issuer: Illinois Finance Authority Chicago, IL 
Manager: StoneCastle Advisors, LLC New York, NY   
Counsel to Manager: To be determined 
 Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL David Kates 
Placement Agent: To be determined  
Counsel to Placement 
   Agent: To be selected by Placement Agent 
Bond Trustee: To be determined 
Trustee’s Counsel: To be selected by Bond Trustee  
Bond Rating: Kroll  New York, NY 
      
IFA Counsel: Schiff Hardin LLP Chicago, IL Bruce Weisenthal 
IFA Financial Advisor: To be determined 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 182



Community Bank Bond Program  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
(StoneCastle Advisors, LLC – Sponsor)   
Conduit Taxable Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 6   Richard K. Frampton  
 
 

Attachments: 
 

 Attachment 1:  Preliminary Bond Resolution for Conduit Taxable Community Bank Bond 
Program 

 
 Attachment 2:  Moody’s Investors Service Press Release on Pooled Community Bank 

Subordinated Loan Portfolio – October 15, 2015:  “Community Funding CLO, Ltd.” – rated 
‘A3 (sf)’. 
 
This offering was a portfolio of subordinate loans issued by US community banks or their holding 
companies.  100% of the portfolio participants were identified upfront.  Moody’s noted that the 
portfolio consisted entirely of subordinated debt issued by US community banks (or holding 
companies) that Moody’s did not rate at the time of issuance. 
 
An affiliate of StoneCastle (StoneCastle Investment Management, LLC) (i) identified the 
underlying Obligors (i.e., community banks/holding companies), (ii) arranged for and negotiated 
the terms of the Collateral Obligations (i.e., subordinate community bank loans that secure the 
Bonds), and (iii) serviced and monitored portfolio performance (i.e., underlying Obligor 
performance).   

 
 Attachment 3:  Kroll Research Report – June 2, 2017:  “The Case for Community Banks” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 183



Community Bank Bond Program  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
(StoneCastle Advisors, LLC – Sponsor)   
Conduit Taxable Revenue Bonds   February 8, 2018 
Page 7   Richard K. Frampton  
 
Attachment 1:  Preliminary Bond Resolution 
 

IFA RESOLUTION 2018-0208-____ 

 

A PRELIMINARY BOND RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, FOR 

THE PURPOSES SET FORTH HEREIN IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOW 

ESTIMATED NOT TO EXCEED $250,000,000 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate of the 

State of Illinois (the “Authority”), by StoneCastle Advisors, LLC (the “Sponsor”), an application for the issuance of 

one or more series of Taxable Revenue Bonds by the Authority, in an amount now estimated not-to-exceed Two 

Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000) (the “Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor’s application has been made with respect to “projects” within the meaning of the 

Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq., as supplemented and amended (the “Act”), for the 

purpose of providing the Authority with funds which may be loaned to community banks and bank holding 

companies domiciled in Illinois or with operations in Illinois (collectively, “Community Banks”) (i) to provide 

capital that will allow such Community Banks to provide additional loans to individuals and businesses, (ii) to fund 

one or more debt service reserve funds, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Sponsor or the Authority, (iii) to 

pay a portion of the interest on the Bonds, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Sponsor or the Authority, and (v) 

paying certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, all as permitted by the Act 

(collectively, the “Financing Purposes”); and 

WHEREAS, a determination has been made by the Authority that its issuance of the Bonds for the Financing 

Purposes will be consistent and in accord with the provisions and purposes of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, each of the Members of the Authority present is familiar with the form of this Preliminary Bond 

Resolution;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

Section 1.  Approval.   The application of the Sponsor is approved. 

Section 2.  Adoption of Resolution.  The Chairperson or Executive Director of the Authority, or any 

person duly appointed by the Members to serve in such office on an interim basis, is authorized and directed to 

execute, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority is authorized to seal and attest to the adoption of 

this Preliminary Bond Resolution and to do any and all things necessary or desirable in order to carry out the 

intention of the parties expressed herein. 

Section 3.  Issuance of Bonds.  Upon final determination of the details of the financing and provided that, 

on or before February 28, 2019, the Authority and the Sponsor shall have agreed to mutually acceptable terms for 

the Bonds and the contracts, agreements and proceedings related thereto, including, but not limited to, one or more 

bond purchase agreements (or comparable agreements) for the sale of the Bonds, the Authority will use all 

reasonable efforts to take the further steps necessary, including, but not limited to, execution of said bond purchase 

agreements, to issue its Bonds on behalf of the Borrower to finance all or a portion of the Financing Purposes in an 

amount now estimated not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000). 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 184



1/31/2018 Research: Rating Action: Moody's assigns rating to one class of notes issued by Community Funding CLO, Ltd. -Moody's 

MOODY'S About Moody's .... 1 Careers I RegulatoryAfla•rs I Terms or use I contact us 

~ ~ fln .,.. I Prof1le 

Moony's 
INVESTORS SERVICE 8 Print Email ~ Export PDF 

Rating Action: Moody's assigns rating to one class of notes issued by Community Funding CLO, Ltd. 

Global CredH Research -16 Oct 2015 

New York, October 16, 2015 -- Moody's Investors Service, C'Moody's") has assigned a rating to one class of notes issued by Community 
Funding CLO, Ltd. (the "Issue~· or "Community Funding CLO"). 

Moody's rating action is as follows: 

U,S.$205,000,000 Class A Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes Due 2027 (the "Class A Notes"), Definit ive Rating Assigned A3 (sf) 

RATINGS RATIONALE 

Moody's rating of the Class A Notes addresses the expected loss posed to noteholders. The rating reflects the risks arising from defaults of 
the underly ing portfolio of assets, the transaction's legal structure, and the characteristics of the underly ing assets. 

Community Funding CLO is a static cash f low COO. The issued notes will be collateralized by a portfolio of subordinated debt, which are 
mostly in the form of subordinated loans, issued by US community banks or their holding companies. The Issuer has identified 100% of the 
portfolio and has induded 98% of the portfolio as of the closing date. 

StoneCastle Investment Managemen~ LLC (the "Servicer") has directed the selection and acquisition and w ill direct the disposit ion of the 
assets on behalf of the Issuer. The Servicer w ill also direct the disposit ion of any defaulted securit ies. The transaction prohibits any asset 
purchases or substitutions at any time, except for one asset that is pending regulatory approval. 

In addit ion to the Class A Notes, the Issuer w ill issue preferred shares. 

The transaction incorporates interest and par coverage tests which, if t riggered, divert interest proceeds to pay down the notes. 

This COO's portfofio consists entirely of subordinated debt issued by US community banks or their holding companies that Moody's does not 
rate. Moody's assesses the default probability of bank obligors that do not have public ratings through credit scores derived using 
RiskCalc"' , an econometric model developed by Moody's Analytics. Moody's evaluation of the credit risk of the bank obligors in the pool 
relies on FDIC 02-2015 f inancial data w ith further adjustments to the banks' capital structure to account for the issuance of the subordinated 
debt. Moody's assumed a fixed recovery rate of 10% for these subordinated debt obligations. 

Moody's rating of the Class A Notes took into account a stress scenario in which we made adjustments to the RiskCalc"' credit scores for 
highly levered bank holding company issuers. This stress scenario was an important factor in the assigned rating. 

In addit ion, Moody's rating considered the highly concentrated nature of the portfolio, both by state and by individual asset size. 
Approximately 10% of the portfolio assets are located in the state w ith the highest exposure and about 20% of the portfolio assets are 
located in three states w ith high exposure to the oil and gas industry. Moreover, the portfolio only has 38 assets from 35 obligors, with the 
f ive largest assets each constituting 5.0% of the portfolio par. Credit deterioration of banks in particular states or the largest banks could 
have an outsized negative impact on the credit quality of the portfolio. 

For modeling purposes, Moody's used the following base-(;ase assumptions: 

Par amount: $250,000,000 

Weighted Average Rating Factor (WARF): 753 

Weighted Average Coupon (WAC): 6.98% 

Weighted Average Recovery Rate (WARR): 10.0% 

Weighted Average Life (WAL): 9.9 years 

In addit ion to the quantitative factors that Moody's explicitly models, qualitative factors were part of rating committee considerations. Moody's 
considers the structural protections in the transaction, the risk of an event of default , the legal environment and specif ic documentation 
features. All information available to rating committees, induding macroeconomic forecasts, inputs from other Moody's analy1ical groups, 
market factors, and judgments regarding the nature and severity of credit stress on the transactions, influenced the final rating decision. 

Methodology Underlying the Rating Action 

The principal methodology used in this rating was "Moody's Approach to Rating TruPS COOs," published in June 2014. Please see the 
Credit Policy page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology. 

Factors That Would Lead to an Upgrade or Downgrade of the Rating: 

This transaction is subject to a number of factors and circumstances that could lead to an upgrade or downgrade of the rating, as described 
below: 

1) Macroeconomic uncertainty: The transaction's perfomnance could be negatively affected by uncertainty about credit condit ions in the 
general economy, certain regional economies, and in the US banking sector. Moody's has a stable ouUook on the US banking sector. 

2) Portfolio credit risk: Credit performance of the assets collateraliz ing the transaction that is better than Moody's current expectations could 
have a posit ive impact on the transaction's perfomnance. Conversely, asset credit perfomnance weaker than Moody's current expectations 
could have adverse consequences on the transaction's performance. 

Related Issuers 

Community Funding CLO, Ltd. 

Related Research 

iJ/olew Issue Report: Community 
Funding CLO, Ltd. 

SEC Rule 17g-7 Report of 
R&Ws: Community Funding 
CLO, Ltd. Deal v1.0 Compared 
To CLO, SME, Other Cash 
Flow COO & ABS v2.0 

J 

1/3 

Attachment 2 - Moody's Ratings Report - 2015 StoneCastle-Managed CDO Page 8

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 185

rframpton
Highlight

rframpton
Highlight

rframpton
Highlight

rframpton
Highlight

rframpton
Highlight



    8a11         8    1 7879   1     8 988   8  9          7   988       78  88 7       6o22    12 

012013405 6879   a 69           a       8 988   8            7   988       78  88 7                        As  A            8
2  i   8                    9 7  9887 8a P 7               8 8     7          7  988 8    87  7 9        9             8 9878878
          77    8   78  7   77   8    6 8  9     7 9 87   7887 9 77             999    8    77  9 7 8   7      9       9     7  9    788 
A  9    8         9   8a
      8    99    9   88   88                 8   s 8              8          7 9   8  8          8   s6s n         8        
9        8     9887      7 9              7   7  78    9     7  99        9        7            8   7   8    7  778         888
  88888                7       8       9   79   778      7   s  98              88   si  7n  98                   8   s6s    9 9  9  7   
         8        7          99           8      9     99     7 8        7 7       99 8   7    77     87 9  777 7   
   9             777  987  987  9  888 8        8        7  87 8        9 9  878     78    7    9           7     9        9      7      7 69 7 
d  78  7 9   7        98  9987    7      78   8         9   7     7 7          7  9     88   7       7777 69 77  d  78        888 9 8   9     
  7    9          7     77         9      78     7887      7  8    R 6            7 699 7  d  78  8           8      77     7          
     7  7  7 8 8   7  987  987    7      778   8    7 7   9  7 9   7     77 77  7     78    8        7  7  7  77    8878   988        9  9  
   77   9    8 9 7  777   7a 99 a
 88      9               9 7    9887 8       7       78  7     9 7  9     78   9 78  R 6       o 
  988   d  78a h3 88      9                 9 7    9887 8       7       78  7     9 7  9     78   9 7 8 R 6     00   
  988   d  7a  3
     7   7 9  88  7 9            8 9 9  8 8       8   9 89       9   7            7  7 9 7   7   88 7  7      9 9  9  7 8            8     
6is5A Ps6S     As 56i          7  8 7     9              8  7   9     988       8 9   87 8        9 9  8 8  877   7 87     8  7           88       8 9  
 7 8            88       8         8   8  7      
     7        9          7    7787  9    8 9    9  9   78 9   7     7 7    7  9  8 8 9 9  9  7       78   8 9 7 9 9  9  7   
    a11         8    1  7  77879       98  g         o   05 53
        78    78   8   88 9    98       9 9  8 8      7 87      o6     69    9 7o       8   788   7987 
      88 a 9    9    9 9  8 8   9   9  7 9  9        8 7 9      99  8  78  9    8                 8 8            9     9    9 7      9      
  7    7          8 77      9 77 9    8888       9  7         88        888  7    8   7    9        777  9 7    8    7  88  987       8
988             77    77             7 77  8    8    8 7 9   8           
     9    8  888 7     9      9   8  78     9 7    1  99888     7        9      7 7         8  7  9    7   9       8   8  78     7 9       
7    9        9 8  87a 7      88 777             7      7 9 7 8  788     9 7    1  988     77         8 9      9      9              7
     8  7     7  7    8          7  8      9    8    9     9  77            8  9       9    8       9    8  88 7     9 8             7  
   8 9      77 7         8  7  9    7   9            788     7 9            9     9           77 8             7  9        9        79  
 999      99   9     9          877      8      7   7                 8        77 8             7                         8      9    8     8
9       7         8    9    77   9       8     788                7      8   9   9     9    77   99       7 9        9  77                9 
 9   7 988     8  877a 777            99   88 9  77        77       79    987   7        88889      8       7 9    7  8          99  7 
            9     7          7         9        9  9      999         9 7 9  7      77  99               7        9       7999877 8777   7  9    8
 9       777  8888 77 17       9 77       77  778     7  8888 7              8     
    9   9    7  8      78      7  7       7                   8              777     9   7       78        8  9     9       9      87      8
 9    9  77 98 9  778          8  99     9         77 988   9    77   9       8   8  78           7         9 9     7       i  7     8       8
9       7  8                     8   8  77788     9     9  777777        8       a       9    7    778    88   8       9 7  7         8   8  7       99 7 
7      
6   99       8   8  778     9  7        8   78  7 7987 9          7   7     9            9     9  7    777  7 9 7   9                 9        7  
             8         9      9 788      9  78      7  79   9     9 99  8  9        7       8  7 9  7        9   98  88 7    77
 9     
  7779988 887777   7  9    8  9       7  88 7 17       9 7             8         9       9   7   9       8   8  78     79     7     9     
 9  777 A9 9 
 88  R       7       9  8  
             9  7 s     
d  3 74     s S   78 777         d77S   88  0   4 84   47  77       7       
5      
Ms56d A  P      42   
 5   6  i6 aa 330033   22 0  2 
M   s5 7       8  6   6 d 7R   7   A 77   S  P 9    97 8    77  s    1  9      492  7    
 5   6  i6  330033   22 0  2 
6 798    s    7aaa 
      8    78   8      7       
3 4 s 77         777  
d77  S     dS 0444  5      
Ms56d A  P      42   
 5   6  i6 aa 330033   22 0  2 


  3405       8       9            8    78   8  7    7              8   9     8       9  1     7      7 8  8 9   9     9 78      7    7    O ss S  V      
     8  787  7    
©2stsM 2aMs oe seeMst Mo dyytove s MseMy2e es2Ms©sy s ©n a t sMe 2aMs oe aeescsaMse nddsefl a2s dyytoee ©M22s M 3 


Attachment 2 - Moody's Ratings Report - 2015 StoneCastle-Managed CDO Page 9

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 186



1/31/2018 Research: Rating Action: Moody's assigns rating to one class of notes issued by Community Funding CLO, Ltd. -Moody's 

OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND 
MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS MAY INCLUDE MOODY'S CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT 
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES. MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS 
CONTRACTUAL, FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT. 
CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR 
PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT STATEMENTS OF 
CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT 
RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ANALYTICS, INC. CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S 
PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S 
PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. 
NEITHER CREDIT RATINGS NOR MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR 
INVESTOR. MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS AND PUBLISHES MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND 
UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS 
UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE, HOLDING, OR SALE. 

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE 
RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS OR MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING 
AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER. 

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH 
INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, 
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR 
MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT. 

CREDIT RATINGS AND MOODY'S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS 
DEFINED FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A 
BENCHMARK. 

All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY'S from sources believed by it to be aocurate and reliable. Because d the possibility of human or 
mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided "AS IS"without warranty d any kind. MOODY'S adopts all 
necessary measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable 
including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However, MOODY'S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verity or 
validate information received in the rating process or in preparing the Moody's publications. 

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any 
person or entay for any indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information 
contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information, even if MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility d such losses or damages, including but not limaed to: (a) any loss d 
present or prospective profas or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating 
assigned 17f MOODY'S. 

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any 
direct or compensatory losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful 
misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the avoidance of doub~ by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond 
the control of, MOODY'S or any of as directors, dficers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the 
information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information. 

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SUCH RATING OR OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S IN ANY FORM OR 
MANNER WHATSOEVER. 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation ("MCO"), here17f discloses that most issuers of 
debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to Moody's Investors Service, Inc. for appraisal and rating services rendered by a fees 
ranging from $1,500 to approximately $2,500,000. MCO and MIS also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of MIS's ratings 
and rating processes. Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entaies, and between entities who hold 
ratings from MIS and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com 
under the heading "Investor Relations- Corporate Governance - Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy." 

Addaional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY'S 
affiliate, Moody's Investors Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody'sAnalyticsAustralia Pty Lid ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 
383569 (as applicable). This document is intended to be provided only to "wholesale clients• within the meaning d section 761G d the Corporations Act 
2001. By continuing to aocess this document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY'S that you are, or are accessing the document as a 
representative of, a "wholesale clienr and that neaher you nor the entay you represent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or its contents 
to •retail clients• within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY'S credit rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a 
debt obligation d the issuer, not on the equity securities d the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors. tt would be reckless and 
inappropriate for retail investors to use MOODY'S credit ratings or publications when making an investment decision. ff in doubt you should contact your 
financial or other professional adviser. 

Addaional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. ("MJKK") is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is 
wholly-owned by Moody's Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody's SF Japan K.K. ("MSFJ") is a wholly-owned credit rating 
agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization ("NRSRO"). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ 
are Non-NRSRO Creda Ratings. Non-NRSRO Creda Ratings are assigned by an entay that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will 
not quaiWy for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are creda rating agencies registered with the Japan Financial Services 
Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No.2 and 3 respectively. 

MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securaies (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and 
commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ 
(as applicable) for appraisal and rating services rendered by a fees ranging from JPY200,000 to approximately JPY350,000,000. 

MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements. 

Moody's Integrity Hotline 

EU 

001-800-506-1440 

Japan 

KDDI: 00-539-111 then 888-320-1668 

NTI: 0034-811 ~01 then 888-320-1668 

Outside of the EU and Japan 

1-866-330-M DYS (6397) 

Browse By 

Home 

Research & Ratings 

Products & Solutions 

News & Events 

Careers 

Contact Us 

Help & Support 

Contact Us 

Submit a Complaint 

Tenns & Conditions 

Terms of Use 

Privacy Policy 

Proprietary Rights 

© 2018 Moody's Investors Service, Inc., Moody's Analytics, Inc. and/or their affiliates and licensors. All rights reserved. Regional Sites: L.:l G:::l.::o:::ba;::l ____ ,;,.,._.l 

https://www.moodys.com/research/Moodys-assigns-rating-to-one-class-<>f-notes-issued-by-PR_336744# 3/3 

Attachment 2 - Moody's Ratings Report - 2015 StoneCastle-Managed CDO Page 10

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 187



 
 

 
  June 2, 2017 

 

U.S. Financial Institutions 

FI Research 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Analytical Contacts: 
 
Van Hesser, Senior Managing Director 
vhesser@kbra.com, (646) 731-2305  

The Case for  
Community Banks 

Attachment 3 Page 11

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 188

mailto:vhesser@kbra.com


 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 2 June 2, 2017 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Summary ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

Asset size might not be as important as you think .............................................................................. 3 

Deposits, the great equalizer ........................................................................................................... 4 

Operating expenses—where did the benefits of scale go? .................................................................... 6 

The key is not just scale, but local scale ............................................................................................ 7 

The risks of being simple ................................................................................................................. 8 

Ever vigilant on commercial real estate ............................................................................................. 8 

The advantages of being simple ..................................................................................................... 11 

Regulatory evolution helps ............................................................................................................ 12 

Stronger capital rounds out the picture ........................................................................................... 13 

The KBRA Difference ..................................................................................................................... 13 

Financial Institutions Analytical Contacts ......................................................................................... 14 

 

  

Attachment 3 Page 12

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 189



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 3 June 2, 2017 

 

Summary 

• Though it might strike some as counterintuitive, Kroll Bond Rating Agency (KBRA) believes 
community banks can compete successfully with much larger banks; In fact, many community banks 
in KBRA’s rated universe consistently produce superior risk-adjusted profitability compared to many 
of the larger U.S. banks 

• A closer examination of cost structure—both interest and noninterest expense—reveals that 
community banks (assets less than $10 billion) are not at a competitive disadvantage from a pricing 
power standpoint 

• KBRA believes that the benefits that accrue to smaller banks by virtue of being local—in terms of 
market knowledge, deeper customer relationships, and superior responsiveness—can offset the 
advantages derived from larger banks’ size, most notably more efficient processing, more 
sophisticated risk management, broader product offerings, and larger marketing spend  

• The concentration of risks—both geographic and in the loan book—is a key differentiating feature 
between smaller banks and larger ones; well-run community banks with demonstrably advantageous 
local share have proven that those risks are manageable  

• Based on a thorough review of relevant data, and factoring in our extensive experience in rating 
nearly 100 community banks—each one factoring in in-depth conversations with management 
teams—give us a high degree of confidence that well-run community banks deserve to be rated in 
the investment grade category.   

 
Asset size might not be as important as you think 

At first blush, you can see why someone would question the ability of community banks (those with assets 
less than $10 billion) to compete successfully (and earn competitive returns) against the industry’s giants. 
You would reason that banking is a commodity business, where competitiveness is a function of capitalizing 
on economies of scale (onboarding more customers to the platform) and scope (leveraging core functions 
such as marketing and risk management and cross-selling one product line into another). Moreover, you 
might figure that smaller banks typically are hampered by outdated technology, and subject to risky 
geographic loan concentrations and adverse selection in terms of their customers.  

At KBRA, we see these points as overly simplistic generalizations.  

To get a sense as to how important size is to fundamental performance in U.S. banking, we broke the 
industry into three buckets, based on asset size: 

• Less than $10 billion  
• Between $10 billion and $50 billion 
• Greater than $50 billion 

We then looked at a variety of operating metrics, encompassing profitability, asset quality, and capital 
adequacy, on average, for the three groups across a 10-year period to pick up pre- and post-financial-crisis 
performance. 

  

Attachment 3 Page 13

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 190



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 4 June 2, 2017 

 

Upon closer examination of the issues and relevant performance data, we would make the following 
observations: 

• Cost structures—the basis for competition—are not that different between smaller banks and larger 
ones. 

• The benefits that accrue to smaller banks by virtue of being local—in terms of market knowledge, 
deeper customer relationships, and superior responsiveness—can offset the advantages derived from 
size, most notably larger banks’ more efficient processing, more sophisticated risk management, 
broader product offerings and larger marketing spend. 

• Risks are not any more ominous at smaller banks that at larger ones. In fact, our prior research 
examining small- and large-bank performance in the 2008-09 financial crisis found that smaller banks 
fared better than the largest banks. 

These points underpin the superior risk-adjusted profitability that smaller banks have achieved through the 
cycle compared to larger banks. When KBRA factors in the industry’s secular improvements, most notably 
improved capital adequacy and enhanced regulatory oversight, we believe well-run community banks can 
be investment-grade-rated credits.  

Finally, this is not to say that smaller banks are equal to or better credits than larger ones. Diversification 
of earnings and risks ultimately make well-run larger banks better credits than well-run smaller banks. 
KBRA’s research merely points out that smaller banks can indeed achieve fundamental performance that is 
consistent with our definition of what constitutes investment grade.   

Deposits, the great equalizer 

A deposit charter is one of the great competitive equalizers in financial services. It allows regulated 
depositories to gather federal government guaranteed funding (up to $250,000 per account per bank), 
regardless of the size of the institution.  Guaranteed deposits are credit insensitive, tend to be sticky, and 
are usually highly cost effective. In all but the most stressed conditions, we can confidently say the same 
of the more broadly defined core deposit category, which excludes brokered deposits and jumbo time 
deposits over $250,000.  

The benefit of deposit funding, especially core deposit funding, goes beyond pricing power. Core deposits’ 
relative stickiness becomes critically important when the credit cycle turns. Remember, risk of bank failure 
rises when hot money smells trouble—almost always related to loan quality deterioration—and pulls out. 
Relative lack of a reliance on credit sensitive sources of funding puts the vast majority of community banks 
in good stead compared to the largest banks.  

As of December 31, 2016, some 76% of community bank liabilities were core deposits, compared to 54% 
for the large banks (assets greater than $50 billion) as shown in Figure 1.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 3 Page 14

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 191

https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/2162


 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 5 June 2, 2017 

 

Figure 1: Community Banks’ Advantageous Funding Base 
Core Deposits as a Percentage of Total Liabilities 
 

 

The ability of community banks to fund most of their balance sheets with core deposits goes a long way to 
solidifying pricing power vis a vis their larger brethren. In 2016, community bank liabilities cost 46 bp on 
average, 28 bp through the 74 bp average reported among the largest banks. (Figure 2). In addition to 
strong core deposit bases, community banks generally maintain ample capacity to borrow from the Federal 
Home Loan Bank (FHLB) in the event of need. The FHLB was a reliable and relatively low cost contingent 
funding source during the 2008 financial crisis.   

Figure 2: No Disadvantage Here 
Average Cost of Liabilities 
 

 

  

Attachment 3 Page 15

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 192



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 6 June 2, 2017 

 

Of course, while this historic relative performance provides some reasonable basis to expect a continuation 
of such trends over the near-to-intermediate term, we’d be remiss not to consider the possibility that deposit 
betas1 may be different this time around as the Fed embarks on its first interest rate tightening cycle in 
years. In this regard, we will monitor—and expect to comment further on—core deposit pricing trends in 
the anticipated rising rate environment, given some key industry dynamics that are on the horizon.  

Notably, the increasing prevalence of “scale” internet deposit platforms (backed with formidable marketing 
budgets and prowess), as likely industry pricing leaders, is expected to create at least some upward pressure 
on deposit costs.  

Perhaps holding even greater implications for deposit betas in a rising rate environment (as we see it), the 
requirements of the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) place a new regulatory-driven premium on core deposit 
balances. Compounding that increased importance of “high LCR value” deposits is the fact that a large 
amount of the industry’s Level I high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) are balances held at the Fed.  

As the country’s central banker pursues the normalization of its now $4.5 trillion balance sheet, we would 
expect those bank reserves held at the Fed to necessarily decline. By extension, even when assuming just 
a static industry balance sheet, large banks are likely to need to replace these Level I assets with at least 
some portion of Level II assets (which are subject to liquidity “haircuts” under the LCR numerator 
calculation). Accordingly, high-value LCR deposits will become even more valuable under the outflow 
assumptions required in the calculation of the LCR’s denominator.  

All of this means competition for core deposits is likely to increase. Partially mitigating this concern for many 
community banks is the prevalence of relationship-based commercial deposits from small business 
customers. These long-standing customers tend to avoid the large banks given generally superior customer 
service at the community banks combined with ready access to key decision-makers at the bank. 

Operating expenses—where did the benefits of scale go? 

For banks, a funny thing happened on the way to getting larger—the benefits of scale became illusive. How 
can that be? Banking efficiency has to increase as the scope and scale of its business grows, right? Well, 
not necessarily.  

What the great consolidation wave in banking, starting in the 1980s, has taught us is that size, achieved 
largely through acquisition, breeds complexity, in terms of both a growing geographic footprint and an 
expanded set of products and services. Complexity produces greater administrative friction stemming from 
increased span-of-control risk, including management layers, regulatory reporting and compliance 
requirements, and technology black holes. So, whether we observe noninterest expenses relative to assets 
(Figure 3) or revenues (Figure 4), community banks actually fare better than their larger bank peers. Even 
though the significantly increased regulatory reporting and compliance burden falls disproportionately on 
smaller banks, we can make a convincing case that the added costs related to increased complexity that 
larger banks bear largely offset the benefits of scale.  

Our thinking squares up with what regulatory research has discovered. According to the FDIC, 
“most of the benefit of economies of scale is realized once community banks reach $100 million 
to $300 million in total assets, depending on the lending specialty.”2 

 
 
 

                                                           
1 Defined as the percentage of a rate move that will be passed along to customers with interest bearing deposit accounts.  
2 “FDIC Community Banking Study,” FDIC, December 2012.  

Attachment 3 Page 16

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 193



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 7 June 2, 2017 

 

Figure 3: Complexity Offsets the Benefits of Scale (I) 
Operating Costs as a Percentage of Average Assets 
 

 

Figure 4: Complexity Offsets the Benefits of Scale (II) 
Efficiency Ratio 
 

 

The key is not just scale, but local scale 

So, when taken together, the cost structure—funding and operating—of community banks does not result 
in a competitively disadvantaged position in our opinion. We acknowledge that scale matters, but, in 
banking, the degree of local scale can be the most important competitive determinant.  

Think about it this way. Banks with low market share (usually defined by deposit share) in a given market 
will likely see subpar returns, a function of seeing fewer opportunities (from getting lost in the competitive 
landscape), being subject to a lack of pricing power for both assets and liabilities, and running the risk of 
adverse selection in terms of lending.  

Attachment 3 Page 17

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 194



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 8 June 2, 2017 

 

As the bank in question builds local scale, competitiveness improves, as brand awareness grows, bringing 
with it improved pricing power. In addition, a broader lending opportunity set emerges, which, in turn, 
allows the bank to become more selective with regard to its borrowers.  

It naturally follows that at some point, decreasing returns of scale will eventually set in as the marginal 
increase in profitability no longer justifies the increase in expenses used to build another branch or add 
additional staff. Local scale has been achieved.  

The upshot of all of this is that smaller banks can compete quite effectively for their natural customers 
(individuals and small businesses) by building local scale in a market or submarket. Now, by definition, 
smaller banks will have competitive scale in fewer markets than their larger competitors will, and that 
concentration of risk is something that our methodology takes into consideration when we rate smaller 
banks. Which brings us to our next topic.  

The risks of being simple 

Conventional wisdom holds that concentrated risks are riskier than risks that are more dispersed. We know 
community bank risks are more concentrated than the larger banks, most notably on two dimensions: 

• Geographic footprint, and 
• Loan type. 

Community banks operate in a comparatively small market area. There are plenty of examples of economic 
hardship impacting certain areas more than others, including the oil patch in the 1980s, New England in the 
late 1980s and early 1990s, and some of the Sun Belt markets in the wake of the financial crisis. All three 
instances triggered banking crises to varying degrees. Unbridled speculative real estate development was 
at the heart of all three, which brings us to our second risk concentration, loan type.  

Community banks have seen an erosion of their participation in the most popular consumer loan products 
as these have been recast really as consumer products that are now dominated by the very large banks 
which market intensively and across the country. That leaves community banks concentrated more heavily 
in commercial lending, including commercial real estate.  

We are not overly concerned about this concentration where the bank in question is a diligent, capable, and 
experienced credit underwriter. Smaller business lending is a nicely profitable segment where we believe 
risk and reward generally stay in alignment through the credit cycle.   

Loan exposures, while concentrated compared to the largest banks, are generally not unduly concentrated, 
in our opinion. Most areas in the U.S. are fairly well diversified economically, and most community bank 
commercial loan portfolios are fairly granular, with largest loans well below regulated legal lending limits. It 
is worth noting that leveraged lending to the middle- and large-corporate market, on the other hand, has 
shown a pattern of much greater volatility, where risk and reward routinely breaks down toward the end of 
economic expansions. Community banks really don’t play in that market to any great degree.  

Ever vigilant on commercial real estate  

A business line that is prominent at many smaller banks is lending on commercial real estate (CRE). Lending 
on smaller scale properties is a natural business for community banks, as it leverages local market 
knowledge and relationships. Astute local lenders will thoroughly understand a market’s real estate 
dynamics and economic sensitivity.   

  

Attachment 3 Page 18

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 195



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 9 June 2, 2017 

 

In assessing the risks of CRE, we break down exposures into two buckets: 

• Owner-occupied mortgages, which behave much more like comparatively low risk commercial and 
industrial (C&I) loans, and  

• Investor CRE, which includes non-owner occupied commercial mortgages as well as construction 
loans (loans used for the acquisition, development, and construction (ADC) of commercial properties 
in regulatory parlance) 

The latter is the riskier bucket, especially ADC lending, given that its cash flow expectations are prospective 
and subject to overruns and market uncertainty.  

As shown in Figure 5, lending on investor CRE represents on average nearly one-third of community bank 
loan portfolios at December 31, 2016. This is one of the principal points of differentiation between smaller 
banks and larger banks, where investor CRE represents less than 11% of total loans.  

Figure 5: Investor CRE: Important to Smaller Banks 
Loan Portfolio Mix – Year End 2016 
 

 

We watch trends in CRE carefully as a common theme running through community banks that run into 
trouble is aggressive growth in CRE, especially out of footprint. During the recent financial crisis, FDIC 
analysis3 shows that failed banks had concentrations of ADC loans to total assets that were roughly three 
times the average of concentrations of non-failed institutions. According to the FDIC, “even the most well-
conceived and soundly underwritten CRE project can become troubled during the periodic overbuilding cycles 
that characterize these markets.” Often, banks fund rapid growth in ADC loans with brokered deposits, 
thereby compounding community bank risk.  

At KBRA, we spend a lot of time discussing CRE lending strategy, underwriting, exposure, and risks with 
bank managements. In addition, we take comfort in regulators being vigilant on emerging risks in the asset 
class. Notably, in December 2015, the regulators updated their 2006 interagency guidance4 on CRE risks 
by releasing a statement entitled “Prudent Risk Management for Commercial Real Estate Lending.” 5 
Observing that “substantial growth in many CRE assets and lending markets, increased competitive 

                                                           
3 “Acquisition, Development, and Construction Loan Concentration Study,” FDIC Office of Inspector General, October 2012.  
4 “Concentrations in Commercial Real Estate Lending, Sound Risk Management Practices,” Federal Reserve, FDIC, OCC, December 12, 
2006. 
5 “Statement on Prudent Risk Management for Commercial Real Estate Lending,” Federal Reserve, FDIC, OCC, December 17, 2015. 

Attachment 3 Page 19

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 196



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 10 June 2, 2017 

 

pressures, rising CRE concentrations in banks, and an easing of CRE underwriting standards” regulators 
stepped up their scrutiny of CRE given there is “some concern that the credit cycle may be about to change.” 
The good news is that regulatory jawboning backed with increased examination scrutiny and, perhaps most 
importantly, capital penalties for excessive risk concentrations have had an impact. To that end, banks 
have kept construction lending to levels well below those seen pre-financial crisis (Figure 6).  

Figure 6: Under Tight Control 
Construction Lending 2007-2016 
 

 

Finally, we will examine closely just how competitive a smaller bank is in its natural footprint. The strongest 
community banks are the ones that do not have to reach for earnings growth via compromised loan 
underwriting standards in the easiest—and riskiest—place to do so, investor CRE.  

But if we assume the bank is an effective credit underwriter, there is little evidence that the typical 
community bank portfolio composition is any more risky than the larger banks. To investigate, we looked at 
risk-adjusted net interest margins (NIM less net charge offs) for our three groups of banks over the past 10 
years (Figure 7) and the community bank group produced materially higher risk-adjusted profitability than 
the large bank group.  

 
 
  

Attachment 3 Page 20

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 197

https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/6406
https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/6406


 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 11 June 2, 2017 

 

Figure 7: A More Profitable Mix through the Cycle 
Risk Adjusted Net Interest Margin 
 

 

The advantages of being simple 

We often hear “broadening the product set” as a key motivation driving bank acquisition activity. 
Conceptually it makes sense—drive more product into your customer base—and it is an important piece of 
planned merger synergies that justify premiums paid for the target. It is reasonable for managements to 
assume that an ever growing array of products and services will strengthen customer relationships, and, in 
turn, competitive advantage.  

But is a broader product set really something that a community bank’s typical customer base demands? We 
have long been skeptical of the value of cross-sell in banking. Sure, delivering more products to your 
customers is a great way to improve efficiency and strengthen customer satisfaction; after all, you’re 
meeting more of their demands in a one stop shopping experience. But is that really what your customers 
want? Maybe all they want is a simple array of basic products done well. We believe that mindset is typical 
among community bank customers and synchs up well with what community banks offer. So maybe that 
broader product set, complete with layers of operational support and distracted and potentially overbearing 
and misguided sales tactics really isn’t all that additive to a bank’s enterprise value.  

Much has been made of the fact that community banks are reliant on two businesses, gathering deposits 
and making loans. Their lack of non-lending businesses, according to conventional thinking, makes 
community bank revenue streams qualitatively deficient relative to those of larger banks. With a more 
diverse product set, revenue streams at the larger banks tend to have a greater contribution from fees, 
theoretically making them less sensitive to the economic cycle.  

We would make the following observations: 

• All things being equal, you would prefer to have a durable (and growing) revenue stream. However, 
simply having a higher percentage of revenue derived from fee-based sources does not necessarily 
make you a better credit. Several fee-based sources are highly volatile, namely trading, investment 
banking, mortgage banking, and loan syndications. They also can have relatively high fixed costs 

Attachment 3 Page 21

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 198



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 12 June 2, 2017 

 

while adding to complexity, drawing into question just how qualitatively superior they are relative to 
lending income.  

• Through the most recent cycle, there is little evidence that larger banks, with a greater percentage 
of their revenue generated through fee-based sources, produced more stable returns than 
community banks (Figure 8).  

• Taking all things into consideration—net interest income, noninterest income, operating expenses 
and loan losses—we do not view well-run community banks’ mix of business as materially inferior in 
terms of creditworthiness compared to that of larger banks.  

Figure 8: Community Banks Holding Their Own 
Return on Average Assets 
 

 

Regulatory evolution helps 

There is nothing like a good crisis to spur evolution. In U.S. banking regulation, each black eye brings about 
subsequent improvements in regulatory surveillance. It may annoy bankers, but to credit investors, 
improvements in regulatory oversight is generally a plus.  

Over the years, we have gotten improved disclosure (facilitating all important market discipline) and 
oversight around commercial real estate, leveraged lending, and sovereign lending. In the most recent 
financial crisis, the most damaging practice undertaken by traditional commercial banks (large and small) 
involved residential real estate. Although community banks were not large originators of subprime 
mortgages, nor were they involved in the riskier capital markets aspects of the mortgage markets, many 
were guilty of moving away from traditional underwriting practices across the mortgage space and a small 
but meaningful subset became aggressive lenders in construction and land development.  

This go around, regulators materially increased capital requirements, tightened loan documentation and 
disclosure minimums, and made it more difficult for banks to originate riskier loans, especially leveraged 
corporate loans and commercial property loans. As discussed earlier, greater regulatory scrutiny on, and 
disincentives related to, investor CRE exposure is especially relevant to the community bank sector.   

Attachment 3 Page 22

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 199



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 13 June 2, 2017 

 

Stronger capital rounds out the picture 

Improved regulatory oversight is one secular change that is strengthening the community bank story. 
Another is increased capital. Along with the rest of the industry, capital adequacy of community banks has 
improved significantly post the financial crisis. Today, their capital ratios compare favorably to the larger 
banks on an absolute basis (Figure 9), and, look better still when factoring in the higher risk profiles of the 
largest banks.   

Figure 9: Structurally Stronger 
Tangible Common Equity Ratio 
 

 

The KBRA Difference 

At KBRA, we rated our first community bank in December 2012, and today we are rapidly approaching our 
100th rated name in the sector. Our approach is quintessential KBRA—begin with no pre-conceived biases, 
do thorough research, rigorously test the conclusion, and closely monitor ongoing trends.    

An essential element to our due diligence is to spend time with management. In this report, we’ve outlined 
the intuitive risks in the sector. We look to management to explain how we should get comfortable with the 
management of those risks. What is management’s case competing against the giants in the industry? What 
are the local risks? Take us back to the financial crisis—how did the bank fare? What lessons were learned? 
Take us forward. What is the growth plan? To what degree is technology impacting operations and 
influencing strategy? What is the sensitivity to an economic softening? This is a story sector, and the 
management discussion and interaction is critical to our rating outcome.  

Banking regulators have come to the same conclusion. According to the FDIC, “[community] bank 
management decisions…underscore the importance of a management approach that sticks to the basics, 
avoiding such practices as out-of-area lending and reliance on non-core funding, and emphasizing portfolio 
diversification and strong practices in loan underwriting and administration.”6 

  

                                                           
6 FDIC Community Banking Study, FDIC, December 2012.  

Attachment 3 Page 23

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 200



 
 
 

 
The Case for Community Banks Page 14 June 2, 2017 

 

Recent FI Research: 

• KBRA First Quarter 2017 Compendium 
• KBRA 2017 U.S. Banking Outlook Update 
• KBRA FI Research: Bank Construction Lending on the Rise 
• KBRA FI Research: Surging Bank Acquisitions Stable to Positive for Ratings 

 

Analytical Contacts: 

Van Hesser, Senior Managing Director 
vhesser@kbra.com, (646) 731-2305 
 

Joe Scott, Managing Director 
jscott@kbra.com, (646) 731-2438 

Ian Jaffe, Senior Director 
ijaffe@kbra.com, (646) 731-3302 
 

Vince Arscott, Senior Director 
varscott@kbra.com, (646) 731-2473  

Ashley Phillips, Director 
aphillips@kbra.com, (301) 969-3185 
 

Ben Stewart, Associate Director 
bstewart@kbra.com, (301) 969-3186 
 

Leah Hallfors, Associate Director 
lhallfors@kbra.com, (301) 969-3242 
 

M Scott Durant, Associate Director 
sdurant@kbra.com, (301) 969-3248 
 

Jason Szelc, Associate Director 
jszelc@kbra.com, (301) 969-3174 

 

Samuel Apovor, Associate 
sapovor@kbra.com, (301) 969-3244 
 

Thomas Curley, Senior Analyst 
tcurley@kbra.com, (301) 969-3245 
 

Amina Ouattara, Senior Analyst 
aouattara@kbra.com, (301) 969-3187 
 

Trent Walters, Analyst   
twalters@kbra.com, (301) 969-3243 
 

John Rempe, Analyst 
jrempe@kbra.com, (301) 969-3045 
 

 

 

 

 

© Copyright 2017, Kroll Bond Rating Agency, Inc., and/or its licensors and affiliates (together, "KBRA”). All rights reserved. All 
information contained herein is proprietary to KBRA and is protected by copyright and other intellectual property law, and none of such 
information may be copied or otherwise reproduced, further transmitted, redistributed, repackaged or resold, in whole or in part, by 
any person, without KBRA’s prior express written consent. Ratings are licensed by KBRA under these conditions. Misappropriation or 
misuse of KBRA ratings may cause serious damage to KBRA for which money damages may not constitute a sufficient remedy; KBRA 
shall have the right to obtain an injunction or other equitable relief in addition to any other remedies. The statements contained in this 
report are based solely upon the opinions of KBRA and the data and information available to the authors at the time of publication of 
this report. All information contained herein is obtained by KBRA from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable; however, 
KBRA ratings are provided “AS IS”. No warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy, timeliness, completeness, merchantability, or 
fitness for any particular purpose of any rating or other opinion or information is given or made by KBRA. Under no circumstances shall 
KBRA have any liability resulting from the use of any such information, including without limitation, for any indirect, special, 
consequential, incidental or compensatory damages whatsoever (including without limitation, loss of profits, revenue or goodwill), even 
if KBRA is advised of the possibility of such damages. The credit ratings, if any, and analysis constituting part of the information 
contained herein are, and must be construed solely as, statements of opinion and not statements of fact or recommendations to 
purchase, sell or hold any securities. KBRA receives compensation for its rating activities from issuers, insurers, guarantors and/or 
underwriters of debt securities for assigning ratings and from subscribers to its website.  

Attachment 3 Page 24

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 201

https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/6754
https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/6511
https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/6406
https://www.krollbondratings.com/show_report/6204
mailto:vhesser@kbra.com
mailto:jscott@kbra.com
mailto:ijaffe@kbra.com
mailto:varscott@kbra.com
mailto:aphillips@kbra.com
mailto:bstewart@kbra.com
mailto:lhallfors@kbra.com
mailto:sdurant@kbra.com
mailto:jszelc@kbra.com
mailto:sapovor@kbra.com
mailto:tcurley@kbra.com
mailto:aouattara@kbra.com
mailto:twalters@kbra.com
mailto:jrempe@kbra.com


ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: February 8, 2018 
 
Re: Resolution Delegating to the Executive Director of the Illinois Finance Authority the Power to 

Develop and Administer a Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy Program 
 
 
Request: 
 
The Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) is requesting approval of a Resolution delegating to the 
Executive Director the power to develop and administer a commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy 
(“PACE”) program in connection with recently enacted state legislation.   
 
Background: 
 
According to the U.S. Department of Energy, approximately $400 million in projects has been financed 
through commercial PACE programs in at least 30 states as of early 2007.  Enabling legislation for 
commercial PACE in Illinois was signed into law in August 2017. 
 
As provided for under the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (50 ILCS 50/), owners of privately-owned 
commercial, industrial, non-residential agricultural, or multi-family (of 5 or more units) properties in 
Illinois can finance up to 100% of their energy efficiency and renewable energy projects through a local 
unit of government that has established a PACE area within its jurisdictional boundaries. 
 
Local units of government fund these energy efficiency and renewable energy projects and are repaid 
through an assessment imposed by the county which constitutes a lien against the property on which the 
assessment is imposed until the assessment, including any interest or penalty, is paid in full.  Program 
administrators originate and underwrite qualifying projects and facilitate access to capital on behalf of the 
local units of government.   
 
Accordingly, development of a commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy Program by the Authority 
may provide the following benefits: 
 

 Utilizes a statewide body politic and corporate for issuance of conduit revenue bonds, supplanting 
need for local units of government to issue costly and time-consuming Supplemental Act 
Assessment Bonds to fund qualifying projects; and 

 Statewide PACE program removes administrative burden and liability otherwise borne on local 
units of government at no cost; and 

 Uniform assessment and bond document provisions may be replicated for each PACE transaction, 
reducing fees; and 

 Commercial PACE achieves economies of scale with respect to program costs, i.e. marketing, 
management, etc.   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 202



Commercial PACE  Resolution 
Page 2  February 8, 2018 
  Brad R. Fletcher 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-0208-AD__ 
 

RESOLUTION DELEGATING TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY THE POWER TO DEVELOP AND 
ADMINISTER A COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY 
PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and exists 

under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq.) (the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized to make loans and enter into loan agreements to 

accomplish the purposes of the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized, pursuant to the Act in general and Article 825 thereof 

specifically, to issue revenue bonds to finance, among other things, Energy Efficiency and Renewable 
Energy projects (all as defined or provided in the Act); and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 11, 2017, Governor Bruce Rauner signed House Bill 2831, creating the 

Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (50 ILCS 501/ et seq.) (the “PACE Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the PACE Act, a county, city, or village (each, a “Local Unit of 

Government”), may create a property assessed clean energy program to provide financing for energy 
projects on privately-owned commercial, industrial, non-residential agricultural, or multi-family (of 5 or 
more units) real property (“Commercial Property”) located within the jurisdictional boundaries of a Local 
Unit of Government (the “PACE Area”); and 

 
WHEREAS, a Local Unit of Government may enter into an assessment contract with the record 

owner of Commercial Property to provide for the repayment of the cost of an energy project through 
assessments upon the Commercial Property benefited; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article 7, Section 10(a) of the 1970 Constitution of Illinois and the 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, as amended (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.), authorize “public agencies” to 
contract with other “public agencies” to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which 
any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority desires to make loans and/or issue revenue bonds to fund energy 

projects on Commercial Properties within PACE Areas on behalf of Local Units of Government; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY 
AS FOLLOWS:  
 

Section 1.  Delegation to the Executive Director.  The Authority hereby delegates to the 
Executive Director of the Authority, in conjunction with the other officers of the Authority, the power to 
take or cause to be taken any and all such actions, and to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all 
such agreements, instruments, certificates and other documents as may be required in connection with the 
development and administration of the Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy Program. 
 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to 
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,  paragraph  
or  provision  shall  not  affect  any  of  the  remaining  provisions  of  this Resolution. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 203



Commercial PACE  Resolution 
Page 2  February 8, 2018 
  Brad R. Fletcher 
 
 

Section 3.  Enactment.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage, as by law provided. 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 204



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Stanley Luboff 
 
Date: February 8, 2018 
 
Re: Resolution Approving Implementation of a New Participation Loan Program for the Illinois 

Finance Authority, and Delegating Authority to Establish Policies and Procedures for Such 
Program within Parameters 

 
 
Request: 
 
Revise and relaunch the Authority’s Participation Loan Program based on current legislative authority, 
utilizing the successful guidelines and procedures applied under DCEO’s Advantage Illinois Program.  
Additionally, approve available Authority Funds on 2/8/18 (amount to be determined) for use in a 
Participation Loan Program for Veteran-Owned businesses as a pilot effort. 
 
Impact: 
 
Approval of this Resolution will enable the Authority to quickly establish a Veterans’ Loan Program, as 
was the object of legislation enacted in 2015, though now to be carried out with a product line expected to 
be more attractive to Lenders and more effective in assisting Veterans. Upon Board approval, draft Master 
Participation Loan Program Agreement documentation (attached), will be delivered to banks known to be 
active in DCEO’s Advantage Illinois Participation Loan Program. It is anticipated that, because the 
documentation is similar to that which has been accepted by lenders active in the DCEO program, the banks 
will readily accept the IFA program.  Though the initial goal is to establish a Veterans’ Loan program, it is 
anticipated that the Authority will be able to expand the program to Agriculture, Small Business (under 500 
employees), and DBE/MBE/WBE-owned businesses. 
 
Once a track record of projects is established (expected within 6 to 12 months), we anticipate developing a 
state legislative strategy to allow the conversion of Guarantee Program funds, (currently estimated to be 
~$26MM, vs est. $7MM in potential exposure), to Participation Loan Program funds, thus providing the 
Authority with more appropriate use of its financial resources.   
 
Background: 
 
Rationale for Creation of Participation Loan Program:  An in-depth review and analysis of the Authority’s 
IFA Agricultural and Veterans Guarantee Programs was conducted.  It was concluded that IFA’s programs 
were uncompetitive against longer-established and better-funded SBA Programs and USDA Programs. 
These well-staffed opposing programs are also more widely marketed and are supported by robust 
centralized administrative and servicing infrastructures. Furthermore current IFA guarantee statutes require 
that Lenders seeking IFA Guarantees must provide below-market interest rates, unlike competing, 
Federally-supported guarantee programs. Lastly, the pricing structure outlined in the current statutes does 
not adequately compensate IFA, often generating a fiscal loss to the Authority.   
 
Current legislation pertaining to the IFA Guarantee Programs requires complete collateral coverage up to 
the amount of the Authority’s Guarantee amount and limits the end user’s use of IFA-supported financing 
to the funding of more “lendable” types of collateral, such as real estate assets and capital equipment.  
These limitations fail to address the real, primary requirements of the types of activities and businesses to 
which Veterans’ are mainly drawn (such as service/skills-oriented businesses, franchises, restaurants/snack 
shops, etc., all of which are typically established in leased premises. Adding to this collateral shortfall is the 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 205



Participation Loan  Resolution Establishing Policies and Procedures  
Program  February 8, 2018 
Page 2  Stan Luboff 

   
fact that Veterans, while typically persistent in pursuit of their goals, of good character, and armed with a 
variety of useful skills, normally possess little in the way of personal start-up equity.  
  
Though it is possible to improve the Guarantee Programs over time, it is felt that securing legislative action 
to enable IFA to implement the modifications necessary would be too time-consuming to meet the need for 
near term action. Thus a review of the current market programs to assist Veterans’ business activities was 
conducted. 
 
Despite all the pronouncements concerning the provision of support for Veteran-owned start-up businesses, 
most Lender-based programs are primarily passive in nature, and do not produce the level of loan activity 
that one would expect, based on the level of publicity emanating from the industry.  There appears to be 
little in the way of a genuine proactive pursuit of lending activity to Veteran start-up businesses, with most 
banks simply awaiting referrals from the Small Business Administration and/or loan brokers.  Once these 
handoffs are made, the banks tend to proceed only if support from the SBA’s Veterans Advantage Program 
is available. (This program is basically SBA’s Express (Guarantee) Program, but with the SBA’s standard 
3% upfront fee waived for Veterans business loans, Veteran’s Advantage comprises only about 8% of all 
SBA Express activity, which in and of itself, is only a small fraction of total SBA activity.) 
 
IFA Staff also investigated the possibility of issuing IFA Direct Loans to Veteran start-up businesses, if 
supported by SBA’s Veterans’ Advantage Guarantee Program, but that appears to be a non-starter at this 
time, since the SBA regards IFA as an governmental arm of the State of Illinois, and thus, the only path for 
IFA to qualify for SBA support would be once IFA formed a non-profit, federally-certified Community 
Development Financial Institution and met other tests/hurdles. 
 
IFA Staff has concluded that the best, near-term course of action in establishing a Veterans Small Business 
financing vehicle would be to revise and reinvigorate IFA’s Participation Loan Program, but only after 
tailoring it after DCEO’s highly-successful Advantage Illinois Program. First, this proposal can be 
implemented quickly, in that Board approval, and not legislative action, is required to initiate the program. 
Furthermore, lenders prefer to operate under participation loan scenarios over guarantee procedures, despite 
the fact that the support, in percentage terms, is lower, since participation loan programs, such as the one 
being proposed, are viewed as less ambiguous and administratively burdensome than most guarantee 
programs.  It should also be noted that there are approximately 120 lenders across the State that are already 
comfortable with the DCEO product and its attendant application, approval and documentation processes, 
and so we expect that IFA will be able to promptly enter the market with a familiar, successful product. 
 
Lastly, by employing pricing flexibility available to IFA, the Authority will be able to be both adequately 
compensated for the level of risk, while providing a product that will also catalyze lender support of 
Veteran loan activity and provide attractive below-market rate loans for Veterans. Furthermore, IFA Staff 
will also focus on generating better access to potential Veterans entrepreneurs via steady interaction with 
Veterans organizations as well coordinated marketing in conjunction with the Illinois Association of County 
Veterans Assistance Commissions and the Veterans Administration. (Some of these links have already been 
initiated/established by IFA.) 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 206



Participation Loan  Resolution Establishing Policies and Procedures  
Program  February 8, 2018 
Page 3  Stan Luboff 

   
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-0208-AD__ 

APPROVING IMPLEMENTATION OF A NEW PARTICIPATION LOAN 
PROGRAM FOR THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY, AND 
DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO ESTABLISH POLICIES AND 

PROCEDURES FOR SUCH PROGRAM WITHIN PARAMETERS 
 
WHEREAS, Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 Illinois Compiled 

Statutes 3501/801-1 et seq. (the “Act”), grants the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) all the 
“powers as a body corporate necessary and convenient to accomplish the purposes of the Act”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 801-30(a) of the Act specifically authorizes the Authority “to enter 

into loans, contracts, agreements and mortgages in any manner connected with any of its corporate 
purposes”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 801-30(e) of the Act specifically authorizes the Authority to “adopt 

all needful ordinances, resolutions, bylaws, rules and regulations for the conduct of its business and affairs 
and for the management and use of the projects developed, constructed, acquired and improved in 
furtherance of its purposes”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 801-30(f) of the Act specifically empowers the Authority to “have 

and exercise all powers . . . otherwise necessary to effectuate the purposes of” the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 801-40(i) of the Act grants the Authority the power “to make loans to 

persons to finance a project, to enter into loan agreements with respect thereto, and to accept guarantees 
from persons on its loans or the resultant evidences of obligations of the Authority”; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to its statutory powers, the Members of the Authority heretofore 

authorized a prior Participation Loan Program (the “Original Program”) and, in connection with the 
Original Program, established the policies and procedures of the Authority which were used in connection 
with the Original Program, for which loans are no longer being initiated but with respect to which some 
loans are outstanding; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to implement a new Participation Loan Program (the 

“New Program”), the focus of which shall be, among other things, to support Illinois Veterans and Illinois 
Veterans-Owned Business; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority intends that the New Program be separate and apart from any 

Direct Loan Program that may from time to time be initiated and continued pursuant to Section 801-40(r) of 
the Act, and therefore the New Program shall not be subject to the specific parameters of any such Direct 
Loan Program conducted under Section 801-40(r) of the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority intends to fund its purchase of loan participations in the New 

Program primarily with funds on deposit from time to time in the Authority’s General Operating Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has lead a comprehensive review of the current 

policies and procedures applicable to the Authority’s Original Program, including an analysis of 
modifications that would be appropriate to incorporate into the New Program to make the New Program 
more competitive in view of current market lending conditions, to address the needs of financial institutions 
and current and potential borrowers and the economic realities confronting projects appropriate for funding 
by the New Program, and he has reported the findings and recommendation developed as a result of this 
review to the Members; and 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 207



Participation Loan  Resolution Establishing Policies and Procedures  
Program  February 8, 2018 
Page 4  Stan Luboff 

   
 
WHEREAS, based on this review, the Members of the Authority have determined that it is 

in the best interests of the Authority to implement the New Program to approve a form of Participation 
Loan Agreement (the “Participation Loan Agreement”) to be entered into by the Authority with financial 
institutions participating in the New Program and to grant authority to the Executive Director and other 
appropriate officers to adopt new policies and procedures related to and governing the New Program, 
thereby facilitating the Authority’s purpose of fostering economic development and job creation and 
retention throughout the State of Illinois and to support Illinois Veterans and Veteran-Owned Businesses; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Members of the Authority have the power to adopt this Resolution 

pursuant to Sections 801-25, 801-30 and 801-40 of the Act; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY MEMBERS OF THE ILLINOIS 

FINANCE AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as it fully set forth herein, including without limitation, the 
delegation to the Executive Director and other appropriate officers of authority to adopt new policies and 
procedures related to and governing the New Program and approval of funds on deposit from time to time 
in the Authority’s General Operating Fund to fund the New Program. 

 
Section 2. Approval of Participation Loan Agreement.  The Members do hereby 

approve and adopt the form of Participation Loan Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such 
changes or modifications as shall be approved from time to time by the Executive Director, as evidenced by 
the execution of each specific Participation Loan Agreement by the Executive Director. 

 
Section 3. Enactment.  This Resolution shall take immediate effect.  If any section, 

paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the 
invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining 
provisions of the Resolution. 

 
Section 4. Further Actions.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver all 
documents as may in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
terms and provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and doings of the Executive Director of the 
Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or 
hereafter taken or done, shall be and the same are hereby in all respects ratified, confirmed and approved.  
All prior and future acts and doings of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the execution and 
performance of the Resolution shall be and the same hereby are in all respects approved and confirmed. 

 
Section 5. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution 

shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 6. Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 

are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 208



IFA Ownership and Project Finance 
Program

Presented by:

Pamela Lenane, Executive Vice President, Healthcare

Illinois Finance Authority

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 209



• Loop Capital Markets brought program to IFA and will coordinate any projects constructed 
through this program

• Traditionally, 501(c)3 organizations issue their tax-exempt bonds through a conduit to fund 
projects or refinance debt

• Certain conduit issuers have the legislative authority to issue governmental bonds to acquire 
or own certain assets that provide a public benefit (“Ownership and Project Finance Program”)

• The Ownership and Project Finance Program serves to ease the debt capacity concerns of 
certain entities by allowing them to build or renovate facilities without adding debt to their 
balance sheet

- Preserves limited debt capacity

• Entities seeking to execute projects through the IFA’s Ownership and Project Finance Program 
can avoid using an underlying 501(c)3 as the borrower while still being able to access the tax-
exempt market

• Conduit charges an upfront and ongoing annual fee

• Loop Capital Markets will review credit quality of projects

Executive Summary:

*subject to underwriting / credit review. 2
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 210



• IFA owns asset, collects revenues net of expenses and pays debt service

• IFA will enter into a management/development agreement with a manager/developer

• Agreements between conduit and trustee
– Trust indenture
– Leasehold/first lien mortgage

• Loop Capital Markets will finance the construction of the Project

• The IFA and Loop Capital Markets will receive a feasibility study supporting the viability of the 
Project

Structure Overview:

3
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 211



Flow Chart:

IFA

Operating
Asset

Trustee
Proceeds ($)

Bonds

Ownership      Revenues 

Debt Service 
Payment ($)

Investors

Development Agreement
Management Agreement

Developer/ 
Manager

Trust Indenture
Leasehold/1st Lien 

Mortgage

4
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 212



Illinois Finance Authority
160 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, IL  60601
P:  312.651.1340
F:  312.651.1350
http://www.il-fa.com

Contact:
Pamela Lenane
Executive Vice President, Healthcare
Direct:  312.651.1340
plenane@il-fa.com

Loop Capital Markets
Prakash Ramani
Senior Vice President
Phone:  312.356.5005
prakash.ramani@loopcapital.com

Contact Information

5
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 213



IFA RESOLUTION NUMBER 2018-0208-AD07 
 

07B IFA Ownership and Project Finance Program_Resolution_20180208AD07.doc 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY OWNERSHIP AND PROJECT FINANCE PROGRAM; AND 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY TO TAKE STEPS RELATED TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate of the State of 
Illinois (the “Authority”), has been created by the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 
3501/801-1 et seq., as supplemented and amended (the “Act”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority has the power to enter into loans, contracts, 
agreements and mortgages in any manner connected with any of its corporate purposes;  

WHEREAS, the Act provides that the Authority has the power to acquire by purchase, 
lease, gift or otherwise any property or rights therein from any person useful for its purposes, 
whether improved for the purposes of any prospective project (as defined in the Act), or 
unimproved;  

WHEREAS, the Authority also has the power under the Act to develop, construct and 
improve either under its own direction, or through collaboration with any approved applicant, or 
to acquire through purchase or otherwise, any project, using for such purpose the proceeds 
derived from the sale of its bonds, and to hold title to such project in the name of the Authority; 

WHEREAS, the Act provides that the Authority may issue bonds for its corporate purposes 
and such bonds may be secured by the receipts, revenues, income and other available funds of 
the Authority and the bonds may be issued as limited obligations with a claim for payment solely 
from such revenues, funds and obligations as provided in the resolution authorizing such bonds; 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to develop a program to assist with the construction, 
financing and operation of projects in the State of Illinois and, as permitted by the Act, in other 
states;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to its powers, the Authority proposes to develop its Ownership and 
Project Finance Program (the “OPF Program”) to provide such assistance;  

WHEREAS, it is expected that pursuant to the OPF Program (i) the Authority will issue its 
revenue bonds from time to time and use the proceeds thereof to acquire ownership of and 
develop a project, (ii) the Authority will enter into a management agreement and, if necessary, 
development agreement with a third party pursuant to which the Authority will pay the third 
party to develop, manage and operate the project, as applicable, and (iii) the Authority will use 
the revenues and income of the project to, among other things permitted under the Act, pay debt 
service on the bonds; and 

WHEREAS, upon request of interested parties in the OPF Program, Loop Capital Markets 
LLC will coordinate the acquisition of projects, locate and assess the creditworthiness of third 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 214



 - 2 - 

 

party managers and owners and will act as placement agent, underwriter or otherwise finance the 
projects pursuant to the OPF Program; and   

WHEREAS, the Authority may engage a municipal advisor for each series of bonds issued 
through the OPF Program or for all of the bonds issued through OPF Program, if deemed 
necessary or desirable by the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority will adopt separate approving resolutions for each series of 
bonds issued through the OPF Program that will identify the project being acquired and the 
managers and developers of the project;   

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize the Executive Director and staff of the 
Authority to take such actions as they determine to be necessary or desirable to develop the OPF 
Program; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 

Section 1.  Development of OPF Program.  The development of the OPF Program is 
hereby authorized and approved. 

Section 2.  Authority of Executive Director and employees of the Authority.  The 
Executive Director of the Authority and any employees of the Authority designated by the 
Executive Director are hereby authorized to take such steps, including without limitation 
engagement of legal counsel, as they determine necessary or desirable to develop the OPF 
Program. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 215



IFA Medium Term Healthcare Finance 
Program

Presented by:

Pamela Lenane, Executive Vice President, Healthcare

Illinois Finance Authority

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 216



• Low Interest Rates.

• Simplified documentation and process.

• Financing for Assets, Technology, EMR/EHR, projects, monetizing owned 
assets, build out/tenant improvement/soft costs

• No post funding interest rate risk

• Extended Rate Lock options

Highlighted Benefits:

2
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 217



Rates:

3
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 218



• Still historic low interest rates and high market returns

Unique timing:

4
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 219



Marketing Plan:

• Targeted, organized list for marketing campaign
• Capture notes and action items
• Networking at Associations (IHA and HFMA)

5
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 220



Illinois Finance Authority
160 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, IL  60601
P:  312.651.1340
F:  312.651.1350
http://www.il-fa.com

Contact:
Pamela Lenane
Executive Vice President, Healthcare
Direct:  312.651.1340
plenane@il-fa.com

Contact Information

6
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 221



08B IFA Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program Resolution_20180802AD08.docx 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-0208-AD08 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RESTRUCTURING OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY MEDCAP PROGRAM TO THE  MEDIUM TERM HEALTHCARE 

FINANCE PROGRAM; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY TO TAKE STEPS RELATED TO THE 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by the 
Illinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (the “Act”); 

WHEREAS, the Act provides that “it is the intent of the General Assembly of the State of 
Illinois to provide a measure of assistance and alternative methods of financing to participating 
health institutions to aid them in providing needed health facilities that will assure admission and 
care of high quality to all who need it”; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is granted the power to issue bonds, notes, 
certificates and any other evidence of indebtedness for its corporate purposes; and 

WHEREAS, certain health facilities would benefit from additional access to capital; and 

 WHEREAS, health facilities have significant capital expenditures, including, without 
limitation, expenditures related to the renovation and remodeling of their healthcare facilities and 
additions to, and maintenance of, their information technology systems; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to assist such health facilities in gaining easier access to 
capital, including capital related to the renovation and remodeling of their healthcare facilities 
and additions to, and maintenance of, their information technology systems; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has established its “Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program” 
to provide such assistance; and 

WHEREAS, it is expected that pursuant to the Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program 
the Authority will issue its revenue notes to private purchasers (each, a “Note Purchaser”) and 
loan the proceeds of the sale of such notes to health facilities (each, a “Borrower”); and 

WHEREAS, it is expected that the revenue notes will be issued and the loans will be made 
pursuant to the terms of master financing agreements and attached schedules (each, collectively,  
an “Agreement”), each such Agreement to be among the Authority, a Note Purchaser and a 
Borrower; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize the Executive Director and staff of the 
Authority to take such actions as they determine to be necessary or desirable to further develop 
the Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program and to create a model Agreement; 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 222



NOW THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY as follows: 

1. The development of the Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program is hereby 
authorized and approved. 

2. The Executive Director of the Authority and any employees of the Authority 
designated by the Executive Director are hereby authorized to take such steps, including without 
limitation engagement of legal counsel, as they determine necessary or desirable to develop the 
Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program, including authorization to have a model Agreement 
prepared for use with the Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program. 

3. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if any 
section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such 
declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of 
this Resolution. 

4. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

5. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage, as 
by law provided. 

Approved and effective this 8th day of February, 2018. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstain: 

Absent: 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

By ____________________________________ 
Executive Director 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
                     Assistant Secretary 
[SEAL] 
 

 
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 223



1 
 

RESOLUTION No. 2017-0208-____ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CONFIRMING VARIOUS 
PROCUREMENT MATTERS, INCLUDING (I) A CONTRACT 
WITH BAKER & HOSTETLTER LLP (LEGAL SERVICES), (II) 
A CONTRACT WITH THE CRYPSIS GROUP (NETWORK 
SERVICES), (III) A PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH 
CATHY LYDON (CONSULTING SERVICES), (IV) A PERSONAL 
SERVICES CONTRACT WITH JANELLA KACZANKO 
(CONSULTING SERVICES), (V) AN AMENDMENT TO A 
CONTRACT WITH CATALYST CONSULTING GROUP, INC. 
(INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING AND 
SUPPORT), AND (VI) AN ASSIGNMENT OF A CONTRACT 
(LEGAL SERVICES) FROM POLSINELLI P.C. TO BARNES & 
THORNBURG LLP 

 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created and 
exists under the Illinois Finance Authority Act (20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq.) (the “Act”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on January 10, 2018, in accordance with the provisions of the Illinois 
Procurement Code (30 ILCS 500/1-1 et seq.) (the “Procurement Code”), the Authority 
entered into a contract with Baker & Hostetler LLP (the “Baker Contract”) for the 
provision of legal services relating to data security for a two-year period ending on 
January 9, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2018, in accordance with the provisions of the Code, 
the Authority entered into a contract with The Crypsis Group (as amended, the “Crypsis 
Contract”) for the provision of network services for a one-year period ending on January 
9, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, on November 3, 2017, in accordance with the provisions of the Code, 
the Authority entered into a personal services contract with Kathleen Lydon (the “Lydon 
PSC”) for the provision of certain consulting services relating to legislative tracking and 
analysis; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2018, in accordance with the provisions of the Code, 
the Authority entered into a PSC with Janella Kaczanko (the “Kaczanko PSC”) for the 
provision of certain consulting services relating to human resources and benefits; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2017, in accordance with the provisions of the 
Procurement Code, the Authority entered into a contract with Catalyst Consulting Group, 
Inc. (“Catalyst”) for the provision of IT network consulting services for the Authority’s 
voice and data network for a one year period ending on March 31, 2018 for the amount of 
$108,000 (the “Original Catalyst Contract”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 14, 2017, the Members of the Authority adopted a 
resolution (the “December Resolution”) approving an amendment to the Catalyst 
Contract which increased the amount thereunder by $180,000 for a revised cost of 
$288,000 in order to provide for additional support services to configure, install, and 
provide other services in connection with security and hardware upgrades to ensure that 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 224



2 
 

the Authority’s technology continues to meet the demands of the Authority’s operations 
(the Original Catalyst Contract as so amended, the “Catalyst Contract”); and 

  
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has determined that the need for such 

additional support services is greater than was known at the time of the previous meeting 
of the Members of the Authority on December 14, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4 of the December Resolution, the Executive 

Director is authorized to take such actions and enter into such agreements as are 
necessary or desirable to ensure the continuation of services covered by the Catalyst 
Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Procurement Code and 

Resolution No. 2017-0209-AD05, Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to 
Enter into Contracts with Various Legal Firms, the Authority entered into a contract with 
Polsinelli P.C. (“Polsinelli”) for the provision of legal services for a four-year period for 
an estimated maximum amount of $114,285.71 (the “Polsinelli Contract”); and 

 
WHEREAS, due to a lawyer changing firms, Polsinelli and Barnes & Thornburg 

LLP (“BT”) have requested that the Members of the Authority consent to the assignment 
of the Polsinelli Contract to BT (as assigned, the “Assigned Contract”), and the Executive 
Director has determined that such assignment is desirable; and 
 

WHEREAS, the above contracts are or may be for amounts of $50,000 or more; 
and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance 
Authority as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 Section 2.  Approval of Baker Contract.  The execution and delivery of the 
Baker Contract by the Authority are hereby confirmed, ratified and approved. If 
additional actions are necessary or desirable to extend the Baker Contract beyond the 
period herein described, the Executive Director is hereby authorized to take such actions 
and enter into such agreements as are necessary or desirable to ensure the continuation of 
the services covered by the Baker Contract. 
 
 Section 3.  Approval of Crypsis Contract.  The execution and delivery of the 
Crypsis Contract by the Authority are hereby confirmed, ratified and approved.  If 
additional actions are necessary or desirable to further amend or to extend the Ascent 
Contract beyond the current period, the Executive Director is hereby authorized to take 
such actions and enter into such agreements as are necessary or desirable to ensure the 
continuation of services covered by the Crypsis Contract. 
 

Section 4.  Approval of Lydon PSC.  The execution and delivery of the Lydon 
PSC by the Authority are hereby confirmed, ratified and approved.  If additional actions 
are necessary or desirable to further amend or to extend the Lydon PSC beyond the 
current period, the Executive Director is hereby authorized to take such actions and enter 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 225



3 
 

into such agreements as are necessary or desirable to ensure the continuation of services 
covered by the Lydon PSC. 

 
Section 5.  Approval of Kaczanko PSC.  The execution and delivery of the 

Kaczanko PSC by the Authority are hereby confirmed, ratified and approved.  If 
additional actions are necessary or desirable to further amend or to extend the Kaczanko 
PSC beyond the current period, the Executive Director is hereby authorized to take such 
actions and enter into such agreements as are necessary or desirable to ensure the 
continuation of services covered by the Kaczanko PSC. 

 
Section 6.  Approval to Amend Catalyst Contract.  The execution and delivery 

by the Executive Director or his designee of any amendment to the Catalyst Contract that 
is reasonable and necessary to ensure the continuation of services covered by the Catalyst 
Contract are hereby authorized and approved.   

 
Section 7.  Consent to Assignment of Polsinelli Contract.  The assignment of 

the Polsinelli Contract from Polsinelli to BT is hereby consented to, authorized and 
approved.  If additional actions are necessary or desirable to further amend or to extend 
the Assigned Contract beyond the current period, the Executive Director is hereby 
authorized to take such actions and enter into such agreements as are necessary or 
desirable to ensure the continuation of services covered by the Assigned Contract. 
 

Section 8.  Further Actions.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver all documents as may in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry 
out and comply with the terms and provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and 
doings of the Executive Director of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent 
and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be 
and the same are hereby in all respects ratified, confirmed and approved.  All prior and 
future acts and doings of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the 
execution and performance of the Resolution shall be and the same hereby are in all 
respects approved and confirmed. 

 
Section 9.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this 

Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Resolution. 

 
Section 10.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

herewith are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 11.  Immediate Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its passage, as by law provided. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 226



4 
 

Approved and effective this 8th day of February, 2018 by roll call vote as 
follows: 
 
 Yeas: 
 
 Nays: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
 Absent: 
 
 Vacancies: 
 
        
 

      ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
           ____________________________________ 
           Executive Director 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

      ____________________________________ 
                    Assistant Secretary 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 227



1 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2018-0208-__ 
 

APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY AND ASSISTANT 
SECRETARY OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY AND 

MATTERS RELATED THERETO 
 
 WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been 
created by, and exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act (20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et 
seq.), as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 845-40 of the Act and Article III, Section 3 and 
Section 4 of Resolution No. 2007-07-21, Resolution Adopting the Amended and Restated 
By-Laws of the Illinois Finance Authority (“By-Laws”), the Authority is authorized to 
appoint a Secretary and one or more Assistant Secretaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mr. Brad Fletcher and Ms. Mari Money currently serve as Assistant 
Secretaries of the Authority; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to fulfill duties under the Act and the By-Laws, the Members 
of the Authority deem it proper to appoint __________________ as Secretary to the 
Authority and to appoint Mr. Ryan Oechsler, Associate General Counsel to the Authority, 
as an additional Assistant Secretary to the Authority and to assign to each of the Assistant 
Secretaries duties as authorized by the Act, administrative rules, certain resolutions, 
certain agreements and the By-Laws of the Authority; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 Section 2.  Appointment of Secretary.  ________________ is appointed to the 
Office of Secretary of the Authority and shall serve in that office during the pleasure of 
the Members of the Authority.  Before entering upon the duties of Secretary of the 
Authority, _______________ shall take and subscribe to the constitutional oath of office.  
As Secretary, ________ shall have the same powers prescribed for the Office as 
authorized by the Act, other statute, the By-Laws, any resolution of the Authority, and 
any other rule, regulation, policy or practice of the Authority.  The Treasurer shall 
exercise these powers as directed by the Members of the Authority and the Executive 
Director. 
 
 Section 3.  Appointment of an additional Assistant Secretary.  In order to 
facilitate the effective execution of duties by the Secretary and the current Assistant 
Secretaries, the Members of the Authority deem it appropriate to appoint an additional 
Assistant Secretary.  Mr. Ryan Oechsler is appointed to the Office of Assistant Secretary 
and shall serve in that office during the pleasure of the Members of the Authority.  Before 
entering upon the duties of Assistant Secretary of the Authority, Mr. Oechsler shall take 
and subscribe to the constitutional oath of office.  Each Assistant Secretary shall have the 
same powers prescribed for the Office of Secretary of the Authority as authorized by 
statute, the Authority’s By-Laws, any resolution of the Authority, and any other rule, 
regulation, policy or practice of the Authority.  Each Assistant Secretary shall exercise 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 228



2 
 

these powers as directed by the Members of the Authority, the Executive Director and the 
Secretary.  The newly appointed Assistant Secretary shall have co-equal duties with the 
current two Assistant Secretaries, Mr. Brad Fletcher and Ms. Mari Money, whose 
appointments are hereby confirmed. 
 
 Section 4.  Further Actions.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver all documents as may in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry 
out and comply with the terms and provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and 
doings of the Executive Director of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent 
and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be 
and the same are hereby in all respects ratified, confirmed and approved.  All prior and 
future acts and doings of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the 
execution and performance of the Resolution shall be and the same hereby are in all 
respects approved and confirmed. 
 
 Section 5.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Resolution. 
 

Section 6.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 
herewith are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 7.  Immediate Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its passage, as by law provided. 
 
 Approved and effective this 8th day of February, 2018, by roll call vote as 
follows: 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
 Absent: 
 
 Vacancy: 
 
      ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
           
      ________________________________ 
      Executive Director 
 
[SEAL] 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Assistant Secretary 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 229



1 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2018-0208-__ 
 

APPOINTMENT OF TREASURER OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 
AUTHORITY 

 
 WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been 
created by, and exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act (20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et 
seq.), as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 845-40 of the Act and Article III, Section 3 and 
Section 4 of Resolution No. 2007-07-21, Resolution Adopting the Amended and Restated 
By-Laws of the Illinois Finance Authority (“By-Laws”), the Authority is authorized to 
appoint a Treasurer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to fulfill duties under the Act and the By-Laws, the Members 
of the Authority deem it proper to appoint _________________ as Treasurer to the 
Authority, and to assign to [him/her] duties as authorized by the Act, administrative rules, 
certain resolutions, certain agreements and the By-Laws of the Authority; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
  
 Section 2.  Appointment of Treasurer.   ________________ is appointed to the 
Office of Treasurer of the Authority and shall serve in that office during the pleasure of 
the Members of the Authority.  Before entering upon the duties of Treasurer of the 
Authority, _______________ shall take and subscribe to the constitutional oath of office 
and shall execute a bond with corporate sureties.  As Treasurer, ________ shall have the 
same powers prescribed for the Office as authorized by the Act, other statutes, the By-
Laws, any resolution of the Authority, and any other rule, regulation, policy or practice of 
the Authority.  The Treasurer shall exercise these powers as directed by the Members of 
the Authority and the Executive Director. 
 
 Section 3.  Surety Bond.  The surety bond of the Treasurer shall be payable to 
the Authority in the penal sum of not less than $100,000 conditioned upon the faithful 
performance of the duties of Treasurer and the payment of all moneys received by the 
Treasurer according to law and the order of the Authority.  Such bond shall satisfy all of 
the requirements of Section 845-40 of the Act.  Authority is hereby delegated to the 
Executive Director to approve the Treasurer’s bond and to establish the penal sum of 
such bond (being not less than $100,000). 
 
 Section 4.  Duties of the Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall fulfill any and all 
duties of [his/her] office under the Act, administrative rules, certain resolutions, certain 
agreements and the By-Laws of the Authority, including without limitation the 
maintaining of certain funds and the signing of certain checks or drafts, as appropriate 
and as provided by the Act.  The Treasurer shall coordinate with the current vendor, 
ClearArc Capital, Inc., and with any future vendors providing investment management 
services to manage the investments of the Authority in accordance with the policies and 
procedures of the Authority and applicable laws and regulations and shall report to the 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 230



2 
 

Members of the Authority at least annually regarding such investments.  Authority is 
hereby delegated to the Executive Director to establish the form of such report. 
 
 Section 5.  Further Actions.  The Executive Director is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and 
deliver all documents as may in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry 
out and comply with the terms and provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and 
doings of the Executive Director of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent 
and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be 
and the same are hereby in all respects ratified, confirmed and approved.  All prior and 
future acts and doings of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in 
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the 
execution and performance of the Resolution shall be and the same hereby are in all 
respects approved and confirmed. 
 
 Section 6.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this 
Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the 
remaining provisions of this Resolution. 
 

Section 7.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 
herewith are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 8.  Immediate Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its passage, as by law provided. 
 
 Approved and effective this 8th day of February, 2018, by roll call vote as 
follows: 
 
 Ayes: 
 
 Nays: 
 
 Abstain: 
 
 Absent: 
 
 Vacancy: 
 
      ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
           
      ________________________________ 
      Executive Director 
 
[SEAL] 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Assistant Secretary 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 231


	AGENDA A - DO NOT TOUCH - BRAD ONLY 2018-02 (v7)
	AGENDA B - DO NOT TOUCH - BRAD ONLY 2018-02 (v7)
	AGENDA C - DO NOT TOUCH - BRAD ONLY 2018-02 (v7)
	Executive Director Msg Feb 8 2018 v5clean
	MINUTES A Cover Memo 02082018 (v1)
	MINUTES B REGULAR MEETING 11_09_17
	MINUTES C 11092017-board-voting-record (v1)
	MINUTES D Cover Memo 02082018 (v1)
	MINUTES E SPECIAL MEETING 11_30_17
	MINUTES F 11302017-board-voting-record (v1)
	MINUTES G Cover Memo 02082018
	MINUTES H REGULAR MEETING 12_14_17
	MINUTES I 12142017-board-voting-record
	FINANCIALS A Financial Analysis January 18
	FINANCIALS B 2018 JAN MONTHLY FINANCIALS Board
	INC ST-GEN FUND
	INC ST-ALL FUNDS
	BAL-SHT

	FINANCIALS C State Receivables Analysis -  December 18
	Treasury Report 01-Bonds Issued Fiscal Year Three Year 01-31-2018 Revised 2-7-2018 
	Treasury Report 02-Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book-Activity Report
	Treasury Report 03- Schedule of Debt 01312018
	PROCUREMENT BOD monthly Procurement Report Feb 2018 Final
	01 PUBLIC Beginning Farmer Bond Summary 02 08 18 (v2)
	02 Better Housing Found - Ernst Portfolio - FBR 2018-02-08 (v5) Clean
	03 UofC - Supplement to Dec 14 2017 Bond Resolution (v4)
	04A SC Community Bank Loan Memo 2018-02-08 (v10)
	04B SC Attachment 2 - Moody's Ratings Action - 2015 CDO - SC managed
	04C SC Attachment 3 - KBRA_Research -The_Case_for_Community_Banks - June 2017 - Labeled
	Summary
	Asset size might not be as important as you think
	Deposits, the great equalizer
	Operating expenses—where did the benefits of scale go?
	The key is not just scale, but local scale
	The risks of being simple
	Ever vigilant on commercial real estate
	The advantages of being simple
	Regulatory evolution helps
	Stronger capital rounds out the picture
	The KBRA Difference

	05 PACE Memo Resolution 2018-02 (v2)
	06 IFA Participation Loan Memo Resolution (v5)
	07A IFA Ownership and Project Finance Program_latest 02.01.18
	07B IFA Ownership and Project Finance Program_Resolution_20180208AD07
	08A IFA MedCap Program Medium Term Finance_02.01.18
	08B IFA Medium Term Healthcare Finance Program Resolution_20180802AD08
	09 Resolution Concerning Procurement (2018-02-__) v.3
	10 Resolution Appointing Secretary (2018-0208-__) v.2
	11 Resolution Appointing Treasurer (2018-0208-__)  v.3



